

Machine Controller MP2200 USER'S MANUAL



MANUAL NO. SIEP C880700 14E

Copyright © 2009 YASKAWA ELECTRIC CORPORATION

All rights reserved. No part of this publication may be reproduced, stored in a retrieval system, or transmitted, in any form, or by any means, mechanical, electronic, photocopying, recording, or otherwise, without the prior written permission of Yaskawa. No patent liability is assumed with respect to the use of the information contained herein. Moreover, because Yaskawa is constantly striving to improve its high-quality products, the information contained in this manual is subject to change without notice. Every precaution has been taken in the preparation of this manual. Nevertheless, Yaskawa assumes no responsibility for errors or omissions. Neither is any liability assumed for damages resulting from the use of the information contained in this publication.

Using this Manual

The MP2200 is a Machine Controller that can be greatly expanded by mounting up to nine Optional Modules per rack and connecting up to four racks. The CPU Module for the MP2200 achieves a high-speed motion control cycle of 0.5 ms and can control up to 256 axes.

Please read this manual to ensure correct usage of the MP2200 system and apply to your manufacturing system for control. Keep this manual in a safe place for future reference.

Basic Terms

Unless otherwise specified, the following definitions are used:

- MP2200: MP2200 Machine Controller
- MPE720: The Programming Device Software or a Programming Device (i.e., a personal computer) running the Programming Device Software
- PLC: Programmable Logic Controller

Manual Configuration

Read the chapters of this manual as required by the purpose.

Chapter	Selecting Models and Peripheral Devices	Studying Specifications and Ratings	Designing the System	Installation and Wiring	Trial Oper- ation	Maintenance and Inspec- tion
Chapter 1 Overview	\checkmark	-	_	_	-	-
Chapter 2 Overview of Specifications and Functions	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark	-	-
Chapter 3 Mounting and Wiring	-	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark	-	-
Chapter 4 System Startup	\checkmark	-	_	_	\checkmark	-
Chapter 5 Overview of System Opera- tion	_	-	\checkmark	-	\checkmark	-
Chapter 6 Built-in Ethernet Communi- cation (Supported by the CPU-03 and CPU-04)	_	_	V	-	\checkmark	_
Chapter 7 Easy Programming (Sup- ported by the CPU-03 and CPU-04)	-	-	\checkmark	-	\checkmark	-
Chapter 8 Maintenance, Inspection, and Troubleshooting	_	_	\checkmark	_	\checkmark	\checkmark

For information on how to use motion parameters and motion commands, refer to *Machine Controller MP2000-series* Built-in SVB/SVB-01 Motion Module User's Manual (manual no.: SIEP C880700 33).

Engineering Tool Used in this Manual

The displays for MPE720 version 6 are used for descriptions in this manual. If you are using MP720 version 5, interpret the displays according to MPE720 version 5.

Terms Used to Describe "Torque"

Although the term "torque" is commonly used when describing rotary servomotors and "force" or "thrust" are used when describing linear servomotors, this manual uses "torque" when describing both (excluding parameters).

Related Manuals

The following table lists the manuals relating to the MP2200. Refer to these manuals as required.

Manual Name	Manual Number	Contents
Machine Controller MP2000 Series SVA-01 Motion Module User's Manual	SIEP C880700 32	Describes the functions, specifications, and applica- tion methods of the MP2000-series SVA-01 Motion Module.
Machine Controller MP2000 Series Built-in SVB/SVB-01 Motion Module User's Manual	SIEP C880700 33	Describes the functions, specifications, and applica- tion methods of the MP2000-series Motion Module that is built into the SVA, SVB-01, and SVR Module.
Machine Controller MP2000 Series SVC-01 Motion Module User's Manual	SIEP C880700 41	Describes the functions, specifications, and applica- tion methods of the MP2000-series SVC-01 Motion Module.
Machine Controller MP2000 Series MPU-01 Multiple-CPU Module User's Manual	SIEP C880781 05	Describes the functions, specifications, and applica- tion methods of the MPU-01 Multiple-CPU Module that can be connected to MP2000 Series Machine Controllers.
Machine Controller MP2000 Series Pulse Output Motion Module PO-01 User's Manual	SIEP C880700 28	Describes the functions, specifications, and applica- tion methods of the MP2000-series PO-01 Motion Module.
Machine Controller MP2D00 Communication Module User's Manual	SIEP C880700 04	Describes the functions, specifications, and applica- tion methods of the MP2D00 Communication Mod- ules (217IF, 218IF, 260IF, 261IF).
Machine Controller MP2300S/MP2310/MP2400 Basic Module Supplement for Ethernet Commu- nications	SIEP C880700 37	Describes how to communicate with devices (PLCs, Windows computers, etc.) connected to the MP2300S/MP2310/MP2400 by Ethernet.
Machine Controller MP2000 Series 262IF-01 FL- net Communication Module User's Manual	SIEP C880700 36	Describes the specifications and communication methods of an FL-net Communication Module that can connect to an MP2000-series Machine Control- ler.
Machine Controller MP2000 Series 263IF-01 EtherNet/IP Communication Module User's Man- ual	SIEP C800700 39	Describes the specifications and communication methods of an EtherNet/IP Communication Module that can connect to an MP2000-series Machine Con- troller.
Machine Controller MP2000 Series I/O Module User's Manual	SIEP C800700 34	Describes functions, specifications, and application methods of the MP2000-series I/O Modules (LIO-01, LIO-02, LIO-04, LIO-05, LIO-06, and DO-01).
Machine Controller MP2000 Series Analog Input/Analog Output Module AI-01/AO-01 User's Manual	SIEP C800700 26	Describes the functions, specifications, and commu- nication methods of the MP2000-series I/O Modules (Al-01 and AO-01).
Machine Controller MP2000 Series Counter Module CNTR-01 User's Manual	SIEP C800700 27	Describes the functions, specifications, and applica- tion methods of the MP2000-series CNTR-01 Counter Module.
Machine Controller MP900/MP2000 Series User's Manual, Ladder Programming	SIEZ-C887-1.2	Describes the instructions used in MP900/MP2000 ladder programming.
Machine Controller MP2000 Series User's Manual, Motion Programming	SIEP C880700 38	Describes the motion language used with an MP2000-series Machine Controller.
Engineering Tool for MP2000 Series Machine Controller MPE720 Version 6 User's Manual	SIEP C880700 30	Describes the installation and operation of the engi- neering tool for MP2000-series Machine Controller MPE720 Version 6.
Machine Controller MP900/MP2000 Series MPE720 Software for Programming Device User's Manual	SIEP C880700 05	Describes how to install and operate the MP900/ MP2000-series programming system (MPE720).
Machine Controller MP900/MP2000 Series New Ladder Editor User's Manual Programming Instructions	SIEZ-C887-13.1	Describes the programming instructions of the New Ladder Editor, which assists MP900/MP2000-series design and maintenance.
Machine Controller MP900/MP2000 Series New Ladder Editor User's Manual Operation	SIEZ-C887-13.2	Describes the operating methods of the New Ladder Editor, which assists MP900/MP2000-series design and maintenance.

(cont'd)

Manual Name	Manual Number	Contents
Machine Controller MP900/MP2000 Series User's Manual, MECHATROLINK System	SIEZ-C887-5.1	Describes MECHATROLINK distributed I/O for MP900/MP2000-series Machine Controllers.
Machine Controller MP900/MP2000 Series Linear Servomotor Manual	SIEP C880700 06	Describes the connection methods, setting methods, and other information for Linear Servomotors.

■ "Torque"

"Torque" is used for Rotary Servomotors and "force" is used for Linear Servomotors. In this manual, however, "torque" is used for both types of Servomotors (except for parameter names).

Copyrights

- DeviceNet is a registered trademark of the ODVA (Open DeviceNet Venders Association).
- PROFIBUS is a trademark of the PROFIBUS User Organization.
- Ethernet is a registered trademark of the Xerox Corporation.
- Microsoft, Windows, Windows NT, and Internet Explorer are registered trademarks of the Microsoft Corporation.
- Pentium is a registered trademark of the Intel Corporation.

Safety Information

The following conventions are used to indicate precautions in this manual. These precautions are provided to ensure the safe operation of the MP2200 and connected devices. Information marked as shown below is important for the safety of the user. Always read this information and heed the precautions that are provided. The conventions are as follows:



Safety Precautions

The following precautions are for checking products on delivery, storage, transportation, installation, wiring, operation, application, inspection, and disposal. These precautions are important and must be observed.

General Precautions



Storage and Transportation



E CAUTION Never use the MP2200 in locations subject to water, corrosive atmospheres, or flammable gas, or near burnable objects. There is a risk of electrical shock or fire. Do not step on the MP2200 or place heavy objects on the MP2200. There is a risk of injury. Do not block the air exhaust port or allow foreign objects to enter the MP2200. There is a risk of element deterioration inside, an accident, or fire. Always mount the MP2200 in the specified orientation. There is a risk of an accident. Do not subject the MP2200 to strong shock. There is a risk of an accident.



•	Check the wiring to be sure it has been performed correctly.
	There is a risk of motor run-away, injury, or an accident.
•	Always use a power supply of the specified voltage.
	There is a risk of burning.
•	In places with poor power supply conditions, take all steps necessary to ensure that the input power sup is within the specified voltage range.
	There is a risk of device damage.
•	Install breakers and other safety measure to provide protection against shorts in external wiring.
	There is a risk of fire.
•	Provide sufficient shielding when using the MP2200 in the following locations.
	There is a risk of device damage.
	Noise, such as from static electricity
	Strong electromagnetic or magnetic fields
	Radiation
	• Near to power lines
٠	When connecting the battery, connect the polarity correctly.
	There is a risk of battery damage or explosion.
٠	Do not allow the battery to be replaced by anyone other than qualified personnel who have received saf
	Improper battery replacement can result in electric shock. It can also cause equipment malfunction, injury to oper tors, or equipment damage.
٠	Do not touch the battery terminals when replacing the battery.
	There is a risk of electrostatic discharge failure.



Maintenance and Inspection Precautions

Do not attempt to disassemble the MP2200. There is a risk of electrical shock or injury. Do not change wiring while power is being supplied. There is a risk of electrical shock or injury. When replacing the MP2200, restart operation only after transferring the programs and parameters from the old Module to the new Module. There is a risk of device damage.

Disposal Precautions

- Dispose of the MP2200 as general industrial waste.
- A lithium battery is built into the Controller. After replacing the battery, dispose of the old battery separate from regular waste and in accordance with local regulations.

General Precautions

Observe the following general precautions to ensure safe application.

- The products shown in illustrations in this manual are sometimes shown without covers or protective guards. Always replace the cover or protective guard as specified first, and then operate the products in accordance with the manual.
- The drawings presented in this manual are typical examples and may not match the product you received.
- If the manual must be ordered due to loss or damage, inform your nearest Yaskawa representative or one of the offices listed on the back of this manual.

Warranty

(1) Details of Warranty

Warranty Period

The warranty period for a product that was purchased (hereinafter called "delivered product") is one year from the time of delivery to the location specified by the customer or 18 months from the time of shipment from the Yaskawa factory, whichever is sooner.

Warranty Scope

Yaskawa shall replace or repair a defective product free of charge if a defect attributable to Yaskawa occurs during the warranty period above. This warranty does not cover defects caused by the delivered product reaching the end of its service life and replacement of parts that require replacement or that have a limited service life. This warranty does not cover failures that result from any of the following causes.

- 1. Improper handling, abuse, or use in unsuitable conditions or in environments not described in product catalogs or manuals, or in any separately agreed-upon specifications
- 2. Causes not attributable to the delivered product itself
- 3. Modifications or repairs not performed by Yaskawa
- 4. Abuse of the delivered product in a manner in which it was not originally intended
- 5. Causes that were not foreseeable with the scientific and technological understanding at the time of shipment from Yaskawa
- 6. Events for which Yaskawa is not responsible, such as natural or human-made disasters

(2) Limitations of Liability

- 1. Yaskawa shall in no event be responsible for any damage or loss of opportunity to the customer that arises due to failure of the delivered product.
- 2. Yaskawa shall not be responsible for any programs (including parameter settings) or the results of program execution of the programs provided by the user or by a third party for use with programmable Yaskawa products.
- 3. The information described in product catalogs or manuals is provided for the purpose of the customer purchasing the appropriate product for the intended application. The use thereof does not guarantee that there are no infringements of intellectual property rights or other proprietary rights of Yaskawa or third parties, nor does it construe a license.
- 4. Yaskawa shall not be responsible for any damage arising from infringements of intellectual property rights or other proprietary rights of third parties as a result of using the information described in catalogs or manuals.

(3) Suitability for Use

- 1. It is the customer's responsibility to confirm conformity with any standards, codes, or regulations that apply if the Yaskawa product is used in combination with any other products.
- 2. The customer must confirm that the Yaskawa product is suitable for the systems, machines, and equipment used by the customer.
- 3. Consult with Yaskawa to determine whether use in the following applications is acceptable. If use in the application is acceptable, use the product with extra allowance in ratings and specifications, and provide safety measures to minimize hazards in the event of failure.
 - Outdoor use, use involving potential chemical contamination or electrical interference, or use in conditions or environments not described in product catalogs or manuals
 - Nuclear energy control systems, combustion systems, railroad systems, aviation systems, vehicle systems, medical equipment, amusement machines, and installations subject to separate industry or government regulations
 - Systems, machines, and equipment that may present a risk to life or property
 - Systems that require a high degree of reliability, such as systems that supply gas, water, or electricity, or systems that operate continuously 24 hours a day
 - Other systems that require a similar high degree of safety
- 4. Never use the product for an application involving serious risk to life or property without first ensuring that the system is designed to secure the required level of safety with risk warnings and redundancy, and that the Yaskawa product is properly rated and installed.
- 5. The circuit examples and other application examples described in product catalogs and manuals are for reference. Check the functionality and safety of the actual devices and equipment to be used before using the product.
- 6. Read and understand all use prohibitions and precautions, and operate the Yaskawa product correctly to prevent accidental harm to third parties.

(4) Specifications Change

The names, specifications, appearance, and accessories of products in product catalogs and manuals may be changed at any time based on improvements and other reasons. The next editions of the revised catalogs or manuals will be published with updated code numbers. Consult with your Yaskawa representative to confirm the actual specifications before purchasing a product.

Contents

	Using this Manual	iii vi vii xi
1	Overview	1-1
	1.1 MP2200 Features	1-2
	1.2 MP2200 Configuration	1-3
	1.2.1 Basic Unit Appearance 1.2.2 MP2200 Modules	1-3 1-4
	1.3 System Configuration	1-6
	1.3.1 Example 1.3.2 System Configuration Precautions	1-6 1-9
	1.4 MECHATROLINK-compatible Devices	1-10
	1.4.1 MECHATROLINK-I/-II-compatible Devices 1.4.2 MECHATROLINK-III-compatible Devices	1-10 1-12
	1.5 Cables and Accessories	1-13
	1.5.1 Cables	1-13
	1.5.2 Accessories and Options 1.5.3 Software (Programming Tool)	1-15
2	Overview of Specifications and Functions	2-1
	2.1 Specifications	2-3
	2.1.1 General Specifications	2-3
	2.1.2 Floader opechications 2.1.3 Function Lists	2-5
	2.2 Base Unit	2-6
	2.2.1 Overview of Functions	2-6
	2.2.2 LED Indicators	2-8
	2.3 CPU-01 Module	2-9
	2.3.1 Overview of Functions	2-9
	2.3.2 LED Indicators and Switch Settings	2-9
	2.3.4 SVR Module (Virtual Motion Module)	2-12
	2.4 CPU-02 Module	2-15
	2.4.1 Overview of Functions	2-15
	2.4.2 External Appearance, indicators, and Switch Settings	2-13
	2.4.4 SVR Module (Virtual Motion Module)	2-18
	2.4.5 CARD Module	2-19
	2.5 CPU-03 Module	2-33
	2.5.1 Overview of Functions	2-33
	2.5.2 External Appearance, Indicators, and Switch Settings	2-34
	2.5.3 Hardware Specifications	2-37
	2.5.4 SVR Module (VIITual Motion Module)	2-37
	2.5.6 218IFA Module (Ethernet)	2-38

	2.5.7 M-EXECUTOR Module (Motion Program Executor) 2-	57
	2.6 CPU-04 Module 2-6 2.6.1 Overview of Functions 2-6 2.6.2 External Appearance, Indicators, and Switch Settings 2-6 2.6.3 Hardware Specifications 2-7 2.6.4 SVR Module (Virtual Motion Module) 2-7 2.6.5 218IFC Module (Ethernet) 2-7 2.6.6 M-EXECUTOR Module (Motion Program Executor) 2-7	38 68 69 71 71 72 75
	2.7 EXIOIF Module- 2-7 2.7.1 Overview of Functions- 2-7 2.7.2 External Appearance 2-7 2.7.3 Hardware Specifications 2-7	76 76 76 76
	2.8 Optional Module	77 77
	2.9 External Dimensions 2-7 2.9.1 Basic Unit 2-7 2.9.2 Mounting Procedure for EXIOIF Connector 2-7	79 79 81
3	Mounting and Wiring 3-	-1
	3.1 Mounting MP2200 3.1.1 Method 3.1.1 Method 3.1.2 MP2200 Mount Direction 3.1.2 MP2200 Mount Direction 3.1.3 Installation Clearance 3.1.4 Replacing and Adding Optional Modules 3.1.4 Replacing and Adding Optional Modules	-2 3-2 3-5 3-6 3-7
	3.2 Connecting Basic Units	10 13 14 18 20
4	System Startup 4-	-1
	4.1 System Startup Overview4	-2
	4.2 Preparation 4 4.2.1 Wiring 4 4.2.2 Self Configuration 4 4.2.3 Test Operation 4	-3 -3 -5
	4.3 Programming	-9 10 11 12 14 16 17
	4.3.8 Executing Motions 4-	18

5 Overview of System Operation	5-1
5.1 Startup Sequence and Basic Operation	5-2
5.1.1 DIP Switch Settings	5-2
5.1.2 Startup Sequence	5-3
5.1.3 Startup Sequence Operation Details	5-4
5.1.4 LED Indicator Details	5-5
5.2 User Programs	5-6
5.2.1 Types and Execution Timing of User Program	5-6
5.2.2 Ladder Program	5-7
5.2.3 Motion Programs	5-12
5.2.4 Sequence Program (Supported by CPU-03 and CPU-04.)	5-33
5.3 Registers	5-36
5.3.1 Types of Registers	5-36
5.3.2 Data Types	5-39
5.3.3 How to Use Subscripts i, j	5-40
5.3.4 Register Designation	5-41
5.4 Self-configuration	5-42
5.4.1 How to Execute Self-Configuration	5-43
5.4.2 Definition Information Updated with Self-Configuration	5-51
5.5 Application Processions	5 55
5.5 Application Precautions	0-00
5.5.1 Setting of Changing User Definition Files	5-55 5 56
5.5.2 Setting of Changing Module Configuration Definition Pries	5-57
	0.01
6 Built-in Ethernet Communication (Supported by the CPU-03 and CPU-04)	6-1
6.1 Communication Methods	6-2
6.2. Communication with Other MP Series	6.2
0.2 Communication with Other MP Series	0-3
6.2.1 When the CPU-03/CPU-04 Acts as Slave (automatic receive function is used)	0-3
(ladder program which uses a MSG-RCV function)	6-16
6.2.3 When CPU-03/CPU-04 Acts as Master	0.10
(I/O message communication function is used)	6-34
6.2.4 When the CPU-03/CPU-04 Acts as Master	
(ladder program which uses MSG-SND function)	6-47
6.3 Communication with Touch Panel	6-63
6.3.1 When CPU-03/CPU-04 Acts as Slave (automatic receive function is used)	6-63
6.4 Communication with PLC Manufactured by Mitsubishi Electric Corporation	
(MELSEC protocol)	6-73
6.4.1 When the CPU-03/CPU-04 Acts as Slave (automatic receive function is used)	6-73
6.4.2 When the CPU-03/CPU-04 Acts as Master	0.00
(I/O message communication function is used)	0-80
7 Easy Programming (Supported by the CPU-03 and CPU-04)	7-1
7.1 System Startup Overview	7-2
7.2. Propagation (stop 1)	
	/-3
7.2.1 Wiring	/-3
7.2.2 Sell Configuration	<i>1-</i> 5 7_6
	, 0

7.3 Programming (step 2)	7-9
7.3.1 Initializing the M-EXECUTOR Module	7-9
7.4 Executing Motion (step 3)	7 14
7.4.2 Starting a Motion Program Using the Drive Control Panel	7-14
7.5 Starting Motion Program from an External Signal	7-17
7.5.1 Overview	7-17
7.5.2 Required Equipment	· 7-17 7 10
	7-19
8 Maintenance, Inspection, and Troubleshooting	8-1
8.1 Inspection Items	8-2
8.1.1 Daily Inspections	8-2
8.1.2 Regular Inspections 8.1.3 Replacing the Basic Unit Battery	8-3 8-4
8.2 Troubleshooting	8-5
8.2.1 Basic Flow of Troubleshooting	8-5
8.2.2 Error Check Flowchart	8-6
8.2.3 LED Indicators	8-6
8.2.5 Motion Program Alarms	8-28
8.2.6 List of Causes for Command Error Completed Status	8-32
8.2.7 Troubleshooting Motion Errors	8-35
Appendices	
Appendix A System Registers Lists	A-2
A.1 System Service Registers	A-2
A.2 Scan Execution Status and Calendar A.3 Program Memory Capacity	A-4 A-4
Appendix B SVR Motion Parameter Details	Δ.5
B.1 Fixed Parameter List	A-5
B.2 Setting Parameter List	A-7
B.3 Monitoring Parameter List	A-12
Appendix C Simple Connection Function of the Engineering Tool	
(Supported by the CPU-03 and CPU-04)	· A-16
C.1 Preparation	A-16
Appendix D_MSG-SND/ MSG-RCV Functions (Ethernet)	A-20
D.1 Message Send Function (MSG-SND)	A-20
D.2 Message Receive Function (MSG-RCV)	A-53
	A-83
Appendix E Optional Functions	A-85
E.1 Gleaning D Registers at Startup	A-85 A-86
E.3 Battery Backup for Table Data	A-94
Appendix E. Installing MDE720 Version 6	Δ.98

INDEX

Revision History

1

Overview

This chapter explains an overview and features of the MP2200 Machine Controller.

1.1	1 MP2200 Features	1-2
1.2	2 MP2200 Configuration	1-3
	1.2.1 Basic Unit Appearance 1.2.2 MP2200 Modules	1-3 1-4
1.3	3 System Configuration	1-6
	1.3.1 Example	1-6
	1.3.2 System Configuration Precautions	1-9
1.4	4 MECHATROLINK-compatible Devices	1-10
	1.4.1 MECHATROLINK-I/-II-compatible Devices	1-10
	1.4.2 MECHATROLINK-III-compatible Devices	1-12
1.5	5 Cables and Accessories	1-13
	1.5.1 Cables	1-13
	1.5.2 Accessories and Options	1-15
	1.5.3 Software (Programming Tool)	1-15

1.1 MP2200 Features

The MP2200 is a high-performance, multi-axis Machine Controller for flexible system construction. In addition to I/O and Communication Modules, it has a wide range of Optional Modules, including various Motion Modules that support a variety of motor drives. It provides ideal motion control for a range of machines, from stand-alone machines to FA systems.

Flexibility

- The following CPU Modules are available: CPU-01, CPU-02, CPU-03, and CPU-04. The best CPU Module can be selected to match your application and machine specifications.
- With an option slot configuration that enables expansion to 35 slots, Optional Modules can be selected freely and the optimum system can be built for your machine.

High Performance

- Control characteristics have been improved by increasing the CPU and Motion Network (MECHATROLINK-II) speed.
 - Completely synchronous operation can be achieved for up to 256 axes.
 - MECHATROLINK-II baud rate: 2.5 times faster than MP920 (previous model)
 - CPU processing speed: 2.0 to 5.0 times faster than MP920 (previous model)
 - Larger user memory area
- High-speed (0.5 ms) motion control is now possible.
- MECHATROLINK-II enables position control, speed control, torque control, and phase control, and makes precise synchronous control possible. The control mode can also be changed online, facilitating complicated machine operations. The range of possible motion control applications is increased even further with the Virtual Motion Module (SVR).
- The following open networks are supported when optional Communication Modules are used.
 - Ethernet
 - DeviceNet
 - PROFIBUS
 - FL-net
 - EtherNet/IP

Easy to Use

- Machine startup times can be greatly reduced by using the self-configuration function that automatically detects devices connected to MECHATROLINK and sets the required parameters.
- The application program converter can utilize your previous software assets with their accumulated databanks of specific knowledge to improve the system further.

Compact

• The mounting area has been reduced to half that of the MP920 (previous model).

1.2 MP2200 Configuration

1.2.1 Basic Unit Appearance

The appearance of the Basic Units is shown below.





1.2.2 MP2200 Modules

1.2.2 MP2200 Modules

The following table shows the names and specifications of the Basic Unit and Optional Modules.

Group		Name	Description	Model	Specifications
Basic Unit	Base Unit	Base Unit for AC power supply	MBU-01	JEPMC-BU2200(-E)	85 to 276 VAC 9 slots
		Base Unit for DC power supply	MBU-02	JEPMC-BU2210(-E)	24 VDC ±20% 9 slots
		Base Unit for DC power supply	MBU-03	JEPMC-BU2220-E	24 VDC ±20% 4 slots
	CPU Modules	CPU Modules	CPU-01	JAPMC-CP2200(-E)	CPU Module for MP2200 system
			CPU-02	JAPMC-CP2210(-E)	CPU Module for MP2200 system with 1 Compact Flash slot and 1 USB port
			CPU-03	ЈАРМС-СР2220-Е	CPU Module for MP2200 system with 1 Compact Flash slot and 1 Ethernet port
			CPU-04	ЈАРМС-СР2230-Е	Host CPU Module for MP2200 system with 1 Ethernet port
		Multiple-CPU Module	MPU-01	ЈАРМС-СР2700-Е	Optional Module with CPU + SVC-01 func- tions

1.2.2 MP2200 Modules

(co	nť	d)
(/

Group		Name	Description	Model	Specifications
	Motion	MECHATROLINK Motion Module	SVB-01	JAPMC-MC2310(-E)	MECHATROLINK-I and -II Interface, 16 axes maximum
			SVC-01	ЈАРМС-МС2320-Е	MECHATROLINK-III Interface, 16 axes maximum
	Modules	Analog Output Motion Module	SVA-01	JAPMC-MC2300(-E)	Analog output, 2 axes maximum
		Pulse Output Motion Module	PO-01	JAPMC-PL2310-E	Pulse output, 4 axes maximum
		I/O Module	LIO-01	JAPMC-IO2300(-E)	16 inputs, 16 outputs (sink mode output) 1 pulse input
		I/O Module	LIO-02	JAPMC-IO2301(-E)	16 inputs, 16 outputs (source mode output) 1 pulse input
		I/O Module	LIO-04	JAPMC-IO2303(-E)	32 inputs, 32 outputs (sink mode output)
		I/O Module	LIO-05	JAPMC-IO2304(-E)	32 inputs, 32 outputs (source mode output)
	I/O Modules	I/O Module	LIO-06	JAPMC-IO2305-E	8 inputs, 8 outputs (sink mode outputs), 1 analog input channel, 1 analog output chan- nel, 1 pulse counter channel
		Output Module	DO-01	JAPMC-DO2300(-E)	64 outputs (sink mode output)
		Analog Input Module	AI-01	JAPMC-AN2300(-E)	Analog input, 8 channels
		Analog Output Module	AO-01	JAPMC-AN2310-E	Analog input, 4 channels
		Counter Module	CNTR-01	JAPMC-PL2300-E	Reversible counter, 2 channels
Modules	Communica- tion Modules	Ethernet Communica- tion Module	218IF-01	JAPMC-CM2300(-E)	RS-232C and Ethernet communication
		Ethernet Communica- tion Module	218IF-02	JAPMC-CM2302(-E)	RS-232C and Ethernet communication (100 Mbps)
		General-purpose Serial Communication Module	217IF-01	JAPMC-CM2310(-E)	RS-232C and RS422/485 communication
		DeviceNet Communication Module	260IF-01	JAPMC-CM2320(-E)	RS-232C and DeviceNet communication
		PROFIBUS Communication Module	261IF-01	JAPMC-CM2330(-E)	RS-232C and PROFIBUS communication
		FL-net Communication Module	262IF-01	ЈАРМС-СМ2303-Е	FL-net communication
		EtherNet/IP Communi- cation Module	263IF-01	ЈАРМС-СМ2304-Е	EtherNet/IP communication
		MPLINK/CP-215 Communication Module	215AIF-01	JAPMC-CM2360(-E) JAPMC-CM2361(-E)	RS-232C, MPLINK, and CP-215 communi- cations
	Expansion Interface Module	Connection Interface	EXIOIF	JAPMC-EX2200(-E)	System bus expansion (configuration: 4 racks max.)

Note: Models that have model numbers ending in "-E" are RoHS compliant. Models that have model numbers ending in "(-E)" can be ordered with or without "-E."

1.3.1 Example

1.3 System Configuration

1.3.1 Example

(1) Basic Unit Rack (Rack 1) Configuration

The following diagram shows an example of system configuration.



Max. 21 stations including I/O. (Max. 16 stations servo can be included.)

- Note: 1. For the details on the system configuration example, refer to 4.2.1 (1) System Layout Model.
 - 2. Use the connecting cables and connectors recommended by Yaskawa. Always check the device to be used and select the correct cable for the device.
 - Different SERVOPACKs are connected to MECHATROLINK-I (4 Mbps) and MECHATROLINK-II (10 Mbps). Refer to 1.4.1 MECHATROLINK-I/-II-compatible Devices and select the appropriate SERVO-PACKs.
 - 4. If devices compatible with MECHATROLINK-I and with MECHATROLINK-II are used together, make the settings for MECHATROLINK-I.
 - 5. The user must supply the 24-VDC power supply.
 - When connecting SERVOPACKs via MECHATROLINK, connect the overtravel, zero point return deceleration limit switch, and external latch signals to the SERVOPACKs. For connection, refer to the SERVOPACK's manual.

1.3.1 Example

(2) Maximum Four-Rack Configuration



* A distributed I/O function is provided by the SVB-01 Modules through MECHATROLINK communication.

1.3.2 System Configuration Precautions

The following precautions must be followed when designing a system using the MP2200.

- Use the connecting cables and connectors recommended by Yaskawa. Yaskawa has a range of cables. Always check the device to be used and select the correct cable for the device.
- Different SERVOPACKs are connected to MECHATROLINK-I and MECHATROLINK-II. Refer to the list and select the appropriate SERVOPACKs.
- The user must supply the 24-VDC power supply.
- The battery backs up M registers, system registers, and trace memory. Always save the program to flash memory whenever it is input or changed.

1.4.1 MECHATROLINK-I/-II-compatible Devices

1.4 MECHATROLINK-compatible Devices

1.4.1 MECHATROLINK-I/-II-compatible Devices

The devices that are compatible with MECHATROLINK and can be connected to the MECHATROLINK connector on the SVB-01 Module are listed below.

(1) SERVOPACKs and Inverters

Туре	Model	Details	MECHATROLINK-I	MECHATROLINK-II
	SGD-□□□N SGDB-□□AN	AC SERVOPACK for MECHA- TROLINK-I	Yes	No
	SGDH-DDDE JUSP-NS100	SGDH SERVOPACK NS100 MECHATROLINK-I Interface	Yes	No
SERVO-	SGDH-DDDE JUSP-NS115	SGDH SERVOPACK NS115 MECHATROLINK-II Interface	Yes	Yes
PACKs	SGDS-DDD1DD	SGDS SERVOPACKs	Yes	Yes
	SGDX-DDD1DD	SGDX SERVOPACKs	Yes	Yes
	SJDE-DDAND	SJDE SERVOPACKs	No	Yes
	SGDV-DDDD1DD	SGDV SERVOPACKs	Yes	Yes
	JUSP-IDDDDMDD	MECHATROLINK-II-compatible IDM	No	Yes
	CIMR-G7A□ SI-T	Varispeed G7 Inverter MECHA- TROLINK Interface	Yes	Yes
Inverters	CIMR-F7A□ SI-T	Varispeed F7 Inverter MECHA- TROLINK Interface	Yes	Yes
	CIMR-V7AA□ SI-T/V7	Varispeed V7 Inverter MECHA- TROLINK Interface	Yes	Yes

1.4.1 MECHATROLINK-I/-II-compatible Devices

(2) Modules

Model	Details	MECHATROLINK-I	MECHATROLINK-II
JEPMC-IO350	64-point I/O Module 24 VDC, 64 inputs, 64 outputs (sink mode outputs)	Yes	No
JAMSC-120DDI34330	DC Input Module 12/24 VDC, 16 inputs	Yes	No
JAMSC-120DDO34340	DC Output Module 12/24 VDC, 16 outputs	Yes	No
JAMSC-120DAI53330	AC Input Module 100 VAC, 8 inputs	Yes	No
JAMSC-120DAI73330	AC Input Module 200 VAC, 8 inputs	Yes	No
JAMSC-120DAO83330	AC Output Module 100/200 VAC, 8 outputs	Yes	No
JAMSC-120DRA83030	Relay Module Wide voltage range relay contacts, 8 contact outputs	Yes	No
JAMSC-120AVI02030	A/D Module Analog inputs, -10 to 10 V, 4 channels	Yes	No
JAMSC-120AVO01030	D/A Module Analog outputs, -10 to 10 V, 2 channels	Yes	No
JAMSC-120EHC21140	Counter Module Reversible counter, 2 channels	Yes	No
JAMSC-120MMB20230	Pulse Output Module Pulse output, 2 channels	Yes	No
JAMSC-IO2900-E	DC Input Module 12/24 VDC, 16 inputs	Yes	Yes
JAMSC-IO2910-E	DC Output Module 12/24 VDC, 16 outputs	Yes	Yes
JEPMC-IO2310	64-point I/O Module 24 VDC, 64 inputs, 64 outputs (sink mode outputs)	Yes	Yes
JEPMC-IO2330	64-point I/O Module 24 VDC, 64 inputs, 64 outputs (source mode outputs)	Yes	Yes
JEPMC-PL2900	Counter Module Reversible counters, 2 channels	Yes	Yes
JEPMC-PL2910	Pulse Output Module Pulse output, 2 channels	Yes	Yes
JEPMC-AN2900	A/D Module Analog inputs, -10 to 10 V, 4 channels	Yes	Yes
JEPMC-AN2910	D/A Module Analog outputs, -10 to 10 V, 2 channels	Yes	Yes
JAPMC-MC2310	SVB-01 Motion Module	Yes	Yes
JEPMC-REP2000	MECHATROLINK-II Repeater	No	Yes
JEVSA-YV250	MYVIS (image processing device)	Yes	Yes
JEPMC-MC400	MP940 Motion Controller	Yes	No

1.4.2 MECHATROLINK-III-compatible Devices

1.4.2 MECHATROLINK-III-compatible Devices

The devices that are compatible with MECHATROLINK and can be connected to the MECHATROLINK connector on the SVC-01 Module are listed below.

(1) SERVOPACKs

Model	Details
SGDV-DDDD21D	SGDV SERVOPACK for Rotary Motors and for MECHATROLINK-III Communications Reference
SGDV-DDDD25D	SGDV SERVOPACK for Linear Motors and for MECHATROLINK-III Communications Reference

(2) Modules

Model	Details
JAPMC-MC2320-E	SVC-01 Motion Module

1.5 Cables and Accessories

1.5.1 Cables

The following table shows the cables that can be connected to the MP2200 Basic Module and Optional Modules.

Module	Connector Name	Cable Name	Model	Specifications	
CPU-02	USB	USB cable	Use a commercially available	Used between CPU-02 and external device with mini-B connector	
CPU-03 CPU-04	Ethernet	Ethernet communication cable	cable.	Cross cable used between CPU-03/CPU- 04 and external device (category 5)	
		MECHATROLINK-I Cables	JEPMC-W6010- with a MECHATROLINK connector and loose wires	Used between the devices listed below SVB-01 and SGD-DDN SVB-01 and SGDB-DDAN	
		MECHATROLINK-I Termi- nator (terminating resistance)	JEPMC-W6020	-	
SVB-01	M-1/11	MECHATROLINK-II Cables	JEPMC-W6002-□□ with MECHATROLINK con- nectors on both ends JEPMC-W6003-□□ with MECHATROLINK con-	Used between the devices listed below SVB-01 and I/O Unit, SVB-01 and SGDH-DDE+NS100 SVB-01 and SGDH-DDE+NS115 SVB-01 and SGDS-DDD1DD	
			nectors on both ends with fer- rite core	SVB-01 and SGDV- $\Box\Box\Box\Box11$ SVB-01 and SGDV- $\Box\Box\Box\Box15$	
		MECHATROLINK-II Ter- minator (terminating resis- tance)	JEPMC-W6022	-	
			JEPMC-W6012D-E with MECHATROLINK-III connectors on both ends with ferrite core		
SVC-01	M-III	I-III MECHATROLINK-III Cables	JEPMC-W6013 - E with MECHATROLINK-III connectors on both ends with ferrite core	Used between the following devices: SVC-01 and SGDV-DDD21D SVC-01 and SGDV-DDD25D	
			with loose wires on one end with ferrite core		
SVA-01	CN/1 CN/2	Cable for Analog Reference Input SERVOPACK	JEPMC-W2040-□□	Used between the devices listed below SVA-01 and SGDM/SGDH SVA-01 and SGDS-DDD01D SVA-01 and SGDS-DDD02D	
LIO-01 LIO-02	I/O	External I/O Cable	JEPMC-W2061-□□ with loose wires on one end	Used between LIO-01/02 and external I/O device	
LIO-04 LIO-05	CN/1, CN/2	External I/O Cable	JEPMC-W6060-□□ with loose wires on one end	Used between LIO-04/05 and external I/O device	
LIO-06	CN1	External I/O Cable	JEPMC-W2064-□□ with loose wires on one end	Used between LIO-06 and external I/O device	
DO-01	CN/1, CN/2	External Output Cable	JEPMC-W6060-□□ with loose wires on one end	Used between DO-01 and external input device	
AI-01	CN/1, CN/2	Analog Input Cable	JEPMC-W6080-□□ with loose wires on one end	Used between AI-01 and analog external input device	
AO-01	CN/1	Analog Output Cable	JEPMC-W6090-□□ with loose wires on one end	Used between AO-01 and analog external output device	
CNTR-01	CN/1	Cable for CNTR-01 Module	JEPMC-W2063E-□□ with loose wires on one end	Used between CNTR-01 and external I/O device	
218IF-01 218IF-02 217IF-01	PORT	RS-232C Communication Cable	JEPMC-W5310-□□	Used between RS-232C port and 25-pin male D-sub connector	
260IF-01 261IF-01		Caule	JEPMC-W5311-□□	Used between RS-232C port and DOS/V	

1.5.1 Cables

Module	Connector Name	Cable Name	Model	Specifications	
218IF-01	10Base-T	Ethernet communication		Cross cable (category 3 min.)	
218IF-02	Ethernet	cable		Cross cable or straight cable (category 5)	
				Module-side connector: 1010214-52A2JL (manufactured by Sumitomo 3M)	
217IF-01	RS422/485	RS422/485 communication cable	Use a commercially available cable.	Cable-side connector: 10114-3000PE (manufactured by Sumitomo 3M)	
				Shell: 10314-52A0-008 (manufactured by Sumitomo 3M)	
260IF-01	DeviceNet	DeviceNet communication cable		Module-side connector: MSTB2-5/5-GF-5.08AM (manufactured by Phoenix Contact K.K.)	
261IF-01	PROFIBUS	PROFIBUS communication cable		Module-side connector: 17LE-13090-27(D33C) (manufactured by DDK Ltd.)	
262IF-01	FL-net	Ethernet communication			
263F-01	EtherNet/IP	cable		Cross cable of straight cable (category 5)	
EXIOIF	CN1 IN, CN2 OUT	EXIOIF Cable	JEPMC-W2091-□□	Between EXIOIF Modules	

1.5.2 Accessories and Options

Name	Accessory/Optional	Model	Remarks
Battery	Accessory	JZSP-BA01	ER3VC + exclusive use connector (BA000517)
Power Supply Connector	Accessory	721-863/001-034	MBU-01 Unit Cable side (manufac- tured by WAGO Company of Japan, Ltd, black)
	Accessory	721-863/001-000	MBU-02/MBU-03 Unit Cable side (manufactured by WAGO Company of Japan, Ltd, white)
DIN Rail Mounting Parts	Optional	JEPMC-OP300	1 pair
Cover for Option Slot	Optional	JEPMC-OP2300	Front cover for the unused slot.

1.5.3 Software (Programming Tool)

The MPE720, programming tool for MP2200, is available.

Namo	Model	Supported versions				Pomarka
Name		CPU-01	CPU-02	CPU-03	CPU-04	Itemarks
MPE720	CPMC- MPE720	Version 5.10 or later	Version 5.31B or later	Version 5.50 or later	Version 5.52 or later	CD-ROM (1 disk)
MPE720 Version 6	CPMC- MPE770	All versions	All versions	Version 6.20 or later	Version 6.22 or later	CD-ROM (1 disk)

Overview of Specifications and Functions

This chapter explains the specifications and functions for the Basic Unit and Optional Modules of the MP2200.

2.1 Specifications	2-3
2.1.1 General Specifications	2-3
2.1.2 Product Specifications	2-4
2.1.3 Function Lists	2-5
2.2 Base Unit	
2.2.1 Overview of Functions	2-6
2.2.2 LED Indicators	2-6
2.2.3 Hardware Specifications	2-8
2.3 CPU-01 Module	
2.3.1 Overview of Functions	2-9
2.3.2 LED Indicators and Switch Settings	2-9
2.3.3 Hardware Specifications	2-11
2.3.4 SVR Module (Virtual Motion Module)	2-12
2.4 CPU-02 Module	2-15
2.4.1 Overview of Functions	2-15
2.4.2 External Appearance, Indicators, and Switch Settings	2-15
2.4.3 Hardware Specifications	2-18
2.4.4 SVR Module (Virtual Motion Module)	2-18
2.4.5 CARD Module	2-19
2.4.6 USB Module	2-24
2.5 CPU-03 Module	2-33
2.5.1 Overview of Functions	2-33
2.5.2 External Appearance, Indicators, and Switch Settings	2-34
2.5.3 Hardware Specifications	2-37
2.5.4 SVR Module (Virtual Motion Module)	2-37
2.5.5 CARD Module	2-37
2.5.6 218IFA Module (Ethernet)	2-38
2.5.7 M-EXECUTOR Module (Motion Program Executor)	2-57

2.6 CPU-04 Module	2-68
2.6.1 Overview of Functions	
2.6.2 External Appearance, Indicators, and Switch Settings	
2.6.3 Hardware Specifications	
2.6.4 SVR Module (Virtual Motion Module)	
2.6.5 218IFC Module (Ethernet)	
2.6.6 M-EXECUTOR Module (Motion Program Executor)	2-75
2.7 EXIOIF Module	2-76
2.7.1 Overview of Functions	
2.7.2 External Appearance	
2.7.3 Hardware Specifications	
2.8 Optional Module	2-77
2.8.1 Optional Module Overview List	
2.9 External Dimensions	2-79
2.9.1 Basic Unit	
2.9.2 Mounting Procedure for EXIOIF Connector	2-81

2.1 Specifications

2.1.1 General Specifications

Item		Specifications
	Ambient Oper- ating Tempera- ture	0°C to 55°C, but 0 to 50°C for the CPU-03
	Ambient Stor- age Tempera- ture	-25°C to 85°C
Environmental Conditions	Ambient Oper- ating Humidity	30% to 95% (with no condensation)
	Ambient Stor- age Humidity	5% to 95% (with no condensation)
	Pollution Level	Pollution level 1 (conforming to JIS B 3501)
	Corrosive Gas	There must be no combustible or corrosive gas.
	Operating Altitude	2,000 m above sea level or lower
Mechanical Operating Conditions	Vibration Resistance	 Conforming to JIS B 3502: 10 to 57 Hz with single-amplitude of 0.075 mm 57 to 150 Hz with fixed acceleration of 9.8 m/s² 10 sweeps each in X, Y, and Z directions (sweep time: 1 octave/min.)
	Shock Resis- tance	Conforming to JIS B 3502: Peak acceleration of 147 m/s ² (15 G) twice for 11 ms each in the X, Y, and Z directions
Electrical Operating Conditions	Noise Resis- tance	Conforming to EN 61000-6-2, EN 55011 (Group 1, Class A) Power supply noise (FT noise): 2 Kv min., for one minute Radiation noise (FT noise): 1 Kv min., for one minute
Installation Requirements	Ground	Ground to 100 Ω max.
requiremento	Cooling Method	Natural cooling

2.1.2 Product Specifications

2.1.2 Product Specifications

The following table shows the product specifications of the MP2200.

Items -		Specifications					
		CPU-01	CPU-02	CPU-03	CPU-04		
External Dimen-	Long rack	240 mm × 130 mm × 108 mm					
sions	Short rack	120 mm × 130 mm × 108 mm					
Maximum Number	of Option Slots		35 :	slots			
	Number of Basic Control Axes	-					
Number of Control Axes	Maximum Number of Control Axes	256 axes (when sixteen SVB-01 Modules are added.)					
	Number of Virtual Axis Controlling Axes		16 axes				
CPU Processing S	peed Comparison	1.0	1.0	1.6	2.5		
Scan Interval	High-speed Scan	0.5 ms to 32 ms (per 0.5 ms)					
Setting	Low-speed Scan	2.0 ms to 300 ms (per 0.5 ms)					
Communication I/F		Not provided.	USB: USB 2.0 (func- tions), 12 Mbps, 1 port	Ethernet: 100Base- TX, 1 port Maximum connec- tions: 4 + 2 (I/O mes- sage communication)	Ethernet: 100Base- TX, 1 port Maximum connec- tions: 20 + 2 (I/O message communica- tion)		
External Memory I	/F	Not provided.	One Compa	ct Flash slot Not provided.			
	SDRAM/DDR	32 MB	32 MB	64	MB		
Memory Capacity	SRAM (battery backup)	512 KB	2 MB ^{*1}	4 N	IB ^{*2}		
Memory Capacity	FLASH	12 MB	16 MB	16	MB		
	Program Capacity	7.5 MB	11.5 MB	11.5	MB		
Programming	Ladder Language	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark			
	Motion Language	\checkmark	\checkmark		V		
Language	Sequence Program	_	-		V		
	C Language		\checkmark	\checkmark			

* 1. 1 MB max. with battery backup for table data.

* 2. 3 MB max. with battery backup for table data.

Note: Symbols in the table mean as follows. $\sqrt{:}$ Available, –: Not available

2.1.3 Function Lists

(1) PLC Function Specifications

The following table shows the PLC functions of the MP2200.

Item	Specifications	
Control Method	Sequence: High-speed and low-speed scan methods	
Programming	Ladder diagram: Relay circuit	
Language	Text-type language: Numeric operations, logic operations, etc.	
	Two scan levels: High-speed scan and low-speed scan	
Scan	High-speed scan time setting: 0.5	to 32 ms
	Low-speed scan time setting: 2 to	o 300 ms
User Drawings, Functions and Motion Programs	Startup drawings (DWG.A):	64 drawings max. Up to three hierarchical drawing
		levels
	Interrupt processing drawings	64 drawings max. Up to three hierarchical drawing
	(DWG.I):	levels
	High-speed scan process drawings	200 drawings max. Up to three hierarchical drawing
	(DWGH):	
	(DWGL):	500 drawings max. Up to three hierarchical drawing
	Number of steps:	Up to 1 000 steps per drawing
	User functions:	Up to 500 functions
	Motion programs and sequence pro-	
	grams ^{*1} :	A total of up to 256
	Revision history of drawings and motio	on programs
	Security function for drawings and motion programs	
Data Memory	Common data (M) registers:	64 kwords
	System (S) registers:	8 kwords
	Drawing local (D) registers:	Up to 16 kwords per drawing
	Drawing constant (#) registers:	Up to 16 kwords per drawing
	Input (I) registers:	32 kwords
	Output (O) registers:	32 kwords
	Constant (C) registers:	16 kwords
Trace Memory	Data trace: 128 kwords (32 kwords × 4 groups), 16 points defined	
	Program memory: Flash memory: Data other than battery backup data such as definition files,	
Memory Backup	ladder programs, motion programs.	
	Data memory: Battery backup: M registers, S registers, alarm history, trace data, table data ^{*2}	
Data Types	Bit (relay): ON/OFF	
	Integer: -32768 to	+32767
	Double-length integer: $-214/483$	$648 \text{ to } \pm 214/48364/$
	Real number. $\pm (1.175E)$	-58 to 5.402E+58)
Register Designation Method	Symbolic designation: Un to 8 al	ngnation of register number
	With automatic numbering or symbol assignment	
	Program control instructions:	14 instructions
	Direct I/O instructions:	2 instructions
Instructions	Relay circuit instructions:	14 instructions (including set and reset coils)
	Logic operation instructions:	3 instructions
	Numeric operation instructions:	16 instructions
	Numeric conversion instructions:	9 instructions
	Numeric comparison instructions:	7 instructions
	Data manipulation instructions:	14 instructions
	Basic function instructions:	10 instructions
	Table data manipulation instructions:	11 instructions
	DDC instructions: System functions:	13 Instructions 9 instructions
	Classing Dissisters at starter	9 instructions
Optional Functions ^{*3}	Security	
	Dettem hashun fan tahla data*2	

* 1. Sequence programming cannot be used with the CPU-01 or CPU-02.

* 2. Table data cannot be backed up with a battery with the CPU-01.

* 3. For details on optional functions, refer to Appendix E Optional Functions.
2.2 Base Unit

2.2.1 Overview of Functions

The Base Unit combines the power supply, mounting base board, and frame in one unit. Both AC-input and DC-input power supply Base Units are available. The Base Unit provides either four option slots (short rack) or nine option slots. Any Optional Modules can be mounted in the option slots to create the perfect system for the machinery.

2.2.2 LED Indicators

(1) External Appearance

The following figure shows the external appearance of the Base Unit.

[a] Base Unit with AC-input Power Supply and Nine Slots



[b] Base Unit with DC-input Power Supply and Nine Slots



[c] Base Unit with DC-input Power Supply Short Rack



(2) Indicator

The LED indicator that displays the status of the power supply is detailed in the following table. The short-rack Base Unit does not have a POWER indicator.

Indicator	Indicator Name	Color	Significance when Lit
POWER	POWER	Green	The power supply is operating nor- mally.

2.2.3 Hardware Specifications

2.2.3 Hardware Specifications

The following table shows the hardware specifications of the Base Units.

	Item		Specifications		
Name		Base Unit with AC-input power	Base Unit with DC-input power	Base Unit with DC-input power	
		supply	supply	supply for short racks	
Model Number		JEPMC-BU2200	JEPMC-BU2210	JEPMC-BU2220-E	
Abbreviat	tion	MBU-01	MBU-02	MBU-03	
Slot Configuration		 Basic Unit Rack (Rack1) Configuration slot for CPU Module slots for Optional Modules (including slots for Expansion Modules) Optional Expansion Rack (Rack 2, 3, 4) Configuration slots for Optional Modules (because a CPU Module is not mounted to Racks 2, 3, and 4) 		Basic Unit Rack (Rack 1) Configuration 1 slot for CPU Module 3 slots for Optional Modules (including slots for Expansion Modules) Optional Expansion Rack (Rack 2, 3, 4) Configuration 4 slots for Optional Modules	
	Input Voltage	85 to 132 VAC / 198 to 276 VAC	$24 \text{ VDC} (\pm 20\%)^*$		
	Input Current	1.5 A max. (at rated I/O)	$3.0 \text{ A max.} (\text{at rated I/O})^*$	$1.0 \text{ A max.} (\text{at rated I/O})^*$	
	Inrush Current	40 A max. (when completely dis- charged, with 275-VAC input, rated output) 30 A max. (when completely disc		harged, rated output)*	
Power	Allowable Power Loss Time	20 ms	1 ms		
Onic	Rated Voltage	5.0 V	•		
	Rated Current	8.0 A		4.0 A	
	Output Current Range	0.0 to 8.0 A		0.0 to 4.0 A	
	Constant Voltage Precision	±2% max. (including input voltag			
	Battery	Battery for memory retention attac	chable		
Indicators		POWER (green)			
Dimensio	ns (mm)	$240 \times 130 \times 108 (W \times H \times D)$		$120 \times 130 \times 108 (W \times H \times D)$	
Mass		650 g	500 g		

* For the external 24-V power supply, select a power supply that satisfies the following specifications and that can provide the rated current:

+ Allowable output load capacity: 1200 μF or more

Overcurrent detection is automatically restored by removing causes

However, except that the primary side (AC side) of the external 24V power supply is turned ON/OFF.

2.3 CPU-01 Module

2.3.1 Overview of Functions

The CPU-01 Module is the MP2200 Control Module that controls the Motion, Communication, I/O, and other Optional Modules.

2.3.2 LED Indicators and Switch Settings

(1) External Appearance

The following figure shows the external appearance of the CPU-01 Module.



(2) Indicators

The LED indicators that display the operating status and error details for the Base Unit are detailed in the following table.

Indicators	Indicator Name	Color	Significance when Lit
	RDY	Green	Unit operating normally.
	RUN	Green	User program running.
	ALM	Red	Lights/blinks for warning.
⊖ BAT	ERR	Red	Lights/blinks for errors.
	BAT	Red	Battery alarm activated.

Note: Refer to 8.2.3 (2) LED Indicator Meanings for details on the meaning of indicators.

2.3.2 LED Indicators and Switch Settings

(3) Switch Settings

The SW1 of the DIP switch sets the operating conditions for the CPU-01 Module when the power is turned ON.



Pin Number	Switch Name	Status	Operating Mode	Default Setting	Details	
6	STOP	ON	User program stopped	OFF	Stops the user program execution. Enabled	
0	3101	OFF	User program running	011	only when debugging.	
5	SLID	ON	System use	OFF	Always set to OFF	
5	306	OFF	Normal operation	011	Always set to OFF.	
		ON	Memory clear		Set to ON to clear the memory. If this	
4	INIT	OFF	Normal operation	OFF	switch is set to OFF, the program stored in flash memory will be executed.	
3	3 CNEG		Configuration mode	OFF	Set to ON to execute self-configuration for	
5		OFF	Normal operation	011	connected devices.	
2	MON	ON	System use	OFF		
Z MON		OFF	Normal operation	011	Always set to OFF.	
1 TEST		ON	System use (adjusted before shipment)	OFF	Always set to OFF.	
		OFF	Normal operation			

2.3.3 Hardware Specifications

The following table shows the hardware specifications of the CPU-01 Module.

Item	Specifications
Name	CPU-01 Module
Model	JAPMC-CP2200
Abbreviation	CPU-01
Flash Memory	12 MB
SDRAM	32 MB
SRAM	512 KB, M registers, S registers, trace memory, alarm history (battery backup)
Calendar	Seconds to year timer (battery backup)
Indicators	RDY (green) RUN (green) ALM (red) ERR (red) BAT (red)
Switches	STOP SUP INIT CNFG MON TEST
Dimensions (mm)	$125 \times 95 (H \times D)$
Mass	66 g

2.3.4 SVR Module (Virtual Motion Module)

2.3.4 SVR Module (Virtual Motion Module)

(1) Overview

The Virtual Motion Module is a software module provided as a standard feature with the CPU-01 Module. It is not connected to a motor, but provides a virtual axis interface.

The SVR Module has fixed parameters, setting parameters, and monitoring parameters (see *Appendix B SVR Motion Parameters*), and can be accessed from application programs using I/O registers.

The SVR can be used to control up to 16 virtual axes in the high-speed scan control cycle.

Note: For information on how to use SVR motion parameters and motion commands, refer to *Machine Controller MP2000-series Built-in SVB/SVB-01 Motion Module User's Manual* (manual no.: SIEP C880700 33).

In an MP2200 CPU Module, slot 2 in the default Module Configuration Window is for the SVR Module.

Engineering Manager -	[Module Coni low	figuration	MP2200 Or	line Local]	_ D ×
PT#: 2 CPU#: 1				<u>,</u> ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,	▶▶▶⊳⊳
Select Rack Enable/Di Rack 1 Enable Rack 2 Disable Rack 3 Disable Rack 4 Disable - Controller Rack 1 Rack 2 Rack 3	sable • • • Rack 4				
Slot Number Module Type CPU-C Status Runnit CPU-01: CPU module with via	00 21: nq Rui tual axes.	01 8IF-01 ▼ nning	02 UNDEFINED	03 UNDEFINED	
Slot Number	1				
Module Type	CPU	✓ SVR	-)		
Circuit Number	-	0			
I/O Start Register					
I/O End Register					
Motion Start Register		8000			
Motion End Register		87FF			
Details					
Status	Running	Runni	ng		· · ·
For Help, press F1					м 🕅 🍃

Note: If the SVR is not used, MP2200 processing time can be reduced by setting the *Module Type* for SVR to **UNDEFINED** in the **Module Configuration** Window.

U-01: CPU module with vi	tual axes.					
odule Details CPU-01 RA	CK#01 SLOT#00					
Slot Number	1	2				
Module Type	CPU	- UNDEFINED				
Circuit Number	-					
I/O Start Register						
I/O End Register						
Motion Start Register						
Motion End Register	gister					
Details						
Status	Running	Running				

(2) Example SVR Usage

The SVR is used in the following two applications.

- Program testing: Results are easily obtained without connecting a motor.
- Generating commands: If the SVR is used in applications where motion modules are required only for generating commands, such as master axis for phase control or multi-axis synchronous control, then Motion Modules on real axes are no longer required.

The following table lists application examples of the SVR.

Slot Number	Application Example	Application Method
1	Master axis for phase control	Electronic cam or shaft operation can be achieved by using the SVR for the virtual master axis.
2	Multi-axis synchronous con- trol	Multi-axis synchronous control can be achieved by controlling the SVR from a motion program and then using the ladder program to copy position commands of the SVR to other axes.
3	Sine curve commands	If the motion program is used to perform circular interpolation with the SVR, the axis will operate with a sine curve command.

Note: The software limit function and machine lock function cannot be used with the SVR. The position error will always be 0.

(3) System Configuration Example

The following figure shows an example system configuration using SVR.



2.3.4 SVR Module (Virtual Motion Module)

(4) SVR Operation

[a] SVR Execution Timing

The SVR is processed at the beginning of the high-speed scan. SVR processing is performed in the next scan after specifying and the processing results are reflected in the monitoring parameters.



[b] Processing Time

When fixed parameter 0 (Selection of Operation Modes) is set to 0 (Normal Operation Mode), services are started for each of the 16 SVR Module virtual axes.

Note: The default for the Selection of Operation Modes parameter is 1 (Axis Unused).

The following table gives guidelines for the processing time required for each SVR axis.

Command	MP2200
NOP	$35 + 14 \times \text{Number of axes } (\mu s)$
POSING	$35 + 36 \times \text{Number of axes } (\mu s)$

Note: Number of axes: The number of axes (1 to 16) when Selection of Operation Modes (fixed parameter 0) is set to Normal Operation Mode (0). The formula listed above do not apply when the number of axes is 0.

Differences from SVB Simulation Mode

Simulation mode does not have a positioning function, so the position data is refreshed in one scan to the final target position. The SVR has its own positioning function that performs distribution, so like a real module, position data is refreshed each scan for the final target position.

2.4 CPU-02 Module

2.4.1 Overview of Functions

The CPU-02 Module is used exclusively for the MP2200, and has been developed as a higher level of CPU-01 Module.

In addition to the expansion of the user memory, the CPU-02 Module is highly generalized, and has one Compact Flash port and one USB port.

The Compact Flash already in the Compact Flash slot can be used to back up applications directly without going through the MPE720 to save them as a batch. Also, applications can be loaded from the Compact Flash directly to the CPU in batch loads.

The USB connector has only one channel, which works as a port only for the MPE720. With a USB hub, several CPU-02 Modules can be controlled with one personal computer (MPE720).

Note: MPE720 version 5.31B or later.

2.4.2 External Appearance, Indicators, and Switch Settings

(1) External Appearance

The following figure shows the external appearance of the CPU-02 Module.



Note: A dummy card is inserted in the Compact Flash slot to prevent dust from entering before shipment.

2.4.2 External Appearance, Indicators, and Switch Settings

(2) Indicators

Indicators	Indicator Name	Color	Significance when Lit
	RDY	Green	Unit operating normally. *1
	RUN	Green	User program running. *1
	ALM	Red	Lights/blinks for warning. *1
	ERR	Red	Lights/blinks for errors. ^{*1}
	CARD	Green	Accessing the Compact Flash.
	BAT	Red	Battery alarm activated. ^{*1}
LED2 TRX ()	TRX	Green	Communicating with USB. *2
STS 🔘	STS	Red	Lights or blinks for errors. *2
LED3 PWON			
(On the side of the Compact Flash connector lever)	PWON	Green	Supplying power to the Compact Flash.

The following table shows the indicators that show the operating status of the CPU-02 Module and error information.

* 1. Refer to 8.2.3 (2) LED Indicator Meanings on the meaning of indicators.

* 2. Refer to 2.4.6 (3) Details of LED Display (LED2) for USBs for details of the LED displays.

(3) Switch Settings

[a] SW1

The SW1 of the DIP switch is used to set the operating conditions for the CPU-02 Module when the power supply is turned ON.

Before turning ON the power supply, set this switch. Any settings made after the power supply is turned ON are invalid.



Pin Number	Switch Name	Status	Operating Mode	Default Setting	Details	
6	STOP	ON	User program stopped	OFF	Stops the user program execution. Enabled only	
0	5101	OFF	User program running	UT	when debugging.	
Б	SLID	ON	System use	OFF	Always set to OFF	
5	30F	OFF	Normal operation	OFF	Always set to OFF.	
		ON	Memory clear		Set to ON to clear the memory. Also set to ON	
4 INIT	INIT	INIT OFF	Normal operation	OFF	not to save the data in the Compact Flash. If this switch is set to OFF, the program stored in flash memory will be executed.	
з	CNEG	ON	Configuration mode	OFF	Set to ON to execute self-configuration for con-	
5		OFF	Normal operation	011	nected devices.	
2	MON	ON	System use	OFF	Always set to OFF	
2		OFF	Normal operation	011	Always set to OTT.	
1 TI	TEST	ON	System use (adjusted before shipment)	OFF	Always set to OFF.	
		OFF	Normal operation			

[b] SW2

The SW2 of the DIP switch is used to set the operating conditions for the Compact Flash slot and the USB connector.



Pin Number	Switch Name	Status	Operating Mode	Default Setting	Details
1	CAPD	ON	Compact Flash enabled.	OFF	Turns the power supply to the Compact Flash
-	CAILD	OFF	Compact Flash disabled.	UIT	ON or OFF.
3 LOAD		ON	Executes batch load from the Compact Flash (Compact Flash \rightarrow CPU).	OFF	Enabled when switches SW2-4 is ON (Com- pact Flash enabled). With the LOAD switch set to ON, a batch load from the Compact Flash is executed when the power supply is
		OFF	Batch load is not executed.	turned ON.	
2	SAVE	OFF ↓ ON	Save (CPU \rightarrow Compact Flash).	OFF	Enabled when switches SW2-4 is ON (Com- pact Flash enabled). By turning it from OFF to ON, a batch save to the Compact Flash is exe- cuted.
1		ON	USB local address1.		
	USB1	1 USB1	OFF	Start up according to the Module Configuration Defi- nitions of USB.	OFF

2.4.3 Hardware Specifications

2.4.3 Hardware Specifications

The following table shows the hardware specification of the CPU-02 Module.

Item	Specifications		
Name	CPU-02 Module		
Model	JAPMC-CP2210		
Abbreviation	CPU-02		
Flash Memory	16 MB (User's area: 11.5 ME	3)	
SDRAM	32 MB		
SRAM	2 MB, M registers, S registers history (battery backup)	, trace memory, alarm	
External Memory Interface	Compact Flash interface $\times 1$ s	lot	
Engineering Port	USB interface × 1 channel		
Calendar	Seconds to year timer (battery backup)		
	LED1	LED2	
	RDY (green)	TRX (green)	
Indicators	RUN (green)	SYS (red)	
malcators	ALM (red)	LED3	
	ERR (red)	PWON (green)	
	BAT (red)		
	SW1	SW2	
	STOP	CARD	
	SUP	LOAD	
Switches	INIT	SAVE	
	CNFG	USB1	
	MON		
	TEST		
Dimensions (mm)	125 × 95 (H × D)		
Mass	75 g		

Note: For information on general specifications, refer to 2.1 Specifications.

2.4.4 SVR Module (Virtual Motion Module)

Refer to 2.3.4 SVR Module (Virtual Motion Module).

2.4.5 CARD Module

The specifications of the Compact Flash interface are described here.

(1) Specifications

[a] General Specifications

The following table shows the general specifications of the Compact Flash interface.

Item	Specifications	Remarks
Slot Standard	For Compact Flash (TYPE-I)	50 pins
Number of Slots	1	-
Interface	PC card ATA	True IDE is not supported.
Applicable Media	Compact Elash (TVPE 1)	The Compact Flash described in the following
	Compact Plasm (11112-1)	table is recommended.*
Media Memory Capacity	32 MB, 64 MB, 128 MB, 256MB, 512MB	-
For Partition	Not available	-
	FAT12/16/32,	Up to 256 characters of a file name are available
Applicable FAT	VFAT (long name)	actually allowed because of full path designation.
Max. No. of Nested Directory	10	-
File Information	Report of updating date avail- able	Calendar function of the controller is used.
Max. Length of File Name and Directory Name	256 characters	Total number of characters in file names and directory names.
Current Directory Function	Not available	-
Max. No. of Simultaneous Open Files	16	-

* Micro drive, I/O device, or HDD is not supported.

• Recommended Compact Flash / Adapter (Available from YASKAWA)

Model	Specifications	Manufacturer
CFI-128MDG	128 MB	
CFI-256MDG	256 MB	Hagiwara Sys Com Co. I td
CFI-512MDG	512 MB	Thagiwara Sys-Colli Co., Ltd.
CFC-ADP03	PC-card adapter* (for the PCMCIA connector)	

* Use a PC-card type adapter when the Compact Flash is used with a personal computer. By mounting the Compact Flash on a PC-card adapter, it can be used as a PC-Card Type-II Flash Card.

• Operation Confirmed Compact Flash (Available from an electric appliance shop)

Model	Specifications	Manufacturer
SDCFB-64-J60	64 MB	SanDisk Corneration
SDCFB-128-J60	128 MB	SanDisk Corporation
HPC-CF64V	64 MB	Hagiwara Sys-Com Co., Ltd.
HPC-CF128V	128 MB	(V Series)
HPC-SD128T	128-MB SD memory card	Hagiwara Sug Com Co. Itd
HPC-CDA01	Compact Flash-type SD memory card adapter	Hagiwala Sys-Colli Co., Ltu.

[b] Functions

The following table shows the functional specifications for the Compact Flash interface.

Item	Specifications	Descriptions
Operation Switch	3 pins of SW2	CARD: Enables or disables use of media.LOAD: Executes batch load if set to ON when power supply is turned ON.SAVE: Executes a batch save when set from OFF to ON.
Batch Load	Compact Flash \rightarrow CPU (Flash memory)	• Executes and controls operation in accordance with settings of SW2
Batch Save	CPU (SDRAM) → Compact Flash	• The data to be transferred is: User application + register.

[c] Compact Flash-Related System Registers

The following table shows the specifications of the system register related to the Compact Flash interface.

Specifications	Register Number		Description	
Whole capacity of Compact Flash Card	SL00652		Unit: Byte	
		SB006540	0: Compact Flash card not mounted	1: Compact Flash card mounted
		SB006541	0: Power not supplied	1: Power being supplied
		SB006542	0: Compact Flash card not identified	1: Compact Flash card being identified
Card Status	SW00654	SB006543	0: No Compact Flash card access	1: Compact Flash card being accessed
		SB006544	0: -	1: FAT file system being checked
		SB006545		
		to	Reserved for system	
		SB00654F		
		0001H	FAT12	
FAT Type	SW00655	0002H	FAT16	
		0003H	FAT32	
Reserved for system	SW00656		-	
Reserved for system	SW00657		-	
		SB006580	During batch load	
		SB006581	Compact Flash card read-out error	
		SB006582	Load file model mismatched	1
		SB006583	Load file write-in error	
		SB006584	Flash-storage error	
		SB006585	No batch load folder exists.	
Batch Load/Save	SW00658	SB006586	Load error due to prohibition (program write protection)	n of load
Datch Load/Save	5 100050	SB006587	Reserved for system	
		SB006588	During a batch save	
		SB006589	Compact Flash card write-in error	
		SB00658A	Save file read-out error	
	SB00658B	Security error		
		SB00658C		
		to SB00658F	Reserved for system	
Reserved for system	SW00659		-	

(2) Precautions when Using Compact Flash

Pay attention to the following points when using the Compact Flash.

· Removing and Reattaching the Compact Flash

Before removing or inserting the Compact Flash, set the switch SW2-4 (CARD) to OFF, and confirm that the CARD and PWON LED indicator lamps are unlit.

If the Compact Flash is removed or inserted while these LED indicator lamps are lit, the data stored in the Compact Flash may be damaged.

· Formatting the Compact Flash

Format the Compact Flash in a computer running on Windows 2000 or Windows XP operating system. The CPU-02 Module cannot be used to format the Compact Flash.

Note: The Compact Flash purchased from YASKAWA has already been formatted.

· FAT Check and Restoration of Compact Flash

If the Compact Flash is removed or if the power supply is turned OFF while accessing the Compact Flash with the CARD LED indicator lamp lit, the FAT in the Compact Flash may be damaged.

The CPU-02 Module checks the FAT when the switch SW2-4 (CARD) is set to ON and attempts to restore the data if the FAT is damaged. During data restoration, the CARD LED indicator lamp will flicker ON and OFF, because the Compact Flash is accessed automatically. This is not a failure.

It may take 10 minutes or more to restore the FAT. If in a hurry, forcibly remove the Compact Flash and run an error check on the personal computer to restore the data.

INIT Switch Setting and Transfer of Registers M, S, I, and O

The following table shows registers M, S, I, and O to be transferred between the Compact Flash and the controller according to the status of the INIT the SW1 switch.

Setting of INIT (SW1) Switch	OFF	ON
At batch save	M, S, I, O, C, #, D	C, #, D
At batch load	M, C, #, D	C, #, D

Note:1. S, I, and O registers are not transferred in a batch load regardless of the INIT setting.

2. Registers other than M, S, I, and O registers are transferred both in a batch save and a batch load regardless of the INIT setting.

(3) Batch Save to Compact Flash

By using the DIP switches, the batch save function of the CPU-02 Module can save all the user application data from the RAM to the specified folder and file, \MP_BKUP\BACKUP, of the Compact Flash without going through the MPE720.



- Note: 1. If data in the Compact Flash has already been saved in a batch or another form written in from the MPE720, it will be cleared when a new batch is saved.
 - 2. A batch load is not possible if a motion register is used for trace definition, or if the relevant motion module is not defined or not mounted.
 - 3. The security function is not provided for program transfers with the Compact Flash in the CPU software (version 2.41 or earlier).

The procedure for batch saving to the Compact Flash is as follows:

- Confirm that the CARD, LOAD and SAVE of the CPU-02 Module's SW2 are set to OFF.
- **2.** Insert the formatted Compact Flash into the Compact Flash slot on the CPU-02 Module with the power supply ON.
- **3.** Set the CARD switch to ON.

The PWON LED indicator lamp will light up.

4. Set the SAVE switch to ON.

The batch save will start, and the CARD LED indicator lamp will light up. When a batch save is completed, the CARD LED indicator lamp will go out.

Note: If the operation fails, the ALM LED indicator lamp will light up, and the error will be reported to the system register SW00658. Refer to 3.2.2 [a] Compact Flash (CF) Slot Specifications.
 The ALM LED indicator lamp will turn OFF by re-executing batch save or by restarting the MP2200.

· How to Input Data from the Compact Flash to the MPE720

The MPE720 can read application data that was batch-saved to Compact Flash. For information on how to read the data, refer to the MPE720 user's manual.

• Writing in from the MPE720 to the Compact Flash

The MPE720 can write application data to the Compact Flash if the application data was batch-dumped from the Controller. If data that is created or edited off-line is written in to the Compact Flash, an error may occur in a batch load.

Refer to the MPE720 user's manual for information on how to write application data to the Compact Flash using the MPE720.



(4) Batch Load from Compact Flash

By using only the DIP switches, you can use the batch load function of the CPU-02 Module to read in user application data in the Compact-Flash-specified folder and file, \MP_BKUP\BACKUP, and also flash-store the data without going through the MPE720.



To load data in a batch from the Compact Flash, use the following procedure:

- **1.** Insert the Compact Flash with the backup application data into the Compact Flash slot of the CPU-02 Module with the power supply OFF.
- 2. Set the CARD and LOAD switches of SW2 of the CPU-02 Module to ON.



3. Turn ON the MP2200 power supply.

The PWON LED indicator lamp will light up, and the batch load will start. The CARD LED indicator lamp will light up, and the RUN LED indicator lamp will blink. When all of the data has been successfully read out from the Compact Flash, the CARD LED indicator lamp will turn OFF.

After the data has been successfully saved, the RUN and PWON LED indicator lamps will turn OFF.

- Note: If a load failure occurs, the ALM indicator will light, and the error details will be reported in system register SW00658. (Refer to 2.4.5 (1) [c] Compact Flash-Related System Registers.) If you restart the MP2200, the ALM LED indicator lamp will turn OFF.
- 4. Turn OFF the MP2200 power supply.
- **5.** Set the CARD, LOAD, and INIT switches to OFF. Then, turn ON the MP2200 power supply to start from the flash memory.

2.4.6 USB Module

(1) Overview

By connecting a computer with MPE720 installed, either directly or via a USB hub with a CPU-02 Module, MP2200 controller engineering can be done through the MPE720-equipped computer.

• Example of Configuration Using Several CPU-02 Modules



Note: 1. USB corresponding communications process and exclusive-use device driver must be installed for this function. For information on the installation method, refer to 2.4.6 (4) *Installing the Hardware Driver*.
2. Up to 5 USB hubs can be connected.

(2) General Specifications

The following table describes the general specifications of the USB interface.

Item	Specifications	Remarks
Standard	In accordance with USB2.0 Full-speed function	-
Bus speed	Full speed (12 Mbps)	-
Format	Asynchronous serial	-
Communication Method	Half duplex	-
Connected Devices	One USB host, 127 slaves	Including hub
Cable	USB cable available at most electric appliance stores	Connector: PC side: Series A plug Module side: Series mini-B plug
Cable Length	Max. length in full-speed mode: 5 m (30 m at full speed with Hub 5-layer connection)	-
Connector Type	Series mini-B plug	-
Power Supply	Self-powered type	Shares power supply with the MP2200.

(3) Details of LED Display (LED2) for USBs

Classification	Indicato	or Name	Indicator Details	Description
Clacomodion	TRX	STS		Decemption
Normal Operation	Not lit	Not lit	During normal operation	LED is OFF when USB transmission is not carried out even after the power supply is turned ON.
Transmission	Blinking	Not lit	During USB transmission	TRX flashes during USB transmis- sion.
Error	Undefined	Blinking	Hardware error (Meaning differs depending on the number of blinks.) Number of blinks and error 1: ROM diagnostic error 2: RAM diagnostic error 3: Shared-memory diagnostic error 15: Watchdog timeout error	Hardware error in the USB-control section. The module must be replaced.

(4) Installing the Hardware Driver

Before connecting the MP2200 (CPU-02 Module) to the personal computer via a USB for the first time, the USB communications driver for the MP series must be installed. Prepare the setup disc (Ver 5.31B or later) of the MPE720, and install the USB driver as described in this section.

- **1.** Connect the USB port on the CPU-02 Module to the USB port on the personal computer with a USB cable (series mini-B), and turn ON the MP2200 power supply.
- 2. A message Find New Hardware will be displayed. Then, Found New Hardware Wizard will be displayed. Click the Next button.



3. Select **Display a list of the known drivers for this device so that I can choose a specific driver** and click the **Next** button.



A message will appear, asking where to find the driver.

- 4. Insert the MPE720 setup disc into the CD-ROM drive.
- 5. Select CD-ROM drives and click the Next button.

Found New Hardware Wizard
Locate Driver Files Where do you want Windows to search for driver files?
Search for driver files for the following hardware device:
P2200 CPU-02
The wizard searches for suitable drivers in its driver database on your computer and in any of the following optional search locations that you specify.
To start the search, click Next. If you are searching on a floppy disk or CD-ROM drive, insert the floppy disk or CD before clicking Next.
Optional search locations:
Floppy disk drives
CD-ROM drives
Specify a location
Microsoft Windows Update
<back next=""> Cancel</back>

If the driver is found, the search results will appear.

6. Click the Next button.



The installation will start.

7. After the driver has been successfully installed, click the Finish button.

Farmed Name Davidson and Discond	
Found New Hardware Wizard	Completing the Found New Hardware Wizard Windows has finished installing the software for this device.
	To close this wizard, click Finish.

(5) Removing the Cable from the USB Connector

When removing the cable from the USB connector on the personal computer, the USB hub, or the CPU-02 Module, or when turning OFF the MP2200 power supply connected to a USB, perform the following operations to safely undo the connections.

1. In the task tray at the lower right of the window, click the icon to remove the device.



A message Stop USB Mass Storage Device-Drive (F:) will appear.

2. Click inside the window.

The connection will be cut and a window, **The 'USB Mass Storage Device' device can now be safety removed from the system**, will appear. After this message appears, the cable can be safely removed and the MP2200 power supply can be turned OFF.

Click the inside the window or click the OK button in the dialog box to close the window.

2.4.6 USB Module

(6) Creating Project Files for a USB Connection

This section describes how to create a project file that specifies USB for the communication port.

- 1. Use either of the following methods to start creating a new project file.
 - Select *Project New* from the start window.
 - Select File New Project from the main menu.
- Note: A message will be displayed to confirm whether to compile and save any project file that is being edited. The following processing will be performed when a button is pressed.
 - Yes Button: The project file will be compiled, saved, and closed.
 - No Button: The project file will be closed without compiling or saving it.
 - Cancel Button: Creating the new file will be canceled, and editing will continue.
- **2.** Open the folder at the save location, input the file name, and select the file type and machine controller to be used.



The settings and setting procedure are described below.

① File name

Inputs a new name for a project file.

② Save as type

Displays the extensions that can be selected for the project file. Example: Project File (*.YMW)

- ③ Controller Selects the type of Controller to be used. In this case, select MP2200-02.
- ④ Create Button

Creates a file with the name that was input in \mathbb{O} .

⑤ Cancel Button

Cancels the operation to name the file and save it, and closes the dialog box.

- 6 Help Button
 - Displays the Select Help Dialog Box.
- Note: 1. The following characters cannot be used in file names: / , : * ? " < > |
 - 2. You can select either *Project File (*.YMW)* or *all files (*.*)* for the *Save as type*. A project file (*.YMW) will be created either way.

3. Click the **Create** Button.

A project file create/open message will be displayed and the project file will be created in the specified folder and displayed in the Ladder Subwindow.

- Ladder 4 ×
- Select Online Communication Settings from the main menu. Or, click Controller Communication Settings in the start window (or Project Communication Settings in the start window).

The Communications Settings Dialog Box will appear.

5. Select USB for the communication port.

Click the **Detail** Button, and then set the local address.

Communications	Setting	
Set the communicatio	n setting	Connection
Communication port	5 : USB	Setting
Local	1 -	Cancel
		<< Detail

6. Click the Setting Button.

The communication settings will be completed, and the dialog box will close.

Note: While the machine controller is connected, the Connection Button and Setting Button will be disabled and it will not be possible to set communications. The operation of MPE720 version 6 when connected to the Machine Controller is different depending on whether the connection information (i.e., the settings in the Communications Settings Dialog Box) have been saved in the project files.

7. Select File - Overwrite Save Project from the main menu.

A message saying to wait while the project file is being saved will be displayed, and then the project file being edited will be saved.

Note: The local address to be set in this paragraph is used to specify the corresponding CPU-02 Modules from the MPE720 (personal computer) side. If one CPU-02 Module is connected to the personal computer, set it to 1. If more than one CPU-02 Module is connected to the personal computer, use the appropriate setting. For details, refer to 2.4.6 (7) Setting the Local Station when Connecting Several CPU-02 Modules via USB.

(7) Setting the Local Station when Connecting Several CPU-02 Modules via USB

To connect several CPU-02 Modules to the personal computer via the USB hub, perform the following connections and settings. Incorrect settings may overlap local addresses, resulting in an error.

1. Execute self-configuration in advance before the USB connection of a CPU-02 Module that is being used for the first time.

Note: For information on the procedure for executing self-configuration, refer to 5.4 Self-configuration.

- **2.** If some CPU-02 Modules are already connected, remove all the CPU-02 cables from the USB hub. Note: Refer to 2.4.6 (5) *Removing the Cable from the USB Connector*.
- **3.** After turning ON the USB1 switch (SW2) of the CPU-02 Modules where the local station is to be set, use the USB cable to connect the CPU-02 Modules to the USB hub.

If the USB1 switch (SW2) is set to ON, the CPU-02 module will operate as local address 1 regardless of the Module Configuration Definitions.

4. Start MPE720 version 6.

Note: If any project file is in MPE720 version 6, close the file.



Select Online - Communications Settings from the main menu. Or, click Controller - Communication Settings in the start window (or Project - Communication Settings in the start window).

The Communications Settings Dialog Box will be displayed.

6. Select USB for the communication port.

Click the Detail Button, and then set the local address to 1.

Communications	Setting	×
Set the communicatio	n setting	Connection
Communication port	5 : USB	Setting
Local	1	Cancel
		<< Detail

7. Click the Connection Button.

The communication settings will be completed, and the system will be connected online.

8. Double-click the **Module configuration** lcon in the System Subwindow to display the window for module configuration definitions.



9. Double-click USB in the Module Details Area.

ect Rack Enable/Di	sable										
Rack 1 Enable	-										
Rack 2 Disable	-										
Rack 3 Disable	-										
Rack 4 Disable	•										
ntroller											
ack 1 Rack 2 Rack 3	Rack 4										1
Slot Number	00	01	1 T	02		()3		04	(
											_
Module Type CPU-C	2 🔻	UNDEFIN	NED 🔻	UNDEFIN	ED 🔻	UNDEF	INED	▼ UI	NDEFIN	ED -	
Module Type CPU-C Status Runnir)2 ▼ Na	UNDEFIN	NED 🔻	UNDEFIN	ED 🔻	UNDEF	INED	▼ UI	NDEFIN	IED -	
Module Type CPU-C Status Runnir)2 ▼ hq	UNDEFIN	NED 🔻	UNDEFIN	ED 🔻	UNDEF	INED	T UI	NDEFIN	IED -	
Module Type CPU-C Status Runnir U-02: CPU module with vir	12 V	UNDEFIN	NED 💌	UNDEFIN	ED 🔻	UNDEF	INED	vi ▼	NDEFIN	IED -	
Module Type CPU-C Status Runnir U-02: CPU module with vir	12 💌	UNDEFIN	NED 💌	UNDEFIN	ED 💌	UNDEF	INED	▼ UI	NDEFIN	IED 🔻	
Module Type CPU-C Status Runnir U-02: CPU module with vir dule Details CPU-02 RA(ng I tual axes, C	UNDEFIN CF card an DT#00-	NED 🔻	UNDEFIN	ED v	UNDEF	INED		NDEFIN	ied 🔻	
Module Type CPU-C Status Runnir U-02: CPU module with vir dule Details CPU-02 RAI Slot Number	12 V Ing I tual axes, C CK#01 SLC	UNDEFIN CF card an DT #00	NED V	UNDEFIN 2	ED V	UNDEF	INED		A 4	JED .	
Module Type CPU-C Status Runnir U-02: CPU module with vir dule Details CPU-02 RAI Slot Number Module Type	tual axes, C CK#01 SLC	UNDEFIN CF card an DT#00- 1	NED VIED VIET VIET VIET VIET VIET VIET VIET VIET	UNDEFIN 2		UNDEF	INED	▼ UI	NDEFIN 4	ied ,	
Module Type CPU-C Status Runnir U-02: CPU module with vir dule Details CPU-02 RAI Slot Number Module Type Circuit Number	tual axes, C CK#01 SLC CPU -	UNDEFIN CF card an DT #00 1	d USB.	2	ED V CARE	UNDEF	INED	VI USB 01	NDEFIN 4	IED .	
Module Type CPU-C Status Runnir U-02: CPU module with vir dule Details CPU-02 RAI Slot Number Module Type Circuit Number I/O Start Register	tual axes, C CK#01 SLC CPU 	UNDEFIN CF card an DT #00 1	id USB.	2	ED 🔻	UNDEF 3	INED	✓ UI USB 01	4	IED •	
Module Type CPU-C Status Runnir U-02: CPU module with vir dule Details CPU-02 RAI Slot Number Module Type Circuit Number I/O Start Register I/O End Register	12 ▼ hq tual axes, 0 CK#01 SL0 CPU 	UNDEFIN CF card an DT#00	d USB.	2	ED CARE	UNDEF	INED ▼	USB 01	4	,	
Module Type CPU-C Status Runnir U-02: CPU module with vir dule Details CPU-02 RAI Slot Number Module Type Circuit Number I/O Start Register I/O End Register Motion Start Register	2 inq tual axes, C CK#01 SLC CPU 	UNDEFIN CF card an DT#00	wED ▼ id USB. SVR 01 8000	2	ED -	UNDEF 3	INED ▼	USB 01	4		
Module Type CPU-C Status Runnir U-02: CPU module with vir dule Details CPU-02 RAI Slot Number Module Type Circuit Number I/O Start Register I/O End Register Motion Start Register Motion End Register	2 inq tual axes, C CK#01 SLC CPU 	UNDEFIN CF card an DT#00 1	d USB. SVR 01 8000 87FF	2	ED -		INED	USB 01	4		
Module Type CPU-C Status Runnir U-02: CPU module with vir dule Details CPU-02 RAI Slot Number Module Type Circuit Number I/O Start Register I/O End Register Motion Start Register Details	12 tual axes, 0	UNDEFIN CF card an DT#00	NED ▼ d USB. SVR 01 8000 87FF	2 2	ED -			USB 01 	4 ,		

The dialog box for setting the local address will be displayed.

10. Set the local address, and then click the Close Button.

For the local address, set an address that is not already being used by other CPU-02 Modules.

3#01			,
Fransmission Protool	иемови	S 🔻	
Local Address	<u> </u>	(1~127)	
Automatically Reception) Disable	e 📀 Enable	
Automatically Reception setti	ngs		
Slave I/F Register Settings		Head REG	WD Size
Readout of Input Relay		1W0000	32768
Readout of Input Register		IW0000	32768
Readout/Write-in of Coil		MW00000	65535
Readout/Write-in of Hold Re	egister	MW00000	65535
Write-in width of Coil/Hold R	egister L	0 MW00000	
		II DAVIOSEDA	

Click the **OK** button in the dialog box to set the local address.

Note: The local address that is set here is used to write-in to the CPU-02 Module.

11. Flash-store the data and log off after returning to the **MPE720 Ver.6** Window.



12. Turn OFF the USB1 switch (SW2) of the CPU-02 Module and then turn the power supply of the MP2200 OFF and back ON again.

The local address of the USB in the CPU-02 Module will be changed to the new address after restart of the power. To add another CPU-02 Module, repeat the above steps 1 to 9.

Refer to 2.4.6 (6) Creating Project Files for a USB Connection for the procedure to create a project file to connect to a CPU-02 Module.

2.5 CPU-03 Module

2.5.1 Overview of Functions

The CPU-03 Module is a special CPU Module for the MP2200. It was designed as a upper-end model to provide greater speed and easier operation than the CPU-01 Module and CPU-02 Module.

The CPU-03 Module has one Compact Flash interface and one Ethernet interface with the following characteristics.

- One Standard-feature Slot for Compact Flash (CF) Interface
 - Applications can be directly backed up (i.e., batch-saved) to the Compact Flash mounted in the CF slot without going through the MPE720.
 - Applications can be loaded directly to the CPU Module from the Compact Flash (i.e., batch-loaded).

Standard-feature Ethernet (100 Mbps)

- High-speed communication can be performed with the MPE720 Engineering Tool.
- Communication can be performed with a touch panel without using ladder programming (automatic reception).
- Communication can be performed with the host PLC without using ladder programming (I/O message communication).
- Simple Programming
 - The operating procedures have been greatly streamlined through execution of motion operations.
 - The motion program can be started from the host PLC without programming simply by creating a motion program and registering the execution sequence.



C : Started at fixed interval

Fig. 2.1 Overview of CPU-03 Module Functions

2.5.2 External Appearance, Indicators, and Switch Settings

2.5.2 External Appearance, Indicators, and Switch Settings

(1) External Appearance

The following figure shows the external appearance of the CPU-03 Module.



Note: A dummy card is inserted in the Compact Flash slot to prevent dust from entering before shipment.

(2) Indicators

The following table shows the indicators that show the operating status of the CPU-03 Module and error information.

Indicators	Indicator Name	Color	Significance when Lit
LED1	RDY	Green	Unit operating normally. *
ା ୍ ୍ ୍ ୍ ୍ ୍ ୍ ୍ ୍ ୍ ୍ ୍ ୍ ୍ ୍ ୍ ୍ ୍ ୍	RUN	Green	User program running. *
	ALM	Red	Lights/blinks for warning.*
O HH	ERR	Red	Lights/blinks for errors.*
O'ARD E	CARD	Green	Accessing the Compact Flash.
BAT	BAT	Red	Battery alarm activated.*
	PWON	Green	Supplying power to the Compact Flash.
(Mounted on the back of the CF connector.)	TRX	Green	Transmitting or receiving Ethernet data.
LED3 LINK	LINK	Yellow	When there is an Ethernet link.
100M . (Built into the Ethernet connector.)	100M	Green	Lit: Connected at 100 Mbps or performing auto-negotiation. Not lit: 10 Mbps

* Refer to 8.2.3 (2) LED Indicator Meanings on the meaning of indicators.

(3) Switch Settings

[a] SW1

The SW1 of the DIP switch is used to set the operating conditions for the CPU-03 Module when the power supply is turned ON.

Before turning ON the power supply, set this switch. Any settings made after the power supply is turned ON are invalid.



OFF ON

Pin Number	Switch Name	Status	Operating Mode	Default Setting	Details		
6	STOP	ON	User program stopped	OFF	Stops the user program execution. Enabled only		
0	6 STOP		User program running	UT	when debugging.		
5	5 0110		System use	OFF	Always set to OFF		
5	301	OFF	Normal operation	UT	Always set to OFT.		
		ON	Memory clear		Set to ON to clear the memory. Also set to ON		
4	INIT	OFF	Normal operation	OFF	not to save the data in the Compact Flash. If this switch is set to OFF, the program stored in flash memory will be executed.		
з			Configuration mode	OFF	Set to ON to execute self-configuration for con-		
5		OFF	Normal operation	011	nected devices.		
2	MON	ON	System use	OFF	Always set to OFF		
2		OFF	Normal operation	UT	Always set to OFT.		
1	TEST	ON	System use (adjusted before shipment)	OFF	Always set to OFF.		
		OFF	Normal operation				

2.5.2 External Appearance, Indicators, and Switch Settings

[b] SW2

SW2 is used to set the CF slot and Ethernet operating conditions.



Pin Number	Switch Name	Status	Operating Mode	Default Setting	Details				
4	CARD	ON	Compact Flash enabled.	OFF	Turns the power supply to the Compact Flash				
-		OFF	Compact Flash disabled.	011	ON or OFF.				
3	LOAD	ON	Executes batch load from the Compact Flash (Compact Flash \rightarrow CPU).	OFF	Enabled when switches SW2-4 is ON (Com- pact Flash enabled). With the LOAD switch set to ON, a batch load from the Compact				
			Batch load is not executed.		Flash is executed when the power supply is turned ON.				
2	SAVE	OFF ↓ ON	Save (CPU \rightarrow Compact Flash).	OFF	Enabled when switches SW2-4 is ON (Com- pact Flash enabled). By turning it from OFF to ON, a batch save to the Compact Flash is exe- cuted.				
		ON	Transmission parameter defaults for Ethernet		If E-INIT is ON, the IP address and other				
1	E-INIT	OFF	Start up according to the Module Configuration Defi- nitions for Ethernet.	OFF	transmission parameters will be set to default values at startup.				

2.5.3 Hardware Specifications

The following table shows the hardware specification of the CPU-03 Module.

Item	Specifications				
Name	CPU-03 Module				
Model	JAPMC-CP2220-E				
Abbreviation	CPU-03				
Flash Memory	16 MB (User's area: 11.5 MB	3)			
DDR	64 MB				
SRAM	4 MB (3 MB max. with battery backup can be used for table data.)				
External Memory Interface	Compact Flash interface $\times 1$ s	lot			
Communication Interface	One Ethernet interface channel				
Calendar	Seconds to year timer (battery backup)				
	LED1	LED2			
	RDY (green)	PWON (green)			
	RUN (green)	TRX (green)			
Indicators	ALM (red)	LED3			
	ERR (red)	LINK (yellow)			
	CARD (green)	100M (green)			
	BAT (red)				
	SW1	SW2			
	STOP	CARD			
	SUP	LOAD			
Switches	INIT	SAVE			
	CNFG	USB1			
	MON	E-INIT			
	TEST				
Dimensions (mm)	$125 \times 95 (H \times D)$				
Mass	86 g				

Note: For information on general specifications, refer to 2.1 Specifications.

2.5.4 SVR Module (Virtual Motion Module)

Refer to 2.3.4 SVR Module (Virtual Motion Module).

2.5.5 CARD Module

Refer to 2.4.5 CARD Module.

2.5.6 218IFA Module (Ethernet)

2.5.6 218IFA Module (Ethernet)

(1) Overview of 218IFA Module Functions

The 218IFA Module is a 10Base-T/100Base-TX Ethernet interface. It is a standard-feature communication interface for the CPU-03 Module.

- 100Mbps transmission speed is supported (100Base-TX).
- Supports the following various communication protocols:
 - Support for MEMOBUS protocol, Extended MEMOBUS protocol
 - Support for MELSEC protocol (A-compatible I/E frame)
 - Support for MODBUS/TCP protocol
 - Support for non-procedure communication
- An I/O message communication function enables you the data exchange in the form of I/O image when communicating with the host PLC, eliminating you from creating a ladder program.
- An automatic receive function eliminates you from creating a ladder program when connected to the indicator and the like.
- The 218IFA Module can be used as the standard interface with the MPE720 Engineering Tool. It provides a simple function for connecting to the MPE720, allowing you to connect to MPE720 without knowing the IP address of the 218IFA Module.

(2) Specification of 218IFA Module

The following table shows the specification of the 218IFA Module.

Iten	ns	Description
Communication Interface *1		10Base-T/100Base-TX
Communication Protocol *2		TCP/UDP/IP/ARP/ICMP
Maximum Number of Comn	nunication Connections	4+2 (I/O Message communication)
Maximum Number of Comn	nunication Channels	4+2 (I/O Message communication)
	MEMOBUS	Write: 100W Read: 125W
	Extended MEMOBUS	Write: 2043W Read: 2044W
(maximum)	MELSEC	Write: 1017W Read: 1017W
	MODBUS/TCP	Write: 100W Read: 125W
	Non-procedure	Write: 2046W
	MEMOBUS	Write: 100W Read: 125W
I/O Message	Extended MEMOBUS	Write: 1024W Read: 1024W
(maximum)	MELSEC	Write: 256W Read: 256W
	MODBUS/TCP	Write: 100W Read: 125W
	MEMOBUS	Provided
Automatic Receive	Extended MEMOBUS	Provided
Automatic Receive	MELSEC	Provided
	MODBUS/TCP	Provided
Non-procedure Receive Bu	ffer Mode Selection *3	Provided
Simple Function for Connect	ting with Engineering Tool	Provided

* 1. Communication Interface

The discrimination between 10Base-T/100Base-TX and full-duplex/half-duplex is done by 218IFA based on the remote device. When connecting to a device without automatic negotiation function, set the remote device to half-duplex mode.

Correspondence of Communication Mode

	Remote Device									
218IFA Module	Automatic Negotiation	10Base-T Half-duplex	10Base-T Full-duplex	100Base-TX Half-duplex	100Base-TX Full-duplex					
Automatic Negotiation	Depends on the remote device	Communicates in 10Base-T half-duplex mode	Unable to communicate	Communicates in 100Base-TX half-duplex mode	Unable to communicate					

* 2. Communication Protocols

- TCP(Transmission Control Protocol): Connection-oriented transport layer protocol
- UDP(User Datagram Protocol): Connectionless transport layer protocol
- IP(Internet Protocol): Protocol for establishing a communication link between computers
- ICMP(Internet Control Message Protocol): Error control protocol for IP protocol
- ARP(Address Resolution Protocol): Address resolving protocol. Protocol for converting IP address into MAC address

2.5.6 218IFA Module (Ethernet)

* 3. Non-procedure Receive Buffer Mode Selection

When the non-procedure application protocol of the 218IFA is used, either a single buffer or multiple buffers can be selected for the receive buffers in the 218IFA.

If multiple buffers are selected, 20 data items per connection can be processed at the same time with data continuously received at an interval shorter than the startup interval of the MSG-RCV function.

ingineering Port :	25555 (25 ?	6-65535)	The port number is s that connect with MI	pecified PE720.
Response Time		. (0	255)	
Count of Retry	: 🛛 🛨 t	ime (O	255)	
Recieve Buffer Select The Recieve buffer	ion selection is effe	ctive only th	at the teletype protoco	l is selected
se orngle buller	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	buner		

(3) Module Configuration Definition

[a] Module Configuration Window Details

Click **CPU-03** in the **Controller** area to display the details of the Basic Modules' functions in the **Module Details** area. The cell No.4 provides a detailed definition of 218IFA.

Engineering Manager -	[Module (onfigura	tion 22-0	3 MP:	2200-03 Off	line I	.ocal]				
PT#:- CPU#:-	low										
Select Rack Enable/Dis Rack 1 Enable Rack 2 Disable Rack 3 Disable Rack 4 Disable Controller Rack 1 Rack 2 Rack 3	sable										
Slot Number	00	01		02		03	0)4	05	06	
Module Type CPU-0	13 🔻	UNDEFIN	IED 🔻 UNE	DEFINE	D 💌 UNDEI	FINED	UNDEF	INED	▼ UNDEFINED	▼ UNDEFINE	
Module Details CPU-03 RA	CK#01 SL()T#00	nernet, progra	am contr	oi runction.					1	
Slot Number		1. 	2	-	3	1975	4	100	5	-	
Module Type	CPU	.	SVR		CARD		2 1 8 IFA	*	UNDEFINED	-	
Circuit Number	-		01		-		01		-	_	
I/O Start Register							0000			_	
I/O End Register							07FF			_	
Disable Input		•		•		•	Enable	•		<u> </u>	
Disable Output	13	•		•		•	Enable	•		<u>-</u>	
Motion Start Register			8000								
Motion End Register			87FF								
Details			6		1						
-	1					1					
For Help, press F1						1)		1		

Items displayed in the Module Details area show the following meanings:

Items	Descriptions	Change
Slot Number	Sub-slot number. Double-click it to open the 218IFA detailed definition window.	-
Module Type	A module name is shown. Changing the name to UNDEFINED enables you to disable 218IFA functions.	\checkmark
Circuit Number	Module's line number (valid range: 01-08)	V
I/O Start Register	Start register of the I/O register used in the I/O message communication of 218IFA (valid range: 0000-7FFFh, size: 800h words)	\checkmark
I/O End Register	End register of the I/O register used in the I/O message communication of 218IFA (valid range: 0000-7FFFh, size: 800h words)	\checkmark
Disable Input	Input Enable/Disable.	\checkmark
Disable Output	Output Enable/Disable.	\checkmark
Motion Start Register	Not used. Fixed at "".	-
Motion End Register	Not used. Fixed at "".	-
Details	Not used.	-
Status	218IFA module status in online mode.	-

 $\sqrt{}$: Available, –: Not available
(4) 218IFA Module Detailed Definition Window

[a] Displaying the 218IFA Module Detailed Definition Window

Select **CPU-03** in the **Controller** Area of the **Module Configuration** Window and then double-click the **Slot Number** cell for the 218IFA Module in the **Module Details** Area to display the detailed definition for the 218IFA Module.

Engineering Manager -	[Module Cor	nfigural	tion 22-03	MP22	00-03 Offline	Local]					_ 🗆 X
📰 File View Order Wind	low										_ 8 ×
PT#:- CPU#:-											
Select Rack Enable/Dii Rack 1 Enable Rack 2 Disable Rack 3 Disable Rack 4 Disable - Controller Rack 1 Rack 2 Rack 3	sable v v v Rack 4										•
Slot Number	00	01		02	03		04	05		06	<u>-</u>
Module Type CPU-C Status	1U ▼ <u></u> 20	NDEFIN	ED 🔻 UND	EFINED	▼ UNDEFINE	D - UNDE	FINED	▼ UNDEFINED	▼ UNDEF	INED 🔻 L	
Module Details CPU-03 RA	tual axes, CF	card ,eth #00	nernet, progra	n control f	unction.			/			
Slot Number	1		2		3	4		5			
Module Type	CPU	•	SVR	▼ CA	ARD 🔻	218IFA	•	UNDEFINED	•		
Circuit Number	-		01	-		01		-			
I/O Start Register					22	0000					
I/O End Register						07FF					
Disable Input		•		-	-	Enable	•		•		
Disable Output		•		-		Enable	•		•		
Motion Start Register			8000								
Motion End Register			87FF								
Details			2								
	1					l	_				
For Help, press F1					1.)		J	Γ		JM ///

[b] 218IFA Module Detailed Definition Window

The 218IFA Module detailed definition window is composed of **Transmission Parameter** and **Status** Tabs, and each tab is changed with a click.

1. Transmission Parameters Tab

The Transmission Parameters Tab sets 218IFA transmission parameters. The setting details are as follows:

- CPU#:-					RACK#01 Slot #	00 CIR#0	0000-07FF	
smission Param	eters Status							
ansmission Par	ameters							
IP Address	: [192 - 168 - 1	÷. 1	÷ (0-255)	Module Name Definitio	N NITROLLER I		
Cubinat Maak	. [255 - 255 - 26	5 - 0	- (0.255)	Equipment name : [ONTHOLLETT	AME	
Subnet Mask	· · · ·		이 도 이	- (0-200)	Datail Definition			
Gateway IP A	ddress :	이 크, 이 크, 이	±.∣0					
nnaction Doror	ootor -							
- Message Con	neter munication —							
Easy settir	9 It is possil	ble to following parameter	setting eas	ilv that communica	ate the message.			
		1				<u> </u>		
CNO	Port	Node IP Address	Port	Type	Type	Code	Detail	
01			1 010		.16-		Setting	
02				-		•	Setting	
03				-		• •	Setting	
04		ļ		-		• •	Setting	
•								Þ
Cannot the	overlap to loca	al station port number use	d by the co	mmunicate the 17	0 message.			
I/O Message	Communication	n						
Disable								
C Enable								
Easy settir	a It is possi	ble to set easily that comm	nunicate th	e 1/0 message.				
Data undat	timina I ow	Scan						
	, and a local							
Read, Write	Local Port	Node IP Address	Node Port	Connect Type	Protocol Type	Code	Detail	
Read				<u> </u>			Setting	
				•		T	Setting	

Transmission Parameters Setting Items

Sets local transmission parameters for 218IFA.

Transmission Parameters	2	Mark de Name Definition	
IP Address	4		
Subnet Mask	;	255 숲 , 255 숲 , 0 숲 (0-255)	
Gateway IP Address	:	0 ÷ 0 ÷ 0 · 0 · 0 · (0-255) Detail Definition	

The following table shows each setting item.

Item	Setting Range	Details	Default
IP Address	0.0.0.1 to 255.255.255.254	Sets 218IFA IP address. However, the following addresses are excluded: 127.xxx.xxx.xxx xxx.xxx.xx000 xxx.xxx.xxx.255	192.168.001.001
Subnet Mask	0.0.0.0 to 255.255.255.254	Sets the 218IFA subnet mask.	255.255.255.000
Gateway IP Ad- dress (router IP ad- dress)	0.0.0.0 to 255.255.255.254	Sets the 218IFA default gateway IP address. However, the follow- ing addresses are excluded: 127.xxx.xxx.xxx xxx.xxx.xx000 (except 000.000.000) xxx.xxx.xxx.255 When you do not use it, set it to 000.000.000.000.	000.000.000.000
Equipment Name	Up to 16 single- byte characters	218IFA can be any name. The name specified here is displayed as a search result in the Module name field of Search Controller list when running the Search in the Communications Setting Dialog Box of MPE720 Ver.6. Communications Setting Communication setting Communication setting Communication port Set the communication setting Communication port Search Controller Communication Info. Meddet name Use the router Use the router	CONTROLLER NAME
Detailed Definition	_	Opens the dialog box for setting the engineering communication with MPE720 and the MEMOBUS communication.	-

Detail Setting Dialog Box of Transmission Parameters Setting

Sets the engineering communication with MPE720 and the message communication.

ingineering Port :	9999	(256-65	535)	The port r that conn	number is s ect with M	pecified PE720.
Response Time Count of Retry	: 0 : 0	÷ s ÷ time	(0· (0·	255) 255)		
Recieve Buffer Sele	ection					
The Recieve buffe	er selection	is effective	only tha	at the telety	pe protoco	l is selected.
Single Buffer	(C)	vlultiple Buff	er			

The following table shows each setting item.

Item	Setting Range	Details	Default
Engineering Port	256 to 65535	Specify the 218IFA port number used in the engineering communica- tion with MPE720. Note: When changing this setting, you must also change the engineer- ing port value in the logical port setting detailed window of the MPE720 communication process. The port number cannot be 9998 or 10000.	9999
Response Time	0 to 255 (sec)	Specify the wait time until a remote response is returned after sending a command, when carrying out a message communication using MSG- SND function. (value zero waits infinitely.) If the Count of Retry is zero, set Response Time to zero. Note: If no response is returned after the setting period expires, a time- out occurs, retry the transmission the number of times specified by Count of Retry .	0
Count of Retry	0 to 255 (time)	Specify the command retransmit number of times when a timeout is detected after setting period of Response Time expires. Note: If no response is returned after as many retries as the retransmit number of times, an error is returned to the MSG-SND function.	0

Message Communication Item of Connection Parameter Setting

Sets the connection parameters for the message communication using MSG-SND/MSG-RCV function and the message communication using automatic receive function.

asy setting	It is possi	ble to following parameter	setting ea:	sily that comm	nun	icate the message.				
CNO	Local Port	Node IP Address	Node Port	Connect Type	t	Protocol Type		Cod	e	Detail
01	10010	192.168.001.003	20010	TCP	•	Extended MEMOBUS	-	BIN	-	Setting
02	10020	192.168.001.004	20020	ТСР	•	MEMOBUS	•	ASCII	•	Setting
03	10030	192.168.001.005	20030	UDP	•	None	•	BIN	•	Setting
04	10040	192.168.001.006	20040	TCP	•	MODBUS / TCP	-	BIN	-	Setting

Cannot the overlap to local station port number used by the communicate the 1/0 message.

The following table shows each setting item.

Item	Setting Range		Details	Default
Easy Setting	-	Opens the Message the connection para is displayed.	Communication Easy Setting Dialog Box for meters. The content of the selected connection	-
CNO (Connection Num- ber)	1 to 4	In 218IFA Ethernet guished by their cor This connection nur (PARAM02) of the MSG-RCV functior	communication, remote stations are distin- inection numbers. mber is used in remote connection number parameter list (PARAM) of the MSG-SND/ 1.	_
Local Port	256 to 65535	Specify the 218IFA establishes a messay this port number on number of this conn To delete the port m Note: When the con 9998 or 10000	port number for each connection. 218IFA ge communication with the connection with ly. Set an unique channel number for the port nections. umber, enter zero. nection type = UDP, the port number cannot be 0.	0
Node IP Address	0.0.0.0 to 255.255.255.254	Set the remote IP ac lowing addresses ar 127.xxx.xxx.xxx xxx.xxx.xx2.000 xxx.xxx.xx2.55 Note: When 0.0.0.0 mode." When subnet mask, remote station	ddress for each connection. However, the fol- e excluded: (except 000.000.000.000) is set, it will enter into "Unpassive open 218IFA is within the network specified by the it responds to the connection request from the n regardless of the remote IP address setting.	000.000.000.0 00
Node Port	0 and 256 to 65535	Specify the remote premote IP address a Note: In case of "Up	port number for each connection. A pair of nd remote port number must not be duplicated. npassive open mode," set it to zero.	0
Connect Type	TCP, UDP	Select a transport la TCP: Transmissic UDP: User datagr	yer protocol. on control protocol ram protocol	ТСР
		Select an application	n layer protocol.	
		Protocol Type	Overview	
		Extended MEMOBUS	Yaskawa's Extended MEMOBUS protocol.	
	Extended MEMOBUS	MEMOBUS	Yaskawa's MEMOBUS protocol.	
Protocol Type	MEMOBUS, MELSEC, None	MELSEC	Ethernet I/F protocol for the sequencer (A series) manufactured by Mitsubishi Elec- tric Corporation.	Extended MEMOBUS
	MODBUS/TCP	Non-procedure	General-purpose message communication. Transmits and receives continuous data intact in the specified register.	
		MODBUS/TCP	Industrial Ethernet protocol proposed by Modicon, Inc.	

(cont'd)

Item	Setting Range		Detai	ls		Default
Code		Select a code type for Depending on protoc lows:	or the message col type, availa	communication ble codes are r	n data. restricted as fol-	
		Drotocol Turo				
		Protocol Type	ASCII	BIN	RTU	
	ASCII BIN	Extended MEMOBUS	V	\checkmark	-	ASCII
	RTU	MEMOBUS		√ <u> </u>		
		MELSEC $$		-		
		Non-procedure			-	
		MODBUS/TCP	-	\checkmark	-	
		$\sqrt{1}$: Available, – : No				
Detail (Automatically Receive)	_	Opens the Detail set ble-click this button. Note: The automatic when the conn	ting Dialog Bo receive function ection number	ox. To open the on is valid only = 1.	dialog box, dou-	_
Remote Station Name	Up to 32 single- byte characters (16 double-byte characters)	Any text can be ente	red as a conne	ction comment		Blank

Note: For the 218IFC of the CPU-04, the setting range for the connection number is larger, i.e., 1 to 20.

Message Communication Easy Setting Dialog Box

Graphically sets connection parameters for each connection.

Basically, the same settings as those used for **Message Communication** in the **Connection Parameter** are used. If this dialog box is opened before the items in **Communication Parameter** have been set, the default value for each connection will be automatically stored.



The following table provides the default values for each connection stored when the items in **Communication Param**eter are not yet set and this dialog box is opened.

		Def	ault			
Item	Connection Number 01	Connection Number 02	Connection Number 03	Connection Number 04		
Local Port Number	10001	10002	10003	10004		
Node IP Address	192.168.1.2	192.168.1.3	192.168.1.4	192.168.1.5		
Node Port Number	10001	10002	10003	10004		
Communication Protocol Type		Extended MEMOBUS				
Connect Type		T	СР			
Code		B	IN			

Note: For the 218IFC of the CPU-04, the setting range for the connection number is larger, i.e., 1 to 20.

By clicking the **Default** Button, default values are set for each data code type according to the selected communication protocol type.

The following table shows the default values for Code (each data code type).

Communication Protocol Type	Default for Data Code Type
Extended MEMOBUS	BIN
MEMOBUS	RTU
MELSEC	BIN
Non-procedure	BIN
MODBUS/TCP	BIN

■ Automatically Reception Dialog Box for Message Communication

The automatic receive function can be enabled only for connections where the connection number = 1. The automatic receive function enables the system to automatically run a function equivalent to the MSG-RCV function.

C Disable Unable to autor	nated reception when the
Enable Protocol type is	no control sequence.
Transmission Buffer Channel 1	The automatic reception is fixed 1ch.
Slave I/F Register Settings	Head REG
Readout of Input Relay	IW0000
Readout of Input Register	1w0000
Readout / Write-in of Coil	MW00000
Readout / Write-in of Hold Register	MW00000
Write - in width of Coil/Hold Register	LO: MW00000
	HI: MW65534
Automatic input processing delay time	0 ms (0-100)
The influence on a low-speed scan according to this parameter. [Attention] It is not in the setting of period of an automatic reception.	ning can be adjusted the communication

The following table explains each setting item.

Item	Setting Range	Details	Default
Automatically Re- ception Enable/Dis- able	Enable/Disable	Select whether to enable automatic reception. Note: When the local port number is not yet set, it becomes invalid regardless of the enable/disable selection.	Enable
The setting items belo	ow can only be set	when the Automatically Reception is set to "Enable."	
Transmission Buffer Channel	Cannot be set (fixed to 1)	The communication buffer channel is usually used for data exchanged between the MSG-SND/MSG-RCV function and 218IFA. The communication buffer channel is associated with the connec- tion according to the input item "CH-NO" for the MSG-SND/ MSG-RCV function and node connection number (PARAM02) setting for the parameter list (PARAM). When automatic reception is running, the function equivalent to the MSG-RCV function is realized by using the communication buffer channel number "1."	1
Readout of Input Relay	IW0000 to IWFFFF	Set a start register of the input relay used for the automatic recep- tion.	IW0000
Readout of Input Register	IW0000 to IWFFFF	Set a start register of the input register used for the automatic reception.	IW0000
Readout/Write-in of Coil	MW00000 to MW65534	Set a start read/write register of the coil used for the automatic reception.	MW00000
Readout/Write-in of Hold Register	MW00000 to MW65534	Set a start read/write register of the holding register used for auto- matic reception.	MW00000
Write-in Width of Coil/Hold Register (LO)	MW00000 to MW65534	Set a write range (LO) of the coil/holding registers used for auto- matic reception.	MW00000
Write-in Width of Coil/Hold Register (HI)	MW00000 to MW65534	Set a write range (HI) of the coil/holding registers used for the automatic reception.	MW65534

The following table provides the valid setting items for each communication protocol type.

		Communi	cation Protoco	ol Type	
Setting Item	Extended MEMOBUS	MEMOBUS	MELSEC	Non-proce- dure	MODBUS/ TCP
Readout of Input Relay	\checkmark	\checkmark	-	-	\checkmark
Readout of Input Register		\checkmark	-	-	\checkmark
Readout/Write-in of Coil		\checkmark	-	-	\checkmark
Readout/Write-in of Hold Register		\checkmark	\checkmark	-	\checkmark
Write-in Width of Coil/Hold Register (LO)		\checkmark	\checkmark	-	\checkmark
Write-in Width of Coil/Hold Register (HI)		\checkmark	\checkmark	_	\checkmark

Note: $\sqrt{1}$: Enable

– : Disable

■ I/O Message Communication Item Connection Parameter Setting

Sets connection parameters for I/O message communication.

I/O message communication exchanges the data using I/O images with the remote device.

	and the second se						
Read/ Write	Local Port	Node IP Address	Node Port	Connect Type	Protocol Type	Code	Detail
Read	10005	192.168.001.002	10005	ТСР 🔻	Extended MEMOBUS	BIN 🔻	Setting
Write	10006	192.168.001.002	10006	тср 🔻	Extended MEMOBUS 💌	BIN 🔻	Setting
	Hea input disabl	d register number data siz	:e	Head regis	ster number data siz	e	

The following table explains each setting item.

Item	Setting Range	Details	Default
I/O Message Communication Enable/Disable	Enable/Disable	Select whether to enable I/O message communications.	Disable
The setting items bel	ow can only be set	t when the I/O Message Communication is set to "Enable."	•
Easy Setting	_	Opens the Message Communication Easy Setting Dialog Box for the read/write connection parameters.	-
Data Update Timing	High Scan/ Low Scan	Set when to update the I/O data for the controller side when the I/O message communication is established.	L Scan
Read/Write	_	In 218IFA Ethernet communications, remote stations are distin- guished by their connection numbers. I/O message communications have a connection for each read/write.	
Local Port	256 to 65535	Specify the 218IFA port number for each read/write connection. To delete the port number setting, enter zero. To use only a read or a write connection, set the other port number to zero to delete the connection. Note: When the connection type = UDP, the port number cannot be 9998 or 10000.	0
Node IP Address	0.0.0.1 to 255.255.255.254	Set a remote IP address for both read and write connections. Set a common value for both read and write. However, the following addresses cannot be used: 127.xxx.xxx.xxx xxx.xxx.xx000 xxx.xxx.xxx.255	000.000.000.0 00
Node Port	256 to 65535	Specify the remote port number for each read/write connection. A pair of a remote IP address and remote port number must not be duplicated.	0
Connect Type	TCP UDP	Select a transport layer protocol. TCP: Transmission control protocol UP: User datagram protocol	ТСР

(cont'd)

Item	Setting Range			Default		
		Select an application	layer protocol.			
		Protocol Type		Overview		
	Extended	Extended	Vaskawa's Fr	tended MEM(BUS protocol	
	MEMOBUS	MEMOBUS				
Protocol Type	MEMOBUS	MEMOBUS	Yaskawa's M	EMOBUS prot	tocol.	Extended MEMOBUS
	MEMOBUS/	MELSEC	Ethernet I/F p series) manuf	actured by Mit	sequencer (A subishi Elec-	MEMODOS
	ТСР		tric Corporati	on.		
		MODBUS/TCP	Industrial Eth	ernet protocol	proposed by	
			Modieon, Inc	•		
		Select a code type for	the message c	ommunication	data.	
		Depending on protocolows:	ol type, availab	le codes are re	stricted as fol-	
				Carla		
		Protocol Type	ASCII	BIN	RTU	
	ASCII	Extended	/ con		i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i	
Code	BIN	MEMOBUS	Ň	Ň	—	ASCII
	KI U	MEMOBUS		-	\checkmark	
		MELSEC		V	_	
		MODBUS/TCP	-	V	—	
		$\sqrt{1}$: Available				
	Up to 22 single	-: Not available	ed as a connect	ion commont		
Detail	byte characters	Any text can be enter	eu as a connect	ion comment.		D1 1
Name)	(16 double-byte					
,	characters)	C - 1				
Input Disable	Enable/disable	nication.	enable			
Output Disable	Enable/disable	Select whether to update the output data in the I/O message commu-				enable
		nication.	the import reasist	an af the MD22	00 side for stor	
		ing the data read from	n the remote de	vice.	too side for stor-	
	IW0000 to					
	IW7FFF	Note1: "பபபப" re by the 218IFA	presents a start cell in the Mod	I/O register nu hile Details fie	mber specified	(Note1)
Head Register		Configuration	n Window.			
Number Data Size		Set a start address of	the MP2200 sid	le output regis	ter for referenc-	
	OW0000 to	ing the data written in	n the remote de	vice. I/O register nu	mber specified	$OW\square\square\square\square$ + 4
	OW7FFF	by the 218IFA	cell in the Mod	lule Details fie	ld of the Module	(Note2)
		Configuration	n Window.			
Data Size	Varies according	Specify the data size	(word) read fro	m the remote of	levice.	4
	to protocor type	Specify the register to	(word) written	t register addre	levice.	4
Head Register	Varies according	device to read.	ype and the star	register addre	ss for the remote	Varies accord-
Node Equipment	to protocol type	Specify the register ty	pe and the star	t register addre	ess for the remote	 ing to proto- col type
		device to write.	1		· · ·	
		Generally, the same v By way of exception	when MELSE	n MP2200 dat C is selected fo	a size is shown.	
		and a bit device such	as input relay (X)/ output rela	y (Y)/ internal	4
Data Size of the		relay (M)/ link relay ((B) is selected f	for read registe	r, the data size is	
Node Equipment	Display only	Generally, the same v	value specified i	n MP2200 dat	a size is shown	
		By way of exception,	when MELSE	C is selected for	or Protocol Type	
		and a bit device such	as input relay (X)/ output rela	y (Y)/ internal	4
		displayed in bits.	(1) is selected I	or reau registe	i, inc uata size is	

■ I/O Message Communication Easy Setting Dialog Box

Graphically adjusts the setting for the read/write connection parameters.

Basically, the same settings as those used for I/O Message Communication in the Connection Parameter are used. If this dialog box is opened before the items in Communication Parameter have been set, the default values for read/ write connection will be automatically stored.



The following table provides the default values for each connection stored when the **Connection Parameter** are not yet set and this dialog box is opened.

Item			Default		
	Local Port IP Address		Values set in Transmission Parameter setting items are shown.		
	Local Port	Read	10005		
	Number	Write	10006		
MP Series	Input Reg (Register) (IW□□□□)		Start I/O register number specified in the 218IFA cell in the Module Details field of the Module Configuration Window.		
	Input Disable		Not checked (enable)		
Output Reg(Registe		ter)	Start I/O register number specified in the 218IFA cell in the Module Details field of the Module Configuration Window + 4.		
Data Update Timing		g	Low		
	Node Port IP Address		192.168.1.2		
	Node Port	Read	10005		
Other Device	Number	Write	10006		
	Read Reg (Registe	er)	MW00000		
	Write Reg (Registe	er)	MW00004		
Communicatio	n Protocol Type		Extended MEMOBUS		
Read Size			4		
Write Size			4		
Connect Type			ТСР		
Code			BIN		

In addition, click the **Default** Button to set the default values for data code type, local I/O register setting, read/write size, and node read/write register setting according to the selected communication protocol type. The following table provides these default values.

Communication		De	fault	
Protocol Type	Data Code Type	Local Input/Output Register Setting	Read/Write Size	Node Read/Write Register Setting
Extended MEMOBUS	BIN	IWDDD to IWDDD+ 3 (input) OWDDDD+ 4 to OWDDDD+7 (output)	4 (read) 4 (write)	MW0000 to MW0003 (read) MW0004 to MW0007 (write)
MEMOBUS	RTU	Same as above	Same as above	Same as above
MELSEC	BIN	Same as above	Same as above	D0000 to D0003 (read) D0004 to D0007 (write)
MODBUS/TCP	BIN	Same as above	Same as above	4X00001 to 4X0004 (read) 4X00005 to 4X0008 (write)

2. Status Tab

In the **Status** Tab, each setting for 218IFA transmission definition and transmission status is shown. The displayed contents are as follows:

CPU#:-							R	ACK#01 Slot #00	CIR#01	0000-07FF	
nission Paramet	ers Status										
ation IP Addres quipment name ransmission Spe	s CONTROLL	ER NAME	Subnet Mask Giateway IP Engineering Por	000.00 000.00 t 9999	10.000.00	0					
essage Commun	nication	52 52	-						-		
CNO	Trans Status	Error Status	Send Count	Receive Count	Error Count	Response Time(ms)	Connectio n	Protocol Type	Code		
01											
02											
03											
04											
) Message Com	nmunication										
Read/	Trans	Error	Send	Receive	Error	Response	Connectio	Protocol	Code		
Write	Status	Status	Count	Count	Count	Time(ms)	n	Туре			_
Read											

Transmission Parameter Item

Item	Displayed Content	Default
Station IP Address	Displays local IP address specified in the Transmission Parameters Tab.	000.000.000.000
Equipment Name	Displays equipment name specified in the Transmission Parameters Tab. When the equipment name is not yet set, nothing is shown.	NULL
Transmission Speed	Displays transmission rate retrieved from the status information. (Fixed at Automatic)	Automatic
Subnet Mask	Displays a subnet mask set in the Transmission Parameters Tab.	000.000.000.000
Gateway IP	Displays a default gateway IP address set in the Transmission Parameters Tab.	000.000.000.000
Engineering Port	Displays a port number set in the detailed definition of the Transmission Parame- ters Tab.	9999

Message Communication and I/O Message Communication Items

Item	Displayed Content	Default
Trans (Transmission) Status	Displays the transmission status for each connection.	_
Error Status	If an error is indicated in the transmission status, the error details are shown.	_
Send Count	Displays the number of packets transmitted to the remote station.	_
Receive Count	Displays the number of packets received from the remote station.	_
Error Count	Displays the number of errors that occurred in each connection.	_
Response Time (ms)	Displays the time taken to receive a response after issuing a command in the MSG- SND function of the message communication and the I/O message communica- tion.	_
Connection	Displays the connection type set in the Transmission Parameters Tab.	_
Protocol Type	Displays the protocol of the connection parameter set in the Transmission Parameters Tab.	_
Code	Displays the code type of the data set in the Transmission Parameters Tab.	_
Detail (Node Station Name)	Displays the remote station name set in the Transmission Parameters Tab.	_

Note: 1. Trans (Transmission) Status

In online mode, displays the transmission status for each connection.

Transmission Status	State
IDLE	IDLE
WAIT	WAIT (waiting for connection)
CONNECT	CONNECT (capable of transmitting and receiving data)
-	Unused connection

2. Error Status

If an error is indicated in the transmission status, the error details are shown.

Error Status	State	Remarks
No Error	Normal	_
Socket Generation Error	System error	Socket generation failed
	Error in setting the local port num-	Bind error (duplicated port number)
Local Port Number Error	ber (the same address is bound while disconnecting the TCP connection)	A bind error occurred while aborting using the MSG function and ending the connec- tion. The error occurs if Execute is turned ON within one minute after an Abort is com- pleted.
		Before the connection was completed, another function issued a command to the same remote station.
Socket Attribute Change Error	System error (in TCP)	An error occurred while setting a socket attribute.
Connection Error	Connection error (when actively open in TCP, a connection is rejected by the node station)	Tried to connect using the MSG-SND func- tion, but the connection was rejected by the remote station, and the command was reset.
(M-SND)		When disconnecting the cable, retried con- necting for one minute (default value) with- out a response.
Connection Error (M-RCV)	Connection error (when passively open in TCP)	An error occurred while receiving the con- nection from the MSG-RCV function.
System Error	System error	A socket polling (select specification) error occurred while receiving data.
Data Transmit Error (TCP)	Data transmit error (in TCP, either there is no node station or a node station did not startup.)	A response transmit error occurred in the MSG-RCV function. An error also occurred in the MSG-SND function. An error occurred only in TCP when there was no node station to transmit or a node sta- tion was rebooted.
Data Transmit Error (UDP)	Data transmit error (in UDP)	A transmit request was issued to a nonexistent socket.
Data Receive Error (TCP)	Data receive error (in TCP, a request to disconnect the connection is received from the node station)	An error occurred when disconnecting the connection from the node station. It also may occur even when close is processed properly.
Data Receive Error (UDP)	Data receive error (in UDP)	A data receive command was issued to a nonexistent socket.
Socket Option Change Error	System error	Error when changing a socket option
Data Change Error	Data change error	Protocol change error

2.5.7 M-EXECUTOR Module (Motion Program Executor)

This section explains the M-EXECUTOR Module (motion program executor) function and its detail window.

(1) M-EXECUTOR Module Function Overview

The M-EXECUTOR Module is a software module that executes a motion or sequence program. The M-EXECUTOR Module enables the following features:

· Executing a motion program without using a ladder program

Conventionally, in order to execute a motion program, you need to incorporate an MSEE command into a ladder program. The M-EXECUTOR Module allows you to execute the motion program without incorporating the MSEE command into the ladder program.

Note: You can incorporate a MSEE command into the ladder program as ever.

· Controlling a motion program without using a ladder program

You can map any register to the control signal of the motion program registered in the M-EXECUTOR Module. So, without a ladder program, this allows you to directly control a motion program from a host PLC or other device.

· Describing sequence control in motion language

As a new programming method called sequence programming has been added to the CPU-03 Module in the MP2200 Series.

A sequence program is a scan execution type program where a process is completed with one scan. It employs a text language similar to a motion program.

You can use the sequence program as an alternative to the ladder program.

For information about commands available for sequence programming, refer to the *Machine Controller MP2000 Series* Users Manual Motion Programming (manual no.: SIEP C880700 38).

2.5.7 M-EXECUTOR Module (Motion Program Executor)

(2) M-EXECUTOR Module Specification

[a] Programs Capable of Registration in M-EXECUTOR

The following table shows programs capable of registration in M-EXECUTOR.

Program Type		Number of Registrations	Remarks
Motion Program		16*	
	Startup	1	
Sequence	Interrupt	Disable	* Up to 16 programs in total
Program	H Scan	16*	
	L Scan	16*	

[b] Program Control Method

The following table shows the program control methods registered in M-EXECUTOR.

Item	Motic	n Program	Sequence Program
Execution Method	Sequential Execution		Startup: Event driven H Scan: Scan execution L Scan: Scan execution
	1:1 correspondence (The number of p	ce between the definition rogram definitions is set i	number and system work in the MPE720 window.)
	Definition No.	System Work Number	
System Work	No. 1	1	
	No. 2	2	
	•	•	
	No. 16	16	
Program Designation Method	Direct or indirect designation		Direct designation
Program Startup Method	Registers the prog and turns ON the	ram in the definition start signal	Starts up when registered in the definition
Override Setting for Interpolation	Yes		No
I/O Link Definition	Yes		No
S Register Report Function of Motion Program Status		Y	/es
Number of Parallels	1 to 8 (4 main parallels \times 2 sub parallels)		1
Execute an Error Drawing when Operation Error Occurred	Yes		

(3) Module Configuration Definition

[a] Details of Module Configuration Window

Click **CPU-03** in the **Controller** area to display the details of the basic module functions in the **Module Details** area. The cell No.5 provides a detailed definition of M-EXECUTOR.

For CPU-03, "UNDEFINED" is the default for No.5.

Engineering Manager - [Module Configura	tion 22-03 MF	2200-03 Offline	Local]	10	
File View Order Winde	DW					
PT#:- CPU#:-						
Select Rack Enable/Dis Rack 1 Enable Rack 2 Disable Rack 3 Disable Rack 4 Disable Controller Rack 1 Rack 1 Rack 2	Rack 4					1
Slot Number (00 01	02	03	04	05	06 🔺
Module Type CPU-0	<u>3</u> ▼ 218IF-0	1 VINDEFINE	UNDEFINED	UNDEFINED	▼ UNDEFINED ▼	UNDEFINED VUNE
CPU-03: CPU module with virt	tual axes, CF card ,et	hernet, program cont	trol function.			
Module Details CPU-03 RAC	CK#01 SLOT#00-	2	3	4	5	
Module Type	CPU 🔻	SVR 👻	CARD -	218IFA 👻	M-EXECUTOR -	
Circuit Number	-	01	-	01	-	
I/O Start Register				0000	0800	
I/O End Register				07FF	083F	
Disable Input	•	•	-	Enable 💌	•	
Disable Output	-	-	-	Enable 🔻	-	
Motion Start Register		8000				
Motion End Register		87FF				
Details					-	
Status						
M-EXECUTOB : Program.com	trol function					
	or randon.				E.	
For Help, press F1)	1		

Items displayed in the Module Details area show the following:

Item	Description	Change
Slot Number	Sub-slot number. Double-click to open the M-EXECUTOR detailed definition window.	_
Module Type	A module name appears. Changing the name to UNDEFINED enables you to disable M-EXCUTOR functions.	\checkmark
Circuit Number	Not used. Fixed to "-".	-
I/O Start Register	Start register of the M-EXECUTOR I/O register (valid range: 0000-7FFFh, size: 40h words)	\checkmark
I/O End Register	End register of the M-EXECUTOR I/O register (valid range: 0000-7FFFh, size: 40h words)	\checkmark
Disable Input	Not used. Fixed at "blank".	-
Disable Output	Not used. Fixed at "blank".	-
Motion Start Register	Not used. Fixed at "".	-
Motion End Register	Not used. Fixed at "".	-
Details	Not used.	_
Status	M-EXECUTOR Module status in online mode.	_

 $\sqrt{1}$: Available, – : Not available

2.5.7 M-EXECUTOR Module (Motion Program Executor)

■ I/O Register Details

An I/O register assigned to M-EXECUTOR is used to run a motion program and sequence program, and to monitor a sequence program.

M-EXECUTOR I/O register details are as follows:

M-EXECUTOR Input Register				
M-EXECUTOR Input Register	ŀ	tem		
IWDDDD + 0		Status		
IWDDDD + 1	Definition	Spare		
IWDDDD + 2	No.1	Spare		
IWDDDD + 3		Spare		
IWDDDD + 4		Status		
IWDDDD + 5	Definition	Spare		
IWDDDD + 6	No.2	Spare		
IWDDDD + 7		Spare		
	•			
	•			
	•			
IWDDDD + 3C		Status		
IWDDDD + 3D	Definition	Spare		
IWDDDD + 3E	No.16	Spare		
IW0000 + 3F		Spare		

IVI-LALC		register
M-EXECUTOR Output Register	Item	
OWDDDD + 0		Program number
OWDDDD + 1	Definition	Control signal
OWDDDD + 2	No.1	Override
OWDDDD + 3		Spare
OWDDDD + 4		Program number
OWDDDD + 5	Definition	Control signal
OW□□□□ + 6	No.2	Override
OWDDDD + 7		Spare
	•	
OW□□□□ + 3C		Program number
OW□□□□ + 3D	Definition	Control signal
OWDDDD + 3E	No.16	Override
Ow0000 + 3F		Spare

(4) Detailed Definition Window

This section describes the M-EXECUTOR detailed definition window.

Program Definition Tab (M-EXECUTOR (list) Window)

The **Program definition** Tab allows you to register a motion or sequence program to run. Programs are executed according to the scan, in ascending numeric order. A white cell can be set by the user, and a grey cell cannot be set by the user.



① Individual display

Display the Program execution registry screen dialog box (M-EXECUTOR (individual display)).

② Program definition number

Sets the number of program definitions to register in the M-EXECUTOR Module. The valid range is 0-16 (8 by default).

③ No.

Shows the program execution order. Processed according to the scan in ascending numeric order.

④ D

Enables/disables the definition. Uncheck to enable the definition.

2.5.7 M-EXECUTOR Module (Motion Program Executor)

⑤ Execution type

Sets the program execution type.

Execution Type	Program to Execute	Execution Conditions
	None	None (select this to delete the definition)
Sequence Program (startup)		Power ON (Executed once only, when power turned ON)
Sequence Program (L scan)	Sequence program	Periodical startup (Executed each low-speed scan)
Sequence Program (H scan)		Periodical startup (Executed each high-speed scan)
Motion Program	Motion program	Turns ON the program operation start request of the control signal (runs when the program operation start request is ON).

6 Setting

Sets the a program designation.

The way to designate a program may differ according to the program.

Designa- tion Method	Motion Program	Sequence Program	Remarks
Direct	Enable	Enable	The way to designate the program number Example: MPM001, SPM002, and so on
Indirect	Enable	Disable	The way to designate the register for storing the program number Example: OW0C0C, and so on (refers to MPM001 by storing 1 in OW0C0C)

⑦ Program

Sets a program number.

Execution Type	Remarks
Sequence Program (startup, L scan, H scan)	Enter "1" and press ENT to automatically input "SPM001." You can save an unregistered program or exit this tab page without setting (blank), but in these cases, the program will not be executed.
Motion Program	Direct designation: Enter "1" and press ENT to automatically input "MPM001." You can save an unregistered program or exit this tab page without set- ting (blank), but in these cases, the program will not be executed. Indirect designation: O register of M-EXECUTOR Module is automatically set. It cannot be set by the user.

⑧ Execution monitor register (S Register)

When the execution type is set to motion program, the range of the execution monitor registers (S registers) is shown. For more information on the execution monitor register, refer to 5.2.3 (6) Monitor the Motion Program Execution Information using S register.

Allocation Control Register Tab

The Allocation Control register Tab Page sets a allocation register.

A white cell can be set by the user, and a shaded cell cannot be set by the user.

EXECUTOR[List] Individual display Program definition number Image: Second control register No. Item M-EXECUTOR Control register Allocation Disable Direction Allocation register Allocation Contact interlock 2 Control signal Override M-Mexter Mexter Image: Second contact interlock Image: Second contact interlock 3 Control signal Override Mexter Image: Second contact interlock Image: Second contact interlock 4 Control signal Override OW0800 Image: Second contact interlock Image: Second contact interlock 4 Control signal Override OW080C Image: Second contact interlock Image: Second contact interlock 4 Control signal Override OW080C Image: Second contact interlock Image: Second contact interlock 4 Control signal Override OW080C Image: Second contact interlock Image: Second contact interlock 4 Control signal Override OW080D Image: Second contact interlock Image: Second contact interlock 4 Program number OW080D Image: Second contact interlock Image: Second contact interlock 4 Outrol signal OW080D						RACK#01 Slo	t #00 0800-083F	
No. Item M-EXECUTOR Control register Allocation Disable Direction Allocation register Allocation Contact interlock 2 Control signal Override	·EXECU ogram o	JTOR(List) Individual d definition Allocation Contr	display Program definition ol register	number 8	•			
2 Control signal Image: Control signal Image: Control signal Image: Control signal MPM004 Image: Control signal	No.	ltem	M-EXECUTOR Control register	Allocation Disable	Direction	Allocation register	Allocation Contact interlock	-
Program number MPM004 Image: Constraint of the second	2	Control signal Override						
Status IW0808 I IB00090 3 Control signal OW0809 I <-		Program number	MPM004					
3 Control signal OW0809 Image: Control signal OW0809 Image: Control signal Image: Contro		Status	IW0808 🕁	K			IB00090	
Override OW080A Image: Constraint of the state of th	3	Control signal	OW0809		<-	IW0300	IB00090	l l
Program number OW080C Image: Constraint of the state		Override	OW080A	N			IB00090	
Status IW080C III -> OW0000 IB00200 4 Control signal OW080D III -> IW0001 IB00200 Override OW080E IIII -> IW0002 IB00200 Program number Status IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII		Program number	OW080C		<-	IW0000	IB00200	
4 Control signal OW080D Image: Control signal Image: Control signal <t< td=""><td></td><td>Status</td><td>IW080C</td><td></td><td>-></td><td>OW0000</td><td>IB00200</td><td></td></t<>		Status	IW080C		->	OW0000	IB00200	
Override OW080E IB00200 Program number IB00200 IB00200 IB00200 IB00200 Status IB00200 IB00200 IB00200 IB00200	4	Control signal	OW080D		<-	IW0001	IB00200	
Program number		Override	OW080E		<-	IW0002	IB00200	
Status]	Program number		–		▲		
		Status						

① M-EXECUTOR Control register

Displays an I/O register mapped to the M-EXECUTOR Module.

Controls the motion program and monitors the state, using the M-EXECUTOR control register.

M-EXECUTOR Control Register	Usage
Program Number	Sets a program number. This register is used only when set to an indirect designation.
Status	Monitors the program execution status.
Control Signal	Controls the program.
Override	Sets an override value when running a move command for the interpolation system.

Note: For details on the M-EXECUTOR control register, refer to items (4) and (5) under 5.2.3 *Motion Programs*.

② Allocation Disable

Enables/disables the allocation register. Uncheck to enable the definition.

③ Direction

Displays the data I/O direction.

2.5.7 M-EXECUTOR Module (Motion Program Executor)

④ Allocation register

Data is exchanged between mapping and M-EXECUTOR control registers in real-time. Any register can be mapped to the allocation register.

Registers that can be set as a Allocation Register	
Word type I, O, M (except the motion register)	

S Allocation Contact interlock

An allocation contact interlock is used to control the data exchange between the allocation register and M-EXECUTOR control registers. When the allocation contact interlock is ON, data can be exchanged between the allocation register and M-EXECUTOR control registers.

Any register bit can be mapped to the allocation contact interlock.

Registers that can be set as an Allocation Contact Interlock Bit type I, O, S, M, C (except the motion register)

Caution

An allocation contact interlock is used to interlock the operation of a motion program. When setting an allocation register, be sure to set the allocation contact interlock.

6 Status, Control Signal Details

Double-click the status and control register to display the bit detail. You can check the signal sequence and status here.

Status

Status	IW0C00 H0000
Bit 0 : Running	0
Bit 1 : Pausing	0
Bit 2 : Stopped	0
Bit 4 : Stopped under single block mode	0
Bit 8 : Alarm	0
Bit 9 : Stopped at break point	0
Bit B : Debugging mode	0
Bit D : Start request signal history	0
Bit E : No system work error	0
Bit F : Main program number limit error	0
•	

· Control Signal

Task	Task1
Main program	MPM001
Motion Program Control Signals	OW0C01 H0000
Bit 0 : Start request	OON
Bit 1 : Pause request	OON
Bit 2 : Stop request	OON
Bit 3 : Single block mode selection	OON
Bit 4 : Single block start request	OON
Bit 5 : Alarm reset request	OON
Bit 6 : Program continuous operation start request	OON
Bit 8 : Skip1 information	OON
Bit 9 : Skip2 information	OON
Bit D : System work number setting	OON
Bit E : Interpolation override setting	OON

Program execution registry screen Dialog Box (M-EXECUTOR (individual) Dialog Box)

Click the **Individual Display** Button in the M-EXECUTOR (list) window to display this dialog box. The items that can be set are similar to those in the **Program Definition** Tab Page and the **Allocation Control Register** Tab Page.



- Program execution registry number Selects a program execution registration No.
- Program number
 Sets a program number.
- Execution typeSets the program execution type.
- Specification
 Sets the method of designating a program.
- S Allocation registerSets an allocation register.
- Status, Control signalDisplays the status and the signal sequence of the control register.
- Allocation DISABLE
 Enables/disables the allocation register. Uncheck to enable the definition.
- I List Displays the M-EXECUTOR (list) window.
- Delete Deletes a definition.

2.5.7 M-EXECUTOR Module (Motion Program Executor)

(5) Execution Scheduling

Programs registered in M-EXECUTOR are executed on the basis of their priorities (execution type). Programs registered in M-EXECUTOR are executed just before the ladder process.



An execution example is as follows:

• M-EXECUTOR program definition

AEXECUTOR(List) Individual display Program definition number 8 hogram definition Allocation Control register No. D Execution type Setting Program Execution monitor register(S register) - Sequence program(Start) Direct SPM001 - 1 Sequence program(L-scan) Direct SPM003 - 2 Sequence program(H-scan) Direct SPM004 SW03380 - SW03437 3 Motion program Direct SPM005 - 5	T#:- (PU	#:				RACK#0	1 Slot #00	0800-083F	
No. D Execution Control register - Sequence program(Start) Direct SPM001 - 1 Sequence program(L-scan) Direct SPM002 - 2 Sequence program(H-scan) Direct SPM003 - 3 Motion program Direct SPM004 SW03380 - SW03437 4 Sequence program(H-scan) Direct SPM005 - 5	M-EXEC	υто	R(List) Individual display Progr	am	definition numb	ber	8	•		-
No. D Execution type Setting Program Execution monitor register(S register) - Sequence program(Start) Direct SPM001 - 1 Sequence program(L-scan) Direct SPM003 - 3 Motion program Direct SPM004 SW03380 - SW03437 Sequence program(H-scan) Direct SPM005 	^o rogram	defir	nition Allocation Control register							
- Sequence program(Start) Direct SPM001 - 1 Sequence program(L-scan) Direct SPM002 - 2 Sequence program(H-scan) Direct SPM003 - 3 Motion program Direct MM004 SW03380 - SW03437 4 Sequence program(H-scan) Direct SPM005 - 5	No.	D	Execution type		Setting	T	Program	Execution	monitor register(S registe	.r)
1 Sequence program(L-scan) Image: Direct SPM002	-		Sequence program(Start)		Direct		SPM001		-	
2 Sequence program(H-scan) Direct SPM003 SW03380 - SW03437 Sequence program(H-scan) Direct SPM005 	1		Sequence program(L-scan)	•	Direct		SPM002		-	
3 Motion program Direct MPM004 SW03380 - SW03437 Sequence program(H-scan) Direct SPM005 	2		Sequence program(H-scan)	•	Direct		SPM003		-	
4 Sequence program(H-scan) Direct SPM005 	3		Motion program	•	Direct	-	MPM004	SW	03380 - SW03437	
5 6 7 8	4		Sequence program(H-scan)	•	Direct		SPM005		-	
6	5			•						
7	6			•						
8	7			•						
	8	1		•						

• Execution scheduling

The following diagram shows the execution scheduling when set in the tab page above.

Startup	SPM001 DWG.A										
	•	н	igh-speed	scan cycl	e	•		High-spee	ed scan c	ycle	
High-speed scan		SPM003 MPM004	SPM005	DWG.H		SPM003	MPM004	SPM005	DWG.H		
					Low-speed	scan cycle	9				
Low-speed scan					SPM002					SPM002	DWG.L
		The hatched a the program is by a higher prior	rea indica being inte ority proce	tes that errupted ess.					DWG.2	X : Lado	er process

2.6.1 Overview of Functions

2.6 CPU-04 Module

2.6.1 Overview of Functions

The CPU-04 Module is a special CPU Module for the MP2200. It was designed as a upper-end model to provide greater speed and easier operation than the CPU-03 Module.

The CPU-04 Module has one Ethernet interface with the following characteristics.

Standard-feature Ethernet (100 Mbps)

- High-speed communication can be performed with the MPE720 Engineering Tool.
- Communication can be performed with a touch panel without using ladder programming (automatic reception).
- Communication can be performed with the host PLC without using ladder programming (I/O message communication).
- Simple Programming
 - The operating procedures have been greatly streamlined through execution of motion operations.
 - The motion program can be started from the host PLC without programming simply by creating a motion program and registering the execution sequence.



Started at fixed interval

Fig. 2.2 Overview of CPU-04 Module Functions

2.6.2 External Appearance, Indicators, and Switch Settings

(1) External Appearance

The following figure shows the external appearance of the CPU-04 Module.



(2) Indicators

The following table shows the indicators that show the operating status of the CPU-04 Module and error information.

Indicators	Indicator Name	Color	Significance when Lit
LED1	RDY	Green	Unit operating normally. *
	RUN	Green	User program running. *
	ALM	Red	Lights/blinks for warning. *
C ERR	ERR	Red	Lights/blinks for errors.*
Oř	TRX	Green	Transmitting or sending Ethernet data.
BAI	BAT	Red	Battery alarm activated.*
LED2	LINK	Yellow	When there is an Ethernet link.
100M (Built into the Ethernet connector.)	100M	Green	Lit: Connected at 100 Mbps or performing auto-negotiation. Not lit: 10 Mbps

* Refer to 8.2.3 (2) LED Indicator Meanings on the meaning of indicators.

2.6.2 External Appearance, Indicators, and Switch Settings

(3) Switch Settings

[a] SW1

The SW1 of the DIP switch is used to set the operating conditions for the CPU-04 Module when the power supply is turned ON.

Before turning ON the power supply, set this switch. Any settings made after the power supply is turned ON are invalid.



Pin Number	Switch Name	Status	Operating Mode	Default Setting	Details		
6	STOP	OP ON User program stopped		OFF	Stops the user program execution. Enabled only		
0	0 STOP OF		User program running	UT	when the power is turned ON.		
5	SLID	ON	System use	OFF	Always set to OFF		
5	501	OFF	Normal operation	UT	Always set to OFF.		
		ON	Memory clear		Set to ON to clear the memory. Also set to ON		
4	INIT	OFF	Normal operation	OFF	not to save the data in the Compact Flash. If this switch is set to OFF, the program stored in flash memory will be executed.		
З	CNEG	ON	Configuration mode	OFF	Set to ON to execute self-configuration for con-		
5		OFF	FF Normal operation		nected devices.		
2	MON	ON	System use	OFF	Always set to OFF		
2	2 10010		Normal operation	011	Always set to OTT.		
1	TEST	ON	System use (adjusted before shipment)	OFF	Always set to OFF.		
		OFF	Normal operation				

[b] SW2

The SW2 of the DIP switch is used to set the Ethernet operating conditions.



Pin Number	Switch Name	Status	Operating Mode	Default Setting	Details	
4		ON OFF	System use	OFF	Always set to OFF.	
3		ON OFF	System use	OFF	Always set to OFF.	
2		ON OFF	System use	OFF	Always set to OFF.	
	ON Trade		Transmission parameter defaults for Ethernet		If E-INIT is ON, the IP address and other	
1	E-INIT	OFF	Startup according to the Module Configuration Defi- nitions for Ethernet.	OFF	transmission parameters will be set to the default values at startup.	

2.6.3 Hardware Specifications

The following table shows the hardware specification of the CPU-04 Module.

Item	Specifi	cations			
Name	CPU-04 Module				
Model	ЈАРМС-СР2230-Е				
Abbreviation	CPU-04				
Flash Memory	16 MB (User's area: 11.5 MB)				
DDR	64 MB				
SRAM	4 MB (3 MB max. with battery backup can be used for table data.)				
Communication Interface	One Ethernet interface channel				
Calendar	Seconds to year timer (battery	backup)			
Indicators	LED1 RDY (green) RUN (green) ALM (red) ERR (red) TRX (green) BAT (red)	LED2 LINK (yellow) 100M (green)			
Switches	SW1 STOP SUP INIT CNFG MON TEST	SW2 E-INIT			
Dimensions (mm)	$125 \times 95 (H \times D)$				
Mass	105 g				

Note: For information on general specifications, refer to 2.1 Specifications.

2.6.4 SVR Module (Virtual Motion Module)

Refer to 2.3.4 SVR Module (Virtual Motion Module).

2.6.5 218IFC Module (Ethernet)

2.6.5 218IFC Module (Ethernet)

(1) Overview of 218IFC Module Functions

The 218IFC Module is a 10Base-T/100Base-TX Ethernet interface. It is a standard-feature communication interface for the CPU-04 Module.

- 100Mbps transmission speed is supported (100Base-TX).
- Supports the following various communication protocols:
 - Support for MEMOBUS protocol, Extended MEMOBUS protocol
 - Support for MELSEC protocol (A-compatible 1E frames, QnA-compatible 3E frames)
 - Support for MODBUS/TCP protocol
 - Support for OMRON protocol
 - Support for non-procedure communication
- An I/O message communication function enables you the data exchange in the form of I/O image when communicating with the host PLC, eliminating you from creating a ladder program.
- An automatic receive function eliminates you from creating a ladder program when connected to the indicator and the like.
- The 218IFC Module can be used as the standard interface with the MPE720 engineering tool. It provides a simple function for connecting to the MPE720, allowing you to connect to MPE720 without knowing the IP address of the 218IFC Module.

(2) Specification of 218IFC Module

The following table shows the specification of the 218IFC Module.

Items Communication Interface *1		Description
Communication Interface *1		10Base-T/100Base-TX
Communication Protocol *2		TCP/UDP/IP/ARP/ICMP
Maximum Number of Comm	nunication Connections	20+2 (I/O Message communication)
Maximum Number of Comm	nunication Channels	10+2 (I/O Message communication)
	MEMOBUS	Write: 100W Read: 125W
	Extended MEMOBUS	Write: 2043W Read: 2044W
	MELSEC	Write: 1017W
Message Communication	(A-compatible 1E)	Read: 1017W
(maximum)	MELSEC	Write: 960W
	(QnA-compatible 3E)	Read: 960W
	MODBUS/TCP	Write: 100W Read: 125W
	OMRON	Write: 996W
		Read: 999W
	Non-procedure	Write: 2046W
	MEMOBUS	Write: 100W
	III EIII OB OO	Read: 125W
	Extended MEMOBUS	Write: 1024W
		Read: 1024W
Communication	MELSEC (A-compatible	Write: 256W
(maximum)	1E, QnA-compatible 3E)	Read: 256W
(Write: 100W
		Read: 125W
	OMRON	Write: 996W
	OMITON	Read: 999W
	MEMOBUS	Provided
	Extended MEMOBUS	Provided
Automatic Receive	MELSEC (A-compatible 1E, QnA-compatible 3E)	Provided
	MODBUS/TCP	Provided
Non-procedure receive buff	er mode selection *3	Provided
Simple Function for Connect	cting with Engineering Tool	Provided

* 1. Communication Interface

The discrimination between 10Base-T/100Base-TX and full-duplex/half-duplex is done by 218IFA based on the remote device. When connecting to a device without automatic negotiation function, set the remote device to half-duplex mode.

Correspondence of Communication Mode

		Device to be connected						
218IFC Module		Automatic Negotiation	10Base-T Half-duplex	10Base-T Full-duplex	100Base-TX Half-duplex	100Base-TX Full-duplex		
Ai Ne	utomatic egotiation	Depends on the remote device	Communicates in 10Base-T half-duplex mode	Unable to communicate	Communicates in 100Base-TX half-duplex mode	Unable to communicate		

* 2. Communication protocols

- TCP(Transmission Control Protocol): Connection-oriented transport layer protocol
- UDP(User Datagram Protocol): Connectionless transport layer protocol
- IP(Internet Protocol): Protocol for establishing a communication link between computers
- ICMP(Internet Control Message Protocol): Error control protocol for IP protocol
- ARP(Address Resolution Protocol): Address resolving protocol. Protocol for converting IP address into MAC address

2.6.5 218IFC Module (Ethernet)

* 3. When the non-procedure application protocol of the 218IFC is used, either a single buffer or multiple buffers can be selected for the receive buffers in the 218IFC.

If multiple buffers are selected, 20 data items per connection can be processed at the same time with data continuously received at an interval shorter than the startup interval of the MSG-RCV function.

Engineering Port :	9999	(256-6	5535)	The port r that conn	numberis sp ect with MP	ecified E720.
Response Time	: 0	* \$	(0	255)		
Count of Retry	: 0	🛨 time	(0	255)		
Recieve Buffer Selec	tion —					
The Recieve buffer	selection	n is effectiv	e only th	at the teletyp	pe protocol	is selected
Single Buffer	(C	Multiple Bu	ffer			

(3) Module Configuration Definition

Refer to 2.5.6 (3) Module Configuration Definition.

The following window shows the module configuration for the CPU-04.

File View Order Win	[Module Lon dow	figura	tion 2	22-04 MF	°2200	-04 Offline	Local					
#:- CPU#:-												
elect Rack Enable/D Rack 1 Enable Rack 2 Disable Rack 3 Disable Rack 4 Disable ontroller Rack 1 Back 2 Back 3	isable											
Slot Number	00	01	1	02		03	T	04	0	5	06	
Module Type CPU-	04 🔻 SV	B-01	-	UNDEFINE	D -	UNDEFINED) - U	NDEFINED .	UNDEFI	NED -	UNDEFIN	JE
Status											 P	·
Status	irtual axes, ethe CK#01_SLOT‡	rnet, p	rogram c	control functi	on.						p	•
Status PU-04: CPU module with v odule Details CPU-04 RA	irtual axes, ethe CK#01 SLOT‡	rnet, p	rogram c	control function	on.	3	1	4])	· –
Status PU-04: CPU module with v odule Details CPU-04 RA Slot Number Module Type	irtual axes, ethe .CK#01 SLOT‡ 1 1 1	rnet, p \$00	rogram c	control function	on.	3 FC ¥	M-E×	4 ECUTOR V			 	·
Status PU-04: CPU module with v odule Details CPU-04 RA Slot Number Module Type Circuit Number	irtual axes, ethe CK#01 SLOT# CPU -	rnet, p 100	rogram c SVR 01	2	on.	3 FC ▼	M-EX	4 ECUTOR -			<u>)</u>	
Status PU-04: CPU module with v odule Details CPU-04 RA Slot Number Module Type Circuit Number I/O Statt Register	irtual axes, ethe CK#01 SLOT# CPU 	rnet, p \$00	rogram c SVR 01	2	on. 2181 01 0000	3 FC ▼	M-EX - 0C00	4 ECUTOR▼)	
Status PU-04: CPU module with v odule Details CPU-04 RA Slot Number Module Type Circuit Number I/O Start Register I/O End Register	Itual axes, ethe ICK#01 SLOT# CPU 	t00	rogram c SVR 01 	2	on. 2181 01 00000 07FF	3 FC ▼	M-EX - 0C00 0C3F	4 ECUTOR▼				
Status PU-04: CPU module with v odule Details CPU-04 RA Slot Number Module Type Circuit Number I/O Start Register I/O End Register Disable Input	CK#01 SLDT#	rnet, p t00	rogram c SVR 01 	2	on. 2181 01 07FF Enab	3 FC ▼ D	M-EX - 0C00 0C3F	4 ECUTOR V				·
Status PU-04: CPU module with v odule Details CPU-04 RA Slot Number Module Type Circuit Number I/O Start Register I/O End Register Disable Input Disable Output	irtual axes, ethe CK#01 SLOT# CPU 	irnet, p 100	svr 01 	2	on. 2181 01 0000 07FF Enab Enab	3 FC ▼ D He ▼	M-EX - 0C0C 0C3F	4 ECUTOR V				·
Status PU-04: CPU module with v odule Details CPU-04 RA Slot Number Module Type Circuit Number I/O Start Register I/O End Register Disable Input Disable Output Motion Start Register	irtual axes, ethe CK#01 SLOT# 	*****	rogram c SVR 01 8000	2	on. 2181 01 0000 07FF Enab Enab	3 FC ▼ D ile ▼	- 0C00 0C3F	4 ECUTOR -				

(4) 218IFC Module Detailed Definition Window

Refer to 2.5.6 (2) Specification of 218IFA Module. For the 218IFC, the setting range for the connection number is larger, i.e., 1 to 20.

2.6.6 M-EXECUTOR Module (Motion Program Executor)

Refer to 2.5.7 M-EXECUTOR Module (Motion Program Executor).

2.7.1 Overview of Functions

2.7 EXIOIF Module

2.7.1 Overview of Functions

The EXIOIF Module is a special expansion rack interface for the MP2200. This Module can be used to configure an MP2200 system with up to four racks.

2.7.2 External Appearance

The following figure shows the external appearance of the EXIOIF Module.



2.7.3 Hardware Specifications

The following table shows the hardware specifications of the EXIOIF Module.

Item	Specifications
Abbreviation	EXIOIF
Model	JAPMC-EX2200
Function	Expansion rack interface (maximum 4-Rack configuration)
Expansion Bus Connector	HDRA-EC68LFDT-SL (HONDA)
Expansion Bus Interface	IEEE-488 (GPIB): Equivalent to SN75160 (TI).
Rack No. Recognition	The CPU Module automatically recognizes rack 1 from the expansion cable connection. When nothing is connected to the IN connector, a basic unit rack (rack 1) configuration is used. Racks 2 to 4 are in the order that racks are connected to rack 1.
Module Type	MP2200 Optional Module The EXIOIF Module is recognized as an Optional Module. It can be mounted in any slot.
Dimensions (mm)	$125 \times 95 (H \times D)$
Mass	80 g

2.8 Optional Module

This section provides an option module overview. For more information on its specifications, functions, connections, settings, etc., refer to the following documents separately.

2.8.1 Optional Module Overview List

Classification	Optional Module Name	Module Overview	Reference Manual
	SVB-01 Module	 The SVB-01 Module is a motion module equipped with a MECHA-TROLINK supporting interface. The adoption of MECHATROLINK enables reduced wiring and multiaxis control. In addition, the support for MECHATROLINK-II standard allows you to control position, speed, torque, and phase, realizing precise synchronous control. Also, complex mechanical operation can be achieved by changing the control mode during axis operation. Features Up to 21 slave stations per module are connectable (up to 16 servo axes are controllable) Because synchronization between modules is enabled, adaptable to interpolation and synchronous control between modules An SVB-01 Module that is used as a slave can be connected to a host controller equipped with MECHATROLINK communication. Self-configuration function allows you to automatically map slave devices connected to MECHATROLINK. SERVOPACK parameters can be managed over the networks. 	Machine Controller MP2000 Series Built-in SVB/SVB-01 Motion Module User's Manual (manual no.: SIEP C880700 33)
Motion Module	SVC-01 Module	 The SVC-01 Module is a motion module equipped with a MECHA- TROLINK-III interface. The adoption of MECHATROLINK enables reduced wiring and multi- axis control. In addition, support for MECHATROLINK-III allows you to control positions, speeds, torque, and phases, realizing precise syn- chronous control. Also, complex mechanical operation can be achieved by changing the control mode during axis operation. Features Control performed in a shorter cycle but for the same maximum num- ber of axes as with MECHATROLINK-II. Up to 21 slave stations per module are connectable (up to 16 servo axes are controllable). Because synchronization between modules is enabled, adaptable to interpolation and synchronous control between modules. An SVC-01 Module that is used as a slave can be connected to a host controller equipped with MECHATROLINK-III communication. Self-configuration allows you to automatically map slave devices con- nected to MECHATROLINK-III. SERVOPACK parameters can be managed over networks. 	Machine Controller MP2000 Series SVC-01 Motion Module User's Manual (manual no.: SIEP C880700 41)
	SVA-01 Module	 The SVA-01 Module is a motion control module with analog output. Capable of controlling a two-axes servo per module or an inverter. The module has two connectors (CN1, CN2) for connection to a SER-VOPACK and an external I/O. Each connector is equipped with an analog output to command speed and torque, an analog input to monitor feedback speed and torque, a pulse input phase-A, B, and C (5V differential), and a general-purpose digital input/output. The control cycle is fixed at 500µs, so precise control is enabled regardless of high-speed scan cycles. Features Two axes servo module with analog output Each axis can independently perform position control, speed command output, torque command output, and phase control functions. Self-configuration function allows you to automatically map modules. 	Machine Controller MP2000 Series SVA-01 Motion Module User's Manual (manual no.: SIEP C880700 32)
	PO-01 Module	The PO-01 Module is a motion module with pulse output and a four-axes interface. Applicable to connection to a stepping motor or SERVO- PACK.	Machine Controller MP2000 Series Pulse Output Motion Mod- ule PO-01 User's Manual (manual no.: SIEP C880700 28)
2.8.1 Optional Module Overview List

Classification	Optional Module Name	Module Overview	Reference Manual	
	LIO-01/ LIO-02 Module	Digital I/O and pulse counter functions. As a digital I/O function, equipped with 16 digital inputs (DI), 16 digital outputs (DO) (LIO-01: sink output, LIO-02: source output). As a pulse counter function, one pulse input (PI). As for when to input/output for digital I/O and pulse counter functions, input/output for each MP2200 high-speed (High)/ low-speed (Low) scan is carried out at a constant cycle.	Machine Controller MP2000	
	LIO-04/ LIO-05 Module	As a digital I/O function, equipped with 32 digital inputs (DI), and 32 digital outputs (DO) (LIO-04: sink output, LIO-05: source output).	Series I/O Module User's Manual (manual no.: SIEP C880700 34)	
Input/Out- put Module	LIO-06 Module	As digital I/O function, equipped with 8 digital inputs (DI), 8 digital outputs (DO), one analog input channel, one analog output channel, and one pulse counter input channel.		
	DO-01 Module	As a digital output function, equipped with 64 digital outputs (DO) (sink output).		
	AI-01 Module	8 channel analog input module. For the input, capable of selecting from three options: -10V to +10V, 0V to +10V, or 0 to 20 mA.	Machine Controller MP2000 Series Analog Input/Analog Out-	
	AO-01 Module	4 channel analog output module. For the output, select one from two options: $-10V$ to $+10V$, or $0V$ to $+10V$.	Manual (manual no.: SIEP C880700 26)	
	CNTR-01 Module	2 channel reversible counter module. 5V differential/ 12V input is optional, and phase-A or -B/ sign/ add-subtract method is optional.	Machine Controller MP2000 Series Counter Module CNTR-01 User's Manual (manual no.: SIEP C880700 27)	
	218IF-01 Module	Equipped with serial interface (RS-232C) and Ethernet interface. Allows you to connect to a personal computer, HMI equipment, or controller by other makers via PORT or 10Base-T connector.		
	218IF-02 Module	Equipped with serial interface (RS-232C) and Ethernet interface. Allows you to connect to a personal computer, HMI equipment, or controller by other makers via PORT or 100Base-TX connector.		
	217IF-01 Module	Equipped with serial interfaces (RS-232C and RS422/485). Allows you to connect to a personal computer, HMI equipment, or controller by other makers via PORT or RS422/485 connector.		
	260IF-01 Module	Equipped with serial interface (RS-232C) and DeviceNet interface. Allows you to connect to a controller by other makers via DeviceNet connector. Also, allows you to connect to a personal computer or HMI equipment by other makers via the PORT connector.	Machine Controller MP2□00 Communication Module User's Manual (manual no.:SIEP	
Communi- cation	261IF-01 Module	Equipped with serial interface (RS-232C) and PROFIBUS interface. Allows you to connect to a controller by other makers via the PROFI- BUS connector. Also, allows you to connect to a personal computer or HMI equipment by other makers via the PORT connector.	C880700 04)	
Module	215AIF-01 Module	MPLINK and CP-215 specifications. MPLINK specification is equipped with one line of our original real-time core network interface MPLINK transmission and a serial interface (RS- 232C). CP-215 specification is equipped with one line of our original real-time core network interface CP-215 transmission and a serial interface (RS- 232C).		
	262IF-01 Module	Equipped with an FL-net interface. Allows you to connect to a personal computer, HMI, or FA controller via a 100Base-TX or 10Base-T connector.	Machine Controller MP2000 Series 262IF-01 FL-net Commu- nication Module User's Manual (manual no: SIEP C880700 36)	
	263IF-01 Module	Equipped with an EtherNet/IP interface. Allows you to connect to a per- sonal computer or EtherNet/IP device via the EtherNet/IP connector.	Machine Controller MP2000 Series 2631F-01 EtherNet/IP Communication Module User's Manual (manual no.: SIEP C880700 39)	

2.9 External Dimensions

2.9.1 Basic Unit

The following figure shows the external appearance of the Basic Unit.

(1) Nine-slot Base Unit





2.9.1 Basic Unit

(2) Four-slot Base Unit



- * 1. The following cable-side connectors are attached to the power connectors.
 - Power connector: 721-203/026-000
- * 2. Attachment
 - Handle for power connector (model: 231-131)
 These handles are used when connecting a cable to the cable-side connector.

2.9.2 Mounting Procedure for EXIOIF Connector

2.9.2 Mounting Procedure for EXIOIF Connector

The EXIOIF Module has the following dimensions. Height: 125 mm, Depth: 95 mm

The following figure shows the mounting dimensions for the connector of the EXIOIF Module.



Mounting and Wiring

This chapter explains how to handle MP2200 and the connection methods for each module.

3.1 Mounting MP2200	3-2
3.1.1 Method	
3.1.2 MP2200 Mount Direction	3-5
3.1.3 Installation Clearance	3-6
3.1.4 Replacing and Adding Optional Modules	3-7
3.2 Connecting Basic Units	3-10
3.2.1 Connecting Base Units	3-10
3.2.2 CPU-02 Module Connections	3-13
3.2.3 CPU-03/CPU-04 Module Connections	
3.2.4 EXIOIF Module Connections	3-18
3.2.5 System Connection Example	

3.1 Mounting MP2200

3.1.1 Method

There are two methods for mounting MP2200.

- Using screws
- Using DIN rail

(1) Screwed Method

Push the MP2200 mounted clamp onto the mounting plate as shown in the following figure, and use four mounting screws to firmly secure the clamp.



Note: Vertically mount it on the wall as shown in the figure above.

(2) DIN Rail Mounting

[a] DIN Rails and Spacer

Several types of DIN rails are available: with 7-mm to 15-mm gap from the mounting base as shown in the following diagram. If mounting a MP2200 using DIN rail with 10-mm gap, install a spacer on the rear of the MP2200 near the bottom to protect the MP2200 from vibration and shock.



Gap from mounting base: 7.0 mm to 15.0 mm

[b] Procedure for Mounting to DIN Rail

Use the following procedure to attach the DIN rail mounting parts to the MP2200 and then mount the MP2200 to the DIN rail.

1. Insert the DIN rail mounting brackets to the dotted line in the two slots on the rear of the MP2200 as shown in the following figure.



MP2200 Rear Side

Note: The following figure shows the front and back of a mounting clip. Insert each clip so that its front faces outward.



2. Pull the DIN rail mounting clips down to release them.



Fixing a DIN Rail

Make sure to fix a DIN rail at 300mm or less pitch as shown in the figure below.



3. Hook the MP2200 to the top of the DIN rail (a), and then push the MP2200 towards the mounting base to secure it in place (b).



4. Push the DIN rail mounting clips to lock them in place..



5. Place end plates on both sides of the MP2200 to secure it to the DIN rail.



This completes the installation procedure.

3.1.2 MP2200 Mount Direction

Be sure to mount the MP2200 using screwed method or DIN rail.



3.1.3 Installation Clearance

3.1.3 Installation Clearance

To enable proper ventilation, install the MP2200 with the clearance shown in the following figure.

Mounting Conditions

- Above and below: 50 mm min.
- Left and right: 50 mm min.

Note: This clearance applies to an ambient temperature of 55°C max.



3.1.4 Replacing and Adding Optional Modules

Use the following procedures to replace and add Optional Modules.

(1) Preparations

1. Create a backup data file.

Use the MPE720 to save the MP2200 program on a computer (right-click the PLC, and select *Transfer - All Files - From Controller to MPE720*.)

2. Remove the MP2200.

Turn OFF the power supply and disconnect all cables from the MP2200. Then remove the MP2200 from the panel or rack and place on a workbench or other area with sufficient space.

(2) Removing Optional Modules

1. Remove the battery cover.

Pull the notch on the side of the MP2200 towards you to remove the battery cover.



2. Remove the panel of Optional Module.

Insert the protruding part of the battery cover into the slot on top of the panel of Optional Module to unhook, as shown in the diagram. Face the front of the battery cover towards you for this operation.

• Remove the front cover (optional) from the empty slot before mounting an Optional Module in an empty slot.



Unhook the bottom in the same way.

- 3.1.4 Replacing and Adding Optional Modules
 - **3.** Remove the Optional Module from the mounting base.

Pull the top of the panel of the Optional Module towards you to remove it. A notch on the Optional Module will be visible from the gap in the cover. Hook the round knob on the battery cover, shown in the diagram, into the notch in the Optional Module.



Hold the center of the battery cover as shown in the following diagram. Push the battery cover down and out, rotating from the round knob to disconnect the Module and mounting base connectors, and then pull the Optional Module forward.



4. Pull out the Optional Module.

Hold the Module on the top and bottom and pull it out straight. Hold the edges of the Module and avoid touching the parts on the Module.



Put the removed Module into the bag that was supplied with and store the Module in this bag.

(3) Installing Optional Modules

1. Insert Optional Modules.

Hold the top and bottom of the Module to be installed, line up the Module on the left-side guide rail inside the Option Slot, and then insert it straight.

Note: The FG bar on the inside bottom of the Unit Case may be damaged if the Module is not inserted straight.



2. Mount on to the mounting base.

Once the Optional Module has been completely inserted, place your hand on the front face of the Optional Module and push hard until the Optional Module has been inserted into the mounting base connectors. The front face of the Optional Module and the hook will be aligned when the Optional Module has been installed properly.

3. Install the panel of the Optional Module.

Place the hole on the bottom of the panel of the Optional Module onto the hook on the bottom of the MP2200. Next, hook the hole at the top of the panel of the Optional Module onto the hook at the top of the MP2200.



This completes the Optional Module mounting procedure. Be sure to attach the option cover (model: JEPMC-OP2300) on the empty slot.

3.2.1 Connecting Base Units

3.2 Connecting Basic Units

3.2.1 Connecting Base Units

(1) MBU-01 Power Supply Connector

[a] Specifications, Pin Arrangement, and Connection Procedure

Supply 100/200 VAC to the MP2200. Connect the power supply connector as shown in the following diagram.

Name	Connector	No. of	Connector Model			
Name	Name	Pins	Module	Cable	Manufacturer	Cable Model
Power Supply Connector	POWER	3	721-863	721-203/026	WAGO Company of Japan, Ltd	_

	Pin No.	Signal Name	Description
	3	AC	AC input
	2	AC	AC input
POWER	1	FG	Frame ground (Ground to 100 Ω or less.)



[b] Making a 100/200-VAC Power Supply Cable

The power supply terminal has a removable connector. Use the following procedure to wire the terminal to the power supply connector. Use 1.5 to 2.5 mm² (AWG16 to AWG13) twisted-pair cable to connect the 100/200-VAC power supply to the power supply connector on the MP2200.

1. Strip the end of the cable.

Strip approx. 8 to 9 mm the end of the wires.



2. Clamp the wires.

Insert the wires all the way to the back of the plug and clamp them securely.



3.2.1 Connecting Base Units

(2) MBU-02/MBU-03 Power Supply Connector

[a] Specifications, Pin Arrangement, and Connection Procedure

Supply 24 VDC to the MP2200. Connect the power supply connector as shown in the following diagram.

Name	Connector	No. of Pins	Connector Model			
Name	Name		Module	Cable	Manufacturer	Cable Model
Power Supply Connector	POWER	3	721-863	721-203/026	WAGO Company of Japan, Ltd	_

	Pin No.	Signal Name	Description
	3	24V	24-VDC input
	2	0V	0-V input
POWER	1	FG	Frame ground (Ground to 100 Ω or less.)



Note: Use an insulated 24-VDC power supply. Attach the power supply switch on the AC side. If the switch is attached on the 24-VDC side, there will be an inrush current of approximately 40 A when the power is turned ON.

[b] Making a 24-VDC Power Supply Cable

The power supply terminal has a removable connector. Use the following procedure to wire the terminal to the power supply connector. Use 0.8 to 2.6 mm² (AWG18 to AWG13) twisted-pair cable to connect the 24-VDC power supply to the power supply connector on the MP2200.

For the procedure to make the cable, refer to 3.2.1 (1) [b] Making a 100/200-VAC Power Supply Cable.

3.2.2 CPU-02 Module Connections

- (1) CARD Module Connector Details
- [a] Compact Flash (CF) Slot Specifications



Connector Specifications

Name	No. of	Connector Model		
	Pins	Module side	Cable side	Manufacturer
CF slot	50	MI21A-50PD-SF-EJR(31)	—	Hirose

CF slot (Compact Flash not inserted)

- (2) USB Connectors
- [a] USB Connector Specifications

Series Mini-B plug

[b] USB Cable

Use a commercially-available USB cable.

Connectors:

- Computer: Series A plug
- Module: Series Mini-B plug

[c] USB Interface Connection Example

The following figure shows a connection example using multiple CPU-02 Modules.



3.2.3 CPU-03/CPU-04 Module Connections

3.2.3 CPU-03/CPU-04 Module Connections

(1) CARD Module Connector Details (except CPU-04)

Refer to 3.2.2 (1) CARD Module Connector Details.

(2) Ethernet Connector Details

Connects to a personal computer or HMI device by Ethernet (100Base-TX /10Base-T).

[a] Ethernet Connector Specification and Pin Arrangement/ Indicator Lamp

The following table provides the Ethernet connector specifications.

Name	Connector	Number	Connector Model		
Name	Name	of Pins	Module Side	Cable Side	Manufacturer
Ethernet	Ethernet	8	RJ-45 CAT5 Socket	RJ-45 CAT5 Plug	Pulse Engineering

Transmitted data + side Transmitted data - side Received data + side

Received data - side

Description

The following table provides Ethernet connector pin arrangement/ indicator lamp details.

	Pin Number	Signal Name
	1	TXD+
not	2	TXD-
	3	RXD+
	4	_
	5	-
	6	RXD-
	7	-
	8	_

Indicator Name	Indicator Color	Description
LINK	Yellow	Lit: Connect Unlit: Unconnected
100M	Green	Lit: Connected at 100Mbps, or automatically negotiating Unlit: Connected at 10Mbps

_

_

[b] Ethernet Cable

For the Ethernet cable, use a twisted pair cable with RJ-45 connector.

Ethernet Type	Category	Remarks
10Base-T	Category 3 or more	• When connecting to remote device through a hub: Straight cable
100Base-TX	Category 5 or more	• When connecting to remote device without using a hub: Cross cable

3.2.3 CPU-03/CPU-04 Module Connections

[c] Ethernet Connection Example

The following are examples of Ethernet network connections via 10Base-T cable:

Connection Example 1

When using a repeater HUB:



Specification

Item	When Connecting to a Repeater HUB	When Connecting to a Switching HUB
Cable Length between Node-HUB	100 m or less	100 m or less
Cable Length between HUBs	100 m or less	100 m or less
Number of HUBs between Nodes	Up to four	Unlimited

Connection Example 2



3.2.3 CPU-03/CPU-04 Module Connections

The following are examples of Ethernet network connections via 100Base-TX cable:

Connection Example 3

When using a repeater HUB:



Specification

Item	When Connecting to a Repeater HUB	When Connecting to a Switching HUB
Cable Length between Node-HUB	100 m or less	100 m or less
Cable Length between HUBs	5 m or less	100 m or less
Number of HUBs between Nodes	Up to two	Unlimited

Connection Example 4



Caution

High frequency wave noise from other devices in the installation environment may cause error in communications using 100Base-TX connections. When constructing a system, use MP2200 protective measures to avoid the influence of high frequency wave noise as follows:

1 Wiring

Wire Ethernet cables so that they are well-separated from other cable systems, such as the main circuit or power lines. 2 Communication system (100Base-TX)

- Communicate data to a remote device through TCP/IP communication.
- If necessary, increase the number of communication retries.
- 3 Attach a ferrite core.

Ethernet

Attach a ferrite core in the manner described below:

: Attach it to the communication port side and the external device side of the MP2200 main unit.



Note: Recommended ferrite core

Model:	Manufacturer
E04SR301334	Seiwa Electric Mfg. Co., Ltd

3.2.4 EXIOIF Module Connections

3.2.4 EXIOIF Module Connections

(1) Connectors

The following diagram shows EXIOIF Module connectors.



The following diagram shows how to connect the external I/O connectors.



Note: Attach the enclosed dust caps to the unused connectors (1) in the above figure.

(2) Cables

Name	Model	Length
Connection Cables (with connectors on both	JEPMC-W2091-A5	0.5 m
	JEPMC-W2091-01	1.0 m
ends)	JEPMC-W2091-2A5	2.5 m

Note: 1. The total cable length when adding expansion racks is 6.0 m max. Connect the shield to the connector shell.

- 2. Connection method: 1:1
- Cable specifications: Shielded cable, equivalent to UL20276, 0.08 mm² (AWG28), two ferrite cores attached

(3) Cable Appearance



3.2.5 System Connection Example

3.2.5 System Connection Example

The following diagram shows a connection example of a system using the MP2200.

The following diagram shows a connection example for the system using a 200-VAC power supply.

Note: Select the SERVOPACK, 24-VDC power supply to use in accordance with the input power supply specification.



System Startup

This chapter explains how to start up a model system using the programming tool MPE720 Ver.6. Note that the procedure for designing a mechanical system has been omitted here.

4.1 System Startup Overview	4-2
4.2 Preparation	4-3
4.2.1 Wiring	4-3
4.2.2 Self Configuration	4-5
4.2.3 Test Operation	4-6
4.3 Programming	4-9
4.3.1 Creating a Project	4-9
4.3.2 Creating Group Definitions	4-10
4.3.3 Creating Motion Programs	4-11
4.3.4 Registering a Motion Program for Execution	4-12
4.3.5 Transferring a Program	4-14
4.3.6 Program Debugging	4-16
4.3.7 Saving a Program to Flash Memory	4-17
4.3.8 Executing Motions	4-18

4.1 System Startup Overview

This section describes the procedure to set up a system and to confirm the execution of motion program using the program shown below.

The motion program created here is simple and has only three lines to move two axes 150,000 pulses from the current position and stop them.

INC;	Specify an incremental mode
MOV	[A1]150000, [B1]150000;Position two-axes 150,000 pulses
END;	

4.2 Preparation

This section explains the steps of "wiring," "self-configuration," and "test operation" for starting up the model system.

4.2.1 Wiring

We use the following layout model to explain the startup of the model system. Prepare each device listed on the next page and connect them as shown in the figure below.

(1) System Layout Model



System Startup

[a] Required Equipment

	Product Name	Model	Q'ty
	Base Unit with AC power supply	JEPMC-BU2200	1
MP2200	CPU-01 Module	JAPMC-CP2200	1
WIF 2200	SVB-01 Module	JAPMC-MC2310	1
	218IF-01 Module	JAPMC-CM2300	1
MECHATRO	LINK cable (0.5m)	JEPMC-W6002-A5	2
Terminator (te	erminating resistor)	JEPMC-W6022	2
Σ-III SERVOPACK		SGDS-A5F12A	2
Σ-III servomotor		SGMAS-A5A2A21	2
Motor cable (3m)		JZSP-CSM01-03	2
Encoder cabl	e (3m)	JZSP-CSP05-03	2
HUB (commercialized product)		LSW-TX-8EP	1
MPE720 Ver.6		CPMC-MPE770	1
LAN cable (fo	or Ethernet connection)	Commercialized straight cable	2
Personal con	nputer	Commercialized product	1

Caution

- Install MPE720 Ver.6 in the personal computer before starting step 1.
 For information on its installation, refer to the *Engineering Tool for MP2000 Series Machine Controller MPE720 Version 6* Users Manual (manual no.: SIEP C880700 30).
- Set the PC Ethernet port in advance. For the procedure to set up communication, refer to the *Engineering Tool for MP2000* Series Machine Controller MPE720 Version 6 Users Manual (manual no.: SIEP C880700 30).
- The SERVOPACK station number (SW1) is set to 1 and 2.
- In a 1:1 connection without HUB, use a cross cable as a LAN cable.

4.2.2 Self Configuration

Run the self configuration to automatically recognize devices connected to the MECHATROLINK connector. Steps for self configuration are as follows.

- **1.** Check that the Σ -III SERVOPACK power supply is ON.
- **2.** Turn OFF the 100-VAC power supply to the MP2200.
- 3. Set the INIT and CNFG pins on the DIP switch (SW1) to ON on the MP2200.
- 4. Turn ON the 100-VDC power supply to the MP2200, and confirm that the indicators change as follows:



- **5.** Self configuration is complete, and MECHATROLINK slave device information has been written to a definition information file.
- **6.** Set the INIT and CNFG pins on the DIP switch (SW1) to OFF on the MP2200.

4.2.3 Test Operation

Confirm that the machine controller can command axis servo ON/OFF and jog operation.

(1) Starting and Connecting MPE720 Ver.6

Launch MPE720Ver.6 and click "3:Ethernet(LP)192.168.1.1" to connect to the controller.



(2) Operating Manually in the Test Run Window

When the connection is complete, the display will change from offline to online.

Elle Edit Yew Online Compile Debug	₩indow <u>H</u> elp		- 8
		4 64 Ⅲ 및 : 础 ∽ ⊳ □ ⋈ ⋈ ≧ ' ⊙ @	
▷ T E 開 L 是 ♥ 盔 ^ ^ · ^ ·	∽ 껨, ! + + + 手 ₹	<u>◇ → & < ≤ = ≠ ≥ > & : III : X & </u>	
Online MP2310		3:Ethernet(LP) IP192.168.1	
Setup Programming Monitor Trans	fer Utility		
System Scantime setting Module configure	NOT		
stem • 4 × Start	194791		7
2 Uj History	The second secon		
	Project	Controller	Help
Axis configuration			
(F) Test run;	New	Communications Setting	Help
Alarm monitor	Open	Connection [3:Ethernet(LP) IP192.168.1.1]	
- III U_ Cir#01 : SVB : MECHAT - III U_ Cir#02 : SVR : Virtual Mo	Close	Disconnection	
- Scope History		History	
		3:Ethernet(LP) IP192.168.1.1	
a summer of			
and the second se			
		에너희 생산 생산의 생산의 생산의 생산의 생산의 생산	

1. Click **System** in the subwindow and double-click **Axis configuration - Test run** to display a warning dialog a box for the test run. Click the **Agree** Button.



2. Axis Selection and Servo ON

Set an axis number in the Axis Window and click the Enable (Servo ON) Button in the Test Run Window.





3. Jog Operation

Speed reference

Click the **Speed reference** Icon and set a speed reference value, and check that the axis rotates normally while the **Forward** Button or **Reverse** Button is pressed.

Speed reference

Click set button to write the speed reference into OL8010.

Speed reference

Store

Set

Cancel

Image: Concel



The operation check of the first axis is complete.

Press the Axis ... Button to change to "Axis #02" in the Axis Window, and perform the steps 1 to 3 above.

4.3 Programming

4.3.1 Creating a Project

1. Double-click the icon on the personal computer desktop to start MPE720 version 6.



2. Once MPE720 version 6 has started, click New.

Development of the second s				
MPE720 Ver.6 - [Start]				_D×
Eile Edit View Online Con	npile <u>D</u> ebug <u>W</u> indo	ow <u>H</u> elp		- 8×
1036日92、166、	M 10 01 M	13 - - - - - - - - - -	6@ ₩ ₽ � ▶■ ™™≥°8 ●₩ ₽	
	* 10 10 -0 잼	ⅈⅈℍℎ≨ᆂจ	> ⇒ & <≦ = ≠ ≥ > & : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : :	-
! ऌ ऌ // X № 🛔 🛡 🗞				
Offline			YASKAWA ELECTRI	C CORPORATION
Setup Programming Monil	tor Transfer	Utility		
System Scantime setting Mo	odule configuration			
System • 4 ×	Start			÷ X
2	🔁 History 🗄 My	y tool		
				<u>^</u>
		Project		
		New	Communications Setting	Help
		Open	Connection [3:Ethernet(LP) IP192.168.1.1]	
		Close	Disconnection	
	History		History	생활에 가지 않는 것이 같이 많이
			3:Ethernet(LP) IP192.168.1.1	
	the second second second		n en en en en en en	
				
Ladder G Motion System	4			
Ready				CAP NUM SCRL

3. Specify the file name, location in which to save the file, and Controller model, and then click the **Create** Button.

eate New Proj	ect		?
Save in	🔄 appli		
iistory History Desktop	2200-01 22005MPL.Y 22-03.YMW 22-04.YMW 2310.YMW ABS-LADDER MP2200.YM	Specify the location in which to save the file.	
My Documents	File name:	Specify the file name.	Create
My Network P	Save as type:	Project File (*.YMW)	Cancel Help
	Controller	Specify the model of the MP2000-series Controller.	

4.3.2 Creating Group Definitions

4.3.2 Creating Group Definitions

Before creating the motion program, organize the axes into groups according to the machine configuration.

1. Click the Motion Tab in the subwindow to display Motion program in the subwindow.



2. Right-click **Motion program** in the left subwindow, and then select **Group Definition** from the pop-up menu.

Program []]] 22-03 [MP2200-03]	_		-
Right-click.	6	Copy Baste	Ctril+C Ctril+V
Panel	C	Group De	efinition
		Comple	
		Refresh	

3. Click the **OK** Button. For more information, refer to *7.3 Group Definition* in the *Machine Controller MP2000 Series Users Manual Motion Programming* (manual no.: SIEP C880700 38).

No. of Gro		Contr	ol Axis N	ion[Group io. 3	-1]
No.	Group Name	Axis	Circuit	Axis No.	Logical Axis Name
01 Gr	oup1	01	1	1	A1
	- 285	02	1	2	B1
		03	1	3	⊂1

4.3.3 Creating Motion Programs

Start the Motion Editor to enter the motion program.

1. The motion program tree will expand in the subwindow. Right-click **Main program**, and then click **New** in the pop-up menu.

	Matian		•	ax	Start
Expand the		rogram 03 (MP2200-03 Notion program Main program		New	
directory.	Rig	ht-click.	rem ror() anel	Baste Delete	Ctrl+V Delete
				Çompê	•
					22-03.YMV
	Ladde	ar []]Motion	100 Syst	em	4

2. Click the OK Button.

Program Name		
Configuration	E File privilege	0.1
E Detail definition	Bead	0,1
	Write	1
	D register	32

3. Enter the motion program example given at the beginning of this section.



4. Click the **I** lcon in the Motion Editor to perform compiling. Once the motion program has been compiled, it will be automatically saved.

If the Error List Dialog Box is displayed when the motion program is being compiled, the program will not be saved.

Caution

4.3.4 Registering a Motion Program for Execution

4.3.4 Registering a Motion Program for Execution

Call the motion program that you created from DWG.H by using an MSEE command. For details, refer to 5.2.3 (2) *How to Run a Motion Program*.

1. Click the Ladder Tab in the subwindow. Ladder program will be displayed in the subwindow.



2. Right-click High-speed in the subwindow, and then click New in the pop-up menu.

E High-speed	C	New	
Right-click.		New CP L <u>a</u> d	der
	X	Cu <u>t</u>	Ctrl+X
	电	⊆ору	Ctrl+C
	ß	<u>P</u> aste	Ctrl+V
		<u>C</u> ompile	
		Enable Main	Program
		<u>D</u> isable Main	Program
		Conversion	of CP ladder
		Import	2
		Export	3
		Print	

3. Click the OK Button.

Program Name	ain Program		
Configuration	🗆 File privilege	0,1	1
Detail definition	Read	0	
	Write	1	
	🗉 Use register num	32, 0, 0	
	D register	32	
	Work register	0	
	# register	0	
Create the following ladder program. After entering the program, compile it by pressing the F8 Key or clicking the control local.

5	sample for motion program control	
	axis A1, B1 servo on	
	sv-on MB000000	A1~Servo ON OB80000
0000 NL-1		B1~Servo ON OB80800
	program start	
0001 0003 NL-1	start on-pulse MB000001 DB000040	start DB000010
-0525674255	program hold	
0002	hold MB000002	hold DB000011
0006 NL-1	6.1	
	program abort	1
77772)	abort MB000003	abort DB000012
0008 NL-1	program and alarm reset	
0004	reset MB000004	reset DB000015
0010 NL-1		<u> </u>
INC.1	motion program call	
0005 0012 NL-1	(<u>MSEE</u>) [W]Program No. 00001 [A]Data DA00000	
TITUTA	run off-pulse DB000000 DB000041	stop DB000042
0013 NL-1		\cup
0007 0016 NL-1	() DB000042	
	treatment after motion program stopped	
0017 NL-1	(END_IF)	
1009	- FND -	
0018 NL-1		

Caution

- Confirm that Machine Controller Operation Ready (motion monitoring parameter IWxx00 bit 0) is ON, and then turn ON the Servo ON Command (MB000000).
- If Machine Controller Operation Ready is OFF, the Servo ON Command will not be accepted.

Complement

If you use the CPU-03 or CPU-04, you can register the program in the M-EXECUTOR program execution definitions rather than creating the ladder program described above. For information on the registration procedure, refer to 7.4.1 Registering Program Execution.

4.3.5 Transferring a Program

4.3.5 Transferring a Program

Transfer the motion program to the MP2000-series Controller. This procedure is not required if the motion program is made online.

1. Click *Communications Setting* in the following window.



2. Select the communications port that was set in 4.2 Preparation, and then click the Connection Button.

Le Communications	Setting	×
Set the communication	n setting	Connection
Communication port	3 : Ethernet(LP) (IP:192.168.1.2)	Setting
		Cancel
		Detail >>

3. After you are online, click *Transfer - Write into controller*.



4. Click the Individual Button, and then select Program Check Box. Click the Start Button.

Transfer Program - Write into Cont	troller t File : MP2200-03 (22-03.YMW)
Start	0%
Batch Individual	 Save to flash after transferring to the controller. Ladder program Motion program Sequence program C language Table data V Variable User Structure

- Caution
 - If an individual transfer is performed, the same file in the Controller will be overwritten with the selected project file data.
 - If batch transfer is performed, the RAM of the MP2000-series Controller will be cleared before transfer, and then the project file data will be batch-written.
- 5. Click the CPU STOP Button. The transfer will start.

There is a possibility to cause the following problems when transfer durin 1. There is a possibility that the application miscalculation. 2. It will take more time while to complete transfer.	rina RUN.											
 There is a possibility that the application miscalculation. It will take more time while to complete transfer. 		There is a possibility to cause the following problems when transfer during RUN										
	 There is a possibility that the application miscalculation. It will take more time while to complete transfer. 											
Do you want to continue transfer?												

6. Select the Yes Button in the following dialog box to start the Controller.



4.3.6 Program Debugging

Debug the program that you created. For details on debugging, refer to 9.4 Debugging Operation in the Machine Controller MP2000 Series User's Manual Motion Programming (manual no: SIEP C880700 38).

1. Double-click the **Register List 1** Tab to display the register list. Specify MB000000 for the register. Set MB000000 to ON as shown in the following figure to turn ON the servo.

Register List :	1					545												• ‡ X	
Register MB000000				• 16									i	🔹 🖻 Monikor 🛛 🗱 🕄 Ł					
	(0)	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	A	В	С	D	E	F			
MB000000	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF		=	
MB000010	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF			
MB000020	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF			
MRAAAAAA	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF		M	
Register	List 1	<u>)</u> ou	tput	🔁 Tra	nsfer														

Complement

The CPU-03 and CPU-04 turn ON the servo by directly using the motion setting parameters if the M-EXECUTOR was used in the procedure given in *4.3.4 Registering a Motion Program for Execution*.

2. Click the 🚺 (Debug Mode) Icon.

	itart H: Re 🕤	Main Pro	gram MPM001
-	LINE BL	DCK	
	1		"INCREMENTAL MODE"
	2	0	INC;
	3		"POSITIONING"
	4	1	MOV [A1]150000 [B1]150000;
	5	2	END;
•	3	2	END,

3. Debug Mode will be entered.

/	Start H :	Main Pro	ogram MPM001
1	1 😵 H	말	·≈ ;], (+ P P R R) ? • R E K,
	LINE BL	OCK	END;
	1		"INCREMENTAL MODE"
	2	Ø	INC;
	3		"POSITIONING"
	4	1	MOV [A1]150000 [B1]150000;
	5	2	END;
	_		
-		. C	

4. Click the 📐 (Step In) Icon to check program operation by executing program lines one at a time.

/	Start	H : Main F	rogram MPM001	
; 1	9	땅噑]	: 70 ; 0 ; ₹ ↓	
	LINE	BLOCK	END;	Stop over
	1		"INCREMENTAL MODE"	Dreb over
	2	0	INC;	
	3		"POSITIONING"	
	4	1	MOV [A1]150000 [B1]	150000;
	5	2	END;	

5. The program will be executed until the END command, and the servo will turn OFF after the debugging operation has been completed.

4.3.7 Saving a Program to Flash Memory

Use the following procedure to save the data in the RAM in the MP2000-series Controller to the flash memory in the MP2000-series Controller.

1. Click *Transfer - Save to flash* in the following window.



2. Click the Start Button.

<u>Start</u>	0%	

3. Click the No Button. The transfer will start.

MPE720	Ver.6	×
(i)	The controller is running, so it may take more time to save Should the controller continue to run during save to flash? Yes No. Cancel	to flash.

4. Select the Yes Button in the following dialog box to start the Controller.

r.6	×
RUN the controller?	
No No	1
No	

4.3.8 Executing Motions

Execute the program that you created using the actual system. To execute the motion program, turn ON a program operation start request by using the control signal.

1. Double-click the **Register List 1** Tab to display the register list. Specify MB000000 for the register. Set MB000000 to ON as shown in the following figure to turn ON the servo.

Register MB	gister MB000000)-						*	16	•	Þ	nitor	≣⊙±ङ			
	<u>_</u>	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	A	В	C	D	E	F		
MB000000	(ON)	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	F	
MB000010	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF		
MB000020	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF		
MB000030	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF		
MB000040	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF		
MB000050	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	OFF	-	
Register L	.ist D'	Tra	nsfer															

2. Set MB000001 to ON as shown in the following figure to execute motion program MPM001.

	MB000000 is to turn ON th	s turned ON e servo.		
	sample to	r motion program control		
000 0000 NL-1	axis At, B servo on		A1-Servo ON OB80000	
	MPM001 sta DB000010 t	arts when urns ON.	COERCECC	
000) 1003 91-1	start 00-pulse MB000001 DB000040		start DB000010)-
	program hold hold		hold	
000 006 4L-1	M8000002		08000011	
76 J	program abort		0.000	
000 008	ME000003		DB000012	
	program and alarm inset		110000	
010 010	MB000004		DE000015	
~	motion program call			
000 012 11_1	MSEE 20 WProgram No. 00001 AlData D400000			
	Ceccocco di sulta Ceccocco		08000042	
WL-1			MSEE work registers	
	(F <u>Z</u>)	DW00000	Status flag	
U16 U.1	DE000042	DW00001	Interpolation override	
017 12.1	(END F)	DW00003	System work number	
X018	(END		

Overview of System Operation

This chapter describes the basic operation of MP2200 Machine Control Systems and provides an outline of user programs and registers.

5.1 Startup Sequence and Basic Operation	5-2
5.1.1 DIP Switch Settings	5-2
5.1.2 Startup Sequence	5-3
5.1.3 Startup Sequence Operation Details	5-4
5.1.4 LED Indicator Details	5-5
5.2 User Programs	5-6
5.2.1 Types and Execution Timing of User Program	5-6
5.2.2 Ladder Program	5-7
5.2.3 Motion Programs	5-12
5.2.4 Sequence Program (Supported by CPU-03 and CPU-04.)	5-33
5.3 Registers	5-36
5.3.1 Types of Registers	5-36
5.3.2 Data Types	5-39
5.3.3 How to Use Subscripts i, j	5-40
5.3.4 Register Designation	5-41
5.4 Self-configuration	5-42
5.4.1 How to Execute Self-Configuration	5-43
5.4.2 Definition Information Updated with Self-Configuration	5-51
5.5 Application Precautions	5-55
5.5.1 Setting or Changing User Definition Files	5-55
5.5.2 Setting or Changing Module Configuration Definition Files	5-56
5.5.3 Setting and Changing the Scan Time	5-57

5.1.1 DIP Switch Settings

5.1 Startup Sequence and Basic Operation

This section describes the MP2200 startup sequence and basic operation together with the DIP switch settings, selfdiagnosis at startup, and LED indicator patterns.

5.1.1 DIP Switch Settings

Set the DIP switch (SW1) on the Basic Module to control operations of the startup sequence. The six switches are provided on the DIP switch (SW1) on the Basic Module as shown in the following figure. The following table lists the functions of six switches.



No.	Switch Name	Status	Operating Mode	Default Setting	Remarks	
ST C STOP		ON	User program stops	OFF	Set to ON to stop user program emperies	
31-0	0101	OFF	User program operation	011	Set to ON to stop user program operation.	
Q1 5	SLIP	ON	System load	OFF	If set to ON, starts up in the mode that can renew the version	
51-5	501	OFF	Normal operation	011	of the farmware.	
		ON	Memory clear		Set to ON to clear memory.	
S1-4 INIT	INIT	OFF	Normal operation	OFF	Programs stored in flash memory will be run when this switch is set to OFF.	
C1 2	CNEG	ON	Self-configuration mode	OFF	Sat to ON for solf configuration of connected devices	
51-5		OFF	Normal operation	011	Set to ON for sen-configuration of confiected devices.	
61.0	MON	ON	System use	OFF		
51-2	WON	OFF	Normal operation	011	Always set to OFF.	
S1-1	TEST	ON	System use (Adjusted before shipment)	OFF	Always set to OFF.	
		OFF	Normal operation			

5.1.2 Startup Sequence

The startup sequence for the MP2200 from the moment when the power has been turned ON is shown in the following flowchart.



Note: Refer to 5.1.3 Startup Sequence Operation Details on the next page for details on (1) to (5).

5.1.3 Startup Sequence Operation Details

5.1.3 Startup Sequence Operation Details

(1) Self-diagnosis at Startup

Self-diagnosis is performed on the following items after the power is turned ON.

- Read/write diagnosis of memory (RAM)
- System program (ROM) diagnosis
- Main processor (CPU) function diagnosis
- Floating Point Unit (FPU) function diagnosis

If diagnosis results in an error, the ALM and ERR LED indicators will blink red for the specified number of times. Refer to *5.1.4 LED Indicator Details*.

(2) Self-configuration

Self-configuration automatically recognizes the connected Optional Modules, and automatically creates a definitions file. For details, refer to *5.4 Self-configuration*.

The RUN LED indicator will blink green during execution of self-configuration.

(3) Operation Start

When the STOP switch is set to OFF (RUN), the CPU will execute the ladder program in DWG.A. (Refer to 5.2.2 Ladder Program for information on DWG.A, the startup processing drawing.)

First scan processing is executed once DWGA has been completed and the high-speed or low-speed scan time has elapsed. System I/O are executed from the first scan.

(4) Operation Stop

MP2200 stops motion control operation when the STOP switch is ON (STOP) and in the following circumstances.

Cause	Restart method	
Power supply turned OFF	Turn ON the power again.	
Power interruption		
Fatal error	Check the LED indicator for the cause of the error and then turn the power OFF then ON.	
STOP executed from MPE720	Execute RUN from MPE720.	

(5) Online Self-diagnosis

Self-diagnosis is performed on the following items during scan processing.

- System program (ROM) diagnosis
- Read/write diagnosis of memory (RAM)

If diagnosis results in an error, the ERR indicators will blink red. (Refer to the next page.)

5.1.4 LED Indicator Details

The MP2200 performs a variety of diagnostics at startup. If an error is found, the ERR LED indicator blinks red. The number of times the indicators blink differs depending on the error details, so error details can be determined from counting the number of blinks. The following table shows details of MP2200 LED indicator. Note: 1. MPE720 cannot be operated when the indicators are blinking.

2. For information on errors and countermeasures, refer to *Chapter 8 Maintenance, Inspection, and Troubleshooting.*

Turne		LED	Indicator	Name		Indiastar Dataila	Domorko
туре	RDY	RUN	ALM	ERR	BAT	Indicator Details	Remarks
	Not lit	Not lit	Lit	Lit	Not lit	Hardware reset status	
	Not lit	Not lit	Not lit	Not lit	Not lit	Initializing	_
T	Not lit	Lit	Not lit	Not lit	Not lit	Executing DWGA	
Norma	Lit	Not lit	Not lit	Not lit	Not lit	User program stopped (Offline stop mode)	User program stops when the DIP switch or MPE720 is used to exe- cute the STOP operation.
	Lit	Lit	Not lit	Not lit	Not lit	User program executing normally (Online operation mode)	-
	Not lit	Not lit	Not lit	Lit	Not lit	Major damage has occurred	The ERR LED indicator is lit red when the CPU is down.
Error	Not lit	Not lit	Not lit	Blinking	Not lit	 (Software error) No. of blinks 3: Address error (read) exception 4: Address error (write) exception 5: FPU exception 6: Illegal general command error 7: Illegal slot command error 8: General FPU inhibited error 9: Slot FPU inhibited error 10: TLB duplicated bit error 11: TLB mistake error (read) 12: TLB mistake error (write) 13: TLB protection violation error (read) 14: TLB protection violation error (write) 15: Initial page write error 	The ERR LED indicator will blink red when an exception error has occurred.
	Not lit	Not lit	Blinking	Blinking	Not lit	 (Hardware errors) No. of blinks 2: RAM diagnosis error 3: ROM diagnosis error 4: CPU function diagnosis error 5: FPU function diagnosis error 	The ALM and ERR LED indicators will blink red if there is a self-diag- nosis failure.
ε	-	-	-	_	Lit	Battery alarm	The BAT LED indicator will be lit when the battery voltage drops.
Alarm	Lit	Not lit	Lit	Not lit	Not lit	Operation error I/O error	The ALM LED indicator will be lit red when an operation or I/O error is detected.

5.2.1 Types and Execution Timing of User Program

5.2 User Programs

This section describes the basic operation and other information about user programs.

- For programming details, refer to the following manuals.
 - Machine Controller MP900/MP2000 Series User's Manual Ladder Programming (manual no.: SIEZ-C887-1.2)
 - Machine Controller MP2000 Series User's Manual Motion Programming (manual no.: SIEP C880700 38)
 - Machine Controller MP900/MP2000 Series New Ladder Editor User's Manual Programming Instructions
 - (manual no.: SIEZ-C887-13.1)
 - Machine Controller MP900/MP2000 Series New Ladder Editor User's Manual Operation (manual no.: SIEZ-C887-13.2)
 - Engineering Tool for MP2000 Series Machine Controller MPE720 Version 6 User's Manual (manual no.: SIEP C880700 30).

5.2.1 Types and Execution Timing of User Program

The following table shows the types and execution timing of MP2200 user program.

User Program		Execution Timing		
Motion Program	High-speed Scan Process	Turns ON the program operation start request of the control signal (runs when program operation start request is ON)		
	Startup Process	Power-up (during power-up, runs only once)		
Sequence Program [*]	High-speed Scan Process	Periodical startup (runs each time a high-speed scan is performed)		
	Low-speed Scan Process	Periodical startup (runs each time a low-speed scan is performed)		
	Startup Process	Power-up (during power-up, runs only once)		
	Interrupt Process	Runs on external interrupt (runs on DI interrupt of Optional Module and counter match interrupt)		
Ladder Program	High-speed Scan Process	Periodical startup (runs each time a high-speed scan is performed)		
	Low-speed Scan Process	Periodical startup (runs each time a low-speed scan is performed)		

* Sequence program is supported by the CPU-03 at CPU-04.

For more information on the user program, refer to the next page and after.

5.2.2 Ladder Program

(1) Types of Drawings (DWG)

Ladder programs are managed in units of ladder drawings, which are identified by drawing numbers. These drawings form the basis of user programs.

Ladder drawings include parent drawings, child drawings, grandchild drawings, and operation error processing drawings. In addition to drawings, there are functions that can be freely accessed from each drawing.

• Parent Drawings

Parent drawings are automatically executed by the system program when the execution conditions, outlined in the table below, are met.

• Child Drawings

Child drawings are accessed using a SEE command from a parent drawing.

• Grandchild Drawings

Grandchild drawings are accessed using a SEE command from a child drawing.

Operation Error Processing Drawings

Operation error processing drawings are automatically executed by the system program when an operation error occurs.

• Functions

Functions are accessed and executed from parent, child, and grandchild drawings using the FUNC command.

[a] Drawing Types and Order of Priority

Drawings are classified by their first letter (A, I, H, or L) based on the processing purpose. The following table outlines the order of priority and execution conditions for these drawings.

Type of Parent Drawing	Function	Priority	Execution Conditions	Max. No. of Drawings
DWG.A (Drawing A)	Startup processing	1	Power ON (Executed once only, when power turns ON)	64
DWG.I (Drawing I)	Interrupt processing	2	External interrupt (executed by Optional Mod- ule DI interrupt or counter match interrupt)	64
DWG.H (Drawing H)	High-speed scan pro- cessing	3	Periodical startup (Executed each high-speed scan)	200
DWG.L (Drawing L)	Low-speed scan	4	Periodical startup (Executed each low-speed scan)	500

Note: Lower values have higher order of priority.

The following table provides details of the number of drawings for each drawing.

Drawing	Number of Drawings					
Drawing	DWG.A	DWG.I	DWG.H	DWG.L		
Parent Drawings	1 (A)	1 (I)	1 (H)	1 (L)		
Operation Error Processing Drawings	1 (A00)	1 (I00)	1 (H00)	1 (L00)		
Child Drawings Grandchild Drawings	Total: 62 max.	Total: 62 max.	Total: 198 max.	Total: 498 max.		

5.2.2 Ladder Program

(2) Execution Control of Drawings

[a] Execution Control

The following table shows a flow chart of how each drawing is executed based on the order of priority.



[b] Execution Schedule for Scan Processing Drawings

The scan processing drawings are not executed simultaneously. As shown in the following figure, the execution of each drawing is scheduled based on the order of priority and time sharing.



* Background processing is used to execute internal system processing, e.g., communication processing.

Low-speed scan processing is executed in spare processing time of the high-speed scan. Set the time of the high-speed scan to approximately double the total execution time for DWG.H.

[c] Hierarchical Structure of Drawings

Each processing program is made up of parent drawings, child drawings, and grandchild drawings. Parent drawings cannot call child drawings from a different type of drawing and child drawings cannot call grandchild drawings from a different type of drawing. Also, parent drawings cannot directly call grandchild drawings. Child drawings are always called from parent drawings and grandchild drawings are always called from child drawings. This is the hierarchical structure of drawings.

As shown in the following figure, each processing program is created from a hierarchy of parent, child, and grandchild drawings.



Note: X means A, I, H, or L.



5.2.2 Ladder Program

[d] Drawing Execution Processing Method

The execution processing of hierarchical drawings are performed by calling lower-level drawings from higher-level drawings.

The following figure shows the execution processing for drawings, using DWGA as an example.



- Note: 1. Parent drawing is automatically called and executed by system. Therefore, you can execute the child and grandchild drawings by programming a DWG reference command (SEE command) in the parent and child drawings.
 - 2. Functions can be referenced from any drawing. Functions can also be referenced from other functions.
 - 3. When an operation error occurs, the operation error processing drawing for that drawing will be started.

(3) Functions

Functions are executed by calling them from parent, child, or grandchild drawings using the FUNC command. Functions can be called from any drawing, and the same function can be called at the same time from different types of drawings and from different levels of drawings. Another completed functions can also be called from functions. Using functions has the following advantages.

- Easier creation of user program components
- Easier writing and maintenance of user programs

Functions include standard system functions that are already in the system and user functions that are defined by the user.

[a] Standard System Functions

The transmission and other functions listed below are already created as standard system functions. Standard system functions cannot be changed by users.

Туре	Name	Symbol	Contents
	Counter	COUNTER	Incremental/decremental counter
functions	First in/first out	FINFOUT	First in/first out
	Trace function	TRACE	Data trace execution control
	Data trace read	DTRC-RD	Reads data from data trace memory to user memory
sten	Inverter trace read function	ITRC-RD	Reads trace data from inverter trace memory to user memory
Sy	Message send MSG-SND		Sends messages to external communication devices
	Message receive	MSG-RCV	Receives messages from external communication devices

[b] User Functions

The functions (programs) and the function definitions can be changed (programmed) freely by users. The maximum number of user functions that can be defined is 500 drawings.

- Refer to the following manual for information on defining functions.
 - Machine Controller MP900/MP2000 Series User's Manual Ladder Programming (manual no.: SIEZ-C887-1.2)
 - Machine Controller MP2000 Series User's Manual Motion Programming (manual no.: SIEP C880700 38)
 - Machine Controller MP900/MP2000 Series New Ladder Editor User's Manual Programming
 Instructions
 - (manual no.: SIEZ-C887-13.1)
 - Machine Controller MP900/MP2000 Series New Ladder Editor User's Manual Operation (manual no.: SIEZ-C887-13.2)
 - Engineering Tool for MP2000 Series Machine Controller MPE720 Version 6 User's Manual (manual no.: SIEP C880700 30).

5.2.3 Motion Programs

Motion programs are programs written in a text-based language called motion language. The following table shows the two types of motion programs.

Туре	Specification Method	Features	No. of Programs
Main Program	$MPM\square\square \square$ $(\square\square \square = 1 to 256)$	 Accessed from DWG.H Accessed from M-EXECUTOR Program Execution Definitions^{*1} 	Up to 256 programs including the fol- lowing programs can be created. • Motion main programs
Subprogram	$MPS \square \square$ $(\square \square \square = 1 \text{ to } 256)$	Accessed from main programs	 Notion subprograms Sequence main programs* Sequence subprograms*

* Sequence program is supported by the CPU-03 at CPU-04.

- The program numbers of motion programs are managed in the same manner as the sequence program numbers. (See note.) Assign a unique number for each program number.
 - Program number of Motion program MPM DDD, MPS DDD
 - Program number of Sequence program SPM $\Box\Box\Box$, SPS $\Box\Box\Box$ (See note 1.)
 - Note: Sequence program is supported by the CPU-03 at CPU-04.
- The MP2200 can execute up to 16 motion programs simultaneously. An alarm (no system work error) will occur if 17 or more programs are executed simultaneously.
 - No system work error: Bit E of the leading word in the MSEE work registers

(1) Groups

A group of axes with related operations can be treated as one group by motion programs and programs can be executed for each group. This allows one MP2200 to independently control multiple machines using group operation. Group operation can be single group operation or multiple group operation.

Definitions for axes to be grouped together are made under Group Definitions.





(b) Multiple Group Operation



This section explains the Group Definition window.



① No. of Group

Set a number for the group operation. Set it to 1 for the single group operation. Set it to the number of group operation for the multiple group operation.

② Group Name

Define a group name.

③ Control Axis No.

Set the number of axes controlled in the group.

④ Circuit

Set a circuit number for the used motion module. The circuit number can be checked in the **Module Configuration** Window.

Slot Number	1	
Module Type	SVB01	V -
Circuit Number	01	
I/O Start Register	0000	
I/O End Register	OBFF	
Disable Input	Enable	•
Disable Output	Enable	-
Motion Start Register	8000	
Motion End Register	87FF	
Details	MECHATRO	DLINK
Status	Running	

Circuit number

S Axis No.

Set an axis number for the used axis.

The axis number can be checked in the detailed window of the used motion module.

is nui	nber		
Axis 1 Axis 1 Axis 2 Axis 3 Axis 4	SERVOPACK SGDS.***1** Version ters Setup Parameters SERVOPACK Monitor	- Module Details SVB-01 BA	Double-click
Axis 5 Axis 6	 Interview of operation modes 	Slot Number	
1	Function selection flag 1	Module Type	SVBOT
2	Function selection flag 2	Circuit Number	01
4	Reference unit selection	I/O Start Register	0800
5	Number of digits below decimal point	I/O End Register	OBFF
		Disable Input	Enable 🔻
		Disable Output	Enable 🔻
		Motion Start Register	8000
		Motion End Register	87FF
		Details	MECHATROLINK

Running

Status

6 Logical Axis Name

Define a name for the specified axis number.

The name defined here is used when programming a motion program.



(2) How to Run a Motion Program

The following two methods are available for running a motion program.

- · Executing programs using a MSEE command from a ladder program of H drawing
- Registering programs in the **Program definition** Tab Page of the **M-EXECUTOR** Window (Supported by CPU-03 and CPU-04.)

Now, this section explains each way to run a motion program:

[a] Executing H Drawings by MSEE Command

Motion programs are always called from H drawings using the MSEE command (motion program call command). Motion programs can be called from any parent, child, or grandchild drawing in an H drawing.

The following figure shows an example of motion program execution.



H drawing ladder commands are executed in hierarchical order i.e., parent drawings, child drawings, then grandchild drawings each high-speed scan cycle.

The above method is a preparation for running a motion program. When a MSEE command is built in, the motion program does not start up. To start up the motion program, after the MSEE command is incorporated, use a control signal to turn on the request for the program operation startup.

Motion programs are also called each scan cycle, but unlike ladder programs, all motion programs cannot be executed in one scan. For this reason, motion programs are executed and controlled by special system's motion management function.

Caution

When running a motion program, pay attention to the followings:

- Multiple motion programs with the same number cannot be executed using a MSEE command.
- A subroutine (MPS \square \square) cannot be executed from a MSEE command in a ladder.
 - It can only be referenced from a motion program (MPM $\Box\Box\Box$, MPS $\Box\Box\Box$).
- The same subroutine cannot be referenced at the same time.
- A motion program registered in M-EXECUTOR cannot be executed using a MSEE command (CPU-03/CPU-04).
- Sequence programs (SPM and SPS and SPS and cannot be executed using a MSEE command (CPU-03/CPU-04).

[b] Registering Programs in the M-EXECUTOR Program Execution Definitions (Supported by CPU-03 and CPU-04.)

After creating a motion program, register it in the **Program definition** Tab Page of the **M-EXECUTOR** Window. The programs registered in the **Program definition** Tab Page of the **M-EXECUTOR** Window are executed in ascending numeric order.

The execution example is shown in the figure below.



The above method is a preparation for running a motion program. When registered in the M-EXECUTOR program execution definition, a motion program does not start up. To start up the motion program, after the motion program registration, use a control signal to turn ON the request for the program operation startup.

The motion program registered in M-EXECUTOR is executed at a scan cycle, but similar to a ladder, the whole program cannot be executed at a single scan. In case of the motion program, a motion management function in the system carries out an execution control exclusive for the motion programs.

Caution

- When registering a motion program to M-EXECUTOR, pay attention to the followings:
- Multiple motion programs with the same number cannot be registered.
- Multiple motion programs with the same number cannot be referenced using an indirect designation.

(3) How to Designate a Motion Program

The following two methods are available for designating a motion program.

- Using a direct designation to call a motion program
- Using a indirect designation to call a motion program

Now, this section explains each way to designate a motion program.

[a] Using a Direct Designation to Call a Motion Program

A direct designation method designates a motion program to call using a program number (MPM $\Box\Box\Box$).

■ Motion Program Referenced by a MSEE Command from a Ladder Program

Set a program number to Program No. ($\Box\Box\Box\Box\Box$) in the MSEE command.



Fig. 5.1 Calling a Motion Program Using a Direct Designation -1

Motion Program Registered in M-EXECUTOR Program Execution Definitions (Supported by CPU-03 and CPU-04.)

Select *Direct* for the Setting and set a program number (MPM $\Box\Box\Box$).



Fig. 5.2 Calling a Motion Program Using a Direct Designation - 2

[b] Using an Indirect Designation to Call a Motion Program

An indirect designation method designates a motion program to call using a register. In this method, a program (MPM $\Box\Box\Box$) coinciding with value stored in the register is called.

■ Motion Program Referenced by a MSEE Command from a Ladder Program

Specify any register (M or D register) used for an indirect designation for Program No. in the MSEE command.



Fig. 5.3 Calling a Motion Program Using an Indirect Designation -1

Motion Program Registered in M-EXECUTOR Program Execution Definitions (Supported by CPU-03 and CPU-04.)

Select Indirect for the Setting. A register for the indirect designation is automatically mapped.



Fig. 5.4 Calling a Motion Program Using an Indirect Designation - 2

(4) Work Register

Configure and monitor a motion program via a work register.

The work register constitution for motion programs referenced by a MSEE command from a ladder program differs from that for motion programs registered in the M-EXECUTOR program execution definition. The work register constitution in each case is as follows:

Motion Program Executed by a MSEE Command from a Ladder Program

Use a MSEE command of a ladder program to designate the work register (M or D register). The work register constitution is as follows:

MSEE [W]Program No. [A]Data	Work register (designate M or D register)	
Work Register	Description	
First word	Status flag of a motion program	
Second word	Control signal of a motion program Override for interpolation System work number	
Third word		
Fourth word		

Motion Program Registered in M-EXECUTOR Program Execution Definitions (Supported by CPU-03 and CPU-04.)

The work register is assigned to a M-EXECUTOR control register. (automatically defined by system) The M-EXECUTOR control register constitution is as follows:

No.	lte	m	M-EXECUTOR Control register	
	Program number		OW0C00	
1	Status		IWOCOO	N/orly register
	Control signal		OWOC01	(automatically defined
	Override		OW0C02	by system)
M-EXECUTOR Control Register		Description		
00				
Statu	6	Status flag	of a motion program	
Status	s ol Signal	Status flag Control Si	g of a motion program gnal of a motion program	

For more information on the work register, refer to the subsequent pages.

[a] Status Flag of a Motion Program

The motion program status flag shows the execution status of the motion program. The following table shows details of status flag.

[Status Flag]

Bit No.	Status		
0	Program running		
1	Program paused		
2	Program stopped by stop request (used by system)		
3	(Reserved)		
4	Single program block operation stopped		
5	(Reserved)		
6	(Reserved)		
7	(Reserved)		
8	Program alarm		
9	Stopped by brake point		
А	(Reserved)		
В	In debug mode (EWS debugging operation)		
С	Program type 0: Motion program		
D	Start request signal history		
E	No system work error		
F	Main program number exceeded error		

• When program alarm has occurred, the error details of the motion program are stored in the error information window and S registers.

[b] Control Signal

Program control signals (e.g., program operation start requests and program stop requests) need to be entered to execute the motion program.

The following types of signals for controlling motion programs are available.

Bit No.	Signal Name	Signal Type
0	Program operation start request	Differential or NO contact input
1	Program pause request	NO contact
2	Program stop request	NO contact
3	Program single block mode selection	NO contact
4	Program single block start request	Differential or NO contact input
5	Alarm reset request	NO contact
6	Program continuous operation start request	Differential or NO contact input
7	(Reserved)	
8	Skip 1 information	NO contact
9	Skip 2 information	NO contact
А	(Reserved)	
В	(Reserved)	
С	(Reserved)	
D	System work number setting ^{*1}	NO contact
E	Override setting for interpolation ^{*2}	NO contact
F	(reserved)	

* 1. System work number setting

- When a motion program is registered in M-EXECUTOR:
 - Unable to designate it. The same system work number as No. defined in the system is used.
- When a motion program is called by a MSEE command from a ladder program: OFF: A system work automatically retrieved by system is used. The system work number may differ in each case.
 - ON: A work with the designated system work number is used. However, when a work occupied by M-EXECUTOR is designated, "BitE: No system work error" is reported to the status.
- * 2. Override setting for interpolation
 - OFF: 100% fixed at an override for interpolation
 - ON: Depends on the designated override for interpolation.

Use signals conforming to the above signal types when writing ladder programs.

Note: Motion programs are executed if the program operation start request signal is ON when the power is turned ON.

Timing Chart for Motion Program Control Signals

The following figure shows an example of a timing chart for motion program control signals.



Note: An alarm will occur if the stop request is turned ON during axis operation using a motion command.

[c] Interpolation Override

The override when executing interpolation move commands (setting; unit: 1 = 0.01%) is set. This interpolation override is enabled only when the motion program control signal bit E (interpolation override setting) is ON.

[d] System Work Number

If a motion program is executed by a ladder MSEE command, the system work number n (setting range: 1 to 16) used when executing motion programs can be set.

Note: System work numbers cannot be set for motion programs registered in the M-EXECUTOR detailed definition window (supported by CPU-03 and CPU-04).

■ System Works for M-EXECUTOR (Supported by CPU-03 and CPU-04)

The total number of system works of a motion program is 16 for both M-EXECUTOR and ladder. The number set for **Program definition number** in the M-EXECUTOR detailed definition window is the number of the system works for M-EXECUTOR.



- 1. A work not occupied by M-EXECUTOR can execute a motion program using a MSEE command from a ladder program.
- 2. When the number of a system work occupied by M-EXECUTOR is specified by a ladder program, an alarm (No system work error) occurs. Therefore, when the number of program definitions is set to 16 in the M-EXECUTOR detailed definition window, a motion program cannot be executed by a ladder MSEE command.
 - No system work error: Status flag Bit E of the motion program

(5) How to Operate a Work Register

The way to operate a work register of a motion program referenced by a MSEE command from a ladder program differs from that of a motion program registered in the M-EXECUTOR program execution definition. The way to operate it in each case is shown as follows:

[a] Motion Program Referenced by a MSEE Command from a Ladder Program

When a motion program is referenced by a MSEE command from a ladder program, the motion program is controlled by a sequence or ladder program.

To use this execution processing, incorporate a MSEE command in the ladder H drawing. In this case, MSEE work register configures and monitors the motion program.

The following figure shows a setting example in this method.



• For information about the meaning and estimation of the register number, refer to 5.3 Registers.

An example of using a ladder program to control motion program is provided on the next page.

Example using a ladder program



[b] Motion Program Registered in M-EXECUTOR Program Execution Definitions (Supported by CPU-03 and CPU-04.)

When a motion program is registered in M-EXECUTOR program execution definition, select one from the following two execution processings.

- A way to immediately control a motion program from external device
- A way to control a motion program via a sequence or ladder program

Now, this section explains each execution processing in the subsequent pages.

A Way to Immediately Control a Motion Program from External Device

M-EXECUTOR has a function which allocates any register to an M-EXECUTOR control register.

Using this function allows you to automatically exchange data between an M-EXECUTOR control register and an I/O register connected to an external device. This allows you to immediately control the motion program from the external device.

The following figure shows a setting example in this method.

Window for allocating the M-EXECUTOR register

No.	ltem	M-EXECUTOR Control register	Allocation Disable	Direction	Allocation register	Allocation Contact interlock
1	Program number	MPM001			a da	
	Status	IWOCOO	9	->	OW0000	IB00020
	Control signal	OWOC01		<-	IW0000	IB00020
	Override	OWOCO2		<-	IW0001	IB00020



- An allocation contact interlock is used to interlock the operation of a motion program. When setting an allocation register, be sure to set an allocation contact interlock.
 - It is processed, as shown below, by turning ON/OFF an allocation contact interlock:
 - When an allocation contact interlock contact is ON, data is exchanged between an allocation register and M-EXECUTOR control register at H scan cycle. Now, the motion program becomes executable.
 - When an allocation contact interlock is OFF, data is not exchanged between an allocation register and M-EXECUTOR control register. Now, the motion program becomes unexecutable.
 - When an allocation contact interlock is switched from ON to OFF while running a motion program, the running motion program stops and an axis in operation also stops. Now, the motion program falls into the alarm "1Bh: Executing an emergency stop command" state, and the status "Bit8: Program alarm is occurring" is turned ON.
 - Again, to execute a motion program, follow the procedure below for operation:
 - 1. Switch the interlock contact from OFF to ON.
 - 2. Turn ON a control signal "Bit5: Alarm reset request."
 - 3. Make sure that the status "Bit8: Program alarm is occurring" is turned OFF.
 - 4. Turn OFF the control signal "Bit5: Alarm reset request."
 - 5. Turn ON a control signal "Bit0: Request for the program operation startup."

A Way to Control a Motion Program via a Sequence or Ladder Program

Without using the allocating function of the above mentioned M-EXECUTOR control register, controls a motion program via a sequence or ladder program.

To use this execution processing, save the blank Allocation register and the blank Allocation interlock contact as a blank.

In this case, set and monitor the motion program by using the M-EXECUTOR control register configures. The following figure shows a setting example in this method.

M-EXECUTOR program execution definition

No.	ltem	M-EXECUTOR Control register	Allocation Disable	Direction	Allocation register	Allocation Contact interlock
٦	Program number	MPM001				
	Status	IW0C00	100	->		
	Control signal	OWOC01		<-		
	Override	OW0C02		<-		
				Sav	e the allocation reg lock contact as a b	jister and the mapping



Each example which uses a sequence program and ladder program respectively as a program for controlling the motion program is shown as follows:

1. Example using a sequence program

OB80000 = IB00000; OB0C010 = PON(IB00001 DB000000); OB0C011 = IB00002; OB0C012 = IB00003; OB0C015 = IB00004; OB8000F = IB00005; IF NON(IB0C000 DB000001) == 1; ; IEND;	"axis 1 servo on" "program start" "hold" "program stop" "alarm reset" "Turn ON a single axis servo" "Is the program operation OFF?" "Process when program operation is stopped"
END;	

2. Example using a ladder program



(6) Monitor the Motion Program Execution Information using S register

Using S register (SW03200 to SW04191) allows you to monitor the motion program execution information. The way to monitor the execution information for a motion program referenced by an MSEE command from a ladder program differs from that for a motion program registered in the M-EXECUTOR program execution definition (supported by CPU-03 and CPU-04).

The way to monitor it in each case is shown as follows:

[a] Motion Program Referenced by an MSEE Command from a Ladder Program

When a motion program is referenced by an MSEE command from a ladder program, the way differs, depending on the "BitD" setting (system work number setting) of the motion program control signal, as follows:

■ The motion program control signal "BitD, System Work Number Setting" = ON

The execution information is reported to "Program Information Using Work n" register (SW03264-SW04191). For example, when "System Work Number"=1, the motion program execution information can be monitored in SW03264-SW03321 "Program Information Using Work 1".

■ The motion program control signal "BitD, System Work Number Setting" = OFF

The used system work is automatically decided by system. Thus, to check which work is used, refer to "Running Program Number" (=SW03200 to SW03215).

For example, when you want to monitor the motion program MPM001 and SW03202=001, as used the work number=3, the execution information for the motion program MPM001 can be monitored in "Program Information Using Work 3" (=SW03380 to SW03437).

[b] Motion Program Registered in M-EXECUTOR Program Execution Definitions (Supported by CPU-03 and CPU-04.)

When a motion program is registered in the M-EXECUTOR program execution definition, the same system work number as the definition No. is used.

For example, a motion program is registered as "Definition No." =3, the used system work number is "System Work"=3. In this case, the execution information for the motion program can be monitored in "Program Information Using Work 3" (=SW03380 to SW03437).

For more information on the register area of the motion program execution information, refer to the subsequent pages.
5.2.3 Motion Programs

Register	Areas	for	Motion	Program	Execution	Information
				- 0 -		

Motion program execution information

SW03200	Executing program numb (No. of main program curre executing)	per ently 16W
SW03216	Reserved by the system.	16W
SW03232	Executing Program Bit (Executing when correspond bit is ON)	ding 16W
SW03248	Reserved by the system.	16W
SW03264	Program information used by work 1	58W
SW03322	Program information used by work 2	58W
SW03380	Program information used by work 3	58W
SW03438	Program information used by work 4	58W
SW03496	Program information used by work 5	58W
SW03554	Program information used by work 6	58W
SW03612	Program information used by work 7	58W
SW03670	Program information used by work 8	58W
SW03728	Program information used by work 9	58W
SW03786	Program information used by work 10	58W
SW03844	Program information used by work 11	58W
SW03902	Program information used by work 12	58W
SW03960	Program information used by work 13	58W
SW04018	Program information used by work 14	58W
SW04076	Program information used by work 15	58W
SW04134	Program information used by work 16	58W
SW04192		02014/
	Reserved by the system.	928W
SW05120	Reserved by the system.	64W

	Executing program number
SW03200	Program number used by work 1
SW03201	Program number used by work 2
SW03202	Program number used by work 3
SW03203	Program number used by work 4
SW03204	Program number used by work 5
SW03205	Program number used by work 6
SW03206	Program number used by work 7
SW03207	Program number used by work 8
SW03208	Program number used by work 9
SW03209	Program number used by work 10
SW03210	Program number used by work 11
SW03211	Program number used by work 12
SW03212	Program number used by work 13
SW03213	Program number used by work 14
SW03214	Program number used by work 15
SW03215	Program number used by work 16
ì	

``````````````````````````````````````	Executing program bit
SW03232	MPD016 (Bit15) to MPD001 (Bit0)
SW03233	MPD032 (Bit15) to MPD017 (Bit0)
SW03234	MPD048 (Bit15) to MPD033 (Bit0)
SW03235	MP□054 (Bit15) to MP□049 (Bit0)
SW03236	MPD080 (Bit15) to MPD055 (Bit0)
SW03237	MP□096 (Bit15) to MP□081 (Bit0)
SW03238	MPD112 (Bit15) to MPD097 (Bit0)
SW03239	MPD128 (Bit15) to MPD113 (Bit0)
SW03240	MP□144 (Bit15) to MP□129 (Bit0)
SW03241	MPD160 (Bit15) to MPD145 (Bit0)
SW03242	MPD176 (Bit15) to MPD161 (Bit0)
SW03243	MPD192 (Bit15) to MPD177 (Bit0)
SW03244	MPD208 (Bit15) to MPD193 (Bit0)
SW03245	MPD224 (Bit15) to MPD209 (Bit0)
SW03246	MPD240 (Bit15) to MPD225 (Bit0)
SW03247	MPD256 (Bit15) to MPD241 (Bit0)

Note: 
I indicates M or S.

5.2.3 Motion Programs

Program status		_	
Program control signal			Executing program number
Parallel 0 information	3W		Executing block number
Parallel 1 information	3W		Error code
Parallel 2 information	3W		
Parallel 3 information	3W		
Parallel 4 information	3W		
Parallel 5 information	3W		
Parallel 6 information	3W		
Parallel 7 information	3W		
ogical axis #1 program current position	2W		
ogical axis #2 program current position	2W		
ogical axis #3 program current position	2W		
ogical axis #4 program current position	2W		
ogical axis #5 program current position	2W		
ogical axis #6 program current position	2W		
ogical axis #7 program current position	2W		
ogical axis #8 program current position	2W		
ogical axis #9 program current position	2W		
ogical axis #10 program current positior	12W		
ogical axis #11 program current position	2W		
ogical axis #12 program current position	12W		
ogical axis #13 program current positior	2W	1	
ogical axis #14 program current positior	12W	1	
ogical axis #15 program current positior	12W		
ogical axis #16 program current positior	2W	1	

#### 5.2.4 Sequence Program (Supported by CPU-03 and CPU-04.)

A sequence program is a program described with motion language of text format. The following table shows two types of sequence programs.

Category	Designation Method	Features	Number of Programs	
Main program	SPM□□□ (□□□=1 to 256)	Calling from the M-EXECUTOR program execution definition	Up to 256 programs of the following types can be created:	
Subprogram	SPS□□□ (□□□=1 to 256)	Calling from the main program	<ul> <li>Motion main program</li> <li>Motion subprogram</li> <li>Sequence main program</li> <li>Sequence subprogram</li> </ul>	

- The program numbers of sequence programs are managed in the same manner as the motion program numbers. Assign a different number for each program number.
  - Motion program MPM DD: Program number of MPS DD
  - Sequence program SPMDDD: Program number of SPSDDD

#### (1) How to Run a Sequence Program

A sequence program is executed by registering it in the M-EXECUTOR program execution definition. Sequence programs are executed in ascending numeric order.

The following figure shows an execution example.



When the execution type is set to "Sequence program (H scan)" or "Sequence program (L scan)", the program is executed at the time the definition is saved. When the execution type is set to Sequence program (Start), the program is executed when the power supply is turned ON again next time.

5.2.4 Sequence Program (Supported by CPU-03 and CPU-04.)

#### (2) How to Designate a Sequence Program

You can only designate a sequence program directly. Indirect designation is unavailable. Use the program number (SPMDDD) when designating a sequence program to execute.





#### (3) Work Register

Monitor a sequence program through a work register.

A work register, similar to the motion program registered in M-EXECUTOR, has status flags in the M-EXECUTOR control register.

The following table shows the work register configuration of the sequence program.

Work Register	Content
Status	Status flag of a sequence program

#### [a] Status Flag of Sequence Program

The status flags of a sequence program allow you to know the execution status of the sequence program. The following table explains the detailed contents of status flags. [Status]

Bit No.	Status
0	Program running
1	(Reserved)
2	(Reserved)
3	(Reserved)
4	(Reserved)
5	(Reserved)
6	(Reserved)
7	(Reserved)
8	Program alarm is occurring
9	Stopping at breakpoint
А	(Reserved)
В	In debug mode (EWS debug operation)
С	Program type 1: Sequence program
D	Start request history
E	(Reserved)
F	(Reserved)

#### Sequence program alarm

When referencing a sequence subprogram (SSEE command execution) and an error is detected, "Bit8: Program alarm is occurring" is turned ON. If the error is cleared, it is turned OFF. Error details are as follows:

Error Details
Called program is unregistered
Called program is not a sequence program
Called program is not a sub program (main program is called)
Called program number is over
Nest over error

5.3.1 Types of Registers

# 5.3 Registers

This section describes the types of registers used in MP2200 user programs (mainly ladder programs) and how to use them.

#### 5.3.1 Types of Registers

#### (1) DWG Registers

Registers used by ladder programs (ladder drawings; DWG). Each drawing can use the registers outlined in the following table.

Туре	Name	Specification Method	Range	Details	Characteristics
S	System registers	SB, SW, SL, SFnnnnn (SAnnnnn)	SW00000 to SW08191	Registers provided by the system. SW00000 to SW00049 are cleared to all zeros when the system starts.	
М	Data registers	MB, MW, ML, MFnnnnn (MAnnnnn)	MW00000 to MW65534	Registers shared by all drawings. Used, e.g., as an interface between drawings.	Common to all
I	Input registers	IB, IW, IL, IFhhhh (IAhhhh)	IW0000 to IW7FFF	Registers used for input data.	drawings
0	Output registers	OB, OW, OL, OFhhhh (OAhhhh)	OW0000 to OW7FFF	Registers used for output data.	
С	Constants regis- ters	CB, CW, CL, CFnnnnn (CAnnnn)	CW00000 to CW16383	Registers that can only be called from programs.	
#	# registers	#B, #W, #L, #Fnnnnn (#Annnn)	#W00000 to #W16383	Call-only registers Can be called only by corre- sponding drawing. The usage range is set by the user using MPE720.	Unique to each
D	D registers	DB, DW, DL, DFnnnnn (DAnnnn)	DW00000 to DW16383	Internal registers unique to each drawing. Can be used only by corresponding drawing. The usage range is set by the user using MPE720.	drawing

Note: 1. n: Decimal number; h: Hexadecimal number

- 2. B, W, L, F, and A: Data type (B: Bit, W: Integer, L: Double-length integer, F: Real number, A: Address. Refer to *5.3.2 Data Types.*)
- Up to 32 D registers (32 words, DW0000 to DW0031) can be used when creating drawings, but this can be changed in the MPE720 Drawings Properties Window. Refer to the Machine Controller MP900/MP2000 Series User's Manual MPE720 Software for Programming Device (manual no.: SIEP C880700 05) or, refer to Engineering Tool for MP2000 Series Machine Controller MPE720 Version 6 User's Manual (manual no.: SIEP C880700 30) for details.
- 4. S and M register data has a battery backup to ensure the data is held even if the MP2200 power is turned OFF and ON. Other register data is saved to flash memory, so when the MP2200 power is turned OFF to ON, data saved to flash memory is read and data not saved to flash memory is lost. It is recommended, therefore, that data to be held regardless of whether or not the power is turned OFF to ON should be written to M registers if possible.

#### (2) Function Registers

The following table shows the registers that can be used with each function.

Туре	Name	Specification Method	Range	Details	Characteristics	
x	Function input regis- ters	XB, XW, XL, XFnnnnn	XW00000 to XW00016	Input to functions Bit input: XB000000 to XB00000F Integer input: XW00001 to XW00016 Double-length integer input: XL00001 to XL00015		
Y	Function output reg- isters	YB, YW, YL, YFnnnnn	YW00000 to YW00016	Output from functions Bit output: YB000000 to YB00000F Integer output: YW00001 to YW00016 Double-length integer output: YL00001 to YL00015		
z	Internal function registers	ZB, ZW, ZL, ZFnnnnn	ZW0000 to ZW00063	Internal registers unique to each function Can be used for function internal process- ing.	Unique to each	
A	External function registers	AB, AW, AL, AFhhhh	AW0000 to AW32767	External registers with the address input value as the base address. For linking with S, M, I, O, #, and DAnnnnn.	function	
#	# registers	#B, #W, #L, #Fnnnnn (#Annnnn)	#W00000 to #W16383	Call-only registers Can be called only from the relevant func- tion. The usage range is set by the user using MPE720.		
D	D registers	DB, DW, DL, DFnnnnn (DAnnnnn)	DW00000 to DW16383	Internal registers unique to each function. Can be called only the relevant function. The usage range is set by the user using MPE720.		
S	System registers	SB, SW, SL, SFnnnnn (SAnnnn)				
М	Data registers	MB, MW, ML, MFnnnnn (MAnnnnn)	Same as DWG registers.			
I	Input registers	IB, IW, IL, IFhhhh (IAh- hhh)	Note: These registers are shared by drawings and functions. Pay attention to how these registers are to be used when calling the same function from drawing of a different priority level.			
0	Output registers	OB, OW, OL, OFhhhh (OAhhhh)				
С	Constants registers	CB, CW, CL, CFnnnnn (CAnnnn)				

Note: 1. n: Decimal number; h: Hexadecimal number

2. B, W, L, F, and A: Data type (B: Bit, W: Integer, L: Double-length integer, F: Real number, A: Address. Refer to *5.3.2 Data Types.*)

3. SA, MA, IA, OA, DA, #A, and CA registers can be used within functions.

5.3.1 Types of Registers

#### (3) Register Ranges in Programs

The following figure shows DWG programs, function programs, and register call ranges.



- (1): Registers that are common to all drawings can be called from any drawing or function.
- (2): Registers that are unique to each drawing can be called only from within the drawing.
- (3): Registers that are unique to each function can be called only from within the function.
- (4): Registers that are common to all drawings and registers that are unique to each drawing can be called from functions using the external function registers.

## 5.3.2 Data Types

There are five kinds of data: Bit, integer, double-length integer, real number, and address data. Each is used differently depending on the application. Address data, however, is used only inside functions when specifying pointers. The following table shows the types of data.

Туре	Data types	Numeric Value Range	Remarks
В	Bit	ON, OFF	Used by relay circuits.
W	Integer	-32768 to +32767 (8000H) (7FFFH)	Used for numeric value operations. The values in paren- theses ( ) are for use with logical operations.
L	Double-length integer	-2147483648 to +2147483647 (80000000H) (7FFFFFFH)	Used for numeric value operations. The values in paren- theses () are for use with logical operations.
F	Real number	± (1.175E-38 to 3.402E+38), 0	Used for numeric value operations.
A	Address	0 to 32767	Used only when specifying pointers.

A digit to indicate the bit (6) is added to



(00102) and the next number (00103) are included. Therefore, every second number is used.



Overview of System Operation

5.3.3 How to Use Subscripts i, j

#### 5.3.3 How to Use Subscripts i, j

Two type of registers (i, j) are available as dedicated registers to modify the relay and register numbers. Both i and j have the same function. They are used when you want to handle a register number as a variable. An example for each register data type is given as explanation.

#### (1) Bit Type Attached with a Subscript



#### (2) Integer Type Attached with a Subscript



The result is a relay number added with i or j value. For example, MB000000i for i=2 is the same as MB000002. Also, MB000000j for j=27 is the same as MB00001B.

The result is a register number added with i or j value. For example, MW00010i for i=3 is the same as MW00013. Also, MW00001j for j=30 is the same as MW00031.

#### (3) Double-length Integer or Real Number Type Attached with a Subscript

Long integer type	Upper word MW00001	Lower word MW00000
ML00000j for j = 0: ML00000		
	MW00002	MW00001
ML00000j for j = 1: ML00001		
Real type	Upper word	Lower word
	MW00001	MW00000
MF00000j for j = 0: MF00000		
	MW00002	MW00001
MF00000j for j = 1: MF00001		

Program example using subscript



The result is a register number with an added i or j value.

For example, "ML00000j for j=1" is the same as ML00001. Also, "MF00000j for j=1" is the same as MF00001.

However, as a word indicated by a register number is the lower word for a double-length integer/real number type, for the same ML00001 and MF00001, be aware that an upper/lower word of ML00001 and MF00001 for j=0 may differ from those of. ML00001 and MF00001 for j=1.

The left program uses a subscript j and calculates the total amount of a hundred registers from MW00100 to MW00199, and stores the total amount in MW00200.

## 5.3.4 Register Designation

Registers can be specified directly by register number or by symbol (register name). A combination of both of these register designation methods can be used in ladder programs.

When using the symbol specification method, the relationship between symbols and register numbers must be defined. The following table shows the register specification methods.

Designation Method	Designation Example for Each Data Type				
Register Number Direct Designation	Bit register: Integer register: Double-length integer register: Real number register: Address register: X: When specifying subscripts, sul	MB00100AX MW00100X ML00100X MF00100X MA00100X oscript i or j is added after the register number.			
Symbol Designation	Bit register: Integer register: Double-length integer registers: Real number registers: Address registers: X: When specifying subscripts, a p meric characters max.) and then a s	RESET1-A.X STIME-H.X POS-REF.X IN-DEF.X <u>PID-DATA.X</u> ↓ 8 alphanumeric characters max. beriod (.) is added after the symbol (8 alphanu- subscript i or j is added.			





# 5.4 Self-configuration

The self-configuration function automatically recognizes the Optional Modules mounted to the MP2200 Basic Module and all slave data for slaves connected to the MECHATROLINK network, and automatically generates a definition file. Self-configuration greatly simplifies the procedure needed to start the system.

Refer to 5.4.2 Definition Information Updated with Self-Configuration for items that are automatically generated.



5.4.1 How to Execute Self-Configuration

#### 5.4.1 How to Execute Self-Configuration

The following two methods are available for executing the self-configuration.

- Execute the self-configuration (from DIP switch)
- Execute the self configuration (from MPE720)

Now, this section explains each way to execute the self-configuration:

#### (1) Procedure Using the DIP Switch

The following two methods are available for executing the self-configuration.

- When executing the self-configuration first time after connecting a device
- · When executing the self-configuration after adding devices such as SERVOPACKs

Self-configuration can be executed from the Basic Module DIP switch. Now, this section explains each way to execute the self-configuration:

#### [a] When Executing the Self-Configuration First Time after Connecting a Device

By performing the operation below, the self-configuration for all modules is newly executed, and all new definition files are created.

Before performing the operation, turn ON the power supply of a device such as SERVOPACK.

#### Caution

Note that this operation can clear the following data in MP2200.

• All definition files, all user programs, and all registers



# Overview of System Operation

ວ

5.4.1 How to Execute Self-Configuration

#### [b] When Executing the Self-Configuration after Adding Devices Such as SERVOPACKs

By performing the following operation, a definition for an axis newly detected in the MECHATROLINK transmission is created. The definitions for already mapped axes are not updated.

Before performing the operation, turn ON the power supply of devices such as SERVOPACK.



Note: Since a register mapping was manually changed after the self-configuration was last executed last time, input/output addresses may be changed by executing subsequent self-configurations. Also, when SVR is set to Disable, SVR may be reset to Enable. To retain the changed register mapping, etc., manually map a register to the additional devices instead of using self-configuration, and then update the definition file.

#### INIT Switch and RAM Data

RAM data will be cleared if the INIT switch of the DIP switch on the MP2200 Basic Module is ON and the power is turned ON. Flash memory data is read and overwritten when the INIT switch is OFF and the power is turned ON. Therefore, to protect RAM data, always save data to the MP2200 flash memory before turning OFF the power when writing or editing programs.

#### Turning OFF Power After Executing Self-configuration

Do not turn OFF the 24-VDC or 100/200-VAC power supply to the MP2200 after executing self-configuration until the definitions data has been saved to flash memory in the MP2200. If the power is somehow turned OFF before the data is saved to flash memory, re-execute the self-configuration.

#### (2) Procedure Using MPE720

Executing self-configuration from MPE720 allows self-configuration for individual Modules as well as for all modules.

When self-configuration is carried out from MPE720, a definition for any axis newly detected in the MECHA-TROLINK transmission is created. The definitions for already mapped axes are not updated.

This section explains each way to execute the self-configuration:

#### [a] Self-configuration for All the Modules

By performing the following operation, the self-configuration for MP2200 Basic Units and Optional Modules is executed.

Before performing the operation, turn ON the power supply of devices such as SERVOPACK.

#### 1. Double-click System - Module configuration.



The Engineering Manager Window will open and the Module Configuration Window will appear.

2. Select Order - Self Configure All Modules to execute self-configuration.

🔙 Engineerin	g Mana	ger - [Module Configuratio
E File View	Order	Window
PT#: 3 CPU	Res	et Module
	Self	Configure All Modules
Select Rack	Mod	ule Self Configuration
Rack 1	Enabl	e v
0.10	D2 1	

**3.** Click **Yes** for the following message.



5.4.1 How to Execute Self-Configuration

4. While running the self-configuration, the following message is shown.



**5.** If the following warning message is shown after performing step 4, the module configuration definitions for CPU and MPE720 may differ from each other. Continue to perform step 6. When the message is not shown, go to step 9.



6. Select Online(O) - Read from Controller(A).

Eile	Edit	⊻iew	<u>O</u> nli	ine	<u>C</u> ompile	<u>D</u> ebug	<u>W</u> indow	Help
Online	MP2	200-0:	g	Disco	nnection	Ļ		
<b>Setup</b> System	<b>Prog</b> Sca	gramm ntime se		<u>1</u> 3:E <u>2</u> 5:L	ithernet( ISB Addr	LP) IP192 ess1	.168.1.1	lity
oystem ट्री			•	Comr	municatio	ns S <u>e</u> tting	J	
= []]] [MP2	200-03	3]	⊳	CPU	<u>r</u> un			
Handrand H Handrand Handrand Handr	idule c is con	onfigur figurati		CPU	<u>s</u> top			oject
⊡	ope		à	<u>W</u> rite	e into Cor	ntroller		
		<	- M	Read	l from Ca	ntroller		10.2
			2	Save	to <u>F</u> lash	iu.		pen
			ъ	<u>T</u> ran:	sfer			lose
			•	<u>O</u> nlin	e Securit	y Setting.	18	
				Cont	roller Inf	ormation.		

7. Click Individual, and only check Module configuration.



**8.** Click **Start** to read the module configuration definition from a controller.

Transfer Program - Read from Co	ontroller
Target Proje	ect File : MP2200-03 (test22-03.YMW)
Start	0%
🚱 Batch 🔂 Individual	Save to flash after transferring to the controller.
System Configuration     Program     Register     Comment	System definition Scan time definition Module configuration Data trace Options Close

9. Click the Save & FLASH Save Button to flash save the definition information.

Engineering Manager - [Module Configuration MP2200-03 Online						
File View Order V	Window					
▋D₽₽₽	X @ C ∽   M   ] ‼et B	₽ ₽ ₽				

**10.** Check that the definition is successfully created in the **Module Configuration** Window.

5.4.1 How to Execute Self-Configuration

#### [b] Self Configuration of Each Module

If modules or devices are added, self-configuration can be executed separately for the Module (port) that has been changed.

By performing the following operation, self-configuration will be executed for the selected slot. Before performing the operation, turn ON the power supply of devices such as SERVOPACK.

#### 1. Double-click System - Module configuration.

ାଟ୍ଟା		*	д	×
	2200-03]			
-<###M ⊕⊕e⊒ A:	odule confie xis confieur	guration : ation	>	
a terminal sector of the secto				
🖳 🕀 🔂 So	cope			
L-⊞ 🔂 So	cope			
L⊞ÈSo	соре			

The Engineering Manager Window will start and the Module Configuration Window will appear.

**2.** Right-click the Module for which devices have been added and select **Module Self Configuration** from the pop menu to execute self-configuration.

Engineering	Manager - [Mod	lule Configuratior	MP2200-03 Online Local]
📕 File View	Order Window		
□∎@	<b>d"</b>     ] X 🗈	<b>₽</b> ∽   <b>M</b>   ]¶	3. Em E# ¦A   @° R08
PT#: 3 CPU#	: 1		
Select Rack	Enable/Disable	2	
Rack 1	Enable	-	
Rack 2	Disable	•	
Rack 3	Disable	•	
Rack 4	Disable 🔹	·	
- Controller			
Rack 1 Rac	k 2   Rack 3   Rac	ok 4	
Slot Numb	oer 00	01	Open Slot
Module Ty Status	rpe CPU-03 Running	Running	Module Name Setting MECHATROLINK Scan Time Setting
JSVB-01: SVB d	ligital network servo	control functions.	System Configuration Delete Slot
- Module Details	SVB-01 RACK#0	1 SLOT#01	Register Auto Allocation
Slot Nu	umber	1	Line Number Auto Assignment
Module Circuit N	e Type SVE Jumber 01	301 •	Module Self Configuration

**3.** Click **Yes** for the following message.

Module Configur	ation	×
Execute Self Cor	nfiguration.	OK?
Yes	No	

**4.** While running the self-configuration, the following message is shown.

×
STOP

**5.** If the following warning message is shown after performing step 4, the module configuration definitions for CPU and MPE720 may differ from each other. Continue to perform step 6. When the message is not shown, go to step 9.

Module C	Configuration	×
$\triangle$	Some modules in the module configuration are different between controller and Engin Please transfer the module configuration from Controller to Engineering Tool.	eering Tool.
	ОК	

6. Select Online(O) - Read from Controller(A).

MPE720 Ver.6 - [MP:	2200 Onli	1-03	] - [Start Compile	] Debug	Window	н
	9	<u>D</u> is 	connection	LP) IP192	.168.1.1	6
:		25	:USB Addr	ess1		
Online MP2200-03 Setup Programm	♦	Cor — CPL	nmunicatio J RUN	ins S <u>e</u> tting	]	lity
System Scantime se System		CPU	_ J <u>S</u> TOP			
	ш Ъ	<u>W</u> ri Reș	ite into Cor ad from Co	ntroller		
	5	Sav <u>T</u> ra	ve to <u>F</u> lash nsfer			oje
	•	<u>O</u> nl Cor	line Securit htroller <u>I</u> nf	y Setting. ormation.	•:	le: pe

5.4.1 How to Execute Self-Configuration

7. Click Individual, and only check Module configuration.

$\triangleright$	Target Project File : MI	IP2310 (2310T.YMW)		
<u>S</u> tart		09	%	
Batch System Co Program Register Comment	Individual 5a	ive to flash after transferr System definition Sean time definition Module configuration Data trace	ring to the controller.	

8. Click Start to read the module configuration definition from a controller.

Transfer Program - Read from Co	ntroller
Target Project	t File : MP2310 (2310T.YMW)
Start	0%
🔁 Batch 🛛 🔁 Individual	Save to flash after transferring to the controller.
System Configuration     Program     Register     Comment	System definition Scan time definition Module configuration Data trace Options Close

9. Click the Save & FLASH Save Button to flash save the definition information.



**10.** In the **Module Configuration** Window, check that the definition has been created.

#### 5.4.2 Definition Information Updated with Self-Configuration

Now, the definition information updated during executing the self-configuration and the module configuration definition example based on the module combination are as follows:

#### (1) Definition Information of CPU-01 and CPU-02 Module

#### [a] I/O Allocations

Item		Allocation				
SVR	Motion Parameter	The last circuit number of the Motion Module will be allocated, and the input and output registers will be allocated according to the results. Example 1: SVA-01, SVB-01, SVC-01, and PO-1 Not Mounted • Start motion register: IW8000/OW8000 • End motion register: IW87FF/OW87FF (Input register: IW8000 to IW87FF Output register: OW8000 to OW87FF) Example 2: One SVB-01 Mounted • Start motion register: IW8800/OW8800 • End motion register: IW88FF/OW8FFF (Input register: IW8800 to IW8FFF Output register: IW8800 to IW8FFF				

5.4.2 Definition Information Updated with Self-Configuration

#### [b] SVR Definition

Туре	No.	Name	Allocation
	0	Selection of Operation Modes	Axis unused
	1	Function Selection Flag 1	0000h
	4	Reference Unit Selection	pulse
	5	Number of Digits below Decimal Point	3
	6	Travel Distance per Machine Rotation	10000 reference unit
Fixed Parameter	8	Servo Motor Gear Ratio	1 rev (rotation)
T INCU F di diffetei	9	Machine Gear Ratio	1 rev (rotation)
	10	Infinite Length Axis Reset Position (POSMAX)	360000 reference unit
	34	Rated Motor Speed	3000 min ⁻¹
	36	Number of Pulses per Motor Rotation	65536 pulse/rev
	42	Feedback Speed Movement Averaging Time Constant	10 ms
	OW□□00	RUN Command Setting	0000h
	OW□□03	Function Setting 1	0011h
	OWDD08	Motion Command	0: No command
	OW□□09	Motion Command Control Flag	0000h
	OW□□0A	Motion Subcommand	0: No command
	OLDD0C	Torque/Thrust Reference Setting	0.00 %
	OL <b>□□</b> 10	Speed Reference Setting	$3000 \times 10^{**}$ n reference unit/min
	OL□□16	Secondly Speed Compensation	0.00 %
	OLDD1C	Position Reference Setting	0 reference unit
	OW□□31	Speed Compensation	0.00 %
Setting Parameter	OL□□36	Straight Line Acceleration/ Acceleration Time Constant	0 ms
	OL□□38	Straight Line Deceleration/ Deceleration Time Constant	0 ms
	OW□□3A	Filter Time Constant	0.0 ms
	OW□□3B	Bias Speed for Index Deceleration/ Acceleration Filter	0 reference unit/s
	OW□□3D	Width of Starting Point Position Output	100 reference unit
	OLDD44	STEP Travel Distance	1000 reference unit
	OL□□48	Zero Point Position in Machine Coordinate System Offset	0 reference unit
	OLDD4A	Work Coordinate System Offset	0 reference unit
	OL□□4C	Number of POSMAX Turns Presetting Data	0 turn
	OW□□5C	Fixed Parameter Number	0

#### (2) Definition Information of CPU-03 and CPU-04 Module

#### [a] I/O Allocations

	Item	Allocation
SVR	Motion Parameter	The last circuit number of the Motion Module will be allocated, and the input and output registers will be allocated according to the results. Example 1: SVA-01, SVB-01, SVC-01, and PO-1 Not Mounted • Start motion register: IW8000/OW8000 • End motion register: IW87FF/OW87FF (Input register: IW8000 to IW87FF Output register: OW8000 to OW87FF) Example 2: One SVB-01 Mounted • Start motion register: IW8800/OW8800 • End motion register: IW8FFF/OW8FFF (Input register: IW8800 to IW8FFF Output register: IW8800 to IW8FFF
	218IFA/218IFC	<ul> <li>Start I/O register: IW0000/OW0000</li> <li>End I/O register: IW07FF/OW07FF (Input register: IW0000 to IW07FF Output register: OW0000 to OW07FF)</li> </ul>
	M-EXECUTOR	UNDEFINED

5.4.2 Definition Information Updated with Self-Configuration

#### [b] SVR Definition

Туре	No.	Name	Allocation
	0	Selection of Operation Modes	Axis unused
	1	Function Selection Flag 1	0000h
	4	Reference Unit Selection	pulse
	5	Number of Digits below Decimal Point	3
	6	Travel Distance per Machine Rotation	10000 reference unit
Fixed Parameter	8	Servo Motor Gear Ratio	1 rev (rotation)
	9	Machine Gear Ratio	1 rev (rotation)
	10	Infinite Length Axis Reset Position (POSMAX)	360000 reference unit
	34	Rated Motor Speed	3000 min ⁻¹
	36	Number of Pulses per Motor Rotation	65536 pulse/rev
	42	Feedback Speed Movement Averaging Time Constant	10 ms
	OW□□00	RUN Command Setting	0000h
	OW□□03	Function Setting 1	0011h
	OW□□08	Motion Command	0: No command
	OW□□09	Motion Command Control Flag	0000h
	OWDD0A	Motion Subcommand	0: No command
	OLDD0C	Torque/Thrust Reference Setting	0.00 %
	OLDD10	Speed Reference Setting	$3000 \times 10^{n}$ reference unit/min
	OLDD16	Secondly Speed Compensation	0.00 %
	OLDD1C	Position Reference Setting	0 reference unit
Setting Parameter	OW□□31	Speed Compensation	0.00 %
octang r drameter	OLDD36	Straight Line Acceleration/ Acceleration Time Constant	0 ms
	OLDD38	Straight Line Deceleration/ Deceleration Time Constant	0 ms
	OW□□3A	Filter Time Constant	0.0 ms
	OW□□3B	Bias Speed for Index Deceleration/ Acceleration Filter	0 reference unit/s
	OW□□3D	Width of Starting Point Position Output	100 reference unit
	OLDD44	STEP Travel Distance	1000 reference unit
	OLDD48	Zero Point Position in Machine Coordinate System Offset	0 reference unit
	OLDD4A	Work Coordinate System Offset	0 reference unit
	OL□□4C	Number of POSMAX Turns Presetting Data	0 turn
	OW□□5C	Fixed Parameter Number	0

#### [c] 218IFA/218IFC Definition

Item	Allocation
IP Address	192.168.1.1
Subnet Mask	255.255.255.0
Gateway IP Address	0.0.0.0
Equipment Name	"CONTROLLER NAME"
Engineering Port	9999 (UDP)
Response Time (Check & Monitor Time of MEMOBUS response)	0 s
Count or Retry	0

Note: The self-configuration allows you to connect with MPE720 for engineering transmission. In order to carry out MEMOBUS message transmission, manually use an automatic reception and I/O message communication separately, or MSG-SND/MSG-RCV functions are required.

#### [d] M-EXECUTOR Definition

Note: M-EXECUTOR is not defined for use with the MP2200. For details on how to define the M-EXECUTOR, refer to 7.3.1 *Initializing the M-EXECUTOR Module*.

5.5.1 Setting or Changing User Definition Files

## 5.5 Application Precautions

This section explains precautions when a user definition file is configured/changed and when setting a scan time.

#### 5.5.1 Setting or Changing User Definition Files

System settings, scan time settings, and module configuration definitions must be saved in flash memory (flash save). When a system setting, scan time setting, or module configuration definition is configured/changed, be sure to use MPE720 to flash save it. Note that when the MP2200 power supply is turn ON again without flash saving, the configured/changed data may be lost.

• System Setting

Security Setup Scan Time Setting Ladder Motion C language Variable Monitor Transfer Print	System Setting Write Butect PCI Reset Signal D Register Clear when Start Battery Connection Keep Latest Value(Number of s when abnormal input) High-speed Input Low-speed Input Calender Setting Date and Time	Writable   Disable   Disable   Connect   Scan of keep latest value   2   scan (1 to 255)   2   scan (1 to 255)	
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------	----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------	----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------	--

• Scan Time Setting

System Security	- High speed Scan					
Setup System Setting Scan Time Setting Ladder Motion Clanguage Variable Monitor Transfer Print	Setting Value Current Value Maximum Value Low-speed Scan — Setting Value Current Value Maximum Value Maximum Value 1. The erro 3. Wh SVI resi rec	10.0 0.0 1.7 200.0 0.0 0.1 e operation of en change to ase do not s or occurs. ten high-spe C, MECHAT t as a resultone ommended to	ms (0.5 ms ms ms ms ms f the applica he setting val ed scan settin ROLINK com ed scan settin ROLINK com correcover the	tion which depe lue. smaller than munication is re ZRET/ZSET cc a position data.	us us ends at the scan t current value. TI nged on the CPU sset and position o mmand after chai	ime changes ne watchdog with built-in data will be nging setting is
			[	OK	Cancel	Apply

5.5.2 Setting or Changing Module Configuration Definition Files

• Module Configuration Definition

Module Configuration	MP2200-03 On	line Local						_ 🗆 X
PT#: 3 CPU#: 1								
Select Rack         Enable/Dis           Rack 1         Enable           Rack 2         Disable           Rack 3         Disable           Rack 4         Disable           -Controller         Rack 3	Rack 4							
Slot Number (	0 0	02	03	04	05	06	07	08
Module Type CPU-0	3 🔻 SVB-01	UNDEFINE	ED 🔻 UNDEFINED	UNDEFINED	▼ UNDEFINED ▼	UNDEFINED 🔻	UNDEFINED 🔻	UNDEFINED 🔻
Status Runnin	ig Running							
<u>.</u>								
CPU-03: CPU module with virt	tual axes, CF card ,et	hernet, program cont	trol function.					
Note Date COLOR DAG	2/ #01 01 07 #00							
- Module Details CPU-U3 RAU	.K#01 SLUT#00-	· · ·						
Slot Number	CDU -	2	3	4				
Module Type	UPU •	DVK •		2 181FA	M-EXECUTOR *			
Circuit Number	-	02	-	0000	-			
1/U Start Kegister				0000	0000			
Disable leave				Enable 🔻	voor 🗸			
Disable Input		Ţ		Enable 🔻	Ţ			
Motion Start Register		8800						
Motion End Register		8FFF						
Details		0.11		-				
Status	Running	Runnina	Runnina	Runnina	Runnina			
			<u> </u>					
CPU: CPU module. CPU oper	ation, such as a scar	n time setup and a sy	stem definition, is set	up.				

#### 5.5.2 Setting or Changing Module Configuration Definition Files

Observe the following precautions when setting or changing module configuration definition files.

- Always check to make sure that the mounted Module is the one that is defined.
- Be sure to save any new settings or changes to flash memory.
- After the settings or changes have been completed, turn the power supply to the MP2200 OFF and ON.

#### 5.5.3 Setting and Changing the Scan Time

#### (1) Precautions When Setting or Changing the Scan Time

The scan time can be set and changed in the **Scan Time Setting** Window in the **Environmental Setting** Dialog Box on the MPE720.

Observe the following precautions when setting or changing the scan time.

- Set the set values of the scan time for both the high-speed (H) and low-speed (L) scans to at least the maximum time required to execute the scans. We recommend setting the set values of the scan time using the formula (set value maximum time to execute scan) ≥ (0.2 × set values of the scan time), i.e., setting the set values of the scan time to at least 1.25 times the maximum times required to execute the scans.
- Note: If the scan time is set too close to the maximum execution time for the scan, the refresh time for the window on the MPE720 will be very slow and communication timeouts may occur. If the maximum execution time exceeds the scan time set value, a watchdog timer timeout error will occur and the MP2200 system will stop.
  - Do not change the scan time set value while the Servo is ON. Never change the setting while the axis is moving (while the motor is running). Otherwise an error may occur during motor operation (e.g., high-speed rotation).
  - When the scan time is set or changed, be sure to save the data to flash memory.

Environment Setting  System Security Setup System Setting Ladder Motion Clanguage Monitor Transfer Print	High-speed Scan Setting Value Current Value Maximum Value Low-speed Scan	10.0 0.0 1.7	ms (0.5 ms ms	ims-32.0ms) 68 1774	us us	
	Setting Value Current Value Maximum Value (1) The wh 2. Ple err 3. WH SVI ress rec	0.0 0.1 0.1 as operation of en change til ase do not s or occurs. en high-spe C, MECHAT et as a result ommended t	of the application of the application of the setting values are setting values and setting results of the setting zetting zett	tion which deper lue. ue smaller than c mg value is chan munication is re: 2RET/ZSET cor e position data.	nds at the scan ti current value. Th ged on the CPH set and position c mmand after char	me changes with built-in lata will be nging setting is
,			[	ОК	Cancel	Apply

5.5.3 Setting and Changing the Scan Time

- (2) Scan Time Set Value Examples (Settings Are the Same for the Low-speed Scan.)
  - 0.8-ms Maximum Scan Time and 1-ms Communication Cycle (MECHATROLINK-II Only)

High-speed scan set value  $\ge (1.25 \times 0.8) = 1$  ms High-speed scan set value = 1 ms, 2 ms, 3 ms... (integers starting from 1)

1.4-ms Maximum Scan Time and 1-ms Communication Cycle (MECHATROLINK-II Only)

High-speed scan set value  $\ge (1.25 \times 1.4) = 1.75$  ms High-speed scan set value = 2 ms, 3 ms... (integers starting from 2)

 0.8-ms Maximum Scan Time and 2-ms Communication Cycle (MECHATROLINK-I/MECHA-TROLINK-II Only)

High-speed scan set value  $\ge 1.25 \times 0.8$ ) = 1 ms High-speed scan set value = 1 ms, 2 ms, 4 ms... (1 ms and integer multiples of 2 ms starting from 2 ms)

1.4-ms Maximum Scan Time and 2-ms Communication Cycle (MECHATROLINK-I/MECHA-TROLINK-II Only)

High-speed scan set value  $\ge (1.25 \times 1.4) = 1.75$  ms High-speed scan set value = 2 ms, 4 ms . . . (integer multiples of 2 ms starting from 2 ms)

# 6

# Built-in Ethernet Communication (Supported by the CPU-03 and CPU-04)

This chapter explains how to communicate with devices (PLCs, touch panels, etc.) connected to the CPU-03/CPU-04 in an MP2200-series Controller by Ethernet.

6.1 Communication Methods	-6-2
6.2 Communication with Other MP Series	-6-3
6.2.1 When the CPU-03/CPU-04 Acts as Slave (automatic receive function is used)	- 6-3
6.2.2 When the CPU-03/CPU-04 Acts as a Slave	
(ladder program which uses a MSG-RCV function)	6-16
6.2.3 When CPU-03/CPU-04 Acts as Master	
(I/O message communication function is used)	6-34
6.2.4 When the CPU-03/CPU-04 Acts as Master (ladder program	
which uses MSG-SND function)	6-47
6.3 Communication with Touch Panel	6-63
6.3.1 When CPU-03/CPU-04 Acts as Slave (automatic receive function is used)	6-63
6.4 Communication with PLC Manufactured	
by Mitsubishi Electric Corporation (MELSEC protocol)	6-73
6.4.1 When the CPU-03/CPU-04 Acts as Slave (automatic receive function is used)	6-73
6.4.2 When the CPU-03/CPU-04 Acts as Master	
(I/O message communication function is used)	6-80

# 6.1 Communication Methods

The following table provides the appropriate mode of communication for each remote device and purpose.

Remote Device	Purpose	Communication Method	Remarks
	When other MP series	Uses the Extended MEMOBUS communication protocol. The remote device (master) side creates a ladder program using a MSG-SND function. The CPU-03/CPU-04 (slave) side uses an automatic receive func- tion. (You do not need to create a ladder program.) ⇒ Refer to 6.2.1 When the CPU-03/CPU-04 Acts as Slave (auto-	CPU-03/CPU-04 can communicate with only one master using the automatic receive function.
	device reads/writes the coil state or register content of CPU-03/ CPU-04	matic receive function is used)Uses the Extended MEMOBUS communication protocol.The remote device (master) side creates a ladder program using aMSG-SND function.The CPU-03/CPU-04 (slave) side creates a ladder program using aMSG-RCV function. $\Rightarrow$ Refer to 6.2.2 When the CPU-03/CPU-04 Acts as a Slave (ladder	Communication with multiple masters is possible.
Other MP Series	When CPU-03/CPU-04 reads/writes the coil	<ul> <li>program which uses a MSG-RCV function)</li> <li>Uses the Extended MEMOBUS communication protocol.</li> <li>The CPU-03/CPU-04 (master) side uses an I/O message communication function. (You do not need to create a ladder program.)</li> <li>The remote device (slave) side creates a ladder program using a MSG-RCV function.</li> <li>⇒ Refer to 6.2.3 When CPU-03/CPU-04 Acts as Master (I/O message communication function is used)</li> </ul>	Only the holding reg- ister (M register) is capable of reading/ writing using an I/O message communica- tion function. It can communicate with only one slave.
	state or register content of other MP series equipment	Uses the Extended MEMOBUS communication protocol. A ladder program is created in the CPU-03/CPU-04 (master) using the MSG-SND function. The remote device (slave) side creates a ladder program using a MSG-RCV function. ⇒ Refer to 6.2.4 When the CPU-03/CPU-04 Acts as Master (ladder program which uses MSG-SND function)	Registers other than the holding register are capable of reading/ writing. Communication with multiple slaves is enabled.
Touch Panel	When a touch panel reads/writes the coil state or register content of CPU-03/CPU-04	Uses the Extended MEMOBUS communication protocol. Set the protocol for the touch panel side to the Extended MEMO- BUS protocol. The CPU-03/CPU-04 (slave) side uses an automatic receive func- tion. (You do not need to create a ladder program.) $\Rightarrow$ Refer to 6.3 Communication with Touch Panel.	The CPU-03/CPU-04 can communicate with only one master using the automatic recep- tion function.
PLC Manu- factured by	When a PLC Manufac- tured by Mitsubishi Electric Corporation reads/writes the CPU- 03/CPU-04 register content.	<ul> <li>Uses the MELSEC communication protocol.</li> <li>The remote device (master) side creates a ladder program using a BUFSND function.</li> <li>The CPU-03/CPU-04 (slave) side uses an automatic receive function. (You do not need to create a ladder program.)</li> <li>⇒ Refer to 6.4.1 When the CPU-03/CPU-04 Acts as Slave (automatic receive function is used)</li> </ul>	The CPU-03/CPU-04 can communicate with only one master when using the automatic receive function.
Electric Corporation	When an CPU-03/ CPU-04 reads/writes the relay state or regis- ter content of PLC Manufactured by Mit- subishi Electric Corpo- ration.	Uses the MELSEC communication protocol. The CPU-03/CPU-04 (master) side uses an I/O message communi- cation function. (You do not need to create a ladder program.) The remote device (slave) side needs to set the network parameters. (You do not need to create a ladder program.) ⇒ Refer to 6.4.2 When the CPU-03/CPU-04 Acts as Master (I/O message communication function is used)	The MP2200 can communicate with only one slave when using the I/O message communication func- tion.

Note: For information on *applications where the remote device* is a PLC or Windows computer, refer to the *Machine Controller MP2300S/MP2310/MP2400 Basic Module Supplement for Ethernet Communications* (manual no: SIEP C880700 37). You can download this manual from the Yaskawa e-mechatronics website (http://www.e-mechatronics.com).

# 6.2 Communication with Other MP Series

When Ethernet communication is carried out between the CPU-03/CPU-04 and other MP series, the Extended MEMO-BUS protocol is used as a communication protocol. The Extended MEMOBUS protocol allows the master to read/ write the slave register contents.

This section explains communications when the CPU-03/CPU-04 acts as a slave and a master respectively.

When the CPU-03/CPU-04 acts as a slave, this chapter explains communications using an automatic receive function and a ladder program with the MSG-RCV function.

When the CPU-03/CPU-04 acts as a master, this chapter explains communications using an I/O message communication function and a ladder program with the MSG-SND function.

#### 6.2.1 When the CPU-03/CPU-04 Acts as Slave (automatic receive function is used)

This section explains how to communicate with the MP2300 message send function (MSG-SND) using the CPU-03/ CPU-04 automatic receive function.





6.2.1 When the CPU-03/CPU-04 Acts as Slave (automatic receive function is used)

#### Setting Example

The following figure illustrates how the content of the MP2300 (master) holding register (MW00000 to MW00099) is written into the CPU-03/CPU-04 (slave) holding register (MW00000 to MW00099).



The setup procedure is explained in the following pages.

#### (1) How to Set up the CPU-03/CPU-04 Side

If the setting of transmission parameters (IP address, subnet mask) is already completed, start from step 3.

1. Double-click the **218IFA** Tab (**218IFC** Tab for the CPU-04) in the **Module Details** Area in the CPU-03 **Module Configuration** Window.

Slot Number	1	2	-	3		1	_	5
Module Type	CPU 🗖	SVR	•	CARD	•	218IFA	•	M-DXECUTOR -
Circuit Number	-	02		-		01		-
I/O Start Register						0000		0800
I/O End Register						07FF		083F
Disable Input		•	-		•	Enable	•	-
Disable Output		·	-		•	Enable	-	-
Motion Start Register		8800						
Motion End Register		8FFF						
Details								
Status	Running	Running		Running		Running	3	Running

#### 2. Set transmission parameters.

123		
Transmission Parameters S	Status	
Transmission Parameters IP Address Subnet Mask Gateway IP Address	:       192 ÷       168 ÷       1 ÷       1 ÷       0.255)       Equipment name :       CONTROLLER NAME         :       255 ÷       255 ÷       0 ÷       0.255)       Detail Definition         :       0 ÷       0 ÷       0.255)       Detail Definition	

#### How to set up transmission parameters

- ① Set IP Address (to "192.168.001.001," for example).
- [®] Set Subnet Mask (to "255.255.255.000," for example).
- ③ Set Gateway IP Address (to "000.000.000," for example).

#### Caution

Set up a unique IP address in the network. For the IP address, check with your network administrator.

**3.** Click the **Easy Setting** Button in the **Message Communication** Area of the connection parameter setting.

sy setting	It is possib	ole to following parameter	setting eas	ily that communicate	e the message.		
CNO	Local Port	Node IP Address	Node Port	Connect Type	Protocol Type	Code	Detail
01				-	-	•	Setting
02				-		-	Setting
03				-	-	-	Setting
04				-	-	-	Setting

6.2.1 When the CPU-03/CPU-04 Acts as Slave (automatic receive function is used)

4. Set a communication setting in the Message Communication Easy Setting Dialog Box.



#### How to set up in the Message Communication Easy Setting Dialog Box

- ${\rm \textcircled{O}}$  When automatic receive function is used, select "1" for the Connect No.
- ^② Set **Port No.** of the CPU-03/CPU-04 side ("10001," for example).
- ③ Select Extended MEMOBUS for the Communication protocol Type, and click Default Button.
- ④ Select Connect Type (TCP, for example).
- Select Code (BIN, for example).
- Set Node Port IP Address of the other device (MP2300) to be connected (to "192.168.001.002," for example).
- ⑦ Set Port No. of the other device (MP2300) to be connected (to "10001," for example).
- ® Click OK Button.

#### Caution

When message functions (MSG-SND, MSG-RCV) are used with the connection number 01, disable the automatic receive function. If message functions are used while the automatic receive function is enabled, communications will not function properly.

Note: The automatic receive function with a connection number 01 is set to "Enable" by default.

5. Click Yes in the confirmation dialog of the parameter setting.

#### Caution

Note that when a parameter with the same connection number is already set and you click **Yes** in the confirmation dialog of the parameter setting, the setting will be overwritten by the parameter configured in the **Message Communication Easy Setting** Dialog Box.

6. Check the setting value and click the Setting Button in the Detail Column.

isy setting	It is possi	ble to following parameter	setting ea:	sily that comr	nun	icate the message.					
CNO	Local Port	Node IP Address	Node Port	Connec Type	t	Protocol Type		Coo	de	Detail	
01	10001	192.168.001.002	10001	TCP	•	Extended MEMOBUS	-	BIN	-(	Setting	D
02					•		-		-	Setting	
03					-		-		-	Setting	
04					-		-		-	Settina	

Cannot the overlap to local station port number used by the communicate the 1/0 message.

7. Select the **Enable** Option on the **Automatically Reception** Tab Page of the **Detail Setting** Dialog Box and then click the **OK** Button.

matically Reception	
C Disable Unable to automat Enable protocol type is no	ed reception, when the control sequence.
Transmission Buffer Channel 1 💌	The automatic reception is fixed 1ch.
Slave I/F Register Settings	Head REG
Readout of Input Relay	IW0000
Readout of Input Register	IW0000
Readout / Write-in of Coil	MW00000
Readout / Write-in of Hold Register	MW00000
Write - in width of Coil/Hold Register	D: MW00000
Н	I: MW65534
Automatic input processing delay time	ms (0-100)
The influence on a low-speed scannin according to this parameter.	ng can be adjusted
[Attention] It is not in the setting of th period of an automatic reception	e communication

Note: For more information on Slave I/F Register Settings and Automatic input precessing delay time, refer to 2.5.6 (4) [b] Automatically Reception Dialog Box for Message Communication.

Now, the automatic receive function is set up when the CPU-03/CPU-04 acts as a slave.

#### Caution

When any transmission or connection parameter is changed, the change will be reflected after it has been saved in flash memory and the power is turned ON again.

6.2.1 When the CPU-03/CPU-04 Acts as Slave (automatic receive function is used)

#### (2) How to Set up the Remote Device (MP2300) to Be Connected

If the setting of transmission parameters (IP address, subnet mask) is already completed, start from step 3.

#### 1. Double-click the 218IF Tab in the Module Details Area of the Module Configuration Window.

troller									
Slot Number	00		01		02		03		•
Module Type	MP2300	-	218IF-01	•	UNDEFINED	-	UNDEFINED	•	
Controller Number	-		-		-		-		
Circuit Number	-		-		-		-		
I/O Start Register									
I/O End Register									
Disable Input	i A	-		•		-		-	
Disable Output	5	-			8	-	Y N	-	
and a support		120		1.5		5631		1.5	
Antion Stort Productor	hernet and RS232	2 fur	nctions.						
distant Start Posiston IF-01: The module has Eth dule Details 218/F-01 SLC	hernet and RS232	2 fur	inctions.						
Action Start Provider Action Start Provider IF-01: The module has Eth dule Details 218/F-01 SLC Slot Number	DT#01	2 fur	2						
Action Start Ponistone MF-01: The module has Ett dule Details 218/F-01 SLC <u>Slot Number</u> <u>Module Type</u>	DT#01	2 fur	2 218IF					<u> </u>	
Action Start Ponistore Action Start Ponistore 3IF-01: The module has Ett dule Details 218IF-01 SLC <u>Slot Number</u> <u>Module Type</u> <u>Controller Number</u>	DT#01	2 fur	2 218IF 01						
Arian Start Ponistor Arian Start Ponistor 3F-01: The module has Eth dule Details 218F-01 SLC Slot Number Module Type Controller Number Circuit Number	DT #01	2 fur	2 218IF 01 01						
Arian Start Ponjetor Arian Start Ponjetor 31F-01: The module has Eth dule Details 2181F-01 SLC Slot Number Module Type Controller Number Circuit Number I/O Start Register I/O End Register	DT #01	2 fur	2 218IF 01 						
Arian Start Ponjetar Arian Start Ponjetar 31F-01: The module has Eth dule Details 2181F-01 SLC Slot Number Module Type Controller Number Circuit Number I/O Start Register I/O End Register	DT #01	2 fur	2 218IF 01 						
dule Details 218/F-01 SLC dule Details 218/F-01 SLC Slot Number Module Type Controller Number Circuit Number I/O Start Register I/O Start Register Motion Start Register Motion Start Register	DT#01	2 fur	2 218IF 01 						

2. Set transmission parameters.


- How to set up transmission parameters
  - ① Set IP Address ("192.168.001.001," for example).
  - © Select *Edit Local Station: TCP/IP Setting* in the Engineering Manager Window the **Detail Setting** Dialog Box will appear.
  - ③ Set Subnet Mask ("255.255.255.000," for example).
  - ④ Set Gateway IP Address ("000.000.000," for example).

#### Caution

Set up a unique IP address in the network.

For the IP address, check with your network administrator.

#### **3.** Set connection parameters.

	Ĭ	Ĭ	Ĭ	Ĭ	Ĭ		Ĭ			
0.0										
	Local		Nøde	Connect	Protocol				D. I	
	Por	Node IP Address	Rat	туре	Tyle			ae	Detail	
01	0001	192.168.001.001	10001	тср 💌	Extended MEMOBUS	•	BIN	-	Setting	
02	10002	192.168.001.001	10002	TCP 💌	Extended MEMOBUS	•	BIN	-	Setting	
03	10003	192.168.001.001	10003	тср 🔻	Extended MEMOBUS	•	BIN	-	Setting	
04				-		•		-	Setting	
05	10005	192.168.001.001	10005	тср 🔻	Extended MEMOBUS	•	BIN	-	Setting	
06	10006	192.168.001.001	10006	тср 🔻	Extended MEMOBUS	•	BIN	-	Setting	
07						•		-	Setting	
08				-		•		-	Setting	
09				•		•		-	Setting	
10				-		-		-	Setting	
				C Internet		-		April 1	10000000000000000000000000000000000000	

How to set up with a connection number 01 in the CP-218 Connection Parameter Area

- ① Set Local Port to the port number used in the MP2300 side ("10001," for example).
- ② Set Node IP Address to the IP address configured in the CPU-03/CPU-04 side.
- ③ Set Node Port to the port number configured in the CPU-03/CPU-04 side ("10001," for example).
- ④ Select Connect Type (TCP, for example).
- Select Extended MEMOBUS for Protocol Type.
- © Select Code (BIN, for example).

#### Caution

When any transmission or connection parameter is changed, the change will be reflected after it has been saved in flash memory and the power turned is ON again.

6.2.1 When the CPU-03/CPU-04 Acts as Slave (automatic receive function is used)

4. Create a ladder program with a message send function (MSG-SND).

A ladder program for transmitting messages to/from the remote device (MP2300) side is shown as follows:

#### Message send function (MSG-SND)

This system function is required for transmitting messages. Message transmission is carried out by describing and executing this message send function in a ladder program.





Fig. 6.2 MPE720 Module Configuration Window

## Input/output definitions for message send function

The input/output definitions for the message send function are explained as follows:

I/O Definition	No.	Name	Setting Example	Explanation
	1	Execute	DB000200	Executes a transmission When the Execute is ON, the message is transmitted.
	2	Abort	DB000201	Aborts a transmission When the Abort is ON, the message transmission is forcibly stopped.
	3	Dev-Typ	00006	Communication device type Specify the type of the communication device used in transmission. When Ethernet (218IF) is used, specify "6".
	4	Рго-Тур	00001	Communication protocol Specify the type of the communication protocol. MEMOBUS(*1) = 1, non-procedure 1(*2) = 2, non-procedure 2(*2) = 3
Input Item	5	Cir-No	00001	Circuit number Specify the circuit number of the communication device. Specify it in accordance with the circuit number displayed in the MPE720 <b>Module Configuration</b> Window.
	6	Ch-No	00001	Communication buffer channel number Specify the channel number of the communication buffer. When Ethernet (218IF) is used, specify it in the range between "1" and "10".
	7	Param	DA00000	Parameter list start address Specify the start address of the parameter list. For the Parameter List, 17 words are automatically assigned from the configured address.
	1	Busy	DB000210	In process Busy is turned ON while executing a message transmission or forced abort process.
Output Item	2	Complete	DB000211	Process completed When a message transmission or abort process is properly completed, Complete will turn ON only for one scan.
	3	Error	DB000212	Error occurred When an error occurs, the Error will turn ON only for one scan.

Table 6 1	Input/Output	Dofinitions	for Moccogo	Sond Eurotion
	input/Output	Demnitions	IOI Message	Send Function

* 1. When transmitting in MEMOBUS, Extended MEMOBUS, MELSEC, or MODBUS/TCP protocol, set the communication protocol (Pro-Typ) to MEMOBUS (=1). The communication device automatically converts the protocol.

* 2. Non-procedure 1: In non-procedural communications, data is transmitted on a per-word basis. Non-procedure 2: In non-procedural communications, data is transmitted on a per-byte basis.

6.2.1 When the CPU-03/CPU-04 Acts as Slave (automatic receive function is used)

## Parameter list setting example for the message send function

An example of a parameter list setting when writing 100 words of data from MW00000 to the destination using the connection with a connection number = 1 follows:

Register Number	Setting Value	Parameter Number	IN/OUT	Remarks
DW00000	_	PARAM00	OUT	Process result
DW00001	_	PARAM01	OUT	Status
DW00002	00001	PARAM02	IN	Connection number = 1
DW00003	-	PARAM03	IN	Option (Setting unnecessary)
DW00004	000BH	PARAM04	IN	Function code = 0BH (Writes to holding register)
DW00005	00000	PARAM05	IN	Data address = 0 (Starting from MW00000)
DW00006	00100	PARAM06	IN	Data size = 100 (100 words)
DW00007	00001	PARAM07	IN	Remote CPU number = 1
DW00008	00000	PARAM08	IN	Coil offset = 0 word
DW00009	00000	PARAM09	IN	Input relay offset = $0$ word
DW00010	00000	PARAM10	IN	Input register offset = $0$ word
DW00011	00000	PARAM11	IN	Holding register offset = $0$ word
DW00012	-	PARAM12	SYS	Reserved by the system. (Zero clear at startup)
DW00013	_	PARAM13	SYS	Reserved by the system.
DW00014	-	PARAM14	SYS	Reserved by the system.
DW00015	-	PARAM15	SYS	Reserved by the system.
DW00016	_	PARAM16	SYS	Reserved by the system.

Table 6.2 Sample Parameter List Setting (parameter list start address Param=DA00000)

Note: IN: Input, OUT: Output, SYS: For system use

## Example of Using the Message Send Function in a Ladder Program

Here is one example of the message send function through Ethernet (218IF).

message sending ladder pro	gram (218IF)
initializing setting parameters for MSG-SND function on the first scan after power o	n.
use "SB000003" for low scan, "SB000001" for high scan.	
1st scan after power	
on	
38000003 == 1102	
clear for all D registers	
	( SETW )
	[M]Dest DW00000
	[0/]Data 00000
	[www.un coosz
setting connection No. (PARAM02)	
DW00002=1;	
setting function code (PARAM04)	
DW00004=0x000B: //DBH=writing register (extended)	
• • •	
setting data address (PARAM05)/ date size (PARAM08)	
Sealing data address (Contranto), date size (Contranto)	
Dimonoof=0: //data.address.(0):	
DW00006=100; //data size (100 words)	
cotting partner CPU No (PARAM07)	
sealing parater of o mole Assembly	
DW000007-1,	
setting offset (PARAM08-PARAM11)	
EXPRESSION	
DWD0008=0: //coil offset (PARAM08)	
DW00009=0; //input relay offset (PARAM09)	
DW00010=0; //input register offset (PARAM10)	
Dwood11=0 Wregister offset (PARAMITI)	
clear for system register (PARAM12)	
	STORE 🔟
	[WLF]Sro 00000 [WLF]Dest DW00012
normal scan treatment	
take it as timeout for abortion if not ended in 10 seconds after sending (	command.
sending command abort	timeout
	09000204
1/ 10N(10ms) 2	
[W]Count DW00031	
release abort if the equition or every take allow	
release abort in timeout or enor take place	
timeout treating end	abort
1/1	
error	
DB000212	
1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	
abort	
08000201	

6.2.1 When the CPU-03/CPU-04 Acts as Slave (automatic receive function is used)



6.2.1 When the CPU-03/CPU-04 Acts as Slave (automatic receive function is used)

0024) 0045 NL-1	while time out (IF DB00020 C==true	
0025 0046 NL-2		count for timeout
0028 0047 NL-1		
0027 0048	END	)

The communication setting and the ladder program creation are now finished, when MP2300 acts as a master.

## (3) How to Start Communications

1. The CPU-03/CPU-04 side starts to receive the messages.

When the automatic receive function is used, the message receive operation starts automatically.

2. Turn Execute ON for the message send function in the MP2300 side to transmit messages.

Messages are transmitted by turning ON the register (DB000200, for example), configured in Execute of the message send function, and communication with the CPU-03/CPU-04 starts.

I/O Definition	No.	Name	Setting Example	Content
Input Item	1	Execute	DB000200	Executes a transmission When Execute is ON, the message transmission will be carried out.

Table 6.3 Input/Output Definition for Message Send Function

The sample ladder program is created to transmit a message every one second when five seconds have elapsed after the low-speed scan (or high-speed scan) startup.

To change the message transmission interval, change the timer value  $\mathbb{O}$ .



# 6.2.2 When the CPU-03/CPU-04 Acts as a Slave (ladder program which uses a MSG-RCV function)

The CPU-03/CPU-04 can communicate with only one master when using the automatic receive function. To communicate with more than one master, use a ladder program with a message receive function (MSG-RCV) at the CPU-03/CPU-04 end. You can use the message receive function (MSG-RCV) as well as the automatic receive function by keeping connections separate from each other.

This section explains how to communicate with an CPU-03/CPU-04 message send function (MSG-SND) using the MP2300 message receive function (MSG-RCV).



Fig. 6.3 Message Flow with MP2300 when Message Receive Function (MSG-RCV) Is Used

#### Setting Example

The following figure illustrates one example of writing the contents of the MP2300 (master) holding register (MW00100 to MW00199) into the CPU-03/CPU-04 (slave) holding register (MW00100 to MW00199).



The setup procedure is explained in the following pages.

## (1) How to Set up the CPU-03/CPU-04 Side

If the setting of transmission parameters (IP address, subnet mask) is already completed, start from step 3.

# 1. Double-click the **218IFA** Tab (**218IFC** Tab for the CPU-04) in the **Module Details** Area in the CPU-03 **Module Configuration** Window.

	1 .	1	1	-				-
Slot Number	1	2		3	-			2
Module Type	CPU 🗖	r SVR	•	CARD	-	218IFA	-	M-EXECUTOR -
Circuit Number	-	02		<del></del>		01		1
I/O Start Register			ļ.			0000	- Ŭ	0800
I/O End Register						07FF		083F
Disable Input		•	•		-	Enable	-	-
Disable Output		•	•		-	Enable	•	-
Motion Start Register		8800						
Motion End Register		8FFF					1	
Details								
Status	Running	Running		Running		Running		Running

## 2. Set transmission parameters.

Transmission Parameters	stus	
<ul> <li>Transmission Parameters</li> <li>IP Address</li> </ul>	: 192 ÷ · 168 ÷ · 1 ÷ · 1 ÷ (0-255) Module Name Definition Equipment name : CONTROLLER NAME	
Subnet Mask	255 - 255 - 255 - 0 - (0.255)	
Gateway IP Address	: 0 + 0 + 0 + (0-255) Detail Definition	

How to set up transmission parameters

① Set IP Address ("192.168.001.001," for example).

⁽²⁾ Set **Subnet Mask** ("255.255.255.000," for example).

③ Set Gateway IP Address ("000.000.000," for example).

Set up a unique IP address in the network. For the IP address, check with your network administrator.

Caution

**3.** Click the **Easy Setting** Button in the **Message Communication** Area of the connection parameter setting.

u settina				3. H				
y county		ble to rollowing parameter	setting eas	ily that communicate	e the message.			
CNO	Local Port	Node IP Address	Node Port	Connect Type	Protocol Type		Code	Detail
01				-		•	•	Setting
02				-		-	•	Setting
03			1	<b>•</b>		-	•	Setting
04				-		-	-	Setting

Cannot the overlap to local station port number used by the communicate the 1/0 message.

4. Set a communication setting in the Message Communication Easy Setting Dialog Box.



## How to set up in the Message Communication Easy Setting Dialog Box

- ^① When automatic receive function is used, select "2" for the **Connect No.**
- ^② Set **Port No.** of the CPU-03/CPU-04 side ("10002," for example).
- ③ Select Extended MEMOBUS for Communication protocol Type, and click the Default Button.
- ④ Select Connect Type (TCP, for example).
- Select Code (BIN, for example).
- Set Node Port IP Address of the other device (MP2300) to be connected (to "192.168.001.002," for example).
- ⑦ Set Port No. of the other device (MP2300) to be connected (to "10002," for example).
- ® Click OK.

#### Caution

When message functions (MSG-SND, MSG-RCV) are used with the connection number 01, disable the automatic receive function. If message functions are used while the automatic receive function is enabled, communications will not function properly.

Note: The automatic receive function with a connection number 01 is set to "Enable" by default.

#### 5. Click Yes in the parameter setting confirmation dialog.

#### Caution

Note that when a parameter with the same connection number is already set and you click **Yes** in the parameter setting confirmation dialog, the setting will be overwritten by the parameter configured in the **Message Communication Easy Setting** Dialog Box.

## 6. Check the setting values.

y setting	It is possi	ble to following parameter	setting ea:	sily that com	nmur	nicate the message.				
CNO	Local Port	Node IP Address	Node Port	Conne Type	ct	Protocol Type		Coo	de	Detail
01					٠	2 2	•		•	Setting
02	10002	192.168.001.002	10002	TCP	•	Extended MEMOBUS	•	BIN	•	Setting
03					•		•		-	Setting
04					•		•		-	Setting

Cannot the overlap to local station port number used by the communicate the 1/0 message

#### Caution

When any transmission or connection parameter is changed, the change will be reflected after it has been saved in flash memory and the power supply is turned ON again.

7. Create a ladder program with a message receive function (MSG-RCV) in it.

An example of a ladder program for receiving messages in the CPU-03/CPU-04 side is as follows:

#### Message receive function (MSG-RCV)

This system function is required for receiving messages. A message reception is carried out by describing and executing this message receive function in a ladder program.



Indule Details CPU-03 BA	rk#n1 s⊦∩⊺#nn							
Slot Number	1	2		3	_			5
Module Type	CPU	▼ SVR	•	CARD	Ū	218IFA	-	M. EXECUTOR -
Circuit Number	-	02		- (		01		)-
I/O Start Register						0000		0000
I/O End Register						07FF		0C3F
Disable Input		-	-	8	-	Enable	-	-
Disable Output		-	-		-	Enable	-	-
Motion Start Register		8800						
Motion End Register		8FFF						
Details								
Status	Running	Running		Running		Running		Running

Fig. 6.4 MPE720 Module Configuration Window

#### Input/output definition contents for message receive function

The input/output definition content for message receive function is as follows:

I/O Definition	No.	Name	Setting Example	Contents					
	1	Execute	DB000200	Executes a reception When Execute is ON, message reception will be carried out.					
	2	Abort	DB000201	Aborts a reception When Abort is ON, message reception is forcibly stopped.					
	3	Dev-Typ	00016	Communication device type Specify the type of the communication device used in reception. When Ethernet (218IFA/218IFC) is used, specify "16."					
	4	Pro-Typ	00001	Communication protocol Specify the type of the communication protocol. MEMOBUS(*1) = 1, non-procedure 1(*2) = 2, non-procedure 2(*2) = 3					
Input Item	out Item 5 Cir-No 00001		00001	Circuit number Specify a circuit number of the communication device. Specify it in accordance with the circuit number displayed in the MPE720 <b>Module Configuration</b> Window.					
	6	Ch-No	00002	<ul> <li>Communication buffer channel number Specify the channel number of the communication buffer.</li> <li>When Ethernet (218IFA) is used, specify it in the range between "1" and "4."</li> <li>When Ethernet (218IFC) is used, specify in the range between "1" and "10."</li> </ul>					
				Note: Set up a unique channel number in the circuit.					
	7	Param	DA00000	Specify the start address of the parameter list. For the Parameter List, 17 words are automatically assigned from the configured address.					
	1	Busy	DB000210	In process Busy will be ON while executing a message reception or forced abort process.					
Output Item	2	Complete	DB000211	Process completed When a message reception or forced abort process is properly com- pleted, Complete will turn ON only for one scan.					
	3	Error	DB000212	Error When an error occurs, Error will turn ON only for one scan.					

Table 6.4 Input/Output Definitions for Message Receive Function	Table 6.4	Input/Output	Definitions for	Message	Receive	Functior
-----------------------------------------------------------------	-----------	--------------	-----------------	---------	---------	----------

* 1. When transmitting in MEMOBUS, Extended MEMOBUS, MELSEC, or MODBUS/TCP protocol, set the communication protocol (Pro-Typ) to MEMOBUS (=1). The communication device automatically converts the protocol.

* 2. Non-procedure 1: In non-procedural communication, data is received on a per-word basis. Non-procedure 2: In non-procedural communication, data is received on a per-byte basis.

## Parameter list setting example for message receive function

An example of a parameter list setting when receiving messages from a transmit source using the connection with a connection number = 2 follows:

Register Number	Setting Value	Parameter Number	IN/OUT	Remarks		
DW00000	-	PARAM00	OUT	Process result		
DW00001	-	PARAM01	OUT	Status		
DW00002	00002	PARAM02	IN	Connection number = 2		
DW00003	-	PARAM03	OUT	Option		
DW00004	-	PARAM04	OUT	Function code		
DW00005	-	PARAM05	OUT	Data address		
DW00006	-	PARAM06	OUT	Data size		
DW00007	-	PARAM07	OUT	Remote CPU number		
DW00008	00000	PARAM08	IN	Coil offset = 0 word		
DW00009	00000	PARAM09	IN	Input relay offset = $0$ word		
DW00010	00000	PARAM10	IN	Input register offset = $0$ word		
DW00011	00000	PARAM11	IN	Holding register offset = $0$ word		
DW00012	00000	PARAM12	IN	Writable address lower limit = MW00000		
DW00013	65534	PARAM13	IN	Writable address upper limit = MW65534		
DW00014	-	PARAM14	SYS	Reserved by the system. (Zero clear at startup)		
DW00015	-	PARAM15	SYS	Reserved by the system.		
DW00016	-	PARAM16	SYS	Reserved by the system.		

Table 6.5 Parameter List Setting Example (parameter list start address Param=DA00000)

Note: IN: Input, OUT: Output, SYS: For system use

Example of Using the Message Receive Function in a Ladder Program

Here is an example of the message receive function through Ethernet (218IFA/218IFC).

use "SB000003" for low scan, "SB000001" for high scan. 1st scan after power	n.
1st span after power	
on	
SB000003 == true	
clear for all D registers	
	SETW
	[M/]Dest D/00000 [M/]Data 00000
	MyWidth 00032
setting connection No. (PARAM02)	
(	
Setting offset(PARAMUS-PARAMIT)	
DW00009=0; //osil offset (PARAM08) DW00009=0; //input relay offset (PARAM08) DW00009=0; //input relater offset (PARAM09)	
DW00011-0 //register offset (PARAM11)	
wating lange (PARAM12, PARAM13)	
DW00012=0; //witting range LO (PARAM12)	
Dubbons=65534; Journing range Hi (PARAMITS)	
clear for system register (PARAM14)	
	STORE
	[WLF]Src 00000 [WLF]Dest DW00
(END_IF)	
normal scan treatment generating command for receiving.	
normal scan treatment generating command for receiving. Always DN abort	receiving com
normal scan treatment generating command for receiving. Always ON abort SB000004 DB000201	receiving com DB000200
normal scan treatment generating command for receiving. Always ON abort SB000004 DB000201	receiving com DB000200
normal scan treatment generating command for receiving. Always DN abort SB000004 DB000201	receiving com DB000200
normal scan treatment generating command for receiving. Always DN abort SB000004 DB000201	MS 0- RCV function
nermal soan treatment generating sommand for receiving. Always DN abort SB000004 DB000201	MS 0- RCV function (B) BX 0- RCV function (B) Execute DB000200 [B] Busy DB000
normal scan treatment generating command for receiving. Always ON abort SB000004 DB000201	MS 0- RCV function MS 0- RCV function (B)Execute DB000200 (B)Busy DB000 (B)Abort DB000201 (B)Complete DB000 (M)Dev Type 00016 (B)Error DB000
normal scan treatment generating command for receiving. Always ON abort SB000004 DB000201	MS-RCV function MS-RCV function (B)Execute DB000200 (B)Busy DB000 (B)Abort DB000201 (B)Complete DB000 (M)Pro-Typ 00016 (B)Error DB000 (M)Pro-Typ 00001
normal scan treatment generating command for receiving. Always ON abort SB000004 DB000201	MS-6-RCV function MS-RCV function (B)Execute DB000200 (B)Execute DB000201 (B)Complete DB000 (M)Pro-Typ 00016 (M)Pro-Typ 00016 (M)Pro-Typ 00001 (M)Pro-Typ 00001 (M)Pr
normal scan treatment generating command for receiving. Always ON abort SB000004 DB000201	Interviewing communication Interviewing communication In
nermal scan treatment generating command for receiving. Always ON abort SB000004 DB000201	Interesting communications INS-0-RCV function MS-0-RCV [B]Execute DB000200 [B]Busy DB000 [B]Abort DB000201 [B]Complete DB000 [M]Dev-Typ 00016 [B]Error DB000 [M]Ch-Typ 00001 [M]Ch-No 00001 [M]Ch-No 00002 [A]Param DA00000
nermal scan treatment generating command for receiving. Always ON abort SB000004 DB000201	MS 6- RCV function MS 6- RCV function MS 6- RCV [B]Execute DB000200 [B]Busy DB000 [B]Abort DB000201 [B]Complete DB000 [M]Dev Typ 00016 [B]Error DB000 [M]Cir-No 00001 [M]Cir-No 00001 [M]Ch-No 00002 [A]Param DA00000
nermal scan treatment generating command for receiving. Always DN abort SB000004 DB000201	MS 0- RCV function MS 0- RCV function (B Execute DB000200 [B]Busy DB000 (B Abort DB000201 [B]Complete DB000 (M]Dev-Typ 00016 [B]Error DB000 (M]Pro-Typ 00001 [M]Cir-No 000001 [A]Param DA00000
nermal scan treatment generating command for receiving. Always DN abort SB000004 DB000201 I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I	MS 0- RCV function MS 0- RCV function (B Execute DB000200 [B]Busy DB000 [B]Abort DB000201 [B]Complete DB000 [M]Dev-Typ 00001 [B]Complete DB000 [M]Dev-Typ 00001 [M]Cir-No 000001 [M]Cir-No 00002 [A]Param DA00000
normal scan treatment generating command for receiving. Always DN abort SB000004 DB000201 I I // treatment after normally finished after finish IF DD DB000211==true abort DB000201	MS 0- RCV function MS 0- RCV function (B Execute DB000200 [B]Busy DB000 [B]Abort DB000201 [B]Complete DB000 [M]Pro-Typ 00001 [M]Cir-No 00001 [M]Cir-No 00001 [M]Cir-No 00002 [A]Param DA00000
normal scan treatment generating command for receiving. Always DN abort SB000004 DB000201 I I I I I I treatment after normally finished after finish IF DD DB000211==true abort DB000201 I I	MS 0- RCV function MS 0- RCV function (B Abort DB000200 (B)Busy DB000 (B)Abort DB000201 (B)Complete DB000 (M)Pro-Typ 00001 (B)Complete DB000 (M)Pro-Typ 00001 (M)CI-No 00002 (A)P aram DA00000 count for norma INC
nermal scan treatment generating command for receiving. Always DN abort SB000004 DB000201 treatment after normally finished after finish DB000211==frue abort DB000201	MS 0- RCV function MS 0- RCV function (B Abort DB000200 (B Busy DB000 [B Abort DB000201 (B)Complete DB000 [M]Pro-Typ 00001 (B)Complete DB000 [M]Pro-Typ 00001 [M]CIr-No 00002 [A]P aram DA00000 Sount for norma [NC [VL]Dest DN00
nermal scan treatment generating command for receiving. Always DN abort SB000004 DB000201 	MS 0- RCV function MS 0- RCV function (B)Execute DB000200 (B)Busy DB000 (M)Pro-Typ 00001 (B)Complete DB000 (M)Pro-Typ 00001 (M)CI-No 00002 (A)Param DA00000 (M)CI-No 00002 (A)Param DA00000 (M)CI-No 00002 (M)CI-NO 00002 (M)CI-NO 00002 (M)CI-NO 00002 (M)CI-NO 00002 (M)CI-NO 00002 (M)CI-NO 00002 (M)CI-NO 00002 (M)CI-NO 00000 (M)CI-NO 00002 (M)CI-NO 00002 (M)CI-NO 00002 (M)CI-NO 00002 (M)CI-NO 00002 (M)CI-NO 00002 (M)CI-NO 00002 (M)CI-NO 00002 (M)CI-NO 00002 (M)CI-NO 00000 (M)CI-NO 00002 (M)CI-NO 00002 (M)CI-NO 00000 (M)CI-NO 00002 (M)CI-NO 00002 (M)CI-NO 00002 (M)CI-NO 00002 (M)CI-NO 0000 (M)CI-NO 00002 (M)CI-NO 0000 (M)CI-NO 0000 (M)CI-N
normal scan treatment generating command for receiving. Always DN abort SB000004 DB000201 treatment after normally finished after finish	MS 0- RCV function MS 0- RCV function (B)Execute DB000200 (B)Busy DB000 (M)Pro-Typ 00001 (B)Complete DB000 (M)Pro-Typ 00001 (M)Ch-No 00002 (A)Param DA00000 (M)Direct DW000 (M)Direct DW000 (M)Direct DW000
nermal scan treatment generating command for receiving. Always DN abot SB00004 DB00201 I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I	MS 0- RCV function MS 0- RCV function (B)Execute DB000200 (B)Busy DB000 (M)Pro-Typ 00018 (B)Error DB000 (M)Pro-Typ 00001 (M)Ch-No 00001 (M)Ch-No 00002 (A)Param DA00000 (M)Libest DW00
nermal scan treatment generating command for receiving. Always DN abort SB000024 DB000201 treatment after normally finished after finish	MS-RCV function MS-RCV function (B)Execute DB000200 (B)Busy DB000 (M)Pro-Typ 00016 (B)Complete DB000 (M)Pro-Typ 000016 (B)Error DB000 (M)Pro-Typ 00001 (M)Ch-No 00002 (A)Param DA00000 (M)Ch-No 00002 (A)Param DA00000 (M)Libest DW00



The communication setting and the ladder program creation are now finished, when the CPU-03/CPU-04 acts as a slave.

## (2) How to Set up the Remote Device (MP2300) to Be Connected

If the setting of transmission parameters (IP address, subnet mask) is already completed, start from step 3.

1. Double-click the 218IF Tab in the Module Details Area of the Module Configuration Window.

atroller							
Slot Number	00	01		02		03	
Module Type	MP2300	▼ 218IF-01	•	UNDEFINED	•	UNDEFINED	-
Controller Number	-	-		÷		-	
Circuit Number	-	70		-		-	
I/O Start Register							
I/O End Register							- 1
Disable Input		•	•		•		•
Disable Output		•	•		•		•
Motion Start Register							
Motion End Register							
Details							
Status	Running	Running					
3IF-01: The module has Et	hernet and RS232	functions.	_				
3IF-01: The module has Et dule Details 218IF-01 SLI	hernet and RS232 DT#01	functions.					
3IF-01: The module has Et dule Details 218IF-01 SLI Slot Number	DT#01	functions.					
3IF-01: The module has Et dule Details 218IF-01 SLI <u>Slot Number</u> Module Type	DT#01	functions.					
3IF-01: The module has Et dule Details 218IF-01 SLI <u>Slot Number</u> Module Type Controller Number	DT#01	functions.					
3IF-01: The module has Et dule Details 218IF-01 SLI <u>Slot Number</u> Module Type Controller Number Circuit Number	DT#01	2 218/F 01 01					
3IF-01: The module has Et dule Details 218IF-01 SLI <u>Slot Number</u> Module Type Controller Number Circuit Number I/O Start Register	DT#01 217IF 01 01 01	2 218IF 01 01 					
alf-01: The module has Et dule Details 218/F-01 SL/ <u>Slot Number</u> <u>Module Type</u> <u>Controller Number</u> <u>Circuit Number</u> <u>I/O Start Register</u> I/O End Register	DT#01 217IF 01 01  	2 218IF 01 01 					
alF-01: The module has Et dule Details 218 F-01 SLI <u>Slot Number</u> <u>Module Type</u> <u>Controller Number</u> <u>Circuit Number</u> <u>I/O Start Register</u> I/O End Register Motion Start Register	DT#01 217IF 01 01   	2           2           2           181F           01					
alF-01: The module has Et dule Details 218 F-01 SLI Slot Number Module Type Controller Number Circuit Number I/O Start Register I/O End Register Motion Start Register	DT#01 217IF 01    	2           218IF           01					
alF-01: The module has Et dule Details 218 F-01 SLI Slot Number Module Type Controller Number Circuit Number I/O Start Register I/O End Register Motion Start Register Details	DT#01 217IF 01 01    	2           2181F           01					

2. Set transmission parameters.

		3 4				
Transmission Parameters	itatus					
CP-218 Transmission Par Station Setting IP Address	ameters : 192 🛨 . 168 🐳 . 1 🛨	2 2	(0 · 255)			
MEMOBUS Response Time Count of Retry	: 0 • s : 0 • time		(0 - 255) (0 - 255)			
CP-218 Connection Para	meter					
CNO Local Port	Node IP Address Node	Connert	ן ז)	Protocol		<b>.</b>
01	Ch.		,,			
02	- Static Sub	n Sletting	255	255 - 25	53 0 3	(0.255.)
03	500	iet mask V.	1235 -	200 . 20		(0-200)
04	Gate	way IP Addres:	비크	이 크. 이	크.미 크	(0-255)
05	Syst	em Port No. :	10000	(DIAG. Port No.	./Engineering Port)	(256-65535)
06	- TCP/	D Cotting				
07	TCF	Zero Window Ti	imer Value	3 4.	(1,255)	
08		2010 Willdow H	inci value		(1 200)	
09	10+	Hetry Lime		500 <u></u> s	[ 50 - 32000 ]	
10	TCF	Close Time		60 🛨 s	(1 - 255)	
11	IP #	Assemble Time		30 ÷ s	(1-255)	
	MAX	K. Packet Length		1500 ÷ byte	e (64 · 1500)	
					ОК	Cancel

How to set up transmission parameters

- ① Set **IP** Address ("192.168.001.001," for example).
- © Select *Edit Local Station: TCP/IP Setting* in the Engineering Manager Window the **Detail Setting** Dialog Box will appear.
- ③ Set Subnet Mask ("255.255.255.000," for example).
- ④ Set Gateway IP Address ("000.000.000," for example).

## Caution

Set up a unique IP address in the network. For the IP address, check with your network administrator.

3. Set connection parameters.

	0	2	3	4		<b>S</b>		6	
218 Conn	ection Para	imeter							
CNO	Local Port	Node IP Address	Node Port	Connec Type	t	Protocol Type		Cod	e
01	0001	192.168.001.001	10001	TCP	•	Extended MEMOBUS	+	BIN	-
02	0002	192.168.001.001	10002	TCP	•	Extended MEMOBUS	-	BIN	-
03	10003	192.168.001.001	10003	TCP	•	Extended MEMOBUS	-	BIN	-
04					•		-		-
05	10005	192.168.001.001	10005	TCP	•	Extended MEMOBUS	-	BIN	•
06	10006	192.168.001.001	10006	TCP	-	Extended MEMOBUS	-	BIN	-
07					•		-		•
08					•		-		-
09					-		-		-

## How to set up with a connection number 02 in the CP-218 Connection Parameter Area

① Set Local Port to the port number used in the MP2300 side ("10002" for example).

© Set the **Node IP Address** to the IP address configured in the CPU-03/CPU-04 side ("192.168.001.001" for example).

③ Set the Node Port to the port number configured in the CPU-03/CPU-04 side ("10002," for example).

④ Select Connect Type (TCP, for example).

- S Select Extended MEMOBUS for Protocol Type.
- © Select Code (BIN, for example).

## Caution

When any transmission or connection parameter is changed, the change will be reflected after it has been saved in flash memory and the power supply is turned ON again.

4. Create a ladder program containing a message send function (MSG-SND).

An example of a ladder program for transmitting messages to/from the remote device (MP2300) side follows:

#### Message send function (MSG-SND)

This system function is required for transmitting messages. Message transmission is carried out by describing and executing this message send function in a ladder program.





Fig. 6.5 MPE720 Module Configuration Window

#### ■ Input/output definitions contents for message send function

The input/output definition content for the message send function is as follows:

I/O Definition	No.	Name	Setting Example	Contents
	1	Execute	DB000200	Executes a transmission When Execute is ON, the message transmission will be carried out.
	2	Abort	DB000201	Forcibly aborts a transmission When Abort is ON, the message transmission is forcibly stopped.
	3	Dev-Typ	00006	Communication device type Specify the type of the communication device used in transmission. When Ethernet (218IF) is used, specify "6."
	4	Рго-Тур	00001	Communication protocol Specify the type of the communication protocol. MEMOBUS(*1) = 1, non-procedure 1(*2) = 2, non-procedure 2(*2) = 3
Input Item	5	Cir-No	00001	Circuit number Specify a circuit number of the communication device. Specify it in accordance with the circuit number displayed in the MPE720 <b>Module Configuration</b> Window.
	6	Ch-No	00002	<ul> <li>Communication buffer channel number</li> <li>Specify the channel number of the communication buffer.</li> <li>When Ethernet (218IF) is used, specify it in the range between "1" and "10."</li> <li>When Ethernet (218IFC) is used, specify it in the range between "1" and "10."</li> <li>Note: Set up a unique channel number in the circuit.</li> </ul>
	7	Param	DA00000	Parameter list start address Specify the start address of the parameter list. For the Parameter List, 17 words are automatically assigned from the configured address.
	1	Busy	DB000210	In process Busy will be ON while executing a message transmission or forced abort process.
Output Item	2	Complete	DB000211	Process completed When a message transmission or forced abort process is properly completed, Complete will turn ON only for one scan.
	3	Error	DB000212	Error When an error occurs, Error will turn ON only for one scan.

Tabla 6 6 Ir	nut/Outnut	Dofinitiono	for Moccogo	Sand Eurotian
	ipul/Oulpul	Deminions	IUI IVIESSAYE	

* 1. When transmitting in MEMOBUS, Extended MEMOBUS, MELSEC, or MODBUS/TCP protocol, set the communication protocol (Pro-Typ) to MEMOBUS(=1). The communication device automatically converts the protocol.

* 2. Non-procedure 1: In non-procedural communication, data is transmitted on a per-word basis. Non-procedure 2: In non-procedural communication, data is transmitted on a per-byte basis.

## Parameter list setting for the message send function

An example of a parameter list setting when reading 100 words of data from MW00100 from the destination using the connection with a connection number = 2 follows:

Register Number	Setting Value	Parameter Number	IN/OUT	Remarks		
DW00000	-	PARAM00	OUT	Process result		
DW00001	-	PARAM01	OUT	Status		
DW00002	00002	PARAM02	IN	Connection number = 2		
DW00003	-	PARAM03	IN	Option (Setting unnecessary)		
DW00004	0009H	PARAM04	IN	Function code = 09H (Reads a holding register)		
DW00005	00100	PARAM05	IN	Data address = 100 (Starting from MW00100)		
DW00006	00100	PARAM06	IN	Data size = $100 (100 \text{ words})$		
DW00007	00001	PARAM07	IN	Remote CPU number = 1		
DW00008	00000	PARAM08	IN	Coil offset = 0 word		
DW00009	00000	PARAM09	IN	Input relay offset = $0$ word		
DW00010	00000	PARAM10	IN	Input register offset = $0$ word		
DW00011	00000	PARAM11	IN	Holding register offset = $0$ word		
DW00012	-	PARAM12	SYS	Reserved by the system. (Zero clear at startup)		
DW00013	-	PARAM13	SYS	Reserved by the system.		
DW00014	_	PARAM14	SYS	Reserved by the system.		
DW00015	-	PARAM15	SYS	Reserved by the system.		
DW00016	_	PARAM16	SYS	Reserved by the system.		

Table 6.7 Parameter List Setting Example (parameter list start address Param=DA00000)

Note: IN: Input, OUT: Output, SYS: For system use

## Example of Using the Message Send Function in a Ladder Program

Here is one example of the message send function through Ethernet (218IF).

i.	message sending ladder program (218	IF)	
	initializing setting parameters for MSG-SND function on the first scan after power on. use "SB000003" for low scan "SB000004" for high scan		
1	1st scan after power on		
1	clear for all D registers		
2			<u>ארע ארע ארע ארע ארע ארע ארע ארע ארע ארע </u>
	setting connection No. (PARAM02)		
3			
2	DW00002=2;		
	setting function code (PARAM04)		
3	DW00004=0x0009; //09H=reading register (extended)		
	setting data address (PARAM05)/ date size (PARAM08)		
4	DW00005=100; //data address (100); DW00008=100; //data size (100 words)		
	setting partner CPU No.(PARAM07)		
<b>a</b>			
5	DW00007=1;		
	setting offset (PARAM08-PARAM11)		
8	DW00008=0; //coil offset (PARAM08) DW00009=0; //input relay offset (PARAM09) DW00010=0; //input register offset (PARAM10) DW00011=0 //recister offset (PARAM11)		
- h	clear for system register (PARAM12)		
. [		6	
			STORE 🗾
		[W/LF]Src 00000	[W/LF]Dest DW00012
	END_IF		
	normal scan treatment take it as timeout for abortion if not ended in 10 seconds after sending command.		
	sending command abort DB000200 DB000201		timeout DB00020A
1	[W]Set 01000 [W]Count DW00031		
	release abort if timeout or error take place		
	timeout treating end DB00020A DB000211		abort DB000204
3	arror		<u> </u>
	DB000212		
ŀ			
	abort		

6-31

	possible to resen	d in 60 seconds .	after abortion					
	abort DB000201	waiting er DB00020	nd 9					waiting DB000208
0011								
018 NL-1	una tática a	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1						
	DB000208							
	waiting DB000208							waiting end DB000209
012		-(	s] 🔼 )					
0022 NL-1		[W]Set 0600 NMCount DWO	00 10028					
	conding more a	over 1 ceeeed	affer 5 cocondo	of coap charled				
	use "SB000003"	for low scan, "S	B000001" for hi	gh scan.				
	After 5.0s,Soa	an Star						
	t-up Relay SB00003	BA						55-ON D800020D
013	——————————————————————————————————————							
0025 NL-1								
	5. OV	1						
	DB00020D	treating end DB000211	DB000212	Waiting DB000208				bB000200
014			—//—	-1/-		[10ms] 🔼 )		
NL-1					[VV]Set [VV]Count	00100 D1000030		
					1.000	1990 10 10 10 10		
						MSG-SND	function	
015						(BIExecute	MS DB000200	G-SND)
IL-1						[B]Abort	DB000201	[B]Complete DB000211
						[W]Dev-Typ [W]Pro-Typ	00006	[B]Enor DB000212
						MCir-No	00001	
						[A]Param	DA00000	
	treatment after n	ormally finished						
	after finish							
016		F 🔼)						
034	DB000211=	=true						
· · ·								
	abort DB000201							count for normal
0017								
NL-2								[WL]Dest DW00024
018	-(_END_IF	}						
IL-1								
	treatment while	error taking place						
	while error							
019	DB000212=	F A						
NL-1	Vice Book Book							
								count for abnormal
020								
NL-2								[WL]Dest DW00025
	results save							
021		EXPRESS	ION	<u>a</u> )				
0040	DW00026=D	W00000; //resu	Its (PARAMOO)					
	D0000027=D	woooon //stat	us(FARAMU1)	1				
1022	END IS							
0041	(							
NL-1	treatment while	timeout						
	reatment while	oNeed						
	timeout DB00020A	DB00020B						timeout taking place DB00020C
023								
042 1L-1								

while timeout           (IF 因)           DB00020C==true	
	count for timeo (INC [W1.]Dest DW00
(END_IF)	
END	

The communication setting and the ladder program creation are now finished, when MP2300 acts as a master.

## (3) How to Start Communications

1. The CPU-03/CPU-04 side starts to receive the messages.

As the sample ladder program automatically starts the message receive operation just after system startup, you are not required to do anything. In normal operation, accept the default.

## 2. Turn Execute ON for the message send function in the MP2300 side to transmit messages.

Messages are transmitted by turning on the register DB000200 configured in Execute of the message send function, for example, and communication with the CPU-03/CPU-04 starts.

I/O Definition	No.	Name	Setting Example	Contents
Input Item	1	Execute	DB000200	Executes a transmission When Execute is ON, the message transmission is carried out.

#### Table 6.8 Input/Output Definition for Message Send Function

The sample ladder program is created to transmit a message every one second when five seconds have elapsed after the low-speed scan (or high-speed scan) startup.

To change the message transmission interval, change the timer value  $\mathbb{O}$ .



6.2.3 When CPU-03/CPU-04 Acts as Master (I/O message communication function is used)

# 6.2.3 When CPU-03/CPU-04 Acts as Master (I/O message communication function is used)

This section explains how to communicate with the CPU-03/CPU-04 message receive function (MSG-RCV) using the MP2300 I/O message communication function.





#### I/O Message Communication

I/O message communication implements out 1:1 communication.

In addition, you can read and write only the holding register in the case of "Communication Protocol Type: Extended MEMO-BUS" used in the communication with MP series.

When you communicate with multiple remote devices, or when you need to read a coil state or input relay, or change a coil state as well as read/write a holding register, use the message send function (MSG-SND).

## Setting Example

The following figure illustrates one example of reading the contents of the holding register (MW00200 to MW00299) of MP2300 (slave) into an input register (IW0000 to IW0063) of the CPU-03/CPU-04 (master) and writing the contents of an output register (OW0064 to OW00C7) of the CPU-03/CPU-04 (master) into a holding register (MW00300 to MW00399) of MP2300 (slave).



The setup procedure is explained in the following pages.

6.2.3 When CPU-03/CPU-04 Acts as Master (I/O message communication function is used)

## (1) How to Set up the CPU-03/CPU-04 Side

If the setting of transmission parameters (IP address, subnet mask) is already completed, start from step 3.

# 1. Double-click the **218IFA** Tab (**218IFC** Tab for the CPU-04) in the **Module Details** Area in the CPU-03 **Module Configuration** Window.

Slot Number	1	2		3		4		5	
Module Type	CPU 🔹	• SVR	•	CARD		218IFA	•	MEIXECUTO	R -
Circuit Number	-	02		-		01		-	
I/O Start Register						0000		0800	
I/O End Register						07FF		083F	
Disable Input		r	-		•	Enable	-		
Disable Output			•		•	Enable	•		
Motion Start Register		8800					ě		
Motion End Register		8FFF							
Details									
Status	Running	Running		Running		Running		Running	

## 2. Set transmission parameters.

123		
Transmission Parameters	itatus	
- Transmission Parameters	Module Name Definition	
IP Address	: 192 ÷ · 168 ÷ · 1 ÷ · 1 ÷ (0-255)	-
Subnet Mask	: 255 - 255 - 255 - 0 - (0-255)	
Gateway IP Address	: 0	

How to set up transmission parameters

① Set IP Address ("192.168.001.001," for example).

⁽²⁾ Set Subnet Mask ("255.255.255.000," for example).

③ Set Gateway IP Address ("000.000.000," for example).

## Caution

Set up a unique IP address in the network. For the IP address, check with your network administrator.

# **3.** Select the **Enable** Option in the **I/O Message Communication** Area of the connection parameter setting.

Easy setting	Communication It is possit timing Low	n ble to set easily that comm	nunicate th	ie I/O message.			
Read/ Write	Local Port	Node IP Address	Node Port	Connect Type	Protocol Type	Code	Node Name
Read				<b>•</b>	<b>•</b>	-	
Write				-	•	-	
•							
	Head	d register number data siz	e	Head register	number data size	•	
ирээнне Г	input disable	e   W/0000   4	w.	Hold register(MW)	▼ 000000 4 W	Nodo om úr	
MF23005	output disat	ale 0\v/0004 4	W->	Hold register(MW)	▼ 00004 4 W	Node equip	листи

4. Set a communication setting in the I/O Message Communication Easy Setting Dialog Box.



- How to set up in the I/O Message Communication Easy Setting Dialog Box
  - ① Set Port No. of the CPU-03/CPU-04 side ("10005, 10006," for example).
  - © Select Extended MEMOBUS for Communication Protocol Type, and click the Default Button.

Caution

When the communication protocol is Extended MEMOBUS, the register type that can select both read and write is fixed at the Holding Register (MW).

- ③ Select Connect Type (TCP, for example).
- ④ Select Code (BIN, for example).
- Set Remote IP Address of the other device (MP2300) to be connected ("192.168.001.002," for example).
- © Set Port No. of the other device (MP2300) to be connected ("10005, 10006," for example).
- Caution

In I/O message communication, as a message is transmitted from each port number for register read/write, a connected remote device needs the message receive functions to receive two messages.

6.2.3 When CPU-03/CPU-04 Acts as Master (I/O message communication function is used)

- ⑦ Set a storage area (Input Reg) of data read by CPU-03/CPU-04 (IW0000, for example).
- ® Set the Read Size of data to be read by the CPU-03/CPU-04 ("100" W, for example).
- Set a storage area (Output Reg) of data written by the CPU-03/CPU-04 (OW0064, for example).
- [®] Set the Write Size of data written by the CPU-03/CPU-04 ("100" W, for example).
- ^(IIII) Is tan I/O data update timing (Data update timing) for CPU and built-in Ethernet ("Low" scan, for example).

#### Data Update Timing

Data update timing indicates when to send and receive data between the CPU and built-in Ethernet. Communication with the remote device is carried out asynchronously, so note that a message is not necessarily transmitted to the remote equipment at each set data update time.

- © Set the register type and start address (**Read Reg**) of the remote device (MP2300) read by the CPU-03/CPU-04 ("MW00200," for example).
- ③ Set the register type and start address (Write Reg) of the remote device (MP2300) written by the CPU-03/ CPU-04 ("MW00300," for example).

( Click OK.

**5.** Click **Yes** in the parameter setting confirmation window.

#### Caution

Note that when a parameter with the same connection number is already set and you click **Yes** in the parameter setting confirmation window, the setting will be overwritten by the parameter configured in the **Message Communication Easy Setting** Dialog Box.

#### **6.** Check the setting values.

asy setting a update tir	It is possi ning Low	ble to set easily that comm	nunicate th	e I/O message.	-			
Read/ Write	Local Port	Node IP Address	Node Port	Connect Type	Protocol Type	С	ode	
Read	10005	192.168.001.002	10005	тср 🔻	Extended MEMOBUS	BIN	-	
Write	10006	192.168.001.002	10006	тср 💌	Extended MEMOBUS	BIN	•	

The I/O message communication is now set up, when the CPU-03/CPU-04 acts as a master.

#### Caution

When any transmission or connection parameter is changed, the change will be not reflected after it has been saved in flash memory and the power supply is turned ON again.

## (2) How to Set up the Remote Device (MP2300) to Be Connected

When the setting of transmission parameters (IP address, subnet mask) is already completed, start from step 3.

Module Configuration	MP2300 Onli	ne	Local					
#: 3 CPU#: 1								
Controller								alle.
	[	_		-		_		
<u>Slot Number</u>	00	10000	01	1	02	1000	03	
Module Type	MP2300		2181-01	_	UNDEFINED	<u> </u>	UNDEFINED	
Controller Number	-	_	-	_	-		-	
Circuit Number	-	-	50		-			
I/O Start Register						_		
I/O End Register								_
Disable Input		•		*	-	•		-
Disable Output		•		•		•		-
Motion Start Register				-9				
Motion End Register								
Details								
Status	Running		Running					
218IF-01: The module has Et	hernet and RS232	fur	nctions.					
-Module Details 218IF-01 SLI	OT#01							
[	-			-		_		
Slot Number		-						
Module Type	2171	-	2181	~				
Controller Number	01		01					
Circuit Number	01	_	01					
I/O Start Register								
I/O End Register								
Motion Start Register								
Motion End Register								
Details								
Chattan	Running		Running					

1. Double-click the 218IF Tab in the Module Details of the Module Configuration Window.

**2.** Set transmission parameters.

Φ	3 4
Transmission Paramiters Status CP-218 Transmission Parameters Station Settin IP Address : 192	<ul> <li>. 1 . 1 . 1 . (0 · 255)</li> <li>(0 · 255)</li> <li>(0 · 255)</li> </ul>
CP-218 Connection Parameter  CN0 Local Port Node IP Addr 01 02 03 04 05 06 07 08 09 1 1 1 1	2218 (Station Setting)         ★           Station Setting         Station Setting           Submet Mask         :         255 m²         .         0 m²         (0.255)           Gateway IP Addres:         0 m²         0 m²         0 m²         (0.255)           System Port No.         :         10000         (DIAG. Port No./Engineering Port)         (256-65535)           TCP PLY Setting         TCP Zero Window Timer Value         3 m²         s         (1 - 255)           TCP Retry Time         500 m²         s         (1 - 255)           IP Assemble Time         30 m²         s         (1 - 255)           IP Assemble Time         30 m²         s         (1 - 255)           MAX. Packet Length         1500 m²         byte         (64 - 1500)

6.2.3 When CPU-03/CPU-04 Acts as Master (I/O message communication function is used)

How to set up transmission parameters

① Set IP Address ("192.168.001.001", for example).

- ② Select *Edit Local Station: TCP/IP Setting* in the Engineering Manager Window the Detail Setting Dialog Box will appear.
- ③ Set Subnet Mask ("255.255.255.000", for example).
- ④ Set Gateway IP Address ("000.000.000", for example).

#### Caution

Set up a unique IP address in the network. For the IP address, check with your network administrator.

#### **3.** Set connection parameters.



How to set up with a connection numbers 05, 06 in the CP-218 Connection Parameter Area

① Set Local Port to the port number used in the MP2300 side ("10005, 10006," for example).

② Set Node IP Address to the IP address configured in the CPU-03/CPU-04 side ("192.168.001.001," for example).

③ Set Node Port to the port number configured in the CPU-03/CPU-04 side ("10005, 10006," for example).

- ④ Select Connect Type (TCP, for example).
- **⑤** Select Extended MEMOBUS for Protocol Type.
- © Select Code (BIN, for example).

#### Caution

When any transmission or connection parameter is changed, the change will be reflected after it has been saved in flash memory and the power supply is turned ON again.

**4.** Create a ladder program with a message receive function (MSG-RCV) in it.

An example of a ladder program for receiving messages in the remote device (MP2300) side follows:

Message receive function (MSG-RCV)

This system function is required for receiving messages. Message reception is carried out by describing and executing this message receive function in a ladder program.

In addition, in order to support Read and Write by the CPU-03/CPU-04, two message receive functions should be provided. Here, the input item and parameters (Communication buffer channel number and Connection number) of the message receive function need to accord with the CPU-03/CPU-04 side settings.



Note: Similarly, a message receive function with the communication buffer channel number = 6 is required.



Fig. 6.7 MPE720 Module Configuration Window

6.2.3 When CPU-03/CPU-04 Acts as Master (I/O message communication function is used)

#### Input/output definition contents for message receive function

The input/output definition content for message receive function is as follows:

I/O Definition	No.	Name	Setting Example	Content
	1	Execute	DB000200	Executes a reception When Execute is ON, message reception is carried out.
	2	Abort	DB000201	Forcibly aborts a reception When Abort is ON, the message reception is forcibly stopped.
	3	Dev-Typ	00006	Communication device type Specify the type of the communication device used in reception. When Ethernet (218IF) is used, specify "6."
	4	Pro-Typ	00001	Communication protocol Specify the type of the communication protocol. MEMOBUS(*1) = 1, non-procedure 1(*2) = 2, non-procedure 2(*2) = 3
Input Item	5	Cir-No	00001	Circuit number Specify a circuit number of the communication device. Specify it in accordance with the circuit number displayed in the MPE720 <b>Module Configuration</b> Window.
	6	Ch-No	00005 & 00006	Communication buffer channel number Specify the channel number of a communication buffer. When Ethernet (218IF) is used, specify it in the range between "1" and "10."
	7	Param	DA00000	Parameter list start address Specify the start address of the parameter list. For the Parameter List, 17 words are automatically assigned from the configured address.
	1	Busy	DB000210	In process Busy will be ON while executing a message reception or forced abort process.
Output Item	2	Complete	DB000211	Process completed When a message reception or forced abort process is properly com- pleted, Complete will turn ON only for one scan.
	3	Error	DB000212	Error When an error occurs, Error will turn ON only for one scan.

Table 6.9 Input/Output Definitions for Message Receive Func-	tion
--------------------------------------------------------------	------

* 1. When transmitting in MEMOBUS, Extended MEMOBUS, MELSEC, or MODBUS/TCP protocol, set the communication protocol (Pro-Typ) to MEMOBUS (=1). The communication device automatically converts the protocol.

* 2. Non-procedure 1: In non-procedural communication, data is received on a per-word basis. Non-procedure 2: In non-procedural communication, data is received on a per-byte basis.

## Parameter list setting example for message receive function

An example of a parameter list setting when receiving messages from a transmit source using the connection with connection numbers = 5 and 6 follows:

Register Number	Setting Value	Parameter Number	IN/OUT	Remarks
DW00000	-	PARAM00	OUT	Process result
DW00001	-	PARAM01	OUT	Status
DW00002	00005	PARAM02	IN	Connection number = 5 (For receiving read operation)
DW00003	-	PARAM03	OUT	Option
DW00004	-	PARAM04	OUT	Function code
DW00005	-	PARAM05	OUT	Data address
DW00006	-	PARAM06	OUT	Data size
DW00007	-	PARAM07	OUT	Remote CPU number
DW00008	00000	PARAM08	IN	Coil offset = 0 word
DW00009	00000	PARAM09	IN	Input relay offset = 0 word
DW00010	00000	PARAM10	IN	Input register offset = $0$ word
DW00011	00000	PARAM11	IN	Holding register offset = $0$ word
DW00012	00000	PARAM12	IN	Writable address lower limit = MW00000
DW00013	65534	PARAM13	IN	Writable address upper limit = MW65534
DW00014	-	PARAM14	SYS	Reserved by the system. (Zero clear at startup)
DW00015	_	PARAM15	SYS	Reserved by the system.
DW00016	_	PARAM16	SYS	Reserved by the system.

Table 6.10 Parameter List Setting Example 1 (parameter list start address Param = DA00000)

Note: IN: Input, OUT: Output, SYS: For system use

Table 6 11	Parameter List Setting	Evample 2 (narar	natar liet etart addraed	$Param = D\Delta 00000$
	I arameter List Setting	rander random	neter not start autress	r aram - DA00000)

Register Number	Setting Value	Parameter Number	IN/OUT	Remarks
DW00000	-	PARAM00	OUT	Process result
DW00001	_	PARAM01	OUT	Status
DW00002	00006	PARAM02	IN	Connection number = 6 (For receiving write opera- tion)
DW00003	-	PARAM03	OUT	Option
DW00004	-	PARAM04	OUT	Function code
DW00005	-	PARAM05	OUT	Data address
DW00006	-	PARAM06	OUT	Data size
DW00007	-	PARAM07	OUT	Remote CPU number
DW00008	00000	PARAM08	IN	Coil offset = 0 word
DW00009	00000	PARAM09	IN	Input relay offset = $0$ word
DW00010	00000	PARAM10	IN	Input register offset = $0$ word
DW00011	00000	PARAM11	IN	Holding register offset = $0$ word
DW00012	00000	PARAM12	IN	Writable address lower limit = MW00000
DW00013	65534	PARAM13	IN	Writable address upper limit = MW65534
DW00014	-	PARAM14	SYS	Reserved by the system. (Zero clear at startup)
DW00015	_	PARAM15	SYS	Reserved by the system.
DW00016	_	PARAM16	SYS	Reserved by the system.

Note: IN: Input, OUT: Output, SYS: For system use

6.2.3 When CPU-03/CPU-04 Acts as Master (I/O message communication function is used)

#### Example of Using the Message Receive Function in a Ladder Program

Here is one example of using the message receive function through Ethernet (218IF). In addition, this ladder program is for receiving read operation. A ladder program for receiving write operations is required separately.


6.2.3 When CPU-03/CPU-04 Acts as Master (I/O message communication function is used)

message receiving ladder p	program (218IF)
initializing setting parameters for MSG-RCV function on the first soan after power use "SB000003" for low soan, "SB000001" for high scan.	r on.
1st scan after power on	
[F 五]     SB00003 == true	
clear for all D registers	
	(SETW A)
	[vi]Dest DW00000 [vi]Data 00000 [vi]vidth 00032
setting connection No. (PARAM02)	
	Set DW00002 = 6
D1W00002=5;	to receive write
setting offset (PARAM08-PARAM11)	operations.
EXPRESSION     DW00008=0: //oil offset (PARAM08)     DW00000=0: //input relay offset (PARAM09)     DW00010=0; //input register offset (PARAM10)     DW00011=0 //register offset (PARAM11)	
writing range (PARAM12,PARAM13)	
DW00012=0: //writing range L0 (PARAM12) DW00013=65534; //writing range HI (PARAM13)	
clear for system register (PARAM14)	
	STORE 3
	[WLF]Src 00000 [WLF]Dest DW00014
normal soan treatment generating command for receiving.	
Always ON abort	receiving command
	MSG-RCV function
	MCC DC)(
	[B]Execute DB000200 [B]Busy DB000210
	Image: Ref         Image: Ref <thimage: ref<="" th="">         Image: Ref         Image: R</thimage:>
treatment after normally finished	(B)Execute         DB000200         (B)Busy         DB000210           (B)Abort         DB000201         (B)Complete         DB000211           (M)Dev.Typ         00016         (B)Error         DB000212           (M)Dev.Typ         00001         (M)Ch-No         00005           (A)Param         DA00000         Set Ch-No = 6
treatment after normally finished after finish	(B)Execute         DB000200         (B)Busy         DB000210           (B)Execute         DB000201         (B)Complete         DB000211           (M)Dev.Typ         00018         (B)Error         DB000212           (M)Ch.No         00001         (M)Ch.No         00005           (A)Param         DA00000         Set Ch-No = 6           to receive write         Ch.No         Ch.No
treatment after normally finished after finish IF DB000211==true	(B)Execute         DB000200         (B)Execute         DB000210           (B)Execute         DB000201         (B)Complete         DB000210           (B)Portyp         00016         (B)Error         DB000212           (M)Portyp         00001         (M)Ch-No         00005           (A)Param         DA00000         Set Ch-No = 6           to         receive         write           operations.
treatment after normally finished after finish IF DB000211==true abort DB000201	(B)Execute         DB000200         (B)Busy         DB000210           (B)Execute         DB000201         (B)Complete         DB000211           (M)DevTyp         00001         (B)Error         DB000212           (M)Ch-No         00005         (A)Param         DA00000   Set Ch-No = 6 to receive write operations.
treatment after normally finished after finish IF DB000211==true abort DB000201   /	Bit
treatment after normally finished after finish IF DB000211==true abort DB000201 //	(B)Execute DB000200       (B)Busy DB000210         (B)Execute DB000201       (B)Complete DB000210         (B)Execute DB000201       (B)Complete DB000211         (M)DevTyp 00016       (B)Error DB000212         (M)DevTy0 00001       (B)Error DB000212         (M)Ch-No 00005       (A)Param DA00000         (A)Param DA00000       Set Ch-No = 6         to receive write operations.       operations.         (WL]Dest DW00024       (WL]Dest DW00024
treatment after normally finished  after finish  IF DB000211==true  abort DB000201  //  END_IF  treatment while error taking place	(B)Execute       DB00200       [B]Busy       DB00210         [B]Abort       DB00201       [B]Complete       DB00211         [M]Dev-Typ       00001       [B]Error       DB00212         [M]Cir-No       00001       [M]Cir-No       00005         [A]Param       DA00000       Set Ch-No = 6         to       receive write       operations.         out for normal         [ML]Dest       DW00024
treatment after normally finished after finish IF DB000211==true abort DB000201 // END_IF treatment while error taking place while error	(B)Execute DB000200 (B)Abort DB000201 (B)Abort DB000201 (B)Complete DB000210 (B)Complete DB000212 (M)Por-Typ 00001 (M)Ch-No 00001 (M)Ch-No 00005 (A)Param DA00000 Set Ch-No = 6 to receive write operations. (WL]Dest DW00024

6.2.3 When CPU-03/CPU-04 Acts as Master (I/O message communication function is used)



The communication setting and the ladder program creation are now finished, when MP2300 acts as a slave.

## (3) How to Start Communication

**1.** The MP2300 side starts to receive the messages.

As the sample ladder program starts the message receive operation just after the system startup, you are not required to do anything. In normal operation, accept the default.

# 2. The CPU-03/CPU-04 side transmits messages.

When an I/O message communication function is used, message transmit operation status automatically.

The I/O message communication function cannot operate any registers other than the holding register (M register). Note that it can communicate with only one slave.

To communicate with more than one slave, use a ladder program with a message send function (MSG-SND) on the CPU-03/CPU-04 side. You can use the message transmit (MSG-SND) function as well as the I/O message communication function by keeping connections separate from each other.

This section explains how to communicate with the CPU-03/CPU-04 message receive function (MSG-RCV) using the MP2300 message send function (MSG-SND).



Fig. 6.8 Message Flow with MP2300 when Message Send Function (MSG-SND) Is Used

#### Setting Example

The following figure illustrates one example of reading the content of the MP2300 (slave) holding register (MW00400 to MW00499) into the CPU-03/CPU-04 (master) holding register (MW00400 to MW00499).



The setup procedure is explained in the following pages.

# (1) How to Set up the CPU-03/CPU-04 Side

When the setting of transmission parameters (IP address, subnet mask) is already completed, start from step 3.

# 1. Double-click the **218IFA** Tab (**218IFC** Tab for the CPU-04) in the **Module Details** Area in the CPU-03 **Module Configuration** Window.

Slot Number	1	2		3	_		_	5
Module Type	CPU	SVR	-	CARD	-	218IFA	•	M-EXECUTOR -
Circuit Number	-	02		-		01		-
I/O Start Register						0000		0800
I/O End Register						07FF		083F
Disable Input		1	•		•	Enable	-	-
Disable Output		·	•		•	Enable	•	-
Motion Start Register		8800						
Motion End Register		8FFF						
Details								
Status	Running	Running		Running		Running		Running

#### 2. Set transmission parameters.

$\begin{array}{c} 1 & 2 & 3 \\ 1 & 1 & 1 \end{array}$			
Transmission Parameters	Status	21	
─ Transmission Parameters IP Address Subnet Mask	:	192 ÷         168 ÷         1 ÷         1 ÷         (0-255)         Module Name Definition           255 ÷         255 ÷         0 ÷         (0-255)         Equipment name :         CON	TROLLER NAME
Gateway IP Address	18	0	

How to set up transmission parameters

- ① Set IP Address ("192.168.001.001," for example).
- [®] Set Subnet Mask ("255.255.255.000," for example).
- ③ Set Gateway IP Address ("000.000.000.000," for example).

Set up a unique IP address in the network. For the IP address, check with your network administrator.

# **3.** Click the **Easy setting** Button in the **Message Communication** Area of the connection parameter setting.

y setting	DIt is possib	ole to following parameter	setting eas	ily that communicate	e the message.		
CNO	Local Port	Node IP Address	Node Port	Connect Type	Protocol Type	Code	Detail
01				•	•	•	Setting
02			j j	-	-	-	Setting
03				•	•	•	Setting
04				-	•	-	Settina

Caution

4. Set a communication setting in the Message Communication Easy Setting Dialog Box.



#### How to set up in the Message Communication Easy Setting Dialog Box

^① When automatic receive function is used, select "3" for the **Connect No.** 

② Set Port No. of the CPU-03/CPU-04 side ("10003," for example).

- ③ Select Extended MEMOBUS for Communication protocol Type, and click the Default Button.
- ④ Select Connect Type (TCP, for example).
- S Select Code (BIN, for example).

[®] Set Node Port IP Address of the other device (MP2300) to be connected ("192.168.001.002," for example).

- ⑦ Set Port No. of the other device (MP2300) to be connected ("10003," for example).
- 8 Click OK.
- Caution

When message functions (MSG-SND, MSG-RCV) are used with the connection number 01, disable the automatic receive function. If message functions are used while the automatic receive function is enabled, the communication will not function properly.

Note: The automatic receive function with a connection number 01 is set to "Enable" by default.

5. Click Yes in the parameter setting confirmation dialog box.

#### Caution

Note that when a parameter with the same connection number is already set and you click **Yes** in the parameter setting confirmation dialog, the setting will be overwritten by the parameter configured in the **Message Communication Easy Setting** Dialog Box.

## 6. Check the setting values.

asy setting	It is possi	ble to following parameter	setting ea:	sily that co	mmur	nicate the message.				
CNO	Local Port	Node IP Address	Node Port	Conne Typ	ect e	Protocol Type		Cod	e	Automaticall V
01					-		•	-	•	Detail
02					-		•		•	
03	10003	192.168.001.002	10003	TCP	-	Extended MEMOBUS	-	BIN	•	
04					-		-	-	-	

Caution

When any transmission or connection parameter is changed, the change will be reflected after it has been saved in flash memory and the power supply is turned ON again.

7. Create a ladder program containing a message send function (MSG-SND).

An example of a ladder program example for transmitting messages from the CPU-03/CPU-04 side follows:

#### Message send function (MSG-SND)

This system function is required for transmitting messages. A message transmission is carried out by describing and executing this message send function in a ladder program.



			Co	m	nmunication	n	device	C	Circuit num
fodule Details CPU-03 BA	℃K#N1 SLAT#NA	<u>-</u>					$\mathbf{h}$		
Slot Number	1		2		3	J			
Module Type	CPU	•	SVR	•	CARD		218IFA 🔹	-EXECUTOR	-
Circuit Number	-		02		-	1	01	ĐK	
I/O Start Register				Ĵ			0000	0800	
I/O End Register							07FF	083F	
Disable Input		•		•	-		Enable 🔹	•	-
Disable Output		•		٠	-	•	Enable 🔹		•
Motion Start Register			8800						
Motion End Register			8FFF						
Details									
Status	Running		Running		Running	I	Running	Running	

= 1

Fig. 6.9 MPE720 Module Configuration Window

#### Input/output definition contents for message send function

The input/output definition content for the message send function is as follows:

I/O Definition	No.	Name	Setting Example	Contents				
	1	Execute	DB000200	Executes a transmission When Execute is ON, the message transmission is carried out.				
	2	Abort	DB000201	Aborts a transmission When the Abort is ON, message transmission is forcibly stopped.				
	3	Dev-Typ	00016	Communication device type Specify the type of the communication device used in reception. When Ethernet (218IFA/218IFC) is used, specify 16.				
	4 Pro-Typ 00001		00001	Communication protocol Specify the type of the communication protocol. MEMOBUS(*1) = 1, non-procedure 1(*2) = 2, non-procedure 2(*2) = 3				
Input Item	5	Cir-No	00001	Circuit number Specify a circuit number of the communication device. Specify it in accordance with the circuit number displayed in the MPE720 <b>Module Configuration</b> Window.				
	6	Ch-No	00003	<ul> <li>Communication buffer channel number</li> <li>Specify the channel number of a communication buffer.</li> <li>When Ethernet (218IFA) is used, specify a number between 1 and 4.</li> <li>When Ethernet (218IFC) is used, specify a number between 1 and 10.</li> <li>Note: Set up a unique channel number in the circuit.</li> </ul>				
	7	Param	DA00000	Parameter list start address Specify the start address of the parameter list. For the Parameter List, 17 words are automatically assigned from the configured address.				
	1	Busy	DB000210	In process Busy is ON while executing a message transmission or forced abort process.				
Output Item	2	Complete	DB000211	Process completed When a message transmission or abort process is properly completed, Complete will turn ON only for one scan.				
	3	Error	DB000212	Error occurred When an error occurs, Error will turn ON only for one scan.				

Table 6.12	Input/Output	Definitions	for Message	Send Function

* 1. When transmitting in MEMOBUS, Extended MEMOBUS, MELSEC, or MODBUS/TCP protocol, set the communication protocol (Pro-Typ) to MEMOBUS (=1). The communication device automatically converts the protocol.

* 2. Non-procedure 1: In non-procedural communication, data is transmitted on a per-word basis. Non-procedure 2: In non-procedural communication, data is transmitted on a per-byte basis.

#### Parameter list setting example for the message send function

An example of parameter list settings when writing 100 words of data from MW00400 to the destination using a connection with a connection number of 3 follows:

Register Number	Setting Val- ue	Parameter Num- ber	IN/OUT	Remarks
DW00000	_	PARAM00	OUT	Process result
DW00001	-	PARAM01	OUT	Status
DW00002	00003	PARAM02	IN	Connection number = 3
DW00003	-	PARAM03	IN	Option (Setting unnecessary)
DW00004	0009H	PARAM04	IN	Function code = 09H (Reads a holding register)
DW00005	00400	PARAM05	IN	Data address = 400 (Starting from MW00400)
DW00006	00100	PARAM06	IN	Data size = 100 (100 words)
DW00007	00001	PARAM07	IN	Remote CPU number = 1
DW00008	00000	PARAM08	IN	Coil offset = 0 word
DW00009	00000	PARAM09	IN	Input relay offset = $0$ word
DW00010	00000	PARAM10	IN	Input register offset = $0$ word
DW00011	00000	PARAM11	IN	Holding register offset = $0$ word
DW00012	-	PARAM12	SYS	Reserved by the system. (Zero clear at startup)
DW00013	-	PARAM13	SYS	Reserved by the system.
DW00014	-	PARAM14	SYS	Reserved by the system.
DW00015	_	PARAM15	SYS	Reserved by the system.
DW00016	-	PARAM16	SYS	Reserved by the system.

Table 6.13 Parameter List Setting Example (parameter list start address Param = DA00000)

Note: IN: Input, OUT: Output, SYS: For system use

Example of Using the Message Send Function in a Ladder Program

Here is one example of using the message send function through Ethernet (218IFA/218IFC).

	message sending ladder program (21)	BIFA)	
	initializing setting parameters for MSG-SND function on the first soan after power on. use "SB000003" for low scan, "SB000001" for high scan.		
	1st scan after power on		
0000 0000 NL-1	(IF) SB000003 == true		
	clear for all D registers		
0001 0001 NL-2			(SETW ) [W]Dest DW00000 [W]Data 00000 [W]Width 00032
	setting connection No. (PARAMO2)		
002			
002	D1W00002=3;		
	setting function code (PARAM04)		
003	EXPRESSION D		
0003	DW00004=0x0009; //09H=reading register (extended)		
	setting data address (PARAM05)/ date size (PARAM06)		
_			
004	(		
IL-2	D/W00006=100; //data size (100 words)		
	setting partner CPU No.(PARAM07)		
005			
0005	D\W00007=1;		
	setting offset (PARAM08-PARAM11)		
0006	EXPRESSION D		
0006	DW00008=0; //coil offset (PARAM08)		
	DW00010=0; //input register offset (PARAM09)		
	DW00011=0 //register offset (PARAM11)		
	clear for system register (PARAM12)		
007			STORE 🔼
1007 1L-2		[WLF]Src 00000	[WLF]Dest DW00012
07.73			
8000			
NL-1			
	normal scan treatment		
	take it as timeout for abortion if not ended in 10 seconds after sending comman-	d.	
	sending command abort DB000200 DB000201		timeout DB00020A
0009	/ TON[10ms]		
0009 NL-1	[W]Set 01000		
	Inform process		
	release abort if timeout or error take place		
	timeout treating end DB00020A DB000211		abort DB000201
010			
0013			$\sim$
-01	error DB000212		
	abort DB000201		





The communication setting and the ladder program creation are now finished, when the CPU-03/CPU-04 acts as a master.

## (2) How to Set up the Remote Device (MP2300) to Be Connected

If the setting of transmission parameters (IP address, subnet mask) is already completed, start from step 3.

: 3 CPU#: 1		_						l
Controller		_						
Slot Number	00	-	01		02		03	
Module Type	MP2300	-	218IF-01	•	UNDEFINED	-	UNDEFINED	-
Controller Number	-	1	-		<u> </u>		-	
Circuit Number	-		-		-			
I/O Start Register								Ĩ
I/O End Register								
Disable Input		•		•		-		•
Disable Output		•		•		-		-
Motion Start Register				-				
Motion End Register								
Details								
Status	Running		Running					
Module Details 218IF-01 SL	OT#01							
Slot Number	1		2					
Module Type	217IF	<	1218IF		>			
Controller Number	01		01					
Circuit Number	01		01					
I/O Start Register								
I/O End Register								
Motion Start Register								
Motion End Register								
Details								
C	Running		Running					

1. Double-click the 218IF Tab in the Module Details Area of the Module Configuration Window.

2. Set transmission parameters.



- How to set up transmission parameters
  - ① Set IP Address ("192.168.001.001," for example).
  - © Select *Edit Local Station: TCP/IP Setting* in the Engineering Manager Window the **Detail Setting** Dialog Box will appear.
  - ³ Set Subnet Mask ("255.255.255.000," for example).
  - ④ Set Gateway IP Address ("000.000.000," for example).

#### Caution

Set up a unique IP address in the network.

For the IP address, check with your network administrator.

#### **3.** Set connection parameters.

		2	3	4	Ş	Ģ
18 Conr	nection Para	meter		_		
CNO	Local Fort	Node IP Address	Node Port	Connect Type	Protocol Type	Code
01	10001	192.168.001.001	10001	TCP	Extended MEMOBUS	▼ BIN ▼
02	16902	192 68.001.001	10002	ТСР	Extended MEMOBUS	- BIN -
03	0003	192.168.001.001	10003	ТСР -	Extended MEMOBUS	▼ BIN ▼
04						• •
05	10005	192.168.001.001	10005	тср 🔻	Extended MEMOBUS	▼ BIN ▼
06	10006	192.168.001.001	10006	тср 🔻	Extended MEMOBUS	▼ BIN ▼
07			1			• •
08				-		
09						• •

- Procedure to set up with a connection number 03 in the **CP-218 Connection Parameter** Area
  - ① Set Local Port to the port number used in the MP2300 side ("10003," for example).

© Set **Node IP Address** to the IP address configured in the CPU-03/CPU-04 side ("192.168.001.001," for example).

- ③ Set Node Port to the port number configured in the CPU-03/CPU-04 side ("10003," for example).
- ④ Select Connect Type, (TCP, for example).
- ^⑤ Select Extended MEMOBUS for Protocol Type.
- [©] Select Code (BIN, for example).

#### Caution

When any transmission or connection parameter is changed, the change will be reflected after it has been saved in flash memory and the power supply is turned ON again.

4. Create a ladder program with a message receive function (MSG-RCV) in it.

An example of a ladder program for receiving messages in the remote device (MP2300) side follows:

#### Message receive function (MSG-RCV)

This system function is required for receiving messages. Message reception is carried out by describing and executing this message receive function in a ladder program.

In addition, in order to support Read and Write by CPU-03/CPU-04, two message receive functions should be provided. Here, the input item and parameters (communication buffer channel number and connection number) of the message receive function need to accord with the CPU-03/CPU-04 side settings.



Note: Similarly, a message receive function with the communication buffer channel number=6 is required.

Сс	mmunication de	Circuit number = 1		
-I	Module Details 218IF-01 SL(	DT#01		
	Slot Number	1	2	
	Module Type	217IF	218IF	-)/
	Controller Number	01	01	
	Circuit Number	01	01	
	I/O Start Register			
	I/O End Register			
	Motion Start Register			5
	Motion End Register			
	Details			
	Status	Running	Running	

Fig. 6.10 MPE720 Module Configuration Window

#### Input/output definitions contents for message receive function

The input/output definition content for message receive function is as follow:

I/O Definition	No.	Name	Setting Example	Contents
	1	Execute	DB000200	Executes a reception When Execute turns ON, the message reception is carried out.
	2	Abort	DB000201	Aborts a reception When Abort turns ON, the message reception is forcibly stopped.
	3	Dev-Typ	00006	Communication device type Specify the type of the communication device used in reception. When Ethernet (218IF) is used, specify "6."
	4	Рго-Тур	00001	Communication protocol Specify the type of the communication protocol. MEMOBUS(*1) = 1, non-procedure 1(*2) = 2, non-procedure 2(*2) = 3
Input Item	5	Cir-No	00001	Circuit number Specify a circuit number of the communication device. Specify it in accordance with the circuit number displayed in the MPE720 <b>Module Configuration</b> Window.
	6	Ch-No	00003	Communication buffer channel number Specify the channel number of a communication buffer. When Ethernet (218IF) is used, specify it in the range between "1" and "10."
	7	Param	DA00000	Parameter list start address Specify the start address of the parameter list. For the Parameter List, 17 words are automatically assigned from the configured address.
	1	Busy	DB000210	In process Busy will be ON while executing a message reception or forced abort process.
Output Item	2	Complete	DB000211	Process completed When a message reception or forced abort process is properly com- pleted, Complete will turn ON only for one scan.
	3	Error	DB000212	Error occurred When an error occurs, Error will turn ON only for one scan.

Table C 11	Imment/Oritorit	Definitione	for Magaaaa	Deceive	<b>L</b> umation
1201e b 14		Denninons	IOF Message	Receive	EIINCHON
10010 0.11	inpat output	Dominionio	nor moodage	1.000110	i anotion

* 1. When transmitting in MEMOBUS, Extended MEMOBUS, MELSEC, or MODBUS/TCP protocol, set the communication protocol (Pro-Typ) to MEMOBUS(=1). The communication device automatically converts the protocol.

* 2. Non-procedure 1: In non-procedural communication, data is received on a per-word basis. Non-procedure 2: In non-procedural communication, data is received on a per-byte basis.

#### Parameter list setting example for message receive function

A parameter list setting example is as follows when receiving messages from a transmit source using the connection with a connection number = 3:

Register Number	Setting Value	Parameter Number	IN/OUT	Remarks
DW00000	-	PARAM00	OUT	Process result
DW00001	-	PARAM01	OUT	Status
DW00002	00003	PARAM02	IN	Connection number = 3 (For receiving read operation)
DW00003	_	PARAM03	OUT	Option
DW00004	_	PARAM04	OUT	Function code
DW00005	-	PARAM05	OUT	Data address
DW00006	_	PARAM06	OUT	Data size
DW00007	-	PARAM07	OUT	Remote CPU number
DW00008	00000	PARAM08	IN	Coil offset = 0 word
DW00009	00000	PARAM09	IN	Input relay offset = $0$ word
DW00010	00000	PARAM10	IN	Input register offset = 0 word
DW00011	00000	PARAM11	IN	Holding register offset = $0$ word
DW00012	00000	PARAM12	IN	Writable address lower limit = MW00000
DW00013	65534	PARAM13	IN	Writable address upper limit = MW65534
DW00014	-	PARAM14	SYS	Reserved by the system. (Zero clear at startup)
DW00015	_	PARAM15	SYS	Reserved by the system.
DW00016	-	PARAM16	SYS	Reserved by the system.

Table 6.15 Parameter List Setting Example1 (parameter list start address Param = DA00000)

Note: IN: Input, OUT: Output, SYS: For system use

#### Example of Using the Message Receive Function in a Ladder Program

A ladder program for receiving messages in the remote device (MP2300) side is similar to that in 6.2.3 (2) How to Set up the Remote Device (MP2300) to Be Connected.

However, change Communication buffer channel number and Connection number respectively based on the I/O definition and parameter list settings.

#### (3) How to Start Communication

#### **1.** MP2300 side starts to receive the messages.

As the sample ladder program starts the message receive operation just after the system startup, you don't need to operate it particularly. Normally, accept the default.

2. Turn Execute ON for the message send function in the CPU-03/CPU-04 side to transmit messages.

The sample ladder program is created to transmit a message every one second when five seconds elapsed after the low-speed scan (or high-speed scan) startup.

The way to change the message transmission interval is similar to that in 6.2.1 (3) How to Start Communications.

# 6.3 Communication with Touch Panel

This section explains how to communicate with a touch panel that supports extended MEMOBUS protocol using the CPU-03/CPU-04 automatic receive function.

In this section, the GP3000 series touch panel manufactured by Digital Electronics Corp. is used.

# 6.3.1 When CPU-03/CPU-04 Acts as Slave (automatic receive function is used)





Note: Here, communication with the touch panel is carried out using the automatic receive function, but it can also use the message receive function (MSG-RCV). For information on how to set up when the message receive function (MSG-RCV) is used, refer to 6.2.2 (1) How to Set up the CPU-03/CPU-04 Side.

#### Setting Example

The following figure shows an example which displays the content of the CPU-03/CPU-04 (slave) holding register (MW00100) on a touch panel and writes values from the touch panel to the same register.



The setup procedure is explained in the following pages.

- (1) How to Set up the CPU-03/CPU-04 Side
  - 1. Double-click the **218IFA** Tab (**218IFC** Tab for the CPU-04) in the **Module Details** Area in the CPU-03 **Module Configuration** Window.

Ē	Module Details CPU-03 RA	CK#01 SLOT#00—								
	Slot Number	1	2		3			-	5	
	Module Type	CPU .	SVR	-	CARD		218IFA	•	MEEXECUT	OR 🕶
	Circuit Number	-	02		-		01		-	
	I/O Start Register			Ĵ			0000		0800	
	I/O End Register						07FF		083F	
	Disable Input		,	•		-	Enable	-		-
	Disable Output		-	-		-	Enable	•		-
	Motion Start Register		8800							
	Motion End Register		8FFF					l		
	Details									l l
	Status	Running	Running		Running		Running		Running	

#### 2. Set transmission parameters.

123		
Transmission Parameters Sta	atus	
Transmission Parameters —	ha	Indule Name Definition
IP Address :	: 192 🐳 · 168 🐳 · 1 🐳 · 1 🐳 (0-255) 📕	guipment name : CONTROLLER NAME
Subnet Mask	255 🔹 255 🔹 255 🔹 0 🔹 (0-255)	*
Gateway IP Address	: 0 🔹 0 🐳 0 🐳 (0-255) 🔤	Detail Definition

## How to set up transmission parameters

- ① Set IP Address ("192.168.001.001," for example).
- ⁽²⁾ Set **Subnet Mask** ("255.255.255.000," for example).
- ③ Set Gateway IP Address ("000.000.000," for example).

#### Caution

Set up a unique IP address in the network. For the IP address, check with your network administrator.

# **3.** Click the **Easy Setting** Button in the **Message Communication** Area of the connection parameter setting.

sy setting	Dt is possib	ble to following parameter	setting eas	ily that communicate	the message.		
CNO	Local Port	Node IP Address	Node Port	Connect Type	Protocol Type	Code	Detail
01				•	•	•	Setting
02				•	-	-	Setting
03			]]	-	•	-	Setting
04				-	-	-	Setting

4. Set a communication setting in the Message Communication Easy Setting Dialog Box.



#### How to set up in the Message Communication Easy Setting Dialog Box

 ${\rm \textcircled{O}}$  When automatic receive function is used, select "1" for the **Connect No.** 

- [©] Set **Port No.** of CPU-03/CPU-04 side ("10001," for example).
- ③ Select Extended MEMOBUS for Communication protocol Type, and click the Default Button.
- ④ Select Connect Type (TCP, for example).
- S Select Code (BIN, for example).
- Set Node Port IP Address of the other device (touch panel) to be connected ("192.168.001.002," for example).
- ⑦ Set Port No. of the other device (touch panel) to be connected ("10001," for example).
- 8 Click OK.

When message functions (MSG-SND, MSG-RCV) are used with the connection number 01, disable the automatic receive function. If message functions are used while the automatic receive function is enabled, the communications will not function properly.

Note: The automatic receive function with a connection number 01 is set to "Enable" by default.

Caution

5. Click Yes in the parameter setting confirmation dialog box.

#### Caution

Note that when a parameter with the same connection number is already set and you click Yes in the parameter setting confirmation dialog, the setting will be overwritten by the parameter configured in the Message Communication Easy Setting Dialog Box.

6. Check the setting value and click the Setting Button in the Detail Column.

asy setting	It is possit	t is possible to following parameter setting easily that communicate the message.									
CNO	Local Port	Node IP Address	Node Port	Conne Type	ct	Protocol Type		Coc	le	Detail	T
01	10001	192.168.001.002	10001	TCP	•	Extended MEMOBUS	•	BIN	-(	Setting	D
02					-		•		-	Setting	1
03					-		•		-	Setting	
04					-		-		-	Setting	

7. Select the Enable Option in the Automatically Reception Tab Page of the Detail Setting Dialog Box and then click the OK Button.

C Disable Unable to automat Finable Disable Unable to automat protocol type is no	ed reception, when the control sequence.
Transmission Buffer Channel 1	The automatic reception is fixed 1ch.
Slave I/F Register Settings	Head REG
Readout of Input Relay	IW0000
Readout of Input Register	1W0000
Readout / Write-in of Coil	MW00000
Readout / Write-in of Hold Register	MW00000
Write - in width of Coil/Hold Register _{L(} H	): MW00000 1: MW65534
Automatic input processing delay time	ms (0-100)
The influence on a low-speed scannin according to this parameter. [Attention] It is not in the setting of th period of an automatic reception.	ng can be adjusted e communication

Note: For more information on Slave Side I/F Register Setting and Automatic Receive Process Delay Time, refer to 2.5.6 (4) [b] # Automatically Reception Dialog Box for Message Communication. The automatic receive function for connecting the CPU-03/CPU-04 to the touch panel is now set up.

#### Caution

When any transmission or connection parameter is changed, the change will be reflected after it has been saved in flash memory and the power supply is turned ON again.

# (2) How to set up a touch panel

This section explains the GP-Pro EX side procedure to set up for connecting the CPU-03/CPU-04 to an indicator (GP3000 series) and the window creation example.

- Note: The indicator (GP3000 series) and GP-Pro EX are manufactured by Digital Electronics Corp. Contact Digital Electronics Corp. for more information.
- [a] How to Set up GP-Pro EX
  - 1. Start up GP-Pro EX.
  - 2. Create a new project.
  - 3. Set its indicator type. Set the indicator type in accordance with the model in use.

Here, we explain the setting when AGP-3600T is used.

Series	GP3000 series
00163	AGP33** series
Model	AGP-3600T
Installation Method	Horizontal model

**4.** Set up connected equipment.

Table 6.17 Connected Equipmer	Table 6.17	Connected	Equipment
-------------------------------	------------	-----------	-----------

Manufacturer	YASKAWA Electric Corporation
Series	MEMOBUS Ethernet

**5.** Set up the way to connect.

Table 6.18 Connection Method

Port	Ethernet (TCP)

- **6.** Select the **Connected Equipment Setting** Window from the **System** Tab to display the connected equipment setting window.
- **7.** Set the communication setting.

Table 6.19 Communication Setting

Port Number*	10001
Timeout	3(sec)
Retry	0
Transmit Weight	0(ms)

* For more information on the port number, refer to the following.

#### Port Number

- If you don't select **Automatic Assignment** of the port number in the communication setting window, the automatic assignment will be disabled, and the GP3000 series port number will be fixed at the setting value.
- If you select **Automatic Assignment** of the port number in the communication setting window, automatic assignment will be enabled, and the GP3000 series port number will be assigned in each case.

When you use Automatic Assignment, set *Unpassive open mode* in the 218IFA/218IFC detailed definition window of MPE720.

For more information about *Unpassive open mode*, refer to 2.5.6 (4) [b] 218IFA Module Detailed Definition Window. For information on the relationship between GP-Pro EX and MPE720 settings, see the table below.

MPE720 Side Setting GP-Pro EX Side Setting	Unpassive open Mode	Fixed Value Setting
Automatic Assignment Enable		-
Automatic Assignment Disable		

Note:  $\sqrt{:}$  connectable, -: unconnectable

• How to set up *Unpassive open mode* of the CPU-03/CPU-04 (reference) Set **Node IP Address** to 000.000.000 and the **Node Port** to 0 to enter into the *Unpassive open mode*.

nsmission Paramete _	ers				Module Name Definit	ion				- 35
P Address	: ]	192 _ 168 _ 1	!	± (0-255	) Equipment name :	CO	NTROL	LER	NAME	
Subnet Mask	: [	255 🐳 🛛 255 🐳 🛛 2	55 🛨 🛛 🛛	🕂 ( 0-255	)					
iateway IP Addres	s : [		÷. 0	( 0-255	) Detail Definition					
nection Parameter Message Communi Easy setting	ication It is possil	ble to following paramete	r setting eas	ily that commur	icate the message.					
nection Parameter Message Communi Easy setting CNO	ication It is possil Local Port	ble to following paramete Node IP Address	r setting eas Node Port	ily that commur Connect Түре	icate the message. Protocol Type		Coc	le	Automaticall Y	
nection Parameter Message Communi Easy setting CNO 01	ication It is possil Local Port 1000	ble to following paramete Node IP Address	r setting eas Node Port 00000	ily that commur Connect Type ▼CP _	icate the message. Protocol Type Extended MEMOBUS	•	Coc	le •	Automaticall γ Detail	
nection Parameter Message Communi Easy setting CNO 01 02	ication It is possil Local Port 1000	ble to following paramete Node IP Address 000.000.000.000	r setting eas Node Port 00000	ily that commur Connect Type ▼CP ▼	icale the message. Protocol Type Extended MEMOBUS	*	Coc	le T	Automaticall γ Detail	
nection Parameter Message Communi Easy setting CNO 01 02 03	ication It is possil Local Port 1000	ble to following paramete Node IP Address 1000.000.000.000	r setting eas Node Port 00000	ily that commur Connect Type ▼CP ▼	icate the message. Protocol Туре Extended MEMOBUS	*	Coc	le •	Automaticall V Detail	

- **8.** Click the setup button of the connected PLC1 for each device setting to display the setting window for each device.
- **9.** Set up the setting window for each device.

In the setting window for each device, set up a connected device (in this case, the CPU-03/CPU-04). Set the IP address, port number, and data code in the same manner as in the 218IFA window for the CPU-03 (or the 218IFC window for the CPU-04) of the MP2200.

Table 6.20 Ea	ich Device Setting
IP Address	192.168.001.001
Port Number	10001
Data Code	binary

• 218IFA/218IFC Window (reference)

mission Paramel	:ers				Module Name Defini	tion		
Address	Q	192 🕂 - 168 🕂 - 1	÷ 1	- 0-255	) Equipment name :	CONTRO	NTROLLER NAME	
ubnet Mask	: [	255 🛨 255 🛨 25	55 🕂 🛛 🛛	( 0-255	]			
ateway IP Addre	ss :	0 🛨 0 🛨 0		(0-255	Detail Definition			
ection Paramete lessage Commur Easy setting	nication — It is possil	ole to following parameter	setting eas	silv that commun	icate the message.			
ection Paramete fessage Commun Easy setting CNO	r nication It is possit Local	ble to following parameter Node IP Address	setting eas Node Port	sily that commun Connect Type	icate the message. Protocol Type	Ca	de	Automaticall Y
ection Paramete fessage Commun Easy setting CNO 01	r nication It is possit Local Bort 10001	ble to following parameter Node IP Address 92.168.001.002	setting eas Node Port 10001	sily that commun Connect Type TCP ▼	icate the message. Protocol Type Extended MEMOBUS	Co	de	Automaticall γ Detail
ection Paramete lessage Commun Easy setting CNO 01 02	t is possil	ble to following parameter Node IP Address 92.168.001.002	setting eas Node Port 10001	sily that commun Connect Type TCP	icate the message. Protocol Type Extended MEMOBUS	Cc BIN	de	Automaticall γ Detail
ection Paramete fessage Commun Easy setting CNO 01 02 03	t is possil	ble to following parameter Node IP Address 92.168.001.002	setting eas Node Port 10001	sily that commun Connect Type TCP	icate the message. Protocol Туре Extended MEMOBUS		de	Automaticall V Detail

Cannot the overlap to local station port number used by the communicate the 1/0 message

The setting is finished for now.

Create a window and transfer the project to an indicator as required.

#### Caution

• Set up a unique IP address in the network. The CPU-03/CPU-04 side IP address is set to "192.168.1.1" in self-configuration. For the IP address, check with your network administrator.

Note: Set the GP3000 series IP address in the off-line mode of the indicator. Contact Digital Electronics Corp. for more information.

- [b] Window Creation Example
  - 1. Create a base window.
  - 2. Select Data Indicator from the toolbar to paste it on the window.



3. Double-click the Data Indicator pasted on the window.



4. Set as follows in the detailed setting window of **Data Indicator** and click OK.

Table 6.21 Data Indicator Detailed Setting

Display Data	Numeric display
Monitor Word Address	GMW00100

■ Relationship between GP-Pro EX address display and CPU-03/CPU-04 register

Device	GP-Pro EX Address Display	CPU-03/CPU-04 Register
Coil (bit)	GMBDDDD	MBDDDDD
Coil (word)	GMWDDDDD	MWDDDDD
Input Relay (bit)	GIBDDDD	IBOOOO
Input Relay (word)	GIWDDDD	IWDDDD

# (3) How to Start Communication

#### 1. The CPU-03/CPU-04 side starts to receive the messages.

When the automatic receive function is used, the message receive operation starts automatically, and you are not required to do anything.

## 2. Start up the touch panel (GP3000 series) to display the main window.

After the system startup of the touch panel, communication with the CPU-03/CPU-04 will start. Note: Contact Digital Electronics Corp. for more information.

# 6.4 Communication with PLC Manufactured by Mitsubishi Electric Corporation (MELSEC protocol)

In Ethernet communication between the CPU-03/CPU-04 and MELSEC (Q, A series) general-purpose PLC manufactured by Mitsubishi Electric Corporation, the MELSEC protocol (A-compatible 1E frame) is used as a communication protocol.

Using the MELSEC protocol allows a master to read/write the slave register content.

This section explains communication when the CPU-03/CPU-04 acts as a slave and a master respectively. For using the CPU-03/CPU-04 as a slave, we explain communication using the automatic receive function.

For using the CPU-03/CPU-04 as a master, we explain communication using the I/O message communication function.

# 6.4.1 When the CPU-03/CPU-04 Acts as Slave (automatic receive function is used)

This section explains how to carry out a fixed buffer communication with the BUFSND command (with procedure) of the MELSEC Q series using the CPU-03/CPU-04 automatic receive function.





#### Caution

Communication using the automatic receive function is 1:1 communication.

Also, when "Communication Protocol Type: MELSEC" is used in communication with the MELSEC Q series, the MELSEC Q series (master) side can read/write the holding register of the CPU-03/CPU-04 (slave) using fixed buffer communication. However, when the CPU-03/CPU-04 acts as a slave, you cannot use the inter-CPU or random access communication, because of the MELSEC specifications.

In addition, use the message receive function (MSG-RCV) when communicating with multiple remote devices.

#### Setting Example

The following figure illustrates one example of writing the contents of the data register (D00201 to D00300) of MELSEC Q series (master) into the CPU-03/CPU-04 (slave) holding register (MW00000 to MW00099).



The setup procedure is explained in the following pages.

# (1) How to Set up the CPU-03/CPU-04 Side

If the setting of transmission parameters (IP address, subnet mask) is already completed, start from step 3.

# 1. Double-click the **218IFA** Tab (**218IFC** Tab for the CPU-04) in the **Module Details** Area in the CPU-03 **Module Configuration** Window.

Slot Number	1	2	3	4	5
Module Type	CPU 🔻	SVR 💌	CARD 🗸	218IFA 🔻	M-EXECUTOR -
Circuit Number	-	02	-	01	-
I/O Start Register				0000	0800
I/O End Register				07FF	083F
Disable Input	•			Enable 💌	-
Disable Output	•			Enable 💌	-
Motion Start Register		8800			
Motion End Register		8FFF			
Details			1		
Status	Running	Running	Running	Running	Running

#### 2. Set transmission parameters.

Û Q 3		
Transmission Farameters	Status	
- Transmission Parameta	Module Name Definition	
IP Address	: ISE : 168 : 1 : 1 : (0-255) Equipment name : CONTROLLER NAME	
Subnet Mask	: 255 + 255 + 255 + 0 + (0-255)	
Gateway IP Address	: 0	

#### How to set up transmission parameters

- ① Set IP Address ("192.168.001.001," for example).
- [®] Set Subnet Mask ("255.255.255.000," for example).
- ③ Set Gateway IP Address ("000.000.000," for example).

#### Caution

Set up a unique IP address in the network. For the IP address, check with your network administrator.

 Click the Easy Setting Button in the Message Communication Area of the connection parameter setting.

asy setting	It is possil	ole to following parameter	setting eas	ilv that communicate	the message.			
CNO	Local Port	Node IP Address	Node Port	Connect Type	Protocol Type	Code	Automaticall V	Node Na
01			1	-	-	•	Detail	
02				-	-	-		
03				-	•	•		
04			1		-	-		

Cannot the overlap to local station port number used by the communicate the 1/0 message.

- 1  $(\Delta)$ 6 x ssage Co Connect No. : 1 Specify th connection numbe **MP** Series Other Device Local Port IP Address Node Port IP Address : (0-255) 192.168.001.001 192 ÷ 168 ÷ 001 ÷ 002 ÷ Communication pro col Type MELSEC • Default Port No. (256-65535) Port No (256-655 10001 10001 Connect Type TCP BIN Code ΟK Cancel (<del>5</del>) (Ż) (Ż
- 4. Set up the communication settings in the **Message Communication Easy Setting** Dialog Box.

#### How to set up in the Message Communication Easy Setting Dialog Box

- ${\rm \textcircled{O}}$  When automatic receive function is used, select "1" for the Connect No.
- ^② Set **Port No.** of the CPU-03/CPU-04 side ("10001," for example).
- ③ Select MELSEC for Communication protocol Type, and click the Default Button.
- ④ Select Connect Type (TCP, for example).
- Select Code (BIN, for example).
- Set Node port IP Address of the other device (MELSEC Q series) to be connected ("192.168.001.002," for example).
- 𝔅 Set Port No. of the other device (MELSEC Q series) to be connected ("10001," for example).
- 8 Click OK.

#### Caution

When message functions (MSG-SND, MSG-RCV) are used with the connection number 01, disable the automatic receive function. If message functions are used while the automatic receive function is enabled, the communications will not function properly.

Note: The automatic receive function with a connection number 01 is set to "Enable" by default.

- 5. Click Yes in the parameter setting confirmation dialog box.
- Caution

Note that when a parameter with the same connection number is already set and you click **Yes** in the parameter setting confirmation dialog, the setting will be overwritten by the parameter configured in the **Message Communication Easy Setting** Dialog Box. 6. Check the setting value and click the Detail Button in the Automatically Column.

y setting	It is possit	ble to following parameter	setting ea:	sily that cor	nmun	icate the message.					
CNO	Local Port	Node IP Address	Node Port	Conne Type	ect e	Protocol Type		Coc	le	Automaticall	
01	10001	192.168.001.002	10001	TCP	-	MELSEC	-	BIN	Y	Detail	D
02					•		-		•		
03					-		-		-		
04					-		-		-		

- Cannot the overlap to local station port number used by the communicate the 1/0 message.
- 7. Select the Enable Option for Automatically Reception in the Automatically Reception Setting Dialog Box and then click the OK Button.

tomatically Reception Unable to automal Disable Enable	ted reception, when the control sequence.
Transmission Buffer Channel 📘 🗾	The automatic reception is fixed 1ch.
Slave I/F Register Settings	Head REG
Readout of Input Relay	IW0000
Readout of Input Register	IW0000
Readout / Write-in of Coil	MW00000
Readout / Write-in of Hold Register	MW00000
Write - in width of Coil/Hold Register LO:	MW00000
HI:	MW65534
Automatic input processing delay time	0 ms (0-100)
The influence on a low-speed scanning of according to this parameter. [Attention] It is not in the setting of the of period of an automatic reception.	can be adjusted

Note: For more information on Slave Side I/F Register Setting and Automatic Receive Process Delay Time, refer to 2.5.6 (4) [b] = Automatically Reception Dialog Box for Message Communication.

The automatic receive function is now set up, when the CPU-03/CPU-04 acts as a slave.

#### Caution

When any transmission or connection parameter is changed, the change will be reflected after it has been saved in flash memory and the power supply is turned ON again.

# (2) How to Set up the Remote Device (MELSEC Q series) to Be Connected

This section explains the MELSEC Q series side procedure to set up for connecting the CPU-03/CPU-04 with the MELSEC Q series.

Note: MELSEC Q series are manufactured by Mitsubishi Electric Corporation. Contact Mitsubishi Electric Corporation for more information.

- 1. Start up GX Developer.
- **2.** Create a new project.
- 3. Set up network parameters (MELSECNET/Ethernet).

Table 6.22 Network Parameter Setting (example)

Setting Item	Setting Details		
Network Type	Ethernet		
Start I/O No.	Any		
Network No.	Any		
Group No.	Any		
Exchange Number	Any		
Mode	Online		

**4.** Set up Ethernet operation.

Table 6.23 Ethernet Operation Setting (example)

Setting Item	Setting Details		
Communication Data Code Setting	Binary code communication		
Initial Timing Setting	Any		
IP Address	192.168.1.2		
Transmit Frame Setting	Ethernet (V2.0)		
TCP Alive Check Setting	Any		
Permit Writing during RUN	Permitted		

5. Set the open setting.

Table 6.24	Open	Setting	(example	)
------------	------	---------	----------	---

Setting Item	Setting Details (connection number=1)
Protocol	ТСР
Open System	Active
Fixed Buffer	Transmit
Procedure to Communicate with Fixed Buffer	With procedure
Pairing Open	Any
Check Alive	Any
Local Port Number	2711H (10001)
Remote IP Address for Communication	192.168.1.1
Remote Port Number for Update	2711H (10001)

#### Caution

Set up a unique IP address in the network. For the IP address, check with your network administrator.

#### Complement

- Set up an initial setting and a router relay parameter below, if needed:
- Initial setting
- Set a timer relevant configuration when TCP is selected as a protocol. In most cases, accept the default. Set up if changes such as a shortened a TCP retransmit timer are required.
- · Router relay parameter
- Set up when you use a subnet mask pattern or default gateway.
- 6. Create a ladder program for communication.

#### Procedure overview to communicate using a ladder program

- ① Use an OPEN command to establish a connection with the remote device.
- ② Use a BUFSND command to write the register content configured by parameters below to the CPU-03/ CPU-04 holding register (M register).
- Setting example: When the BUFSND command is used to set the device start number for storing the transmit data to "D00200"

D00200 (transmit data length):100W

- D00201 to D00300 (transmit data): Written into MW00000 to MW00099
- ③ If necessary, use a CLOSE command to close the operation.

Note: Contact Mitsubishi Electric Corporation for more information on the ladder program.

The setting is finished for now. If necessary, transfer the settings to the PLC after setting all parameters.

#### (3) How to Start Communication

1. The CPU-03/CPU-04 side starts to receive the messages.

When an automatic receive function is used, the message receive operation starts automatically, so you are not required to do anything.

 Send an OPEN command from the MELSEC Q series side to establish a connection with the CPU-03/ CPU-04, and use a BUFSND command to transmit messages.

When messages are transmitted from the MELSEC Q series, communication with the CPU-03/CPU-04 will start.

6.4.2 When the CPU-03/CPU-04 Acts as Master (I/O message communication function is used)

# 6.4.2 When the CPU-03/CPU-04 Acts as Master (I/O message communication function is used)

This section explains how to carry out the communications between CPU and the MELSEC Q series using the CPU-03/CPU-04 I/O message communication function.



Fig. 6.13 Message Flow with MELSEC Q series when I/O Message Communication Function Is Used

#### Caution

I/O message communication is 1:1 communication.

In addition, you can read and write the registers below using inter-CPU communication when "Communication Protocol Type: MELSEC" is used in the communication with the MELSEC series.

- Bit device register ---- X, Y (read only), M, B
- Word device register - D, W, R
- A bit device register reads or writes on a per-word (16 bit) basis.

When communicating with multiple remote devices.

To carry out a fixed buffer/random access buffer communication when reading/writing registers other than those mentioned above, use the message send function (MSG-SND).
6.4.2 When the CPU-03/CPU-04 Acts as Master (I/O message communication function is used)

#### Setting Example

The following figure illustrates one example of reading the content of the data register (D00000 to D00099) of the MELSEC Q series (slave) into an input register (IW0000 to IW0063) of the CPU-03/CPU-04 (master) and writing the content of an output register (OW0064 to OW00C7) of the CPU-03/CPU-04 (master) in a data register (D00100 to D00199) of the MELSEC Q series (slave).



The setup procedure is explained in the following pages.

#### 6.4 Communication with PLC Manufactured by Mitsubishi Electric Corporation (MELSEC protocol)

6.4.2 When the CPU-03/CPU-04 Acts as Master (I/O message communication function is used)

#### (1) How to Set up the CPU-03/CPU-04 Side

If the setting of transmission parameters (IP address, subnet mask) is already completed, start from step 3.

# 1. Double-click the **218IFA** Tab (**218IFC** Tab for the CPU-04) in the **Module Details** Area in the CPU-03 **Module Configuration** Window.

Slot Number	1	2		3		_4		5	
Module Type	СРИ 🔻	SVR	•	CARD	-	218IFA	-	M-EXECUTOR -	
Circuit Number	-	02		-		UT I		-	
I/O Start Register		 			0000		- i	0800	
I/O End Register						07FF		083F	
Disable Input	•		•		•	Enable	-	-	
Disable Output	•		•		•	Enable	•	-	
Motion Start Register		8800							
Motion End Register		8FFF	8FFF						
Details									
Status	Running	Running		Running		Running		Running	

#### 2. Set transmission parameters.

123		
Transmission Parameters Status		
Transmission Parameters		Module Name Definition
IP Address : 192	÷ 168 ÷ 1 ÷ 1 ÷ (0-255)	Equipment name : CONTROLLER NAME
Subnet Mask : 255		
Gateway IP Address : 0	★ 0 ★ 0 ★ 0 ★ (0-255)	Detail Definition

How to set up transmission parameters

① Set IP Address ("192.168.001.001," for example).

- ^② Set Subnet Mask ("255.255.255.000," for example).
- ③ Set Gateway IP Address ("000.000.000," for example).

#### Caution

Set up a unique IP address in the network. For the IP address, check with your network administrator.

#### 3. Select the Enable Option in the I/O Message Communication of the connection parameter setting.

asy setting ta undate tir	It is possit	ble to set easily that comm	nunicate the	e 1/0 message.				
Read/ Write	Local Port	Node IP Address	Node Port	Connect Type	Protocol Type		Code	
Read				•	÷->	-	-	
Write				•		•	-	

4. Set-up a communication settings in the I/O Message Communication Easy Setting Dialog Box.



#### How to set up in the I/O Message Communication Easy Setting Dialog Box

① Set Port No. of the CPU-03/CPU-04 side ("10005, 10006," for example).

^② Select MELSEC for Communication protocol Type, and click the Default Button.

When the communication protocol is MELSEC, the default register type for the read/write is "Word Device Register: D."

- ③ Select Connect Type (TCP, for example).
- ④ Select Code (BIN, for example).
- Set Node Port IP Address of the other device (MELSEC Q series) to be connected ("192.168.001.002," for example).
- © Set Port No. of the other device (MELSEC Q series) to be connected ("10005, 10006," for example).

#### Caution

In I/O message communications, since a message is transmitted from each port number for register read/write, a connected remote device needs the two receive connections for receiving messages.

6

Caution

6.4.2 When the CPU-03/CPU-04 Acts as Master (I/O message communication function is used)

- ⑦ Set a storage area (Input Reg) for data read by the CPU-03/CPU-04 (IW0000, for example).
- ® Set Read Size of data to be read by the CPU-03/CPU-04 ("100" W, for example).
- Set a storage area (Output Reg) for data written by CPU-03/CPU-04 (OW0064, for example).
- [®] Set Write Size of data written by the CPU-03/CPU-04 ("100" W, for example).
- ① Set an I/O data update timing (Data update timing) for the CPU and built-in Ethernet ("Low" scan, for example).

#### Data Update Timing

Data update timing indicates when to give and receive data between the CPU and built-in Ethernet. Communication with the remote device is carried out asynchronously, so note that a message is not necessarily transmitted to the remote device at each data update timing.

- Image: Set the register type and start address (Read Reg) of the remote device (MELSEC Q series) read by the CPU-03/CPU-04 ("D00000," for example).
- [®] Set the register type and start address (**Write Reg**) of the remote device (MELSEC Q series) written by the CPU-03/CPU-04 ("D00100," for example).
- Olick OK.
- **5.** Click **Yes** in the parameter setting confirmation dialog box.

#### Caution

Note that when a parameter with the same connection number is already set and you click Yes in the parameter setting confirmation dialog, the setting will be overwritten by the parameter configured in the Message Communication Easy Setting Window.

#### 6. Check the setting values.

<ul> <li>Enable</li> <li>Easy setting</li> <li>Data update tir</li> </ul>	It is possil	ble to set easily that comm	nunicate th	e I/O message					
Read/ Write	Local Port	Node IP Address	Node Port	Connect Type	Protocol Type		Coc	le	
Read	10005	192.168.001.002	10005	тср 🔻	MELSEC	B	IN	-	
Write	10006	192.168.001.002	10006	ТСР	MELSEC	B	IN	-	
•	Han	d en eister er erher dete si							Þ
MP23005	input disabl	e 100000 100	w<-	Head reg Data register(D	ster number data si	W	_ N	ode	equipment

The I/O message communication is now set up, when the CPU-03/CPU-04 acts as a master.

#### Caution

When any transmission or connection parameter is changed, the change will be reflected after FLASH has been saved and the power supply is turned ON again.

#### (2) How to Set up the Remote Device (MELSEC Q series) to Be Connected

This section explains the MELSEC Q series side procedure to set up for connecting the CPU-03/CPU-04 with the MELSEC Q series.

Note: MELSEC Q series are products manufactured by Mitsubishi Electric Corporation. Contact Mitsubishi Electric Corporation for more information.

- **1.** Start up GX Developer.
- 2. Create a new project.
- 3. Set up network parameters (MELSECNET/Ethernet).

#### Table 6.25 Network Parameter Setting (example)

Setting Item	Setting Details
Network Type	Ethernet
Start I/O No.	Any
Network No.	Any
Group No.	Any
Exchange Number	Any
Mode	Online

**4.** Set up Ethernet operation.

Table 6.26 Ethernet Operation Setting (example)

Setting Item	Setting Details
Communication Data Code Setting	Binary mode communication
Initial Timing Setting	Always waiting OPEN
IP Address	192.168.1.2
Transmit Frame Setting	Ethernet (V2.0)
TCP Alive Check Setting	Any
Permit Writing during RUN	Permitted

#### 5. Set the open setting.

Table 6.27	Open	Setting	(example)
------------	------	---------	-----------

Cotting Itom	Setting Details	Setting Details
Setting item	(connection number=1)	(connection number=2)
Protocol	ТСР	TCP
Open System	Fullpassive	Fullpassive
Fixed Buffer	Any	Any
Procedure to Communicate with		
Fixed Buffer	Any	Any
Pairing Open	Any	Any
Check Alive	Any	Any
Local Port Number	2715H (10005)	2716H (10006)
Demete ID Address for Communication	102 169 1 1	102 178 1 1
Remote IP Address for Communication	192.168.1.1	192.168.1.1
Remote Port Number for Update	2715H (10005)	2716H (10006)

#### Caution

Set up a unique IP address in the network.

For the IP address, check with your network administrator.

6.4.2 When the CPU-03/CPU-04 Acts as Master (I/O message communication function is used)

The setting is finished for now. If necessary, transfer the settings to the PLC after setting all parameters.

#### Complement

Set up an initial setting and a router relay parameter below, if needed:

• Initial setting Set a timer relevant configuration when TCP is selected as a protocol. In most cases, accept the default. Set up if changes such as a shortened TCP retransmit timer are required.

• Router relay parameter Set up when you use a subnet mask pattern or default gateway.

#### (3) How to Start Communication

#### 1. The MELSEC Q series starts to receive messages.

The message receive operation starts automatically, so you are not required to do anything.

#### 2. The CPU-03/CPU-04 side transmits messages.

When an I/O message communication function is used, the message transmit operation starts automatically, so you are not required to do anything.

# 7

# Easy Programming (Supported by the CPU-03 and CPU-04)

This chapter explains easy programming using the M-EXECUTOR Module (motion program executor) functions.

7.1 System Startup Overview	7-2
7.2 Preparation (step 1)	7-3
7.2.1 Wiring	7-3
7.2.2 Self Configuration	7-5
7.2.3 Test Operation	7-6
7.3 Programming (step 2)	7-9
7.3.1 Initializing the M-EXECUTOR Module	7-9
7.3.2 Programming Procedure	7-12
7.4 Executing Motion (step 3)	7-14
7.4.1 Registering Program Execution	7-14
7.4.2 Starting a Motion Program Using the Drive Control Panel	7-16
7.5 Starting Motion Program from an External Signal	7-17
7.5.1 Overview	7-17
7.5.2 Required Equipment	7-17
7.5.3 Creation Procedure	7-19

# 7.1 System Startup Overview

The start-up procedure for a model system is as follows. For detailed information of each step, refer to the cited references.

This chapter explains a procedure where you can easily run and check a program without external signals.

The motion program created here is simple and has only three lines to move two axes 150,000 pulses from the current position and stop them.



# 7.2 Preparation (step 1)

This section explains the steps of "wiring," "self-configuration," and "test operation" for starting up the model system.

# 7.2.1 Wiring

We use the following layout model to explain the startup of the model system. Prepare each device listed on the next page and connect them as shown in the figure below.

## (1) System Layout Model



Personal computer (With MPE720 installed)

## [a] Required Equipment

	Product Name	Model	Q'ty
	Base Unit with AC power supply	JEPMC-BU2200	1
MP2200	CPU-03 Module (or CPU-04 Module)	JAPMC-CP2220-E (or JAPMC-CP2230-E)	1
	SVB-01 Module	JAPMC-MC2310	1
MECHATROLINK cable (0.5m)		JEPMC-W6002-A5	2
Terminator (terminating resistor)		JEPMC-W6022	2
Σ-III SERVOPACK		SGDS-A5F12A	2
Σ-III servomotor		SGMAS-A5A2A21	2
Motor cable (3m)		JZSP-CSM01-03	2
Encoder cable (3m)		JZSP-CSP05-03	2
HUB (comn	nercialized product)	LSW-TX-8EP	1
MPE720 Ve	er.6	CPMC-MPE770	1
LAN cable (	(for Ethernet connection)	Commercialized straight cable	2
Personal co	omputer	Commercialized product	1

#### Caution

• Install MPE720 Ver.6 in the personal computer before starting step 1.

For information on its installation, refer to *Engineering Tool for MP2000 Series MPE720 Version 6 User's Manual* (manual no.: SIEP C880700 30).

• Set the PC Ethernet port in advance. For the procedure to set up communication, refer to the *Engineering Tool for MP2000* Series MPE720 Version 6 User's Manual (manual no.: SIEP C880700 30).

- The SERVOPACK station number (SW1) is set to 1 and 2.
- In a 1:1 connection without HUB, use a cross cable as a LAN cable.

# 7.2.2 Self Configuration

Run the self configuration to automatically recognize devices connected to the MECHATROLINK connector. Steps for self configuration are as follows.

- **1.** Check that the  $\Sigma$ -III SERVOPACK power supply is ON.
- **2.** Turn OFF the 100-VAC power supply to the MP2200.
- 3. Set the INIT and CNFG pins on the DIP switch (SW1) to ON on the MP2200.
- **4.** Turn ON the 100-VAC power supply to the MP2200, and confirm that the indicators change as follows:



- **5.** Self configuration is complete, and MECHATROLINK slave device information has been written to a definition information file.
- 6. Set the INIT and CNFG pins on the DIP switch (SW1) to OFF on the MP2200.

7.2.3 Test Operation

## 7.2.3 Test Operation

Confirm that the machine controller can command axis servo ON/OFF and jog operation.

#### (1) Starting and Connecting MPE720 Ver.6

Launch MPE720Ver.6 and click "3:Ethernet(LP)192.168.1.1" to connect to the controller.



#### (2) Operating Manually in the Test Operation Window

When the connection is complete, the display will change from offline to online.



1. Click System in the subwindow and double-click *Axis configuration - Test run* to display a warning dialog a box for the test run. Click the **Agree** Button.

The te Be sur Pay p	st run function will cause the axis to move and can be dangerous. e to check the user's manual before execution. articular attention to the following items.
1. Ch	eck the safety of the area around the drive unit.
Th Ma of	<ul> <li>axis operates at the set speed while the Run button is clicked.</li> <li>ke sure that the surrounding area is clear of any items that could interfere with the operating the axis.</li> </ul>
2. Coi	nnect the Emergency Stop to the external terminal.
If a 2 Ple	a communications error occurs or the PC or Test Run is shut down because of an error during og or Step, the axis may continue to operate. ase prepare the function for Emergency Stop.
3. Ple Th Ple	ase stop the application (ladder program and motion program) before starting the test run. e test run function and the application program will interfere with each other. ase use the test run after stopping ladder program and motion program.

#### 2. Axis Selection and Servo ON

Set an axis number in the Axis Window and click the Enable (Servo ON) Button in the Test Run Window.





#### 3. Jog Operation

Click the **Speed reference** Icon and set a speed reference value, and check that the axis rotates normally while the **Forward** Button or **Reverse** Button is pressed.

Speed reference





The operation check of the first axis is complete.

Press the Axis ... Button to change to "Axis #02" in the Axis Window, and perform the steps 1 to 3 above.

# 7.3 Programming (step 2)

This section describes the procedure of initializing the M-EXECUTOR Module and the procedure from creating to saving a motion program.

## 7.3.1 Initializing the M-EXECUTOR Module

The M-EXECUTOR Module is disabled (UNDEFINED) with the default settings. Initialize the M-EXECUTOR Module to enable it by performing the following procedure.

1. Double-click Module configuration Tab from the Setup Menu. The Module Configuration Window will appear.





Rack 2

Kack 3

Rack 4 Control

Slot Number

Module Type

Status 46

Slot Number

Module Type

Circuit Number 1/O Start Register

1/O End Register

Disable Input

Disable Output

•

٠

**PU** 

01

.

Disable

Disable

Rack 1 Rack 2 Rack 3 Rack 4

PU-03

Module Details CPU-03 RACK#01 SL01#00

7.3.1 Initializing the M-EXECUTOR Module

#### 2. Allocate M-EXECUTOR to No.5 cell in the Module Details Area.

Module Details CPU-03 RAU	CK#O1 SLOT#C	JO —	32		54.					
Slot Number	1		2		3		4	1	5	
Module Type	CPU	•	SVR	•	CARD	-	218IFA	6	M-EXECUTOR	-
Circuit Number	-		02		-		01			1
I/O Start Register						0000		0800		
I/O End Register							07FF		083F	100
Disable Input		•		-		•	Enable	•		4
Disable Output		•		-		•	Enable	•		•
Motion Start Register			8800							
Motion End Register	nd Register		8FFF							
Details										
Status	Running		Running		Running		Running			

3. Click Save Icon to save the module configuration definition. Check the status of No.5 cell becomes Unsetting.

п	-	_	
			п.
IN 1	-	_	

Module Details CPU-03 RA	CK#01 SLOT#0	00								_
Slot Number	1		2		3		4		5	
Module Type	CPU	•	SVR	•	CARD	•	218IFA	•	M-EXECUTO	R▼
Circuit Number	-		02	- Cristi	-		01		-	
I/O Start Register							0000		0800	
I/O End Register					07FF		083F			
Disable Input		-		•		-	Enable	•		-
Disable Output		-		•	1	-	Enable	-		-
Motion Start Register			8800	1.000					2002	
Motion End Register			8FFF							
Details			1	33						
Status	Running	j,	Running		Running		Running	(	Unsetting	

#### 4. Double-click No.5 cell, then the M-EXECUTOR definition Dialog Box will appear. Click OK Button.

Slot Number	1		2		0 3	3	4	5	
Module Type	CPU	•	SVR	•	CARD	-	218IFA	MIERECOI	UR 1
Circuit Number	-		02		-		01		
I/O Start Register						. EVECUT		1800	
I/O End Register						I-EXECUT	UR definition	은 183F	
Disable Input		•		-		New File			
Disable Output		•		•					
Motion Start Register			8800	Ĵ			ок		
Motion End Register			8FFF			_			
Details					1				
Status	Running		Running	j.	Running	3	Running	Unsetting	

N LL D 1 1 CDL 00 DACKHO1 CLOT

7.3.1 Initializing the M-EXECUTOR Module

5. The following window will appear. Click Save Icon to save the M-EXECUTOR (List) Window.

🌆 Engir	neeri	ng Manager - [M-EXECUTOR	MP2200-03 Onlir	ne Local]		_ 🗆 🗵
<b></b> File	Viev	v Window				<u>_8×</u>
		H K B B O A	Hot En E# 14	R POS		
PT#: 3	CPL	J#: 1		RACK#0	11 Slot #00 0800-083	BF SEPERATE
M-EXE	CUTO n defir	R(List) Individual display Pro-	gram definition numb	er 8	•	<u>^</u>
No.	D	Execution type	Setting	Program	Execution monitor regis	ter(S register)
-		Sequence program(Start)	Direct		-	
1			-			
2			-			
3			-			
4			-			
5			-			
6			-			
7			•			
8			•			
						•
For Help.	Dress	s F1				

This completes the initialization.

**6.** Return to Module Configuration Window. Check the status of No.5 cell changes from *Unsetting* to *Running*.

Slot Number	1		2		3		4		5	
Module Type	CPU	-	SVR	•	CARD	•	218IFA	•	M-EXECUTO	R 🔻
Circuit Number	7		02		-		01		-	
I/O Start Register							0000		0800	
I/O End Register							07FF		083F	
Disable Input		•		•		•	Enable	•		•
Disable Output		•		-		•	Enable	-		•
Motion Start Register			8800							
Motion End Register			8FFF							
Details										
Status	Running		Running		Running		Running	0	Running	

This enables the M-EXECUTOR function.

7.3.2 Programming Procedure

# 7.3.2 Programming Procedure

1. Click the Motion Tab in the subwindow.



2. The motion program subwindow will appears.

When you double-click **Motion program** and there is not any group definition, the **Group Definition** Dialog Box will be shown. For this setting example, you do not need to change it, so accept the default setting and click the **OK** Button. Note that if a group definition already exists, the **Group Definition** Dialog Box screen will not be shown.



**3.** Right-click **Main program** and select **Create New** to display the **Create New Program** Dialog Box. Then click the **OK** Button.

WPE720 Ver.6 - [MP2200	-03] - [Start]			
Eile Edit View Onli	ne <u>C</u> ompile <u>D</u> ebug <u>W</u> indow	Help		- 8×
ID&AQU'&	1 G 🕅 🗤 ભ 🕅 🕅	A & & & A	Ø <b>Ⅲ</b> . ₽	~   ► =   D D D D D D D D D D D D D D D D D D
トロで 開い見	₩ ** ** ** ** **	1+++ = = 0		
·	101			
Online MP2200-03	W Create New Program	_		92.168.1.1 CPU-RUN
Setup Programming				
System Scantime settin	Program No. MP	4001		
Motion				
03	Program Name			
Program	-	6		
[□[[MP2200-03]	Configuration	😑 File privilege	0, 1	Controller
Hotion program	Detail definition	Read	0	
Main program	•	Write	1	
		D register	32	nunications Setting
Task(M-EXECUTOR)				Ethernet(LP) IP192.168.1.1]
- 🖸 Drive Control Panel				Disconnection
		-	1	
				12 158 1 1
				2210041
	See			
	OK Cancel		<< Del	tail
Ladder C Motion				

#### 4. Editing Motion Program

Use the Motion Command Assist function to insert INC and MOV commands into the motion program. The Motion Command Assist function is made accessible by right-clicking the mouse on the **Motion Editor** Window.

· Call the Motion Command Assist Function



• Insert an INC Command

VC;			
xis No. :	-		Update
Set to the arguments	:		
Argument	Axis	Setting value	Unit
✓ Comment			
Comment			X

#### · Insert a MOV Command

Axis No. :	2 💌		Upda	ate
iet to the argument Argument	s : Axis	Setting value	_ Unit	
[Axis1] Position	A1	150000	<b>&gt;</b> [pulse]	
[			[]	

Click the save icon to save the motion program.



7.4.1 Registering Program Execution

# 7.4 Executing Motion (step 3)

- 7.4.1 Registering Program Execution
  - 1. Click the Execution Registration Icon.





- Note: 1. This program assumes that the servo has been turned ON using step 2 (Axis Selection and Servo ON) of 7.2.3 ( 2 ) Operating Manually in the Test Operation Window.
  - 2. If the following window appears after this operation, allocate the M-EXECUTOR. Refer to 7.3.1 *Initializing the M-EXECUTOR Module*.

	[Module Configura	ation MI	P2200-0	03 Online Lo	ocal]					
File View Order Win	dow									_ 6
) 🖬 🚭 📲 🗍 🐰	BBO A	Hot Em E	F# 164	POS HON						
t: 3 CPU#: 1		1								
Hect Rack Enable/D Rack 1 Enable Rack 2 Disable Rack 3 Disable Rack 4 Disable Introller ack 1 Rack 2 Rack 3	isable V V V V Rack 4									
						-		1		
Slot Number	00 01	1	02	0	3	04		05	_	06 📥 🛛
Slot Number Module Type CPU-	00 0' 03 <b>v</b> UNDEFIN	1 NED 🔻 UND	02 DEFINED	UNDEF	3 NED 🔹	04 ▼ UNDEFIN	i NED ▼	05 UNDEFINE	<b>-</b>	
Slot Number Module Type CPU- Status Runn	00 0' 03 VUNDEFIN Ing Running		02 DEFINED	C UNDEF	3 NED	04 ▼ UNDEFIN	I IED ▼	05 UNDEFINEI	⊃ ▼	06 A UNDEFINI
Slot Number Module Type CPU- Status Runn 20-03: CPU module with v odule Details CPU-03 R/	00 0 03 VINDEFII ing Running intual axes, CF card ,et (CK#01 SL0T#00	1 NED VUND	02 DEFINED	UNDEF	3 NED N	▼ UNDEFIN	I JED ▼	05 UNDEFINE	⊃ ▼	
Slot Number Module Type Status 2U-03: CPU module with v odule Details CPU-03 R/ Slot Number	00 0 03 UNDEFI ing Running irtual axes, CF card .et iCK#01 SL0T#00- 1	1 NED VUND themet, progra	02 DEFINED am contro	O VUNDEF	3 NED •	UNDEFIN 4	I JED ▼	05 UNDEFINED	•	
Slot Number Module Type CPU- Status Runn 20-03: CPU module with v odule Details CPU-03 R/ Slot Number Module Type	00 01 03 VUNDERI ind Running indual axes, CF card ,el xCK#01 SL0T#00 1 CCPU V	1 UND NED V UND thernet, progra	02 DEFINED am contro	I function.	3 NED • • 2			05 UNDEFINED		
Slot Number Module Type Status 20-03: CPU module with v odule Details CPU-03 R/ Slot Number Module Type Circuit Number	00 01 03 VUNDERI inq Running intual axes, CF card ,et sCK#01 SL0T#00- 1 CPU V	thernet, progra	02 DEFINED	I function.	3 NED • • 2 0	4 18IFA	⊧ IED ▼ U	05 UNDEFINED	•	
Slot Number Module Type Status Runn 20-03: CPU module with v odule Details CPU-03 R/ Slot Number Module Type Circuit Number I/O Start Register	00 01 03 VUNDERI inq Running intual axes, CF card ,et xCK#01 SLDT#00- CPU V 	1 UND NED VUND thernet, progra	02 DEFINED am contro	ol function.	3 NED • • 2 0 0	04 ▼ UNDEFIN 4 18IFA 1 000	⊧ JED ▼ - -	05 UNDEFINED	•	
Slot Number Module Type Status 20-03: CPU module with v odule Details CPU-03 R/ Slot Number Module Type Circuit Number I/O Start Register I/O End Register	00 0: 03 ▼ UNDERI ing Running iritual axes, CF card ,el ACK#01 SL0T#00- 1 CPU ▼  	1 UND NED VUND thernet, progra	02 DEFINED	ol function.	3 NED • • 2 0 0	04 ▼ UNDEFIN 4 18IFA 1 0000 7FF	} JED ▼ U - -	05 UNDEFINED	•	
Slot Number Module Type Status 20-03: CPU module with v odule Details CPU-03 R/ Slot Number Module Type Circuit Number I/O Start Register I/O Start Register Disable Input	00 01 03 ▼ UNDERI ina Runnina irtual axes, CF card ,el xCK#01 SL0T#00 1 CPU ▼  	1 NED VUND themet, progra 2 SVR 02 	02 DEFINED	O VUNDEF	3 NED • 2 0 0 0 0 • E		↓ JED ▼ U - - - -	05 UNDEFINED	•	

The Program Execution Registry Screen Dialog Box will appear.

7.4.1 Registering Program Execution

2. Select Program No. and click the Set Button to save the registered contents.



7

# 7.4.2 Starting a Motion Program Using the Drive Control Panel

1. Double-click the Drive Control Panel Icon.



2. Right-click **Task1** in the dialog box that appears, and then select **Enable Panel Control** from the popup menu.

Start MPM001 Drive Control Panel			
Task	Task1	Open Breatan	Task3
Main program	MPM001		allocate
Motion Program Control Signals	OW0801	<u>T</u> ask Allocate	SW03381
Bit 0 : Start request		Motion Alarm	0
Bit 1 : Pause request		Enable Panel Control	$\mathbf{b}_{\mathbf{o}}$
Bit 2 : Stop request	O ON	0	0
Bit 3 : Single block mode selection	OON	0	0
Bit 4 : Single block start request	O ON	0	0
Bit 5 : Alarm reset request	OON	0	0
Bit 6 : Program continuous operation start request	OON	0	0
Bit 8 : Skip1 information	OON	0	0
Bit 9 : Skip2 information	OON	0	0
Bit D : System work number setting	OON	0	0
Bit E : Interpolation override setting	O ON	0	0
⊒ Status	IW0800 H0000	5W03322 H0000	SW03380 H0000

3. Click the ON Button for Start request. The MPM001 motion program will be executed.

Start MPM001 Drive Control Panel				Ŧ
Task	Task1	Task2	Task3	
Main program	MPM001	No allocate 💽	No allocate 💽	No al
Motion Program Control Signals	OW0801 H0001	5W03323 H0000	SW03381 H0000	51
Bit 0 : Start request		0	0	
Bit 1 : Pause request	O ON	0	0	
Bit 2 : Stop request	O ON	0	0	
Bit 3 : Single block mode selection	O ON	0	0	
Bit 4 : Single block start request	OON	0	0	
Bit 5 : Alarm reset request	O ON	0	0	
d		-	-	Þ

#### Caution

- This chapter explains the simple procedure where you can easily run and check a program without external signals. In practice, you need to connect to external signals and create a sequence.
- Registering a program execution enables the M-EXECUTOR definition. The MP2200 automatically controls the motion program, so be aware that changing registers registered in ladder and sequence programs may cause problems.

^{7.4.2} Starting a Motion Program Using the Drive Control Panel

7.5.1 Overview

# 7.5 Starting Motion Program from an External Signal

# 7.5.1 Overview

This section explains how to start a motion program created in 7.3 *Programming (step 2)* from external signals. Note that in this section, we show an example which substitutes a touch panel for the external signal.



# 7.5.2 Required Equipment

Produc	t Name	Model	Q'ty
	Base Unit with AC power supply	JEPMC-BU2200	1
MP2200	CPU-03 Module (or CPU-04 Module)	JAPMC-CP2220-E (or JAPMC-CP2230-E)	1
	SVB-01 Module	JAPMC-MC2310	1
MECHATROLINK cable (0.	5 m)	JEPMC-W6002-A5	2
Terminator (terminating resi	istor)	JEPMC-W6022	2
Σ-III SERVOPACK		SGDS-A5F12A	2
Σ-III servomotor		SGMAS-A5A2A21	2
Motor cable (3 m)		JZSP-CSM01-03	2
Encoder cable (3 m)		JZSP-CSP05-03	2
Touch panel (manufactured	by Digital Electronics Corp.)	AGP3300-T1-D24	1
HUB (commercial product)		LSW-TX-8EP	1
MPE720 Ver.6		CPMC-MPE770	1
LAN cable (for Ethernet cor	nnection)	Commercial straight cable	3
Personal computer		Commercial product	1

7

7.5.2 Required Equipment

No.	Name	Mapping	Category	Description	MP2200 Operation
1	Start	MB5000	Control signal	Starts up a motion program	
2	Stop	MB5002	Control signal	Displays the running of a motion program	
3	Clear Alarm	MB5005	Control signal	Stops a motion program	Sets in M-
4	Running Program	MB5010	Status	Clears an alarm of a motion program	EXECUTOR
5	Alarm	MB5018	Status	Indicates an alarm is occurring in a motion program	
6	Axis 1 (current position)	IL8016	Monitor parameter	Displays current axis 1 position	Automatic
Ø	Axis 2 (current position)	IL8096	Monitor parameter	Displays current axis 2 position	receive function
8	Servo (ON/OFF)	MB5020	External signal	Axis 1, axis 2 servo ON signal	Sequence pro-
9	Reset Axis Alarm	MB5021	External signal	Axis 1, axis 2 alarm reset signal	gram is needed

Mapping of the panel manufactured by Digital Electronics Corp.

Note: 1. You do not need to create a program for signals and data in  $\mathbb{O}$  to  $\mathbb{O}$ .

2. You need to create a sequence program for outputting signals of (8) and (9) to the motion parameters.

3. For information on creating a program for the panel side, refer to 6.3.1 When CPU-03/CPU-04 Acts as Slave (automatic receive function is used).

7.5.3 Creation Procedure

## 7.5.3 Creation Procedure

#### **1.** Creating a Sequence Program

Now create a sequence program which copies the M register content mapped to "[®] Servo (ON/OFF)" and "[®] Axis Alarm Reset" Buttons on the touch panel to the relevant registers in the motion setting parameter of the built-in SVB.

Follow a procedure similar to creating a motion program from the motion program subwindow.

	Setup F System	Programming Mon Scantime setting N	itor Transfer Util Module configuration	lity				
	•		Els History III Mutaal					
	Progra	am	🚆 Create New Progra	m			×	
	E []][MP2200	n program	Program No.	SPMO	02			
	🕞 🕞 Seque	in program	Program Nan	ne				
	G Sul	b program M-EXECUTOR)		1.00				
	Drive	Control Panel	Configuration		E File privilege	0, 1		
			Detail definition			1	_	
					D register	32	_	
					μ			
	Ladder	Motion System	Ca Ca	ancel		<< Detail		
	<u>~</u>		C M					
					Outpu	It the information	ation of t	he.
						papel to the	·F)" butto	on on the
					naran	panei to the heter "Δxis 1	and avi	setting s 2 servo
Start SP	M002				ON" o	of the built-in	SVB.	5 2 301 10
: 🗔 💁 🖓	តែធរិ		n]: ¥					
								<u>+ E</u>
1	DEUGK	"commun i	cation betw	ienn	and	MP2200:		
2		Contrart	cacion been		CI Und	M 2200,		_
3		"[A1] Se:	rvo Enable					
4	Ø	OB80000	= mb5020;					
5		"[B1] Se:	rvo Enable"					
6	1	OB80800	= mb5020;					
7			(11 II	1				
8	2	DBS000F	- mb502					
10	4	"[B11 A].	arm Clear"					
11	3	DB8080F	= mb5021:	$\left  \right\rangle$				
12		100000000	100000000000000000000000000000000000000	l ,	$\overline{\ }$			
13	4	END;					6.11	-
•	·					niormation c	Button	•
					on the touch	n nanel to th		
					motion setti	ng paramete	er	
					"Axis 1 and	axis 2 alarm	ı reset"	
					of the built-i	n SVB.		
					L			





7.5.3 Creation Procedure

- 2. Registering Program Execution
  - When the Task Allocation Dialog Box is displayed, click the Set Button to register execution of SPM002.

Fask Allocation No.	Task2				
Fask Type	Sequence program(H scan)				
Program Specification	Direct				
Program	SPM002				
Allocation Register					
Allocation Register Disabled alloca	ation	Allocate register			
Allocation Register Disabled alloca Control register alloca	ation	Allocate register			
Allocation Register Disabled alloca Control register alloca	ation	Allocate register			
Allocation Register Disabled alloca Control register alloc Program No.	ation	Allocate register			
Allocation Register Disabled alloce Control register alloc Program No. Status Control signal	ate	Allocate register			

• Refer to 2.5.7 M-EXECUTOR Module (Motion Program Executor).

M-EX	ECUTOR	MP2200-03 Online Loo	cal					
PT#: 3	CPU#: 1					RACK#01 Slot #00	0800-083F	
M·EXEC	UTOR(List)	Individual display	rogram	definition numbe	er 8	•		
Program	definition 1 a	leasting Control or sides 1			1			
		llocation Control register						
No.	D	Execution type		Setting	Program	Execution monitor	register(S regis	ter)
-	🗐 Seque	nce program(Start)		Direct	-2		-	
1	Motion	program	-	Direct 🗖	MPM001	SW03264	- SW03321	
2<	💷 Seque	nce program(H-scan)		Direct	SPM002	5	2	
1								

In the Allocation Control register Tab Page, map the M registers allocated to control signals (① Start / ② Stop / ③ Alarm Clear) and status (④ Running Program / ⑤ Alarm) on the touch panel as an M-EXECU-TOR allocation register for the motion program created in 7.3 Programming (step 2).

Status=MW00501, control signal=MW00500, allocation contact interlock =SB00004

M-EX	ECUTOR MP2200-0	3 Online Local				
PT#: 3	CPU#: 1				RACK#01 Slot #00	0800-083F
M-EXEC Program	CUTOR(List) Individual	display Program definition ol register	number 8	×		
No.	ltem	M-EXECUTOR Control register	Allocation Disable	Direction	Allocation register	Allocation Contact interlock
	Program number	MPM001				
	Status	IW0800		->	MW00501	SB000004
1	Control signal	OW0801		<-	MW00500	SB000004
	Override	OW0802	M			SB000004
	Program number	SPM002				
	Status					
2	Control signal					
	Override					
	Program number					
	Status					
3	Control signal					
	Override					

7.5.3 Creation Procedure

• Click the Save Icon to save the M-EXECUTOR definition.



#### 3. Communication Setting with Touch Panel

Refer to 6.3.1 When CPU-03/CPU-04 Acts as Slave (automatic receive function is used) (automatic receive function is used) for the setting procedure for the touch panel.

#### 4. FLASH Save

Ъ

When all settings are completed, click the FLASH Save Icon to save the data to the flash memory.

₩ MPE720 Ver.6 - [MP2200-03] - [SPM002]	- 🗆 ×
Eile Edit View Online Program Compile Debug Window Help	- 8×
▯▯▱▱▯◾▯◟▯▫▫▯๚๚๚๚๛๙๙๙๛๛๚๚๚๚๛๛๚๚๚๚๛๛๚๛๛๚๚๚๚๚๚๚๚๚๚๚	
! ▷ 口 で   觀 以 鼎   ♥   盔   ^ ^ ~ ~ ~ P] ! + + チ え ○   ⇒ 騒   < ≦ = ≠ ≧ > & ] ! [Save to Flash & 3	Se 🖣
╡╤╤╎╢╳╎ᅇ┟┞╚╠	
Online MP2200-03 3:Ethernet(LP) IP192.168.1.1 CPU-RUN	→₽
Setup Programming Monitor Transfer Utility	
System Scantime setting Module configuration	
Motion • # X Start SPM002	∓ ×

#### 5. Operation Check

Turn ON MP2200 power again and press "^① Servo" and "^② Start" on the panel window.

Then check that the motion program starts and the motors of two axes begins to operate to change the current positions of two axes.



# Maintenance, Inspection, and Troubleshooting

This chapter explains daily and regular inspection items to ensure that the MP2200 can always be used at its best conditions.

8.1 Inspection Items	8-2
8.1.1 Daily Inspections	8-2
8.1.2 Regular Inspections	8-3
8.1.3 Replacing the Basic Unit Battery	8-4
8.2 Troubleshooting	8-5
8.2.1 Basic Flow of Troubleshooting	8-5
8.2.2 Error Check Flowchart	8-6
8.2.3 LED Indicators	8-6
8.2.4 Troubleshooting System Errors	8-8
8.2.5 Motion Program Alarms	8-28
8.2.6 List of Causes for Command Error Completed Status	8-32
8.2.7 Troubleshooting Motion Errors	8-35

8.1.1 Daily Inspections

# 8.1 Inspection Items

This section summarizes daily and regular inspection items that must be performed by the customer.

## 8.1.1 Daily Inspections

The following table lists the daily inspection items.

No.	Inspection Item		Inspection Details	Criteria	Action	
1	Installation conditions of Module, etc.		Check the mounting screws for looseness. Check whether the covers are all in place.	The screws and covers must be secured correctly.	Retighten the screws.	
			Check the terminal screws for looseness.	The screws must be tight.	Retighten the screws.	
2	Connection	conditions	Check the connectors for loose- ness.	The connectors must be tight.	Retighten the connector set screws.	
			Check the gap between crimp terminals.	There must be an appropriate gap between the terminals.	Correct as necessary.	
		POWER*	Check whether the indicator is lit.	The indicator must be lit. (It is abnormal if the indicator is not lit.)		
		RDY	Check whether the indicator is lit.	The indicator must be lit. (It is abnormal if the indicator is not lit.)		
3	LED	RUN	Check whether the indicator is lit while the system is in RUN state.	The indicator must be lit. (It is abnormal if the indicator is not lit.)	Refer to 8.2 Troubleshooting.	
5	Indicators	Indicators	ERR	Check whether the indicator is not lit.	The indicator must be not lit. (It is abnormal if the indicator is lit.)	
		ALM	Check whether the indicator is not lit.	The indicator must be not lit. (It is abnormal if the indicator is lit.)		
		BAT	Check whether the indicator is not lit.	The indicator must not be lit. (The battery voltage is too low if the indicator is lit.)	Replace the battery.	

* Supported by the MBU-01 and MBU-02.

# 8.1.2 Regular Inspections

This section explains inspection items that must be performed once or twice every six months to one year.

Inspections must also be performed when the equipment is relocated or modified or when the wiring is changed.

# 

• Do not replace the built-in fuse. If the customer replaces the built-in fuse, the MP2200 may malfunction or break down. Contact your Yaskawa representative.

No.	In	spection Item	Inspection Details	Criteria	Action	
		Ambient Temperature	Check the temperature and	0°C to 55°C	If the MP2200 is used	
1	Operating	Ambient Humidity	humidity with a thermometer	30% to 95% RH	inside a panel, treat the tem-	
	Environment	Atmosphere	and hygrometer, respectively. Check for corrosive gases.	There must be no corrosive gases.	perature inside the panel as the ambient temperature.	
2	Power Supply	MBU-01 Unit	Measure the voltage across 100/200-VAC terminals	85 to 132 VAC / 198 to 276 VAC	Change the power supply as	
2	Voltage MBU-02 and MBU-03 Check Units		MBU-02 and MBU-03Measure the voltage between 24-VDC terminals.19.		necessary.	
	Installation	Looseness and Excess Play	Attempt to move the Module.	The Module must be secured properly.	Retighten the screws.	
3	3 Conditions Dust and Other For- eign Matter		Visually check.	The Module must be free from dust and other foreign matter.	Clean.	
		Check the Terminal Screws for Looseness.	Check by retightening the screws.	The screws must be tight.	Retighten.	
4	Connection Conditions	Gap between Crimp Terminals	Visually check.	There must be an appropriate gap between the terminals	Correct.	
		Looseness of Connectors	Visually check.	The screws must be tight.	Retighten the connector set screws.	
5	Battery		Check the BAT indicator on the front panel of the Basic Unit.	The BAT indicator must be not lit.	If the BAT indicator is lit, replace the battery.	

8.1.3 Replacing the Basic Unit Battery

# 8.1.3 Replacing the Basic Unit Battery

The Basic Unit has one replaceable built-in battery. This battery is used to back up data to prevent the data stored in the memory from being lost when power is interrupted (e.g., when the power supply to the Basic Unit is turned OFF). The built-in battery can retain the contents of the memory until the total time of power interruptions reaches one year. The warranty period of the battery is five years from the date of purchase. These values, however, differ according to the operating conditions, including the ambient temperature.

If the BAT indicator on the Basic Unit lights, replace the battery with a replacement battery (JZSP-BA01) within two weeks. Any delay in battery replacement will result in the data stored in the memory of the Basic Unit being lost. The appearance of the battery is illustrated below.



Fig. 8.1 JZSP-BA01 (Battery with Cable)

Note: This battery is not commercially available. Contact your Yaskawa representative.

### (1) Procedure

# ▲ CAUTION

• Do not allow the battery to be replaced by anyone other than qualified personnel who have received safety training.

Improper battery replacement can result in electric shock. It can also cause equipment malfunction, injury to operators, or equipment damage.

- When replacing the battery, always do so with power supplied to the Basic Unit. If power to the Basic Unit is turned OFF when the battery is replaced, data stored in the memory in the CPU Module may be lost.
- Do not touch the battery terminals when replacing the battery. There is a risk of electrostatic discharge failure.
- A lithium battery is built into the Controller. After replacing the battery, dispose of the old battery separate from regular waste and in accordance with local regulations.
- 1. Save the data stored in the Basic Unit to a Compact Flash, hard disk on an external computer, or other media. This data is used to restore any data accidentally lost during battery replacement.

Note: For information on saving methods, refer to the MP900/MP2000 Series MPE720 Software for Programming Device User's Manual (Manual No.: SIEP C880700 05).

- 2. Check that the RDY indicator on the Basic Unit is lit.
- 3. Open the battery cover on the unit front surface.
- **4.** Remove the connector on the end of lead of the built-in battery from the connector on the Basic Unit. Then, remove the built-in battery from the battery holder.
- **5.** Insert securely the connector on the end of the lead of the replacement battery into the connector on the Basic Unit. Then, insert the replacement battery into the battery holder.
- 6. Check that the BAT indicator on the Basic Unit is unlit.
- 7. Close the battery cover. This completes replacing the battery.

# 8.2 Troubleshooting

This section describes the basic troubleshooting methods and provides a list of errors.

# 8.2.1 Basic Flow of Troubleshooting

When problems occur, it is important to quickly find the cause of the problems and get the system running again as soon as possible. The basic flow of troubleshooting is illustrated below.

Step 1	Visually confirm the following items.					
<ul> <li>Machine movement (or status if stopped)</li> <li>Power supply</li> <li>I/O device status</li> <li>Wiring status</li> <li>Indicator status (LED indicators on each Module)</li> <li>Switch settings (e.g., DIP switches)</li> <li>Parameter settings and program contents</li> </ul>						
Step 2	Monitor the system to see if the problem changes for the following operations.					
<ul> <li>Switching t</li> <li>Resetting a</li> <li>Turning the</li> </ul>	the Controller to STOP status alarms e power supply OFF and ON					
Step 3	Determine the location of the cause from the results of steps 1 and 2.					
<ul> <li>Controller or external?</li> <li>Sequence control or motion control?</li> <li>Software or hardware?</li> </ul>						

8

8.2.2 Error Check Flowchart

## 8.2.2 Error Check Flowchart

Find corrective actions for the problem using the following flowchart, if the cause of the problem is thought to be the MP2200 or SERVOPACK.



- * 1. Refer to 5.2.3 ( 4 ) Work Register.
- * 2. Refer to 5.2.3 ( 6 ) Monitor the Motion Program Execution Information using S register.
- * 3. Refer to 8.2.6 List of Causes for Command Error Completed Status and 8.2.7 Troubleshooting Motion Errors.

## 8.2.3 LED Indicators

(1) LED Indicators



The status of the LED indicators on the front of the MP2200 Basic Unit can be used to determine the error status and meaning.

The locations in the program that need to be corrected can be determined by using the LED indicator status to determine the general nature of the error, using the contents of system (S) registers to check drawings and function numbers causing the error, and knowing the meaning of operation errors.

## (2) LED Indicator Meanings

The following table shows how to use the LED indicators to determine the operating status of the MP2200, as well as relevant error information when the LED indicator status indicates an error.

Classification		l	ED Indica	tor		Indicator Details	Countermeasures	
Classification	RDY	RUN	ALM	ERR	BAT	Indicator Details		
	Not lit	Not lit	Lit	Lit	Not lit	Hardware reset status	Usually the CPU will start within 10 seconds. If this status continues for	
	Not lit	Not lit	Not lit	Not lit	Not lit	Initialization	gram error or hardware failure has occurred. Refer to 8.2.4 Troubleshoot-	
Namal	Not lit	Lit	Not lit	Not lit	Not lit	Drawing A (DWGA) being executed.	<i>ing System Errors</i> and correct any system errors.	
operation	Lit	Not lit	Not lit	Not lit	Not lit	User program stopped. (Offline Stop Mode)	<ul> <li>This status occurs</li> <li>When the stop operation is executed from the MPE720</li> <li>When the STOP switch is turned ON</li> <li>This status does not indicate an error.</li> </ul>	
	Lit	Lit	Not lit	Not lit	Not lit	User program being executed nor- mally.	This is the normal status.	
	Not lit	Not lit	Not lit	Lit	Not lit	A serious error has occurred.	Refer to 8.2.4 (4) Correcting User Program Errors.	
Errors	Not lit	Not lit	Not lit	Blinking	Not lit	Software ErrorNo. of blinks3: Address error (read) exception4: Address error (write) exception5: FPU exception6: Illegal general command error7: Illegal slot command error8: General FPU inhibited error9: Slot FPU inhibited error10: TLB duplicated bit error11: TLB mistake error (read)12: TLB protection violation error(read)14: TLB protection violation error(write)15: Initial page write error	A hardware error has occurred. Replace the Module.	
	Not lit	Not lit	Blinking	Blinking	Not lit	<ul> <li>Hardware Error</li> <li>Number of LED blinks indicates error</li> <li>type.</li> <li>2: RAM diagnostic error</li> <li>3: ROM diagnostic error</li> <li>4: CPU function diagnostic error</li> <li>5: FPU function diagnostic error</li> </ul>		
	-	-	-	-	Lit	Battery alarm	Refer to 8.1.3 <i>Replacing the Basic</i> <i>Unit Battery</i> and replace the Battery.	
Warnings	Lit	Lit	Lit	Not lit	Not lit	Operation error I/O error	Refer to 8.2.4 (5) [c] Ladder Pro- gram User Operation Error Status and 8.2.4 (5) [e] System I/O Error Status.	

8

# 8.2.4 Troubleshooting System Errors

The LED indicators on the front of the Basic Unit can be used to determine MP2200 operating status and error status. To obtain more detailed information on errors, the system (S) registers can be used. A detailed check of the contents of system registers can be used to determine the location of the error and take the corrective measures. Details on system registers are provided below.

# (1) System Register Allocations

The following table shows the overall structure of the system registers.

_			
SW00000	System Service Register		
SW00030	System Status	$\rightarrow$	8.2.4 ( 5 ) [ a ] System Status
SW00050	System Error Status	$\rightarrow$	8.2.4 ( 5 ) [ b ] System Error Status
SW00080	User Operation Error Status	$\rightarrow$	8.2.4 ( 5 ) [ c ] Ladder Program User Operation Error Status
SW00090	System Service Execution Status	$\rightarrow$	8.2.4 ( 5 ) [ d ] System Service Execution Status
SW00110	User Operation Error Status Details	$\rightarrow$	8.2.4 ( 5 ) [ c ] Ladder Program User Operation Error Status
SW00190	Alarm Counter and Alarm Clear	$\rightarrow$	8 2 4 ( 5 ) [ e ] System I/O Error Status
SW00200	System I/O Error Status		0.2.4 ( 0 ) [ e ] System NO Error Status
SW00500	Reserved by the system.		
SW00698	Interrupt Status		
SW00800	Module Information	$\rightarrow$	8.2.4 ( 5 ) [ h ] Module Information
SW01312	Reserved by the system.		
SW02048	Reserved by the system.		
SW03200	Motion Program Information	$\rightarrow$	8.2.5 Motion Program Alarms
SW05200 to SW08191	Reserved by the system.		
L.		•	

## (2) Accessing System Registers

To access the contents of system registers, start the MPE720 Programming Tool and use the Register List.

#### [a] Register List Display Procedure

Use the following procedure to display the register list.

- 1. Click Register List 1 to display the Register List 1 Window.
- 2. Enter the number of the first system register (SWxxxx) to be referenced (here, SW00040).
- **3.** Right-click any cell in the **Register List 1** Window that appears and change the display mode to hexadecimal.

Register St	W00040				-	•							- Auto		- [	► Monitor	E €	*	-
-	-	1	2	3	4	5	. 3	6 7	8	-	9	10	11	12	13	14	15		Ŀ
5W00008	006D	00D6	07D0	0000	0001	000		Decimal		I.	0952	0034	0002	0273	0000	0000	0000		F
5W00024	0000	0000	9860	00B7	0000	OOB		Heyadecir	nal	þ	0000	0000	0000	0000	0000	0000	0000		
5W00040	8083	0000	0000	0000	0003	000		Походоса		E	0000	0000	0000	0000	0000	0000	0000		
5W00056	0000	0000	0000	0000	0000	000		BIN		þ	0000	0000	0000	0000	0000	0000	0000		
5W00072	0000	0000	0000	0000	0000	000		ASCII		)	0000	0000	0000	0000	0000	0000	0000		
5W00088	0000	0000	0000	0000	0000	000		ON/OEF	þ	0000	0000	0000	0000	0000	0000	0000			
5W00104	0000	0000	0000	0000	0000	000				5	0000	0000	0000	0000	0000	0000	0000		
5W00120	0000	0000	0000	0000	0000	000	Ð	⊆ору	Ctrl+C	þ	0000	0000	0000	0000	0000	0000	0000		
5W00136	0000	0000	0000	0000	0000	000				þ	0000	0000	0000	0000	0000	0000	0000		
5W00152	0000	0000	0000	0000	0000	000	ß	Paste	Ctrl+¥	þ	0000	0000	0000	0000	0000	0000	0000		
5W00168	0000	0000	0000	0000	0000	000		Delete	Delete	þ	0000	0000	0000	0000	0000	0000	0000		
5W00184	0000	0000	0000	0000	0000	000				-)	0000	0000	0000	0000	0000	0000	0000		
5W00200	0000	0000	0000	0000	0000	000		Add to Scope  Import Export			0000	0000	0000	0000	0000	0000	0000	-	
W00216	0000	0000	0000	0000	0000	000				•	0000	0000	0000	0000	0000	0000	0000		
5W00232	0000	0000	0000	0000	0000	000				b	0000	0000	0000	0000	0000	0000	0000		
5W00248	0000	0000	0000	0000	0000	000				þ	0000	0000	0000	0000	0000	0000	0000		
weather	0000	nnnn	nnnn	0000	nnnn	nnn					nnnn	nnnn	nnnn	0000	nnnn	nnnn	0000		
## (3) Troubleshooting Flowchart for System Errors

A troubleshooting flowchart for system errors is provided below.



* For LED indicator pattern, refer to 8.2.3 (2) LED Indicator Meanings.

## (4) Correcting User Program Errors

A serious error may have occurred if the ALM and ERR indicators on the front of the MP2200 Basic Module are lit red. Set the MP2200 in stop status (STOP switch on DIP switch 1-6: ON) and investigate the error. Use the following procedure to investigate ladder program errors.

(1) Investigate type of serious er- ror.	Check the contents of SW00050 (Error Code) to determine if the type of the serious error is a system error or a user program error.				
	<b>↓</b>				
(2) Investigate type of program in which there is an error.	Check the contents of SW00055 (Program Type) to determine if the error is in a drawing or function.				
	₽				
(3) Investigate the drawing with the error.	Check the contents of SW00054 (Program Error Task) and SW00056 (Program Error Drawing Number) to determine the drawing with the error.				
	↓				
(4) Investigate the function with the error.	If SW00056 (Program Error Drawing Number) contains 0100H, the error is in a function. Check the contents of SW00057 (Calling Drawing Type) and SW00058 (Ladder Program Function Calling Drawing Number) to determine the drawing with the error. Check the contents of SW00059 (Ladder Program Function Calling Drawing Step Number) to determine the step number with the operation error.				
	ł				
(5) Check to see whether an oper- ation error has occurred.	Check the error count for each drawing in SW00080 to SW00089. If errors have been counted, an operation error has occurred. Go to (6).				
	↓				
(6) Investigate the type of opera- tion error and its location.	<ol> <li>Check Error Details         <ul> <li>Check Error Details</li> <li>Check error codes for drawings where the error is counted.</li> <li>DWGA: SW00111, DWGH: SW00143</li> <li>DWGI: SW00127, DWGL: SW00175</li> </ul> </li> <li>Check the Drawing Number         <ul> <li>Check the Drawing Number</li> <li>Check the error drawing number for the drawing number where an error occurred.</li> <li>DWGA: SW00122, DWGH: SW00154</li> <li>DWGI: SW00138, DWGL: SW00186</li> </ul> </li> <li>Errors in Functions         <ul> <li>Check the Function Referencing Drawing Number and Function Referencin STEP Number.</li> <li>DWGA: SW00123, 4; DWGH: SW00155, 6</li> <li>DWGI: SW00139, 40; DWGL: SW00187, 8</li> </ul> </li> </ol>				
	₽				
(7) Determine the error occur- rence location.	After the investigation of an error drawing or error function is complete, set th corresponding drawing, function, or sequence program to Disable and turn on the power supply in the RUN state to check that no error occurs. Refer to 8.2.4 (4) [a] How to Disable a User Program.				



Maintenance, Inspection, and Troubleshooting

Continued on from the previous page.

(8) Investigate the I/O state	When the error cause can be assumed to be a problem with the external input data or output data from the user program, disable the corresponding I/O process to investigate a cause based on the I/O data. Refer to 8.2.4 (4) (b) How to Disable the I/O Process. Also, when investigating an output point, refer to 8.2.4 (4) [c] How to Forcibly Turn ON/OFF Coil.		
	<b>↓</b>		
(9) Correct Programs. Correct the program that causes error.			
	•		
(10) Investigate the scan time	If no problem is found in the program, investigate the scan time. Check to see whether the maximum value for high-speed scan time is in excess of or equal to the setting value in the scan time window, or whether the maxi- mum value for slow-speed scan time is in excess of the setting value. Refer to 8.2.4 (4) [d] Operation in Case of Scan Time Over.		
	↓		
(11) Change the scan time	Change the scan time setting value. Refer to 5.5.3 Setting and Changing the Scan Time.		

#### [a] How to Disable a User Program

#### Drawing or Function

In the ladder subwindow of the MPE720 online mode, right-click the corresponding drawing and function and select Enable/Disable in the pop-up menu.



• Sequence Program (Supported by the CPU-03 and CPU-04)

In the **Module Configuration** Window of the MPE720 online mode, open the M-EXECUTOR module detailed definition window and select **D** check box of the sequence program definition to disable the definition and save the change.

No.	D	Execution type		Setting	Program
	V.	equence program(Start)		Direct	SPM001
1	V.	Sequence program(L-scan)	-	Direct	SPM002
2	V	Sequence program(H-scan)	-	Direct	SPM003
3			-		
4			-		

#### Caution

When a drawing, function, or sequence program (supported by the CPU-03/CPU-04) is disabled, the equipment may become unstable, causing personal injury or damage to the equipment. If carrying out an investigation, be aware of the behavior of the equipment when a drawing, function, or sequence program is disabled.

After the investigation, make sure to enable the drawing, function, or sequence program (supported by the CPU-03/CPU-04) again.

8

#### (b) How to Disable the I/O Process

In the **Module Configuration** Window of the MPE720 online mode, open the detailed definition window of the module for which you want to disable the I/O process. Click "D" and save it, to disable the I/O process for the clicked item. You can change the disabled input register to any value.

T#:	3 CPU#: 1			RACK#0	)1 Slot #03	0C40-0C41	
No.	ltem	D	REG	Word	SCAN	Current Value	HEX
1	Local Input 1	M	I)/0C40	1	HIGH 🕶		
2	Local Input 2		IW0C41	1	HIGH 🔻		
3	Local Output 1		0/0C40	1	HIGH 🕶		
4	Local Output 2		OW0C41	1	HIGH 🔻		
5	IRQ Input 1	K	IB0C400				
6	IRQ Input 2	V	IB0C401		- 10 <del>-</del> 1		
7	IRQ Input 3	M	IBOC410				
8	IRQ Input 4	V	IB0C411				

#### Caution

When an I/O process is disabled, the equipment may become unstable, causing personal injury or damage to the equipment. If carrying out an investigation, be aware of the behavior of the equipment when an I/O process is disabled. After the investigation, make sure you enable the I/O service again.

#### [c] How to Forcibly Turn ON/OFF Coil

In the main menu of the MPE720 online mode, select **Debug - Force ON** or **Force OFF** menus, in that order.



#### Caution

When a coil is set to forced ON or OFF, the equipment may become unstable, causing personal injury or damage to the equipment. If carrying out an investigation, be aware of the behavior of the equipment when a coil is forcibly turned ON/OFF. After the investigation, make sure to forcibly cancel the setting.

### [d] Operation in Case of Scan Time Over

When the maximum value for high-speed scan time is equal to a setting value, a watchdog timeout error will occur because the time for performing a low-speed scan cannot be ensured.



When the maximum value for a scan time is in excess of a setting value, the scan cannot be performed at every setting value. SW00044 is added due to a high-speed scan over, SW00046 is added due to a low-speed scan over.

-		Low-speed s	can setting value		
	High-speed scan setting value				
High-speed scan					
Low-speed scan					

## (5) System Register Configuration and Error Status

#### [a] System Status

System operating status and error status is stored in registers SW00040 to SW00048. Check system status details to determine whether hardware or software is the cause of an error.

Name	Register No.	Description			
Reserved by	SW00030				
the system.	SW00039				
		SB000400	READY	0: Failure, 1: Normal	
		SB000401	RUN	0: Stopped, 1: Running	
		SB000402	ALARM	0: Normal, 1: Alarm	
		SB000403	ERROR	0: Normal, 1: Error	
		SB000404	Reserved by the system.		
		SB000405	Reserved by the system.		
CPU Status	SW00040	SB000406	FLASH	1: FLASH operation	
		SB000407	WEN	0: Write-disabled, 1: Write-enabled	
		SB000408 to SB00040D	Reserved by the system.		
		SB00040E	Operation Stop Request	0: RUN, 1: STOP	
		SB00040F	Run Switch Status at Power ON	0: STOP 1: RUN	
	SW00041	SB000410	Serious Failure	1: WDGE, undefined command See SW00050 for details.	
		SB000411	Reserved by the system.		
		SB000412	Reserved by the system.		
		SB000413	Exception Error		
CPU Error Status		SB000414 to SB000417	Reserved by the system.		
		SB000418	User operation error	1: User operation error	
		SB000419	I/O Error	1: I/O error	
		SB00041A to SB00041F	Reserved by the system.		
H Scan Over Counter	SW00044				
L Scan Over Counter	SW00046				
Reserved by the system.	SW00047				

(cont'd)

Name	Register No.		Descripti	on
		SB000480	TEST	
		SB000481	MON	
		SB000482	CNFG	
		SB000483	INIT	Store DIP switch.
		SB000484	SUP	0.00, 1.011
		SB000485	STOP	
		SB000486	-	
Hardware Configuration Status	SW00048	SB000487	Battery Alarm	
		SB000488	USB1/E-INIT (for CPU-02 and CPU-03)	
		SB000489	SAVE (for CPU-02 and CPU-03)	Store DIP switch.
		SB00048A	LOAD (for CPU-02 and CPU- 03)	0: ON, 1: OFF
		SB00048B	CARD (for CPU-02 and CPU- 03)	
		SB00048C to SB00048F	Reserved by the system.	
Reserved by the system.	SW00049	SW000490 to SW00049F	Reserved by the system.	

## [b] System Error Status

System error status is stored in registers SW00050 to SW00060.

Name	Register No.		Description			
		0001H	Watchdog timeout error			
		0041H	ROM diagnosis error			
		0042H	RAM diagnosis error			
		0043H	CPU diagnosis error			
32-bit Error Code		0044H	FPU diagnosis error			
		0050H	EXIOIF error			
		0051H	Module synchronous error*1			
	SW00050	00E0H	Address read exception error			
		0100H	Address write exception error			
		0120H	FPU exception error			
		0180H	Illegal general command error			
		01A0H	Illegal slot command error			
		01E0H	User break after command execution			
		0800H	General FPU prohibition exception error			
		0820H	Slot FPU prohibition exception error			
	SW00051	For system error analysis				
32-bit Addresses	SW00052	For system error analysi				
Generating Error	SW00053	roi system enor analysis				
Program Error Task	SW00054	0000H: System	0002H: DWG.I	0005H: DWG.L		
	51100054	0001H: DWG.A	0003H: DWG.H			
				0005H: DWG.L		
Program Type	SW00055	0000H: System	0002H: DWG.I	0008H: Function		
5 5		0001H: DWG.A	0003H: DWG.H	*2		
				sequence program ²		

8

(cont'd)

Name	Register No.	Description				
Program Error Drawing Number	SW00056	Ladder program parent drawing: FFFFH Ladder program function: 8000H Ladder program child drawing: xx00H (Hxx: Child drawing number) Ladder program grandchild drawing: xxyyH (Hyy: Grandchild drawing number) Motion program/sequence program ^{*2} : F0xH (Hyx: program number)				
		Type of drawing that calls the ladder program function in which an error occurred				
Calling Drawing Type	SW00057	0001H: DWG.A0005H: DWG.L0008H: Ladder program0002H: DWG.I000FH: Motion program/ sequence program*20010H: Reserved by system.				
Ladder Program Function Calling Drawing Number	SW00058	Number of drawing that calls the ladder program function in which an error occurred.Parent drawing: FFFFH Function: 0100HChild drawing: xx00H (Hxx: Child drawing number) Grandchild drawing: xxyyH (Hyy: Grandchild drawing number)				
Ladder Program Function Calling Drawing Step Num- ber	SW00059	Step number of the drawing that calls the ladder program function in which an error occurred. 0 when there is an error in the drawing.				
	SW00060 and SW00061	Reserved by the system.				
	SW00062 to SW00065	Name of Task Generating Error				
	SW00066 and SW00067	Reserved by the system.				
	SW00068	Year Generated				
	SW00069	Month Generated				
Error Data	SW00070	Day of Week Generated				
Error Data	SW00071	Day of Month Generated				
	SW00072	Hour Generated				
	SW00073	Minutes Generated				
	SW00074	Seconds Generated				
	SW00075	Milliseconds Generated (Not used.)				
	SW00076	Number of slot with a module synchronous error *3 $\Box \Box$ yyH $\Box \Box$ : Rack number (01 to 04) yy: Slot number (01 to 09)				
	SW00078 and SW00079	Reserved by the system.				

 *  1. The CPU system program version 2.75 or later: 0051H will be reported.

The CPU system program version is earlier than 2.75: 0001H (watchdog timer over error) will be reported.

 *  2. Sequence program is supported by the CPU-03 and CPU-04.

* 3. The CPU system program version 2.75 or later: Number of slot with a module synchronous error will be reported.

#### [c] Ladder Program User Operation Error Status

Error information for user operation errors in ladder programs is stored in registers SW00080 to SW00089 (Error Status 1) and SW00110 to SW00189 (Error Status 2).

Name	Register No.	Description
DWG.A Error Count Error	SW00080	
Code	SW00081	
DWG.I Error Count Error	SW00082	
Code	SW00083	Operation error code:
DWG.H Error Count Error	SW00084	See Ladder Program User Operation Error Codes 1.
Code	SW00085	
Peserved by the system	SW00086	Error code when an index error occurs:
Reserved by the system.	SW00087	See Eulder Program Oser Operation Error Coues 2.
DWG.L Error Count Error	SW00088	
Code	SW00089	

Table 8.1 Ladder Program User Operation Error Status 1

Table 8.2	Ladder Program	User Operatio	n Error Status 2
-----------	----------------	---------------	------------------

Namo		Regis	ter No.		Bomorko
Name	DWG.A	DWG.I	DWG.H	DWG.L	Remains
Error Count	SW00110	SW00126	SW00142	SW00174	
Error Code	SW00111	SW00127	SW00143	SW00175	Error Drawing Number
Error A Dogistor	SW00112	SW00128	SW00144	SW00176	Parent drawing: FFFFH Child drawing: xx00H (Hxx: Child draw-
EIIOI A REGISIEI	SW00113	SW00129	SW00145	SW00177	ing number)
Modification A	SW00114	SW00130	SW00146	SW00178	Grandchild drawing: xxyyH (Hyy: Grand-
Register	SW00115	SW00131	SW00147	SW00179	child drawing number)
Error E Register	SW00116	SW00132	SW00148	SW00180	Motion program/sequence program [*]
	SW00117	SW00133	SW00149	SW00181	F0xxH (Hxx: program number)
Modification F	SW00118	SW00134	SW00150	SW00182	
Register	SW00119	SW00135	SW00151	SW00183	Eunction Calling Drawing Number
Error Generating	SW00120	SW00136	SW00152	SW00184	Number of the drawing that calls the
Address	SW00121	SW00137	SW00153	SW00185	function in which an error occurred.
Error Drawing Number	SW00122	SW00138	SW00154	SW00186	
Function Calling Drawing Number	SW00123	SW00139	SW00155	SW00187	Function Calling DWG Step Number Step number of the drawing that calls
Function Calling DWG Step Number	SW00124	SW00140	SW00156	SW00188	the function in which an error occurred. 0 when there is an error in the parent
Reserved by the system.	SW00125	SW00141	SW00157	SW00189	drawing.

* Sequence programming is supported by the CPU-03 and CPU-04.

	Error Code	Error Contents			5	System Default Value	
	0001H	Integer operation - underflow			-32768	[-32768]	
	0002H	Integer operation - overflow			32767 [	32767 [32767]	
	0003H	Integer operation - division e	rror	Yes	The A r	register remains the same.	
Integer	0009H	Double-length integer operation	ion - underflow	Yes	-21474	-2147483648 [-2147483648]	
Operations	000AH	Double-length integer operation	ion - overflow	Yes	214748	3647 [2147483647]	
	000BH	Double-length integer operation	ion - division error	Yes	The A r	register remains the same.	
	010xH	Operation error drawing - int to B)	eger operation error ( $\Box = 1$	No	Default indicated above.		
	0010H	Integer storage - non-numeric	e error	Yes	Store no	ot executed. [00000]	
	0011H	Integer storage - underflow		Yes	Store no	ot executed. [-32768]	
	0012H	Integer storage - overflow		Yes	Store no	ot executed. [+32767]	
	0021H	Real number storage - underf	low	Yes	Store not executed. [-1.OE+38]		
	0022H	Real number storage - overflow		Yes	Store not executed. [1.OE+38]		
	0023H	Real number operation - division-by-zero error		Yes	Operation not executed. The F register remains the same.		
	0030H	Real number operation - invalid operation (non-numeric)		No	Operati	on not executed.	
	0031H	Real number operation - exponent underflow			0.0		
	0032H	Real number operation - exponent overflow			Maximum value		
Real	0033H	Real number operation - division error (non-numeric 0/0)			Operation not executed.		
Number	0034H	Real number storage - exponent underflow			Stores (	).0.	
Operation	0035H	Real number operation - stack	k error				
		Standard System Functions Real number operation errors		No	Interrup	ot operation and $output = 0.0$	
		0040H: SQRT	0041H: SIN	0042H	I: COS	0043H: TAN	
	0040H	0044H: ASIN	0045H: ACOS	0046H	I: ATAN	0047H: EXP	
	to	0048H: LN	0049H: LOG	004AI	H: DZA	004BH: DZB	
	10	004CH: LIM	004DH: PI	004EH	I: PD	004FH: PID	
	0059H	0050H: LAG	0051H: LLAG	0052H	I: FGN	0053H: IFGN	
		0054H: LAU	0055H: SLAU	0056H	I: REM	0057H: RCHK	
		0058H: BSRCH	0059H: SORT				
		1000H or 2000H is added for an index error.					

Table 8.3 Ladder Program User Operation Error Codes 1

Note: Yes: Can be set to value other than system default from the user program.

No: The system default cannot be changed from the user program.

		-	-	-			
	Error Code	Error Contents		U	ser	System Default	
Integer - Real	1000H	Index error within drawing		Ν	lo	Execute again with i, $j = 0$ . The i register remains the same.	
Operations	2000H	Index error within function		Ν	lo	Execute again with i, $j = 0$ . The i register remains the same.	
Integer Operation	x060H	Integer system functions Index error		Ν	lo	Operation stop The A register	ped and output = input. remains the same.
	to x077H (x = 1, 2)	x06DH: PI	x06EH: PD	x06FH		I: PID	x070H: LAG
		x071H: LLAG	x072H: FGN x0		x073H: IFGN		x074H: LAU
		x075H: SLAU	x076H: FGN	N	x077H	I: IFGN	

Table 8.4 Ladder Program User Operation Error Codes 2

## [d] System Service Execution Status

Name	Register No.	Remarks
Reserved by the system.	SW00090 to SW00097	
Existence Of Data Trace Definition	SW00098	Bit 0 to 3 = Group 1 to 4 Definition exists = 1, No definition = 0
Data Trace Execution Status	SW00099	Bit 0 to 3 = Group 1 to 4 Trace stopped = 1, Trace executing = 0

#### Table 8.5 Data Trace Execution Status

#### Table 8.6 Latest Data Trace Record Numbers

Name	Register No.	Remarks
Data Trace Group 1	SW00100	Latest record number
Data Trace Group 2	SW00101	Latest record number
Data Trace Group 3	SW00102	Latest record number
Data Trace Group 4	SW00103	Latest record number

## [e] System I/O Error Status

Name	Register No.	Remarks
Current Alarm	SW00190	Cleared when power is turned ON.
Number of Alarm History Records	SW00191	The number of alarms in the alarm history.
Clear Alarms	SW00192	1: Alarm cleared 2: Current alarm and alarm history cleared
I/O Error Count	SW00200	Number of I/O errors
Input Error Count	SW00201	Number of input errors
Input Error Address	SW00202	Latest input error address (IWDDDD register number)
Output Error Count	SW00203	Number of output errors
Output Error Address	SW00204	Latest output error address (OWDDDD register number)
	SW00205	
Reserved by the system.	SW00206	(Not used.)
	SW00207	1
	SW00208 to SW00215	Rack 1, Slot 0, Error status
	SW00216 to SW00223	Reserved by the system.
	SW00224 to SW00231	Rack 1, Slot 1, Error status
I/O Error Status	SW00232 to SW00239	Rack 1, Slot 2, Error status
	SW00240 to SW00247	Rack 1, Slot 3, Error status
	SW00248 to SW00255	Rack 1, Slot 4, Error status
	SW00496 to SW00503	Rack 4, Slot 9, Error status

## [f] Actions to be Taken when an I/O Error Occurs

When an I/O error occurs during system I/O, the error status is reported in the system registers as shown in the following table.

	Name	Register No.	Remarks
CDU	CPU-01/CPU-02	SW00200 +- SW00217	Not used.
CPU	CPU-03/CPU-04	SW00208 to SW0021/	Refer to the next page for details on the error status.
Reserv	ved by system.	SW00218 to SW00223	Not used.
Rack 1	, Slot 1 Information	SW00224 to SW00231	Depends on the mounted Module and error code.
Rack 1	, Slot 2 Information	SW00232 to SW00239	Same as above.
Rack 1	, Slot 3 Information	SW00240 to SW00247	Same as above.
Rack 1	, Slot 4 Information	SW00248 to SW00255	Same as above.
Rack 1	, Slot 5 Information	SW00256 to SW00263	Same as above.
Rack 1	, Slot 6 Information	SW00264 to SW00271	Same as above.
Rack 1	, Slot 7 Information	SW00272 to SW00279	Same as above.
Rack 1	, Slot 8 Information	SW00280 to SW00287	Same as above.
Rack 2	2, Slot 1 Information	SW00288 to SW00295	Same as above.
Rack 2	2, Slot 2 Information	SW00296 to SW00303	Same as above.
Rack 2	2, Slot 3 Information	SW00304 to SW00311	Same as above.
Rack 2	2, Slot 4 Information	SW00312 to SW00319	Same as above.
Rack 2	2, Slot 5 Information	SW00320 to SW00327	Same as above.
Rack 2	2, Slot 6 Information	SW00328 to SW00335	Same as above.
Rack 2	2, Slot 7 Information	SW00336 to SW00343	Same as above.
Rack 2	2, Slot 8 Information	SW00344 to SW00351	Same as above.
Rack 2	2, Slot 9 Information	SW00352 to SW00359	Same as above.
Rack 3	3, Slot 1 Information	SW00360 to SW00367	Same as above.
Rack 3	3, Slot 2 Information	SW00368 to SW00375	Same as above.
Rack 3	3, Slot 3 Information	SW00376 to SW00383	Same as above.
Rack 3	3, Slot 4 Information	SW00384 to SW00391	Same as above.
Rack 3	8, Slot 5 Information	SW00392 to SW00399	Same as above.
Rack 3	3, Slot 6 Information	SW00400 to SW00407	Same as above.
Rack 3	3, Slot 7 Information	SW00408 to SW00415	Same as above.
Rack 3	3, Slot 8 Information	SW00416 to SW00423	Same as above.
Rack 3	8, Slot 9 Information	SW00424 to SW00431	Same as above.
Rack 4	, Slot 1 Information	SW00432 to SW00439	Same as above.
Rack 4	, Slot 2 Information	SW00440 to SW00447	Same as above.
Rack 4	, Slot 3 Information	SW00448 to SW00455	Same as above.
Rack 4	, Slot 4 Information	SW00456 to SW00463	Same as above.
Rack 4	, Slot 5 Information	SW00464 to SW00471	Same as above.
Rack 4	, Slot 6 Information	SW00472 to SW00479	Same as above.
Rack 4	, Slot 7 Information	SW00480 to SW00487	Same as above.
Rack 4	, Slot 8 Information	SW00488 to SW00495	Same as above.
Rack 4	, Slot 9 Information	SW00496 to SW00503	Same as above.

#### CPU-03 and CPU-04 Error Status (Rack 1, Slot 0)

(Bit number)	F	8	7		0
SW00208	Sta	atus	Subslot (function) number		
	F			1	0
SW00209		Unused		Write	Read
	F C	B 8	7 4	3	0
SW00210	Transmission station for writing	Reserved by the system.	Transmission station for reading	Reserved by	y the system.
SW00211	Unused				
SW00212		Un	used		

[Details of 218IFA/218IFC Error Status] (SW00208 to SW00212)

Items	Code	Remarks
Subslot Number	4	4 = 218IFA/218IFC (Ethernet)
Status	0	Normal
Oldius	1	Station error
Read/ W/rite	0	Normal communications
	1	Communications error
	0x0	No error
	0x4	Parameter format error
Transmission Station for	0x5	Command sequence error
Reading/ Writing	0x6	Reset status
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	0x7	Data receiving error
	0x8	Data sending error
	0xA	Connection error

■ LIO-01/02 Module Error Status (Example for Rack 1, Slot 1)

(Bit No.)	F	8	7	0	
SW00224	Erro	r Code (I/O error = 2)	Subslot No. (= 1)		
SW00225	Erro	r Code (I/O error = 2)	Subslot No. (=	2)	
				-	
SW00226	Not used			Not used	
				-	
SW00227	Not used			Not used	
SW00228	Not used			Not used	
SW00229	Not used			Not used	
SW00230	Not used			Not used	
SW00231	Not used			Not used	

■ 260IF-01 Module Error Status (Example for Rack 1, Slot 3)

(Bit No.)	F	8	7	0
SW00240	Error Code (Station error = 1)		Subslot No. (=	2)
SW00241	ST#15			ST#0
		-		•
SW00242	ST#31			ST#16
		·		•
SW00243	ST#47			ST#22
SW00244	ST#63			ST#48

[Error status details]

Item	Code	Remarks
	0	Normal communication
ST#n	1	Communication error at station n (when slave, n becomes a local station number)

#### [g] Interrupt Status

Name	Register No.	Remarks	
Interrupt Detection Counter	SW00698		
Module Generating Interrupt	SW00699	Number of Interrupt Modules for one time	
	SW00700		
	SW00701	Interrupt Module 1	
	SW00702	1	
	SW00703		
	SW00704	Interrupt Module 2	
Interrupt Module	SW00705	1	
	:		
	:		
	SW00787		
	SW00788	Interrupt Module 30	
	SW00789	1	

#### Interrupt Module Details

SW00DDD+0 Rack Slot mms		8	7	0	(Bit No.)
	SW00000+0	Rack	Slot		mmssH
SW00DDD + 1 Interrupt Type	SW00□□□ + 1	Interrupt Type			
SW00DDD + 2 Hardware Interrupt Factor Register Values	SW00000 + 2	Hardware Interrupt Factor Register Values			

1. Rack

mm = 01 to 04

The rack number where the Module that was the interrupt factor is mounted.

2. Slot

ss = 01 to 09

The slot number where the Module that was the interrupt factor is mounted.

- 3. Interrupt Type
  - 1: Reserved by the system.
  - 2: LIO-01/LIO-02/LIO-04 DI interrupts
  - 3: LIO-01/LIO-02 counter interrupts
- 4. Hardware Interrupt Factor Register Values

#### • Interrupt Type = 2 (LIO-01, LIO-02, and LIO-04 DI Interrupts)

Bit	Meaning
0 to 4	Reserved by the system.
5	LIO-01 and LIO-02 interrupt inputs: 1 = Interrupt input, 0 = No interrupt input
6 to 8	Reserved by the system.
9	LIO-04 interrupt input 1: 1 = Interrupt input, 0 = No interrupt input
10	LIO-04 interrupt input 2: 1 = Interrupt input, 0 = No interrupt input
11	LIO-04 interrupt input 3: 1 = Interrupt input, 0 = No interrupt input
12	LIO-04 interrupt input 4: 1 = Interrupt input, 0 = No interrupt input
13 to 15	Reserved by the system.

• Interrupt Type = 3 (LIO-01 and LIO-02 Counter Interrupts)

Bit Meaning	
0 to 3	Reserved by the system.
4 Counter Agreement Status: 1 = Counter agreement, 0 = No counter agreeme	
5 to 15 Reserved by the system.	

8

## [h] Module Information

Namo	Pagistar No	Remarks		
Name	Register No.	CPU-01/CPU-02	CPU-03	CPU-04
	SW00800	Basic Unit ID		
	SW00801	CPU Hardware Vers	ion (BCD)	
	SW00802	CPU Software Versi	on (BCD)	
	SW00803	Number of Subslots		
	SW00804	CPU Function Modu	ıle ID	
	SW00805	CPU Function Modu	ıle Status	
	SW00806	SVR Function Modu	ıle ID	
	SW00807	SVR Function Modu	ile Status	
CPU Information	SW00808		CARD Function Module ID	Reserved by sys-
	SW00809		CARD Function Module ID Status	tem.
	SW00810	Reserved by the system.	218IFA function Module ID	218IFC Function Module ID
	SW00811		218IFA Function Module Status	218IFC Function Module Status
	SW00812		M-EXECUTOR Fun	ction Module ID
	SW00813		M-EXECUTOR Fun	ction Module Status
	SW00814 to SW00815		Reserved by system.	
	SW00816	Module ID		
	SW00817	Hardware Version (BCD)		
	SW00818	Software Version (B	CD)	
Rack 1. Slot 1 Information	SW00819	Number of Subslots		
	SW00820	Subslot 1 Function	Module ID	
	SW00821	Subslot 1 Function	Module Status	
	SW00822	Subslot 2 Function	Module ID	
	SW00823	Subslot 2 Function	Module Status	
Rack 1, Slot 2 Information	SW00824 to SW00831	Same as above.		
Rack 1, Slot 3 Information	SW00832 to SW00839	Same as above.		
Rack 1, Slot 4 Information	SW00840 to SW00847	Same as above.		
Rack 1, Slot 5 Information	SW00848 to SW00855	Same as above.		
Rack 1, Slot 6 Information	SW00856 to SW00863	Same as above.		
Rack 1, Slot 7 Information	SW00864 to SW00871	Same as above.		
Rack 1, Slot 8 Information	SW00872 to SW00879	Same as above.		
	SW00880	Module ID		
	SW00881	Hardware Version (H	BCD)	
	SW00882	Software Version (B	CD)	
Rack 2. Slot 1 Information	SW00883	Number of Subslots		
	SW00884	Subslot 1 Function	Module ID	
	SW00885	Subslot 1 Function	Module Status	
	SW00886	Subslot 2 Function	Module ID	
	SW00887	Subslot 2 Function	Module Status	
Rack 2, Slot 2 Information	SW00888 to SW00895	Same as above.		
Rack 2, Slot 3 Information	SW00896 to SW00903	Same as above.		
Rack 2, Slot 4 Information	SW00904 to SW00911	Same as above.		
Rack 2, Slot 5 Information	SW00912 to SW00919	Same as above.		
Rack 2, Slot 6 Information	SW00920 to SW00927	Same as above.		
Rack 2, Slot 7 Information	SW00928 to SW00935	Same as above.		
Rack 2, Slot 8 Information	SW00936 to SW00943	3 Same as above.		
Rack 2, Slot 9 Information	SW00944 to SW00951	Same as above.		

(conťd)

		Remarks		
Name	Register No.	CPU-01/CPU-02	CPU-03	CPU-04
	SW00952	Module ID		
	SW00953	Hardware Version (B	CD)	
	SW00954	Software Version (BC	CD)	
Rack 3 Slot 1 Information	SW00955	Number of Subslots		
	SW00956	Subslot 1 Function M	Aodule ID	
	SW00957	Subslot 1 Function M	Aodule Status	
	SW00958	Subslot 2 Function N	Module ID	
	SW00959	Subslot 2 Function N	Module Status	
Rack 3, Slot 2 Information	SW00960 to SW00967	Same as above.		
Rack 3, Slot 3 Information	SW00968 to SW00975	Same as above.		
Rack 3, Slot 4 Information	SW00976 to SW00983	Same as above.		
Rack 3, Slot 5 Information	SW00984 to SW00991	Same as above.		
Rack 3, Slot 6 Information	SW00992 to SW00999	Same as above.		
Rack 3, Slot 7 Information	SW01000 to SW01007	Same as above.		
Rack 3, Slot 8 Information	SW01008 to SW01015	Same as above.		
Rack 3, Slot 9 Information	SW01016 to SW01023	Same as above.		
	SW01024	Module ID		
	SW01025	Hardware Version (B	CD)	
	SW01026	Software Version (BC	CD)	
Rack 4, Slot 1 Information	SW01027	Number of Subslots		
	SW01028	Subslot 1 Function Module ID		
	SW01029	Subslot 1 Function Module Status		
	SW01030	Subslot 2 Function N	Aodule ID	
	SW01031	Subslot 2 Function N	Aodule Status	
Rack 4, Slot 2 Information	SW01032 to SW01039	Same as above.		
Rack 4, Slot 3 Information	SW01040 to SW01047	Same as above.		
Rack 4, Slot 4 Information	SW01048 to SW01055	Same as above.		
Rack 4, Slot 5 Information	SW01056 to SW01063	Same as above.		
Rack 4, Slot 6 Information	SW01064 to SW01071	Same as above.		
Rack 4, Slot 7 Information	SW01072 to SW01079	Same as above.		
Rack 4, Slot 8 Information	SW01080 to SW01087	Same as above.		
Rack 4, Slot 9 Information	SW01088 to SW01095	Same as above.		

8

8.2.5 Motion Program Alarms

## 8.2.5 Motion Program Alarms

If a motion program alarm occurs, find the cause of alarm indicated by the alarm code.

The alarm code, alarm name, and its corrective actions in a motion program can be checked on the **Motion Alarm** Window.

This section explains the Motion Alarm Window and motion alarm codes:

#### (1) Motion Alarm Window

The following two options are available for displaying the Motion Alarm Window.

#### [a] Open from Drive Control Panel Tab

Right-click any cell in the **Drive Control Panel** Tab Page. Click the **Motion Alarm** Button in the pop-up menu that will appear.

Task	Task1	Task2
Main program	MPM001	SPM002
- Motion Program Control Signals	OW0801 H0000	SW03323 H2001
Bit 0 : Start request	0	0
Bit 1 : Pause request	0	0
Bit 2 : Stop request	0	0
Bit 3 : Single block mode selection		~
Bit 4 : Single block start request	Open Prog	ram
Bit 5 : Alarm reset request	<u>T</u> ask Alloca	ate
Bit 6 : Program continuous operation start request	Making Ala	
Bit 8 : Skip1 information	Motion Alarm	
Bit 9 : Skip2 information	✓ <u>E</u> nable Par	nel Control
Bit D : System work number setting	0	0
Bit E : Interpolation override setting	0	0
∃ Status	IW0800	SW03322

#### [b] Open from Right-click Menu on the Motion Editor

Select Motion Alarm from the menu displayed by right-clicking on the motion editor.



This section explains the Motion Alarm Window.

Image: Stratuge     Image: Stratuge
Image: Second
Task10 No allocate
Image: Second

#### ① Program number

The name of the program where an error occurred is shown.

#### ② Block number

The number of the block where an error occurred is shown.

Double-clicking the number will bring you to the corresponding program where the error occurred. The block number is shown in the motion editor.



Block number

③ Status (alarm name)

The alarm name is shown.

#### **④** Alarm Contents

The alarm content are shown.

#### ⑤ Corrective Action

Corrective actions for the alarm are shown.

8

8.2.5 Motion Program Alarms

## (2) Motion Program Alarm Codes

## (a) Configuration of Motion Program Alarms

The following diagram shows the configuration of alarms.



## (b) Alarm Code List for Motion Program

The following table shows the alarm codes of motion programs.

Alarm Code	Name	Description	Corrective Actions
02h	Division error	Data divided by 0	Review the motion program.
10h	A circle instead of radius was specified	Turn number was specified instead of radius in the circular arc or helical interpolation command.	<ul> <li>Designate a center coordinate instead of a radius to perform the circular arc or helical interpolation command.</li> <li>Never specify the turn number.</li> </ul>
11h	Interpolation feeding speed over limit	Interpolation feeding speed exceeded the valid range of the FMX command.	Modify the interpolation feeding speed of the interpolation command
12h	No interpolation feeding speed specified	No interpolation feeding speed was specified. (once specified, this can be omitted as in the motion program)	Specify the interpolation feeding speed in the interpolation command.
13h	Range exceeded after converting acceleration parameter	Indirect acceleration parameter exceeded the valid range.	Change the indirect register value.
14h	Circular arc length exceeded LONG_MAX	Circular arc length exceeded the valid range in the circular arc or helical interpolation command.	Review the circular arc length in the circular arc or helical interpolation command.
15h	Vertical axis not speci- fied for circular arc plane	Vertical axis was not specified in the circular are or helical interpolation command.	Use PLN command to specify the axis.
16h	Horizontal axis not specified for circular arc plane	Horizontal axis was not specified in the circu- lar arc or helical interpolation command.	Use PLN command to specify the axis.
17h	Specified axis over limit	Too many axes were configured in the circular arc (two axes) or helical (three axes) interpola- tion command.	Modify the axis in the circular arc or helical interpolation command.
18h	Turn number over limit	Turn number exceeded the valid range in the circular arc or helical interpolation command.	Modify the turn number in the circular arc or helical interpolation command.
19h	Radius exceeded LONG_MAX	Radius exceeded the valid range in the circular arc or helical interpolation command.	Review the radius in the circular arc or heli- cal interpolation command.
1Ah	Center point error	Improper center point was specified in the cir- cular arc or helical interpolation command.	Specify the center point properly in the cir- cular arc or helical interpolation command.
1Bh	Running emergency stop command	Axis move command stopped due to a pro- gram stop request.	Turn OFF the program stop request for the motion program control signal, and turn ON the alarm reset request.
1Ch	Linear interpolation moving amount exceeded LONG_MAX	Moving amount exceeded the valid range in the linear interpolation command.	Review the moving amount in the linear interpolation command.
1Dh	FMX undefined	FMX command not executed in the motion program containing an interpolation command.	Execute an FMX command. The FMX command is required in each program con- taining an interpolation command.
1Eh	Address T out of range	Designation exceeded the valid range in the IAC/IDC/FMX commands.	Review the setting in the IAC/IDC/FMX command.
1Fh	Address P out of range	Designation exceeded the valid range in the IFP command.	Review the setting in the IFP command.

(conťd)

Alarm Code	Name	Description	Corrective Actions
21h	PFORK execution error	A motion command was instructed simulta- neously at the second line in the PFORK of both a source motion program and a subpro- gram.	Review the source motion program or sub- program.
22h	Indirect register range error	Specified register address exceeds the register size range.	Review the motion program.
23h	Moving amount out of range	Axis moving amount with decimal point for an axis move command exceeded the possible range.	Review the axis moving amount.
80h	Use of logical axis pro- hibited	Multiple motion commands instructed against the same axis at the same time.	Review the motion program.
81h	Designation exceeded POSMAX in the infinite length axis	Moving distance designation exceeded POS- MAX in the infinite length axis.	<ul><li>Modify a fixed parameter "Maximum infinite length axis counter"</li><li>Review the motion program.</li></ul>
82h	Axis moving distance exceeded LONG_MAX	Axis moving distance designation exceeded the valid range.	Review the motion program.
84h	Duplicated motion com- mand	Multiple commands were executed against a single axis.	Check whether another program gave a command to the same axis at the same time. If so, review the program.
85h	Motion command response error	A motion command response different from that instructed by the motion command is reported from a motion module.	<ul> <li>Remove the alarm cause from the destination axis.</li> <li>If the servo is not turned ON, turn ON the servo.</li> <li>Check whether another program gave a command to the same axis at the same time. If so, review the program.</li> </ul>
87h	VEL setting data out of range	An instruction in the VEL command exceeded the valid range.	Review the VEL command.
88h	INP setting data out of range	An instruction in the INP command exceeded the valid range.	Review the INP command.
89h	ACC/SCC/DCC setting data out of range	An instruction in the ACC/SCC/DCC com- mand exceeded the valid range.	Review the ACC/SCC/DCC command.
8Ah	No time specified in the MVT command	T designation in the MVT command was zero.	Review the MVT command.
8Bh	Command execution disabled	A motion command which cannot be executed by the destination motion module was instructed.	Review the motion program.
8Ch	Distribution incom- pleted	A motion command was executed when a motion module was not in the Distribution Completed state.	Review the motion program so that a motion command is executed in the Distribution Completed state.
8Dh	Motion command abnormally aborted	Motion module fell into the "Motion com- mand abnormally aborted" state.	<ul><li> Release the destination axis error.</li><li> Review the motion program.</li></ul>

8.2.6 List of Causes for Command Error Completed Status

## 8.2.6 List of Causes for Command Error Completed Status

The Command Error Completed Status ( $IW\square\square09$ , bit 3) turns ON when the set motion command cannot be executed for some reasons or the execution of motion command ended with error. The cause for which this bit turns ON differ depending on motion command.

The following table shows the causes of Command Error Completed Status by motion command.

	Motion Command Code	Cause of Command Error Occurrence	Warning (W:) and Alarm (A:) That Occur at Command Error Occurrence
	Positioning	The positioning moving amount exceeds the allowable range.	A: Excessive Positioning Moving Amount
		The axis is a ABS infinite-length, and the zero point return setting is not completed	A: Zero Point Not Set
1	(POSING)	In servo OFF status	A: Servo OFF
		Alarm is occurring.	-
		Asynchronous communication status	A: Servo Driver Synchronization Com- munication Error
	External Positioning (EX_POSING)	The positioning moving amount exceeds the allowable range.	A: Excessive Positioning Moving Amount
		The axis is a ABS infinite-length, and the zero point return setting is not completed	A: Zero Point Not Set
		In servo OFF status	A: Servo OFF
		Alarm is occurring.	-
2		Asynchronous communication status	A: Servo Driver Synchronization Com- munication Error
		SERVOPACK parameter writing was not com- pleted within the specified time.	A: Servo Driver Command Timeout Error
		Warning A.94 or A.95 occurred in the SERVOPACK.	W: Servo Driver Error
		The selected external signal is out of the setting range.	W: Setting Parameter Error
		In machine lock status	_
		In servo OFF status	A: Servo OFF
	-	An alarm is occurring.	-
		Asynchronous communication status	A: Servo Driver Synchronization Com- munication Error
		SERVOPACK parameter reading or writing was not completed within the specified time.	A: Servo Driver Command Timeout Error
3	Zero Point Return	Warning A.94 or A.95 is occurring in the SERVOPACK.	W: Servo Driver Error
	(ZRET)	The selected zero point return method is out of the setting range.	W: Setting Parameter Error
		POT method is selected for zero point return, but the approach speed is a negative value.	W: Setting Parameter Error
		NOT method is selected for zero point return, but the approach speed is a positive value.	W: Setting Parameter Error
		During zero point return using DEC1 + Phase- C, ZERO signal, or Phase-C method, the OT signal in zero point return direction was ON.	OT Alarm or OT Warning in Zero Point Return Direction

## 8.2.6 List of Causes for Command Error Completed Status

(conťd)

	Motion Command Code	Cause of Command Error Occurrence	Warning (W:) and Alarm (A:) That Occur at Command Error Occurrence
4	Interpolation (INTERPOLATE) Interpolation last segment	The commanded moving distance for one scan exceeds the segment that can be commanded to the MECHATROLINK SERVOPACK, or the speed feed forward value exceeds the allowable maximum speed.	A: Excessive Speed
5		The axis is ABS infinite length, and the zero point return (setting) is not completed.	A: Zero Point Not Set
	(ENDOF_INTERPOLATE)	In servo OFF status	A: Servo OFF
		An alarm is occurring.	-
		Asynchronous communication status	A: Servo Driver Synchronization Com- munication Error
	Latch (LATCH)	The commanded moving amount for one scan exceeds the segment that can be commanded to the MECHATROLINK SERVOPACK, or the speed feed forward value exceeds the allowable maximum speed.	A: Excessive Speed
6		The axis is ABS infinite length, and the zero point return (setting) is not completed.	A: Zero Point Not Set
		In servo OFF status	A: Servo OFF
		An alarm is occurring.	_
		The selected latch signal is out of the setting range.	W: Setting Parameter Error
		In machine lock status	-
	.IOG Operation	In servo OFF status	A: Servo OFF
7	(FEED)	An alarm is occurring.	-
		Asynchronous communication status	A: Servo Driver Synchronization Com- munication Error
		Positioning moving amount exceeds the allow- able value.	A: Excessive Positioning Moving Amount
8	STEP operation	In servo OFF status	A: Servo OFF
Ũ	(STEP)	An alarm is occurring.	-
		Asynchronous communication status	A: Servo Driver Synchronization Com- munication Error
	Zero Point setting	An alarm is occurring.	_
9	(ZSET)	Asynchronized communication status	A: Servo Driver Synchronization Com- munication Error
		An alarm is occurring.	_
	Change Acceleration Time	Asynchronous communication status	A: Servo Driver Synchronization Com- munication Error
10 •	(ACC) Change Deceleration Time	Executed while the distribution has not been completed (DEN = OFF)	-
11	(DCC)	SERVOPACK parameter writing was not com- pleted within the specified time.	A: Servo Command Timeout Error
		Warning A.94 or A.95 occurred in the SERVOPACK.	W: Servo Driver Error
		An alarm is occurring.	-
		Asynchronous communication status	A: Servo Driver Synchronization Com- munication Error
12	Change Filter Time Con- stant	Executed while the distribution has not been completed (DEN = OFF)	A: Filter Time Constant Change Error
	(SCC)	SERVOPACK parameter writing was not com- pleted within the specified time.	A: Servo Driver Command Timeout Error
		Warning A.94 or A.95 occurred in the SERVOPACK.	W: Servo Driver Error

8

8.2.6 List of Causes for Command Error Completed Status

(cont'd)

	Motion Command Code	Cause of Command Error Occurrence	Warning (W:) and Alarm (A:) That Occur at Command Error Occurrence
		An alarm is occurring.	-
	Change Filter Type (CHG_FILTER)	Asynchronous communication status	A: Servo Driver Synchronization Com- munication Error
13		Executed while the distribution has not been completed (DEN = OFF).	A: Filter Time Constant Change Error
		The selected filter type is out of the setting range.	W: Setting Parameter Error
	Change Speed Loop Gain	An alarm is occurring.	-
14 •	(KVS) Change Position Loop Gain	Asynchronous communication status	A: Servo Driver Synchronization Com- munication Error
15 •	(KPS) Change Speed Feed	SERVOPACK parameter writing was not com- pleted within the specified time.	A: Servo Driver Command Timeout Error
16	(KFS)	Warning A.94 or A.95 occurred in the SERVOPACK.	W: Servo Driver Error
		An alarm is occurring.	_
	Read SERVOPACK	Asynchronized communication status	A: Servo Driver Synchronization Com- munication Error
17 •	Parameter (PRM_RD) Write SERVOPACK	SERVOPACK parameter reading was not com- pleted within the specified time.	A: Servo Driver Command Timeout Error
18	Parameter (PRM_WR)	Warning A.94 or A.95 occurred in the SERVOPACK.	W: Servo Driver Error
	、 <u> </u>	SERVOPACK parameter number or size is out of the setting range.	W: Setting Parameter Error
10	Monitor SERVOPACK Alarms	The command to the SERVOPACK was not completed within the specified time.	A: Servo Driver Command Timeout Error
• 20	(ALM_MON) Monitor SERVOPACK Alarm History (ALM_HIST)	Servo driver alarm monitor number is out of setting range.	W: Setting Parameter Error
21	Clear SERVOPACK Alarm History (ALMHIST_CLR)	The command to the SERVOPACK was not completed within the specified time.	A: Servo Driver Command Timeout Error
		This command was used for $\Sigma$ -I SERVOPACK.	_
		Executed while servo is ON.	_
22	Reset Absolute Encoder (ABS_RST)	Asynchronous communication status	A: Servo Driver Synchronization Com- munication Error
		The command to the SERVOPACK was not completed within the specified time.	A: Servo Driver Command Timeout Error
	Speed Deference	Commanded when having been connected to MECHATROLINK-I	-
23	(VELO)	An alarm is occurring.	-
	()	Asynchronous communication status	A: Servo Driver Synchronization Com- munication Error
	Torque Deference	Commanded when having been connected to MECHATROLINK-I	-
24	(TRQ)	An alarm is occurring	-
		Asynchronous communication status	A: Servo Driver Synchronization Com- munication Error
		The axis is ABS infinite length, and the zero point return (setting) is not completed.	A: Zero Point Not Set
25	Phase Reference	In servo OFF status	A: Servo OFF
25	(PHASE)	An alarm is occurring.	-
		Asynchronous communication status	A: Servo Driver Synchronization Com- munication Error

(conťd)

	Motion Command Code	Cause of Command Error Occurrence	Warning (W:) and Alarm (A:) That Occur at Command Error Occurrence
	Change Position Loop Integration Time Constant (KIS)	An alarm is occurring.	-
		Asynchronous communication status	A: Servo Driver Synchronization Com- munication Error
26		SERVOPACK parameter writing was not com- pleted within the specified time.	A: Servo Driver Command Timeout Error
		Warning A.94 or A.95 occurred in the SERVOPACK.	W: Servo Driver Error
	Others Parameter Automatic Updating when Execution of Move Command Starts [*]	An alarm is occurring.	_
		Asynchronous communication status	A: Servo Driver Synchronization Com- munication Error
		SERVOPACK parameter writing was not com- pleted within the specified time.	A: Servo Driver Command Timeout Error
		Warning A.94 or A.95 occurred in the SERVOPACK.	W: Servo Driver Error
		The distribution was not completed (DEN = OFF).	-

* When the fixed parameter Automatic Updating of Parameter was enabled, and the setting of Filter Time Constant, Acceleration Rate/Time, or Deceleration Rate/Time was changed at the time a move command was set

## 8.2.7 Troubleshooting Motion Errors

Motion errors in the MP2000-series Machine Controller include axis alarms detected for individual SERVOPACKs. The failure location can be determined and appropriate corrections can be taken simply by checking the contents of the Warning (IL $\Box$  $\Box$ 02) and Alarm (IL $\Box$  $\Box$ 04) monitoring parameters.

Refer to 12.5 Troubleshooting Motion Errors in the Machine Controller MP2000 Series Built-in SVB/SVB-01 Motion Module User's Manual (manual no.: SIEP C880700 33) for details.

# Appendices

А	System Registers Lists	A-2
	A.1 System Service Registers	A-2
	A.2 Scan Execution Status and Calendar	A-4
	A.3 Program Software Numbers and Remaining Program Memory Capacity	A-4
В	SVR Motion Parameter Details	A-5
	B.1 Fixed Parameter List	A-5
	B.2 Setting Parameter List	A-7
	B.3 Monitoring Parameter List	A-12
С	Simple Connection Function of the Engineering Tool	
	(Supported by the CPU-03 and CPU-04)	A-16
	C.1 Preparation	A-16
	C.2 Procedure	A-16
D	MSG-SND/ MSG-RCV Functions (Ethernet)	A-20
	D.1 Message Send Function (MSG-SND)	A-20
	D.2 Message Receive Function (MSG-RCV)	A-53
	D.3 Communication Buffer Channel	A-83
Е	Optional Functions	A-85
	E.1 Clearing D Registers at Startup	A-85
	E.2 Security	A-86
	E.3 Battery Backup for Table Data	A-94
F	Installing MPE720 Version 6	A-98

Α

A.1 System Service Registers

# Appendix A System Registers Lists

## A.1 System Service Registers

## (1) Shared by All Drawings

Name	Register No.	Remarks
Reserved by the system	SB000000	(Not used)
High-speed Scan	SB000001	ON for only one scan after high-speed scan is started after turning ON the power supply.
Reserved by the system	SB000002	(Not used)
Low-speed Scan	SB000003	ON for only one scan after low-speed scan is started after turning ON the power supply.
Always ON	SB000004	Always ON (= 1)
High-speed scan 2	SB000005	ON for only one scan after the start of a high-speed scan that is begun after a CPU Mod-
riigh speed sean z	5000005	ule operation starts.*
Low speed scap 2	SB000006	ON for only one scan after the start of a low-speed scan that is begun after a CPU Mod-
Low-speed scan 2	38000000	ule operation starts.*
High-speed Scan Flag	SB000007	ON during execution of the high-speed scan.
Reserved by the system	SB000008 to	(Not used)
The system	SB00000F	

* Does not include when MPE720 version 2.75 or earlier is used to execute a batch load or to clear the memory before starting the CPU Module.

## (2) DWG.H Only

The following relays are reset at the start of the high-speed scan.

Name	Register No.	Remarks
1-scan Flicker Relay	SB000010	→   ← 1 scan → → ►   ← 1 scan
0.5-s Flicker Relay	SB000011	
1.0-s Flicker Relay	SB000012	1.0s
2.0-s Flicker Relay	SB000013	2.0s 2.0s
0.5-s Sampling Relay	SB000014	45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45s 45
1.0-s Sampling Relay	SB000015	
2.0-s Sampling Relay	SB000016	2.0s 2.0s
60.0-s Sampling Relay	SB000017	← 60.0s → 60.0s → ← 1 scan
1.0 s After Start of Scan Relay	SB000018	1.0s
2.0 s After Start of Scan Relay	SB000019	2.0s
5.0 s After Start of Scan Relay	SB00001A	5.0s

## DWG.L Only

The following relays are reset at the start of the low-speed scan.

Name	Register No.	Remarks
One-scan Flicker Relay	SB000030	->   < 1 scan
0.5-s Flicker Relay	SB000031	
1.0-s Flicker Relay	SB000032	1.0s
2.0-s Flicker Relay	SB000033	2.0s 2.0s
0.5-s Sampling Relay	SB000034	<ul> <li>0.5s</li> <li>0.5s</li> <li>0.5s</li> <li>1 scan</li> </ul>
1.0-s Sampling Relay	SB000035	1.0s 1.0s 1.0s 1.0s 1.0s 1.0s
2.0-s Sampling Relay	SB000036	2.0s 2.0s ↓ 1 scan
60.0-s Sampling Relay	SB000037	60.0s 60.0s ← 1 scan
1.0 s After Start of Scan Relay	SB000038	1.0s
2.0 s After Start of Scan Relay	SB000039	2.0s
5.0 s After Start of Scan Relay	SB00003A	5.0s

A

A.2 Scan Execution Status and Calendar

## A.2 Scan Execution Status and Calendar

Name	Register No.	Remarks
High-speed Scan Set Value	SW00004	High-speed Scan Set Value (0.1 ms)
High-speed Scan Current Value	SW00005	High-speed Scan Current Value (0.1 ms)
High-speed Scan Maximum Value	SW00006	High-speed Scan Maximum Value (0.1 ms)
Reserved by the system.	SW00007 to SW00009	(Not used)
Low-speed Scan Set Value	SW00010	Low-speed Scan Set Value (0.1 ms)
Low-speed Scan Current Value	SW00011	Low-speed Scan Current Value (0.1 ms)
Low-speed Scan Maximum Value	SW00012	Low-speed Scan Maximum Value (0.1 ms)
Reserved by the system.	SW00013	(Not used)
Executing Scan Current Value	SW00014	Executing Scan Current Value (0.1 ms)
Calendar: Year	SW00015	1999: 0099 (BCD) (Last two digits only)
Calendar: Month Day	SW00016	December 31: 1231 (BCD)
Calendar: Hours Minutes	SW00017	23 hours 59 minutes: 2359 (BCD)
Calendar: Seconds	SW00018	59 s: 59 (BCD)
Calendar: Day of Week	SW00019	0 to 6: Sun., Mon. to Sat.

## A.3 Program Software Numbers and Remaining Program Memory Capacity

Name	Register No.	Remarks
System Program Software Number	SW00020	$S\square\square\square\square$ ( $\square\square\square\square$ is stored as BCD)
Reserved by the system.	SW00021 to SW00025	(Not used)
Remaining Program Memory Capacity	SL00026	Bytes
Total Memory Capacity	SL00028	Bytes

B.1 Fixed Parameter List

# Appendix B SVR Motion Parameter Details

## B.1 Fixed Parameter List

The following table lists the SVR motion fixed parameters. (Use this list as reference for the SVB.)

Slot Number	Name	Contents	SVB	SVR
		0: Normal Operation Mode	Yes	Yes
		1: Axis Unused	Yes	Yes
0	Selection of Operation Modes	2: Simulation Mode	Yes	
		3: Servo Driver Transmission Reference Mode	Yes	
		4 and 5: Reserved	-	-
		Bit 0: Axis Selection (0: Finite length axis/1: Infinite length axis)	Vac	Voc
		• Set to 0 for linear type.	105	105
		Bit 1: Soft Limit (Positive Direction) Enable/Disable	Yes	
		Bit 2: Soft Limit (Negative Direction) Enable/Disable	Yes	
		Bit 3: Overtravel Positive Direction Enable/Disable	Yes	
		Bit 4: Overtravel Negative Direction Enable/Disable	Yes	
1	Function Selection Flag 1	Bits 5 to 7: Reserved	-	-
		Bit 8: Interpolation Segment Distribution Processing	Yes	
		Bit 9: Simple ABS Rotary Pos. Mode (Simple Absolute Infinite Axis Position		
		Control) (0: Disabled/1: Enabled)	Yes	
		Set to 0 for initial type.	Vec	
		Bit A. Osel Constants Sen-writing Function	105	
		Bit 0: Communication Abnormality Dataction Mask	Vec	
2	Eurotion Selection Flag 2	Bit 0. Communication Abiomanty Detection Wask	Vec	
2	Tunction Selection Flag 2	Bit 1: wD1 Abholinanty Detection Mask	105	
2		Bits 2 to F. Reserved for system use.	_	_
3		0: nulse 1: mm 2: deg 2: inch 4:um	_	
4	Reference Unit Selection	• For linear type, only valid for 0: pulse, 1: mm, 4: µm	Yes	Yes
		When 2: deg, 3: inch is set, converted into 1: mm.		
5	Number of Digits below Decimal Places	1 = 1 digit	Yes	Yes
	Travel Distance per Machine		Vee	Vee
6	(Rotary Motor)	I = 1 reference unit	res	res
0	Linear Scale Pitch			
	(Linear Type)	1 = 1 reference unit	Yes	Yes
Q	Servo Motor Gear Patio	1 = 1 rotation	Vec	Vec
0		Invalid for linear type.	105	105
9	Machine Gear Ratio	1 = 1 rotation	Yes	Yes
	Infinite Longth Asia Depat	• Invalid for linear type.		
10	Position (POSMAX)	<ul> <li>I = 1 reference units</li> <li>Invalid for linear type.</li> </ul>	Yes	Yes
12	Positive Software Limit Value	1 = 1 reference unit	Yes	
14	Negative Software Limit Value	1 = 1 reference unit	Yes	
16	Backlash Compensation Amount	1 = 1 reference unit	Yes	
18 to 29	_	Reserved	-	-
		0: Incremental Encoder	1	
30	Encoder Selection	1: Absolute Encoder	Yes	
		2: Absolute Encoder (Incremental encoder is used.)	105	
21 to 22		Deconved		
51 10 33	1-	Reserved	-	

Α

B.1 Fixed Parameter List

(cont'd)

Slot Number	Name	Contents	SVB	SVR
34	Rated Motor Speed (Rotary Motor)	$1 = 1 \text{ min}^{-1}$	Yes	Yes
34	Rated Speed (Linear Type)	1 = 0.1  m/s, 0.1  mm/s	Yes	Yes
36	Number of Pulses per Motor Rotation (Rotary Motor)	1 = 1 pulse/rev Set the value after multiplication.	Yes	Yes
50	Number of Pulses per Linear Scale Pitch (Linear Type)	1 = 1 pulse/scale pitch	Yes	Yes
38	Maximum Number of Absolute Encoder Turns Rotation	<ul><li>1 = 1 rotation</li><li>Set to 0 when a direct drive motor is being used.</li><li>Invalid for linear type.</li></ul>	Yes	
40 to 41	-	Reserved	-	-
42	Feedback Speed Movement Av- eraging Time Constant	1 = 1  ms	Yes	Yes

## B.2 Setting Parameter List

The following table lists the SVR motion setting parameters. (Use this list as reference for the SVB.)

Register No.	Name	Contents	SVB	SVR
		Bit 0: Servo ON (0: OFF/1: ON)	Yes	Yes
		Bit 1: Machine Lock (0: Normal operation/1: Machine locked)	Yes	
		Bits 2 to 3: Reserved		
		Bit 4: Latch Detection Demand (0: OFF/1: ON)	Yes	
		Bit 5: Reserved for system use.		
		Bit 6: POSMAX Turn Number Presetting Demand		
		(0: OFF/1: ON)	Yes	Yes
		• Set to 0 for linear type.		
	DUN Commond	Bit 7: Request ABS Rotary Pos. Load (Absolute System Infinite Length Posi-	Voc	
	Setting	Set to 0 for linear type.	105	
	County	Bit 8: Forward Outside Limiting Torque/Thrust Input		
		(Forward External Limiting Torque/Thrust Input) (0: OFF/1: ON)	Yes	
		Bit 9: Reverse Outside Limiting Torque/Thrust Input	Ves	
		(Reverse External Limiting Torque/Thrust Input) (0: OFF/1: ON)	105	
		Bit A: Reserved		
		Bit B: Integration Reset (0: OFF/1: ON)	Yes	
		Bits C to D: Reserved		
		Bit E: Communication Reset (0: OFF/1: ON)	Yes	
		Bit F: Alarm Clear (0: OFF/1: ON)	Yes	Yes
	Bit 0: Excessive Deviation Error Level Setting (0: Alarm/1: Warning)         Bits 1 to 2: Reserved         Mode Setting 1         Bit 3: Speed Loop P/PI Switch         Bit 4: Gain Switch         Bit 5: Gain Switch 2	Bit 0: Excessive Deviation Error Level Setting	Yes	
		(0: Alarm/1: Warning)		
		Bits 1 to 2: Reserved		ļ
OWDD01		Bit 3: Speed Loop P/PI Switch	Yes	
		Bit 4: Gain Switch	Yes	
		Bit 5: Gain Switch 2	Yes	ļ
		Bits 6 to F: Reserved		
		Bit 0: Monitor 2 Enabled (0: Disabled/1: Enabled)	Yes	
	Mode Setting 2	Bits 1 to 3: Reserved		
OWDD02		Bits 4: Reserved		
		Bits 5 to 7: Reserved		
		Bits 8 to 15: Stop Mode Selection	Yes	
		Bits 0 to 3: Speed Unit Selection		
		0: Reference unit/s	Vec	Voc
		1: 10" reference unit/min 2: Percentage of rated speed $(1 = 0.01\%)$	105	105
		3: Percentage of rated speed $(1 = 0.001\%)$		
		Bits 4 to 7: Acceleration/Deceleration Degree Unit Selection		
		0: Reference units/ $s^2$	Yes	Yes
OWDD03	Function Setting 1	1: ms		
		Bits 8 to B: Filter Type Selection		
		0: No filter	Yes	Yes
		2: Moving average filter		
		Bits C to F: Torque Unit Selection	+	<u> </u>
		0: Percentage of rated toque $(1 = 0.01\%)$	Yes	Yes
		1: Percentage of rated toque $(1 = 0.0001\%)$		

Α

Register No.	Name	Contents	SVB	SVR
		Bits 0 to 3: Latch Detection Signal Selection		
		0: -		
		1:-		
		2: Phase-C Pulse Input Signal	Yes	
		3: /EXT1	Yes	
		4: /EXT2	Yes	
		5: /EXT3	Yes	
		Bits 4 to 7: External Positioning Signal Setting		
OW□□04	Function Setting 2	0:-		
		1:-		
		2: Phase-C Pulse Input Signal	Yes	
		3. /FXT1	Yes	
		4. /EXT2	Yes	
		5: /FXT3	Yes	
		Bite & to B: Received	105	-
		Bits C to F: Bank Selector	Ves	-
		Dits C to F. Baik Selector	Ves	
		Dite 2 to A: Deserved	105	-
OW□□05	Function Setting 3	Dit S 2 to A. Reserved Dit B: Zara Daint Paturn Input Signal (0: OEE/1: ON)	Ves	
		Dits C to E: Deserved	105	
to	_	Reserved	_	_
OW□□07				
		0: NOP (No Command)		
		1: POSING (Position Mode)(Positioning)		
		2: EA_POSING (Latch Target Positioning)(External Positioning) 3: ZRET (Zero Point Return)		
		4: INTERPOLATE (Interpolation)		
		5: ENDOF INTERPOLATE (Last Interpolation Segment)		
		6: LATCH (Interpolation Mode with Latch Input)		
		7: FEED (Jog Mode)		
		8: STEP (Relative Position Mode)(Step Mode)		
		9: ZSET (Set Zero Point)		
		10: ACC (Change Acceleration Time)		
		11: DCC (Change Deceleration Time)		
		12. SUC (Change Filter Time Constant) 12: CHC EII TEP (Change Filter Type)		
	Motion Command	14 : KVS (Change Speed Loon Gain)	Yes	Yes
		15 : KPS (Change Position Loop Gain)		
		16: KFS (Change Feed-Forward)		
		17: PRM_RD (Read User Constant)(Read SERVOPACK Parameter)		
		18: PRM_WR (Write User Constant)(Write SERVOPACK Parameter)		
		19: ALM MON (Alarm Monitor)		
		20: ALM HIST (Alarm History Monitor)		
		21: ALMHIST_CLR (Clear Alarm History)		
		22: ABS_RST (Absolute Encoder Reset)		
		23: VELO (Speed Reference)		
		24: TRQ (Torque/Thrust Reference)		
		25: PHASE (Phase Reference)		
		26: KIS (Change Position Loop Integral Time Constant)		
		27: PPKM_WR (Stored Parameter Write)	1	

B.2 Setting Parameter List

(cont'd)

Register No.	Name	Contents	SVB	SVR
		Bit 0: Holds a Command. (0: OFF/1: ON)	Yes	Yes
		Bit 1: Interrupt a Command. (0: OFF/1: ON)	Yes	Yes
		Bit 2: Moving Direction (JOG/ STEP) (0: Forward rotation/1: Reverse rotation)	Yes	Yes
	Motion Command	Bit 3: Zero Point Return Direction Selection (0: Reverse rotation/1: Forward rotation)	Yes	
	Control Flag	Bit 4: Latch Zone Effective Selection (0: Disabled/1: Enabled)	Yes	
		Bit 5: Position Reference Type (0: Incremental Addition Mode/1: Absolute Mode)	Yes	Yes
		Bit 6: Phase Compensation Type (0: Incremental Addition Mode/1: Absolute Mode)	Yes	
		Bits 7 to F: Reserved		
		0: NOP (No Command)	Yes	Yes
OWDD0A	Motion Subcommand	1: PRM_RD (Read User Constant)(Read SERVOPACK Parameter) 2: PRM_WR (Write User Constant)(Write SERVOPACK Parameter) 3: Reserved 4: SMON (Status Monitor)	Yes	
		5: FIXPRM_RD (Read Fixed Parameters)	Yes	Yes
OWDD0B	-	Reserved		
OLDD0C	Torque/Thrust Reference Setting	Unit is according to OWDD03, bits 12 to 15 (Torque Unit).	Yes	Yes
OWDD0E	Speed Limit Setting at the Torque/Thrust Reference	1 = 0.01% (percentage of rated speed)	Yes	
OWDD0F	-	Reserved		
OLDD10	Speed Reference Setting	Unit is according to OWDD03, bits 0 to 3 (Speed Unit).	Yes	Yes
OW□□12 to OW□□13	-	Reserved	_	_
OL□□14	Positive Side Limiting Torque/Thrust Setting at the Speed Reference	Unit is according to OWDD03, bits C to F (Torque Unit).	Yes	
OLDD16	Secondly Speed Compensation	Unit is according to OWDD03, bits 0 to 3 (Speed Unit).	Yes	Yes
OW□□18	Override	1 = 0.01%	Yes	
OW□□19 to OW□□1B	_	Reserved	_	-
OLDD1C	Position Reference Setting	1 = 1 reference unit	Yes	Yes
OLDD1E	Width of Positioning Completion	1 = 1 reference unit	Yes	
OL□□20	NEAR Signal Output Width	1 = 1 reference unit	Yes	
OLDD22	Error Count Alarm Detection	1 = 1 reference unit	Yes	
OLDD24	-	Reserved for system use.	-	_
OW□□26	Position Complete Cheek Time	1 = 1 ms	Yes	
	-	Reserved for system use.		
	Phase Correction Setting	1 = 1 reference unit	Yes	
OLDD2A	Latch Zone Lower Limit Setting	1 = 1 reference unit	Yes	

Α

**B.2 Setting Parameter List** 

(cont'd) Register No. Name Contents SVB SVR Latch Zone Upper OLDD2C 1 = 1 reference unit Yes Limit Setting OWDD2E Position Loop Gain 1 = 0.1/sYes OWDD2F Speed Loop Gain 1 = 1 HzYes Speed Feedforward OW□□30 Yes 1 = 0.01% (percentage of distribution segment) Amends Speed Yes OWDD31 1 = 0.01% (percentage of rated speed) Yes Compensation **Position Integration** OW□□32 1 = 1 msYes Time Constant OW□□33 Reserved _ _ Speed Integration OW□□34 Yes 1 = 0.01 ms**Time Constant** OW□□35 Reserved _ _ Straight Line Acceleration/ Acceleration OLDD36 Unit is according to OWDD03, bits 4 to 7 (Speed Unit). Yes Yes Time Constant Straight Line Decel-OLDD38 eration/ Deceleration Yes Yes Unit is according to OWDD03, bits 4 to 7 (Speed Unit). **Time Constant** OWDD3A Filter Time Constant 1 = 0.1 msYes Yes Bias Speed for Index OWDD3B Yes Unit is according to OWDD03, bits 0 to 3 (Speed Unit). Deceleration/Acceleration Filter 0: DEC1 + C (DEC 1 and C-Phase) 1: ZERO (Zero signal) Yes 2: DEC1 + ZERO (DEC 1 and zero signal) 3: C (C-pulse) 4 to 10: Reserved _ _ 11: C Pulse Zero Point Return 12: POT & C Pulse OWDD3C Method Yes 13: POT Only 14: HOME LS & C Pulse 15: HOME Only 16: NOT & C Pulse 17: NOT Only Yes 18: INPUT & C Pulse 19: INPUT Only Width of Starting OWDD3D 1 = 1 reference unit Yes Yes Point Position Output OLDD3E Approach Speed Yes Unit is according to OWDD03, bits 0 to 3 (Speed Unit). OL□□40 Creep Rate Yes Unit is according to OWDD03, bits 0 to 3 (Speed Unit). Zero Point Return OLDD42 1 = 1 reference unit Yes **Travel Distance** STEP Travel OLDD44 Yes Yes 1 = 1 reference unit Distance **External Positioning** OLDD46 Yes 1 = 1 reference unit **Final Travel Distance** Zero Point Position in OLDD48 Machine Coordinate 1 = 1 reference unit Yes Yes System Offset Work Coordinate Yes Yes OLDD4A 1 = 1 reference unit System Offset Number of 1 = 1 reference unit OLDD4C **POSMAX Turns** Yes Yes · Invalid for linear type. Presetting Data
B.2 Setting Parameter List

(cont'd)

Register No	Name	Contents	SV/B	SI/R
Register No.	Indille	Dite 0 to 2: Monitor 1 (Sotting impossible)	348	JVK
OW□□4E	Servo User Monitor Setting	Bits 0 to 5: Monitor 1 (Setting impossible) Bits 4 to 7: Monitor 2 Bits 8 to B: Monitor 3 (Setting impossible) Bits C to F: Monitor 4	Yes	
OW□□4F	Servo Driver Alarm Monitor No.	Set the number of the alarm to monitor.	Yes	
OW□□50	Servo Driver User Constant No.	Set the number of the SERVOPACK parameter.	Yes	
OWDD51	Servo Driver User Constant Number Size	Set the number of words in the SERVOPACK parameter.	Yes	
OLDD52	Servo Driver User Constant Set Point	Set the setting for the SERVOPACK parameter.	Yes	
OWDD54	Servo Driver for Assistance User Constant No.	Set the number of the SERVOPACK parameter number.	Yes	
OWDD55	Servo Driver for Assistance User Constant Size	Set the number of words in the SERVOPACK parameter.	Yes	
	Servo Driver for Assistance User Constant Set Point	Set the setting for the SERVOPACK parameter.	Yes	
OW□□58 to OW□□5B	-	Reserved	_	_
OWDD5C	Fixed Parameter Number	Set the number of the fixed parameter to read with the FIXPRM_RD motion subcommand.	Yes	Yes
OW□□5D	-	Reserved	-	-
OLDD5E	Encoder Position When Power is OFF (Lower 2 Words)	<ul><li>1 = 1 pulse</li><li>Do not set in the linear type.</li></ul>	Yes	
	Encoder Position When Power is OFF (Upper 2 Words)	<ul><li>1 = 1 pulse</li><li>Do not set in the linear type.</li></ul>	Yes	
	Pulse Position When Power is OFF (Lower 2 Words)	<ul><li>1 = 1 pulse</li><li>Do not set in the linear type.</li></ul>	Yes	
	Pulse Position When Power is OFF (Upper 2 Words)	<ul><li>1 = 1 pulse</li><li>Do not set in the linear type.</li></ul>	Yes	
OLDD66 to OLDD6E	-	Reserved	-	-
OW□□70 to OW□□7F	Command Buffer for Transparent Command Mode	This area is used for command data when MECHATROLINK servo com- mands are specified directly.	Yes	

# B.3 Monitoring Parameter List

The following table lists the SVR motion monitor parameters. (Use this list as reference for the SVB.)

Register No.	Name	Contents	SVB	SVR
		Bit 0 Motion Controller Operation Ready	Yes	Yes
		Bit 1: Running (At Servo ON)	Yes	Yes
	DUN Status	Bit 2: System Busy	Yes	
	RUN Sidius	Bit 3: Servo Ready	Yes	
		Bit 4: Latch Mode	Yes	
		Bits 5 to F: Reserved	-	-
IWDD01	Parameter Number When Range Over is Generated	Setting parameters: 0 or higher Fixed Parameters: 1000 or higher	Yes	Yes
		Bit 0: Excessive Deviation	Yes	
		Bit 1: Set Parameter Error (Setting Parameter Error)	Yes	Yes
		Bit 2: Fixed Parameter Error	Yes	Yes
		Bit 3: Servo Driver Error	Yes	
		Bit 4: Motion Command Set Error	Yes	Yes
IL□□02	Warning	Bit 5: Reserved (AD Conversion Error)	-	-
		Bit 6: Positive Direction Overtravel	Yes	
		Bit 7: Negative Direction Overtravel	Yes	
		Bit 8: Servo ON Incomplete	Yes	
		Bit 9: Servo Driver Communication Warning	Yes	
		Bits A to 1F: Reserved		
		Bit 0: Servo Driver Error	Yes	
		Bit 1: Positive Direction Overtravel	Yes	
		Bit 2: Negative Direction Overtravel	Yes	
		Bit 3: Positive Direction Software Limit	Yes	
		Bit 4: Negative Direction Software Limit	Yes	
		Bit 5: Servo OFF	Yes	Yes
		Bit 6: Positioning Time Over	Yes	
		Bit 7: Excessive Positioning Moving Amount	Yes	
		Bit 8: Excessive Speed	Yes	
		Bit 9: Excessive Deviation	Yes	
		Bit A: Filter Type Change Error	Yes	
		Bit B: Filter Time Constant Change Error	Yes	
ILDD04	Alarm	Bit C: Reserved	-	_
		Bit D: Zero Point Unsetting <ul> <li>Invalid for linear type.</li> </ul>	Yes	
		Bit E: Reserved	-	-
		Bit F: Reserved	-	-
		Bit 10: Servo Driver Synchronization Communications Error	Yes	
		Bit 11: Servo Driver Communication Error	Yes	
		Bit 12: Servo Driver Command Time-out Error	Yes	
		Bit 13: Excessive ABS Encoder Rotations <ul> <li>Invalid for linear type.</li> </ul>	Yes	
		Bits 14 to 1D: Reserved	-	-
		Bit1E: Motor Type Set Error	Yes	_
		Bit1F: Connected Encoder Type Error	Yes	_
	_	Reserved	-	_
	Motion Command Response Code	Same as OWDD08 (Motion Command).	Yes	Yes

(cont'd)

Register No	Name	Contents	SV/B	SVR
Register No.	Indifie	Bit 0: Command Execution Flag	Yes	Yes
		Bit 1: Command Hold Completed	Yes	Yes
		Bit 2: Reserved	-	-
		Bit 3: Command Error Completed Status	••	
	Motion Command	(Command Error Occurrence)	Yes	Yes
	Status	Bits 4 to 6: Reserved	-	-
		Bit 7: Reset Absolute Encoder Completed	Yes	
		Bit 8: Command Execution Completed	Yes	Yes
		Bits 9 to F: Reserved	-	-
IWDD0A	Subcommand Re- sponse Code	Same as OWxx0A (Motion Subcommand).	Yes	Yes
		Bit 0: Command Execution Flag	Yes	Yes
		Bits 1 to 2: Reserved	-	-
	Subcommand Status	Bit 3: Command Error Completed Status (Command Error Occurrence)	Yes	Yes
		Bits 4 to 7: Reserved	-	-
		Bit 8: Command Execution Completed	Yes	Yes
		Bits 9 to F: Reserved	-	-
		Bit 0: Distribution Completed	Yes	Yes
		Bit 1: Positioning Completed	Yes	Yes
		Bit 2: Latch Completed	Yes	
		Bit 3: NEAR Position	Yes	Yes
		Bit 4: Zero Point Position	Yes	Yes
		Bit 5: Zero Point Return (Setting) Completed	Yes	Yes
	Position Management	Bit 6: During Machine Lock	Yes	
	Status	Bit 7: Reserved	-	-
		<ul><li>Bit 8: ABS Rotary Pos. Load Complete (ABS System Infinite Length Position Control Information Load Completed)</li><li>Invalid for linear type.</li></ul>	Yes	
		Bit 9: POSMAX Turn Preset Complete (TPRSE)	Yes	Yes
		Invalid for linear type.	105	100
		Bits A to F: Reserved		
	-	Reserved	-	-
ILDD0E	Target Position in Machine Coordinate System (TPOS)	1 = 1 reference unit	Yes	Yes
IL□□10	Calculated Position in Machine Coordinate system (CPOS)	1 = 1 reference unit	Yes	Yes
IL0012	Machine Coordinate System Reference Position (MPOS)	1 = 1 reference unit	Yes	Yes
	CPOS for 32 bit	1 = 1 reference unit	Yes	Yes
IL□□16	Machine Coordinate System Feedback Position (APOS)	1 = 1 reference unit	Yes	Yes
	Machine Coordinate System Latch Position (LPOS)	1 = 1 reference unit	Yes	
ILOO1A	Position Error (PERR)	1 = 1 reference unit	Yes	
ILDD1C	Target Position Difference Monitor	1 = 1 reference unit		Yes
ILOO1E	Number of POSMAX Turns	1 = 1 turn • Invalid for linear type.	Yes	Yes

Α

SVB SVR Register No. Name Contents Speed Reference IL0020 Yes pulse/s **Output Monitor** ILDD22 to Reserved ILDD2A Bit 0: Alarm (ALM) Bit 1: Warning (WARNG) Bit 2: Command Ready (CMDRDY) Bit 3: Servo ON (SVON) Bit 4: Main Power Supply ON (PON) Bit 5: Machine Lock (MLOCK) Bit 6: Zero Position (ZPOINT) Bit 7: Locating Completed (Positioning Completed) (PSET) Velocity Yes Complete (V-CMP) IWDD2C Servo Driver Status Bit 8: Command Profile Complete (Distribution Completed) (DEN) Bit 9: Torque Restriction (T LIM) Bit A: Latch Complete (L_CMP) Bit B: Locating Neighborhood (NEAR Position) (NEAR) / Velocity Limit (V-LIM) Bit C: Positive Software Limit (P_SOT) Bit D: Negative Software Limit (N SOT) Bits E to F: Reserved Servo Driver Alarm IWDD2D Stores the alarm code from the SERVOPACK. Yes Code Bit 0: Forward Side Limit Switch Input (P OT) Bit 1: Reverse Side Limit Switch Input (N_OT) Bit 2: Deceleration Dog Switch Input (DEC) Bit 3: Encoder Phase-A Signal Input (PA) Bit 4: Encoder Phase-B Signal Input (PB) Bit 5: Encoder Phase-C Signal Input (PC) Bit 6: EXT1 Signal Input Servo Driver I/O Moni-Bit 7: EXT2 Signal Input IWDD2E Yes Bit 8: EXT3 Signal Input tor Bit 9: Brake State Output (BRK) Bit A: Reserved Bit B: Reserved Bit C: CN1 Input Signal (IO12) Bit D: CN1 Input Signal (IO13) Bit E: CN1 Input Signal (IO14) Bit F: CN1 Input Signal (IO15) Bits 0 to 3: Monitor 1 Servo Driver User Bits 4 to 7: Monitor 2 IWDD2F Yes Monitor Information Bits 8 to B: Monitor 3 Bits C to F: Monitor 4 Servo Driver User IL0030 Stores the result of the selected monitor. Yes Monitor 2 Servo Driver User IL0032 Reserved Monitor 3 Servo Driver User ILDD34 Stores the result of the selected monitor. Yes Monitor 4 Servo Driver User Constant No. (SERVOPACK Pa-Stores the number of the parameter being processed. Yes rameter No. for MECHATROLINK Command Area) Supplementary Servo Driver User Constant No. (SERVOPACK Yes Stores the number of the parameter being processed. Parameter No. for MECHATROLINK

Subcommand Area)

(cont'd)

Register No.	Name	Contents	SVB	SVR
IL□□38	Servo Driver User Constant Reading Data (SERVOPACK Parameter Reading Data for MECHATROLINK Command Area)	Stores the data of the parameter being read.	Yes	
IL□□3A	Supplementary Servo Driver User Constant Reading Data (SERVOPACK Parameter Reading Data for MECHATROLINK Subcommand Area)	Stores the data of the parameter being read.	Yes	
IWDD3F	Motor Type	Stores the type of motor actually connected. 0: Rotation type motor 1: Linear motor	Yes	
ILDD40	Feedback Speed	Unit is according to OW 03, bits 0 to 3 (Speed Unit).	Yes	Yes
IL0042	Feedback Torque/Thrust	Unit is according to OW 03, bits 12 to 15 (Torque Unit).	Yes	Yes
IW□□44 to IW□□55	-	Reserved	_	-
ILDD56	Fixed Parameter Monitor	Stores the data of the fixed parameter when FIXPRM-RD has been specified in the Motion Subcommand.	Yes	Yes
IW□□58 to IW□□5C	-	Reserved	_	-
ILDD5E	Encoder Position When the Power is OFF (Lower 2 Words)	1 = 1 pulse	Yes	
	Encoder Position When the Power is OFF (Upper 2 Words)	1 = 1 pulse	Yes	
IL□□62	Pulse Position When the Power is OFF (Lower 2 Words)	1 = 1 pulse	Yes	
IL□□64	Pulse Position when the Power is OFF (Upper 2 Words)	1 = 1 pulse	Yes	
IW□□66 to IW□□6F	-	Reserved	_	_
IWDD70 to IWDD7F	Response Buffer for Transparent Command Mode	Stores the response data when MECHATROLINK Servo commands are specified directly.	Yes	

Α

C.1 Preparation

# Appendix C Simple Connection Function of the Engineering Tool (Supported by the CPU-03 and CPU-04)

This section explains how to set up a communication process for connecting the MPE720 and MP2200. In MPE720 Ver.6, set the communication process on the MPE720 window. Prepare the following equipment to carry out this procedure:

# C.1 Preparation

# (1) Controller

Р	roduct Name	Model	Q'ty
MP2200	Base Unit with AC power supply	JEPMC-BU2200	1
1011 2200	CPU-03 Module (or CPU-04 Module)	JAPMC-CP2220-E (or JAPMC-CP2230-E)	1

# (2) Personal Computer

Product Name	Model	Q'ty
MPE720	CPMC-MPE770 (Ver.6.04 or later)	1
Ethernet Communication Cable	Any commercialized product Ethernet cross cable (category 5 or more)	1
Personal Computer	Any commercialized product	1

## C.2 Procedure

- **1.** Turn OFF the 100-VAC power supply to the MP2200.
- 2. Connect the MPE720 installed personal computer and MP2200.



**3.** Set the E-INIT on the DIP switch (SW2) to ON in the CPU-03/CPU-04 Module.



C.2 Procedure

**4.** Turn ON the 100-VAC power supply to the MP2200, and confirm that the RDY and RUN are lit on the CPU-03/CPU-04 Module.



O :Lit ○ :Unlit

Note: For the CPU-04, the TRX indicator functions as a CARD indicator.

5. Double-click the icon on the personal computer desktop to start up MPE720 Ver6.



6. Create a new PLC folder.

Create New Proje	ct				<u>?</u> ×
Save in:	PLC		•	⊧ 🗈 🖆 🔳•	
History Desktop My Documents					
My Computer	File name:	TEST		_	Create
	Save as type:	Project File (*.YMW)		•	Cancel
My Network P					Help
	Controller	MP23005	•		

7. Click Communications Setting.

Г	Project	
	New	Communications Setting
	Open	Connection [2:Ethernet(LP) IP192.168.1.1]

#### C.2 Procedure

#### 8. Select Ethernet (LP) (IP:192.168.1.2) as the communication port.



Note: You can check the personal computer IP address in advance in Control Panel.

ki-				Connection
ommunicatio	in porc	2 : Ethernet(LF	P) (IP:192.168.1.2)	Setting
address	<	2 : Ethernet(LF	P) (IP:192.168.1.2)	Cancel
earch Contro	oller	3 : Ethernet (a - : USB	P:192.100.1.2)	<< Detail
Controller	IP ad	dress/port	Module name	

#### ■ Difference between Ethernet (LP) and Ethernet

The LP of Ethernet (LP) is short for "Long packet." Compared with Ethernet, Ethernet (LP) transmits and receives larger packets at one time, resulting in high-speed data transfer. Available communication ports may differ depending on the module of the connected controller. Select the communication port according to the table below.

Module of the Connected Controller Side	Name	Communication Port to Be Selected in MPE720
218IF-01	218IF	Ethernet
218IF-02	218IFB	
CPU-03 Built-in Ethernet	218IFA	Ethernet (LP)
CPU-04 Built-in Ethernet	218IFC	

#### ■ When there are multiple LAN ports on the personal computer

If there are multiple LAN ports on the personal computer, multiple IP addresses will be shown in the communication port. Select the IP address of the LAN port to which the cable is connected.

#### Controller search function

When Ethernet is selected in the communication port, the controller search function will be unavailable.

#### 9. Click the Search Button.

	unicación	secong						Connection
ommunicatio	n port	2 : Ether	net(LP)	(IP:19	92.168	3.1.2)		Setting
address	- 1	192	. 168	3	1	a - 1	1	Cancel
arch Contro	oller			<	Se	earch	$\supset$	<< Detail
Controller	IP add	ress/port		N	Iodule	nam	e	

C.2 Procedure

**10.** A controller search list will appear. Select the found controller and click the **Connection** Button.

Communication p	ort 3 : Ethernet(LP)	(IP:192.168.1.2) 🔽	Setting
P address	192 , 168	. 1 . 1	Cancel
Option CPU	0 : Main CPU (Ba	sic CPU Module) 🗾	<< Detail
earch Controller		Search	
Controller	Communication Info.	Module name	
мн²2200-03	192.168.1.1 / 9999	CONTRULLE	

Personal computer IP address

**11.** MPE720 connects to the controller.



Α

# Appendix D MSG-SND/ MSG-RCV Functions (Ethernet)

# D.1 Message Send Function (MSG-SND)

This section explains the message send function (MSG-SND) used in a ladder program when transmitting messages.

# D.1.1 Specification Overview of the Message Send Function

Function Name		MSG-SND							
Function	Transr Suppo Keep t	Transmits messages to a remote station on the circuit specified by the communication device type. Supports multiple protocols. Keep the execution command (Execute) until Complete or Error turns ON.							
		-	Execute	MSG- SND					
			Abort	Complete					
Function Defi-				Error					
nition			Pro- Typ						
			Cir - No						
			Ch-No						
			Param						
I/O Definition	No.	Name	I/O Option ^(*1)	Contents					
	1	Execute	B-VAL	Executes a transmission					
	2	Abort	B-VAL	Forcibly ends a transmission					
	3	Dev-Typ	I-REG	Communication device type Ethernet (218IF) = 6, Ethernet (218IFA/218IFB/218IFC) = 16					
Input Item	4	Pro-Typ	I-REG	Communication protocol MEMOBUS $^{(*2)} = 1$ , non-procedure $1^{(*3)} = 2$ , non-procedure $2^{(*3)} = 3$					
	5	Cir-No	I-REG	Circuit number Ethernet (218IF/218IFA/218IFC) = 1 to 8					
	6	Ch-No	I-REG	Communication buffer channel number Ethernet (218IF/218IFC) = 1 to 10, Ethernet (218IFA) = 1 to 4					
	7	Param	Address input	Parameter list start address (MA, DA)					
	1	Busy	B-VAL	In process					
Output Item	2	Complete	B-VAL	Process completed					
	3	Error	B-VAL	Error has occurred					

* 1. The meanings of I/O options are as follows:
B-VAL: Specify I/O by bit type data.
I-REG: Specify I/O by integer type data. When specifying, set an integer type register number.
As for the input only, it can be a constant (literal).
Address input: The address of the specified register (any integer register) is passed to the function.

* 2. When transmitting in MEMOBUS, Extended MEMOBUS, MELSEC, OMRON, or MODBUS/TCP protocol, set the communication protocol (Pro-Typ) to MEMOBUS(=1). The communication device automatically converts the proto-col.

* 3. Non-procedure 1: In non-procedural communication, data is transmitted on a per-word basis. Non-procedure 2: In non-procedural communication, data is transmitted on a per-byte basis.

# D.1.2 I/O Item Details of the Message Send Function

## (1) Input Item

The following table shows registers available for each input item.

Input Item	I/O Option	Available Register
Execute Abort	B-VAL	Every bit type register (except #, C registers), Same as above with subscript
Dev-typ Pro-Typ Cir-No Ch-No	I-REG	Every integer type register, Same as above with subscript, Constant
Param	Address input	Register address (except #, C registers), Same as above with subscript

#### **1.** Execute (executes a transmission)

Specifies a bit to command execution of a message transmission.

When the Execute bit turns ON, message transmission is implemented. To execute the process, a ladder program or the like needs to be used to switch it ON/OFF.

Note: Keep Execute (executes a transmission) ON until Complete (process completed) or Error (error occurred) is turned ON. When the command turns ON, the message transmission is implemented. To continuously command the transmit execution, make sure to turn Execute (executes a transmission) OFF for one scan or more.

#### **2.** Abort (forcibly ends a transmission)

Specify a bit to command a forced termination of a message transmission.

When the Abort bit turns ON, the message transmission is forcibly terminated. Abort takes precedence over Execute.

In order to execute the forced abort, a ladder program or the like needs to be used to switch it ON/OFF.

#### 3. Dev-Typ (communication device type)

Specify the type code of the communication device.

Communication Device	Type Code
Ethernet (218IF)	6
Ethernet (218IFA/218IFC)	16

#### 4. Pro-Typ (communication protocol)

Specify the type code of the communication device.

Type Code	Communication Protocol	Remarks
1	MEMOBUS	Set the type code to "1" when also transmitting using Extended MEMO- BUS, MELSEC, or MODBUS/TCP protocol. The communication device automatically converts the protocol.
2	Non-procedure 1 (per word)	Data is transmitted on a per-word basis in non-procedural communica- tion. No response is received from the remote.
3	Non-procedure 2 (per byte)	Data is transmitted on a per-byte basis in the non-procedural communi- cation. No response is received from the remote.

Appendices

#### 5. Cir-No (circuit number)

Specify a circuit number for the communication device.

Specify it in accordance with the circuit number displayed in the MPE720 Module Configuration Window.

									Circu
odule Details CPU-03 RA	CK#01 SLOT#00								
Slot Number	1		2		3		4		5
Module Type	CPU	•	SVR	•	CARD	-	2181FA	-	-EXECUTOR
Circuit Number	-		01		-	(	01		-
I/O Start Register							0000		0800
I/O End Register							07FF		083F
Disable Input		•	Ĵ.	-		•	Enable	•	
Disable Output		•		-		•	Enable	•	
Motion Start Register			8000						
Motion End Register			87FF						
Details									
Status	Running		Running		Running		Running		Running

Fig. D.1 MPE720 Module Configuration Window

The following table shows the scope of circuit numbers.

Communication Device	Valid Circuit Number
Ethernet (218IF, 218IFA or 218IFC)	1 to 8

#### 6. Ch-No (communication buffer channel number)

Specify the channel of the communication buffer.

It can be any channel in the scope. However, when starting up multiple functions at the same time, set a unique channel for each function. If you do not start up multiple functions at the same time, the channel numbers can duplicate each other.

The following table shows the scope of channel numbers.

Communication Device	Valid Channel Number
Ethernet (218IF/218IFC)	1 to 10
Ethernet (218IFA)	1 to 4

When the communication device is Ethernet (218IFA), because the communication buffer common to the transmission and reception has four channels, four transmissions (or receptions) are available at the same time by using channels 1 to 4.

In the same way, when the communication device is Ethernet (218IFC), because the communication buffers common to the transmission and reception has ten channels, ten transmissions (or receptions) are available at the same time by using channels 1 to 10.

Note: 1. As many MSG-SND (or MSG-RCV) functions as lines used at the same time are required.

2. For information on communication buffer channels, refer to D.3 Communication Buffer Channel.

#### 7. Param (parameter list start address)

Specify the start address of the parameter list. For the "parameter list," 17 words are automatically assigned from the configured address. In the parameter list, enter the function code and its relevant parameter data. Also, process result and status are output.

#### Note: For more information about the parameter list, refer to the parameter details for each protocol from D.1.4 Function Setting and Parameter Details for MEMOBUS and Extended MEMOBUS Protocols to D.1.7 Function Setting and Parameter Details for Non-procedural Protocol.

Example: When "DA00000" is specified as a parameter list start address.

Parameter list
F 0
PARAM00
PARAM01
PARAM02
PARAM03
PARAM04
PARAM05
PARAM06
PARAM07
PARAM08
PARAM09
PARAM10
PARAM11
PARAM12
PARAM13
PARAM14
PARAM15
PARAM16

#### (2) Output Item

The following table shows the registers available for each output item.

Input Item	I/O Option	Available Register
Busy Complete Error	B-VAL	Every bit type register (except #, C registers), Same as above with subscript

#### **1.** Busy (in process)

Specify a bit that reports a message is transmitting. The Busy bit is ON while executing a message transmission or forced abort process. Keep Execute or Abort ON while Busy is ON.

#### 2. Complete (process completed)

Specify a bit that reports that message transmission has ended. When a message transmission or forced abort process is completed properly, the Complete bit will turn ON only for one scan.

#### **3.** Error (error occurred)

Specify a bit that reports that an error has occurred in the message transmission.

When an error occurs, the Error bit will turn ON only for one scan.

Note: For more information about the error cause, refer to D.1.4 (2) Process Result (PARAM00) and D.1.4 (3) Status (PARAM01).

A timing chart of bit type I/O items in the MSG-SND function is as follows:



#### [When Forcibly Aborted]



#### [When Error Occurs]

To continuously command the transmit execution, turn Execute OFF for a scan or more after the process completion.



# D.1.3 Message Send Function Parameter List (Param) Overview

The param of the MSG-SND function has a parameter list structure composed of 17 words. (The value of the Param itself is the start address (MA, DA) of the parameter list.)

In the parameter list, enter a connection number, function code and its relevant parameter data. Process results and status are also output.

When MEMOBUS or non-procedure is used as a communication protocol, the parameter list is as follows: Note: Parameter details are explained in the parameter details for each protocol type. Refer to the following items:

- D.1.4 Function Setting and Parameter Details for MEMOBUS and Extended MEMOBUS Protocols
- D.1.5 Function Setting and Parameter Details for MELSEC Protocol
- D.1.6 Function Setting and Parameter Details for MODBUS/TCP Protocol
- D.1.7 Function Setting and Parameter Details for Non-procedural Protocol

#### (1) MEMOBUS Parameter List

Param No.	IN/OUT	Contents	Description
00	OUT	Process result	Process result is output.
01	OUT	Status	The status of the communication device is output.
02	IN	Connection number	Specifies the remote destination.
03	IN	Option	Sets a unique setting for each communication device.
04	IN	Function code	Sets a function code to transmit.
05	IN	Data address	Specifies the start address of the data.
06	IN	Data size	Sets the data size for a read/write request.
07	IN	Remote CPU number	Sets a remote CPU number.
08	IN	Coil offset	Sets the coil's offset word address.
09	IN	Input relay offset	Sets the offset word address of an input relay.
10	IN	Input register offset	Sets the offset word address of an input register.
11	IN	Holding register offset	Sets the offset word address of a holding register.
12	SYS	Reserved 1	
13 to 16	SYS	Reserved 2	

Note: IN: Input, OUT: Output, SYS: For system use

### (2) Non-procedual Parameter List

Param No.	IN/OUT	Contents	Description
00	OUT	Process result	Process result is output.
01	OUT	Status	The status of the communication device is output.
02	IN	Connection number	Specifies the remote destination.
03	IN	(unused)	
04	IN	(unused)	
05	IN	Data address	Specifies the start address of the data.
06	IN	Data size	Sets the data size for a write request.
07	IN	(unused)	
08	IN	(unused)	
09	IN	(unused)	
10	IN	(unused)	
11	IN	Register offset	Sets the offset word address of the register.
12	SYS	Reserved 1	
13 to 16	SYS	Reserved 2	

Note: IN: Input, OUT: Output, SYS: For system use

# D.1.4 Function Setting and Parameter Details for MEMOBUS and Extended MEMO-BUS Protocols

This section explains the MSG-SND function setting and its parameter list details when MEMOBUS or Extended MEMOBUS is used as a protocol type.

# (1) Message Send Function Setting

#### (a) 218IFA/218IFC Setting Example

An example of a function setting when 218IFA/218IFC is used as a communication device follows: Set the protocol type to MEMOBUS even when used in Extended MEMOBUS protocol. Set the circuit number in accordance with the circuit number allocated to the target 218IFA/218IFC.

Set a unique communication buffer channel for the same circuit.

For information on the register number, refer to D.1.2 (1) Input Item and D.1.2 (2) Output Item.



#### (b) 218IF Setting Example

An example of a function setting when 218IF is used as a communication device follows: Set the protocol type to MEMOBUS even when used in Extended MEMOBUS protocol. Set the circuit number in accordance with the circuit number allocated to the target 218IF. Set a unique communication buffer channel for the same circuit.

For information on th	e register number,	refer to $D.1.2$ ( $I_{\perp}$	) Input Item and L	).1.2(2)(	Jutput Item.

_	-(	MSG	-SND	
Communication device = 218IF	Execute	DB000201	Busy	DB000210
Protocol = MEMOBUS	Abort	DB000202	Complete	DB000211
$\sim$	Dev-Typ	00006	Error	DB000212
Circuit number = 1	Pro-Typ	00001		
Communication Buffer Channel = 1 —	Cir-No	00001		
	Ch-No	00001		
Parameter list start address = DA00000	— Param	DA00000		

# (2) Process Result (PARAM00)

Process result is output to the upper byte. Lower byte is used for system analysis.

Value of Process Result	Meaning
00xxH	In process (Busy)
10xxH	Process completed (Complete)
8yxxH	Error occurred (Error)

When an error occurs, take corrective action by referring to the following error contents:

Value of Process Result	Error Contents	Description
80xxH	_	Reserved
81xxH	Function code error	Unused function code was transmitted or received. Check PARAM04 (function code).
82xxH	Error in setting address	The following setting is out of the setting range. Check the setting. PARAM05 (data address) PARAM08 (coil offset) PARAM09 (input relay offset) PARAM10 (input register offset) PARAM11 (holding register offset)
83xxH	Data size error	The transmit or receive data size is out of the setting range. Check PARAM04 (data size).
84xxH	Error in setting circuit number	The circuit number is out of the setting range. Check Cir-No (circuit number) of the MSG-SND function.
85xxH	Error in setting channel number	The communication buffer channel number is out of the setting range. Check Ch-No (communication buffer channel number) of the MSG-SND function.
86xxH	Connection number error	The connection number is out of the setting range. Check PARAM02 (connection number).
87xxH	_	Reserved
88xxH	Communication section error	An error response was returned from the communication section (commu- nication device). Check the equipment connection. In addition, confirm communication with the remote device.
89xxH	Device select error	Unavailable device is set. Check Dev-Typ (communication device type) of the MSG-SND function.

# (3) Status (PARAM01)

Outputs status of the communication section (communication device). The following figure shows the bit assignment and the bit assignment details is listed in the table (a) and after.



#### (a) REQUEST (request)

Outputs whether the MSG-SND function is requesting processing.

Bit State	Description
1	Requesting processing.
0	The acceptance of the process request is complete.

#### (b) RESULT (result)

Outputs the execution result of the MSG-SND function

Code	Abbreviation	Meaning
0	CONN_NG	In Ethernet communication, transmit error or connection error is complete
1	SEND_OK	Normal transmission complete
2	REC_OK	Normal reception complete
3	ABORT_OK	Forced abort complete
4	FMT_NG	Parameter format error
5	SEQ_NG	Command sequence error
6	RESET_NG	Reset state
7	REC_NG	Data reception error (error detected in the lower layer program)

#### (c) COMMAND (command)

Outputs a process command for the MSG-SND function. The executed process contents may differ depending on the command.

Code	Abbreviation	Meaning
1	U_SEND	General-purpose message transmission (for non-procedural protocol)
2	U_REC	General-purpose message reception (for non-procedural protocol)
3	ABORT	Forced termination
8	M_SEND	MEMOBUS command transmission: Completed when response is received
9	M_REC	MEMOBUS command reception: Accompanies a response transmission
С	MR_SEND	MEMOBUS response transmission

#### (d) PARAMETER (parameter)

When RESULT(process result) = 4 (FMT_NG: parameter format error), an error code in the table below is output. Otherwise, the connection number is output.

RESULT (process result)	Code (Hex)	Meaning
	00	No error
	01	Connection number is out of range
	02	Time error for monitoring to receive MEMOBUS response
When RESULT	03	Error in setting retransmit count
(FMT_NG: parameter format	04	Error in setting cyclic area
error)	05	CPU number error
	06	Data address error
	07	Data size error
	08	Function code error
Others	XX	Connection number

#### (4) Connection Number (PARAM02)

Specify the remote destination.

When the communication device is Ethernet (218IF/218IFA/218IFC), set the connection number. The following table shows the range of settings.

Communication Device	Connection Number	Remarks
Ethernet (218IF/218IFC)	1 to 20	Transmits to the remote station set for the specified connection number.
Ethernet (218IFA)	1 to 4	Same as above

Note: When the communication device is Ethernet (218IF/218IFA/218IFC), set the connection number according to the connection number in the 218IF/218IFA/218IFC **Transmission Parameters** Tab Page for the MPE720 **Module Configuration** Window.

^o Address ubnet Mask	: [ : [	192 🛨 · 168 🚭 · 1 255 🚭 · 255 🚭 25		· (0-25	Module Name Defi 5) Equipment name : 5)	nition CO	NTROLI	ER	NAME	
ateway IP Addre	ss : [	0 - 0 - 0	÷. 0	0-25	5 ) Detail Definition	]				
ection Paramete lessage Commu	r nication —									
ection Paramete tessage Commun Easy setting	r hication It is possil Local Port	ble to following parameter Node IP Address	setting ea: Node Port	sily that comm Connect Type	unicate the message. Protocol Type	-	Cod	e	Automaticall V	
Easy setting	r hication It is possi Local Port 10001	ble to following parameter Node IP Address 192.168.001.002	setting ea: Node Port 20001	sily that comm Connect Type UDP	nicate the message. Protocol Type Extended MEMOBU	5 💌	Cod	e •	Automaticall V Detail	
CNO 01 02	It is possi Local Port 10001 10002	Die to following parameter Node IP Address 192.168.001.002 192.168.001.006	setting ea: Node Port 20001 20002	sily that comm Connect Type UDP TCP	Inicate the message. Protocol Type Extended MEMOBU: MELSEC	5 -	Cod BIN ASCII	e •	Automaticall y Detail	
Easy setting CNO 01 02 03	It is possil Local Port 10001 10002 10003	ble to following parameter Node IP Address 192.168.001.002 192.168.001.006 192.168.001.005	setting ea: Node Port 20001 20002 20003	Connect Type UDP TCP TCP	Inicate the message. Protocol Type Extended MEMOBU: MELSEC MEMOBUS	5 +	Cod BIN ASCII RTU	e •	Automaticall y Detail	

Note: For the 218IFC, the setting range for the connection number is larger, i.e., 01 to 20.

Fig. D.2 218IFA/218IFC Transmission Parameters Tab Page for the MPE720 Module Configuration Window

ation Set	mission Mai ting	rameters							
IP Addr	BSS	: 192 ÷ . 168 ÷	. 1 ÷	. 1 ÷	(0-255)				
Емови	s								
Respon	se Time	: 0 ÷ s			(0-255)				
Count o	f Retry	: 0 - time			(0-255)				
CNO	Local		Node	Connect	Protoc	:ol			
CNO	Local Port	Node IP Address	Node Port	Connect Type	Protoc	:ol	Coc	e	
CNO 01	Local Port 10010	Node IP Address 192.168.001.003	Node Port 20100	Connect Type TCP	Protoc Type MELSEC	:ol	Coo ASCII	e 🗸	
CNO 01 02	Local Port 10010 10020	Node IP Address 192.168.001.003 192.168.001.006	Node Port 20100 20200	Connect Type TCP UDP	Protoc Type MELSEC Extended MEN	ol MOBUS	Cod ASCII BIN	•	
CNO 01 02 03	Local Port 10010 10020 10030	Node IP Address 192.168.001.003 192.168.001.006 000.000.000.000	Node Port 20100 20200 00000	Connect Type TCP UDP TCP	Protoc Type MELSEC Extended MEN MEMOBUS	iol MOBUS	Cod ASCII BIN RTU	e • •	
CNO 01 02 03 04	Local Port 10010 10020 10030 10040	Node IP Address 192.168.001.003 192.168.001.006 000.000.000.000 192.168.001.111	Node Port 20100 20200 00000 22222	Connect Type TCP UDP TCP UDP	Protoc Type MELSEC Extended MEM MEMOBUS None	ol MOBUS	Cod ASCII BIN RTU ASCII	e • •	
CNO 01 02 03 04 05	Local Port 10010 10020 10030 10040	Node IP Address 192.168.001.003 192.168.001.006 000.000.000.000 192.168.001.111	Node Port 20100 20200 00000 22222	Connect Type TCP UDP TCP UDP	Protoc Type MELSEC Extended MEM MEMOBUS None	ol MOBUS	Coc ASCII BIN RTU ASCII	• • • •	
CNO 01 02 03 04 05 06	Local Port 10010 10020 10030 10040	Node IP Address 192.168.001.003 192.168.001.006 000.000.000.000 192.168.001.111	Node Port 20100 20200 00000 22222	Connect Type TCP UDP TCP UDP	Protoc Type • MELSEC • Extended MEN • MEMOBUS • None •	AOBUS	Cod ASCII BIN RTU ASCII	e + + + + + + + +	

Fig. D.3 218IF Transmission Parameters Tab Page for the MPE720 Module Configuration Window

### (5) Option (PARAM03)

Choose a unique setting for each communication device. When the protocol is MEMOBUS or Extended MEMOBUS, this is not used, and no setting is necessary.

## (6) Function Code (PARAM04)

Set a function code to transmit.

The functions (read coil or input relay state, write to holding register, etc.) registered in the function codes are made available by specifying the code.

The following table shows the function codes available when using a MEMOBUS or Extended MEMOBUS protocol.

	Target Data		Protoco	о Туре
Function Code	Туре	Function	Extended MEMOBUS	MEMOBUS
00H	_	Unused	-	-
01H	В	Reads coil state		$\checkmark$
02H	В	Reads input relay state		$\checkmark$
03H	W	Reads holding register content		$\checkmark$
04H	W	Reads input register content		$\checkmark$
05H	В	Changes single coil state		$\checkmark$
06H	W	Writes to single holding register		$\checkmark$
07H	_	Unused	-	-
08H	_	Loopback test		$\checkmark$
09H	W	Reads holding register content (extended)		-
0AH	W	Reads input register content (extended)		-
0BH	W	Writes to holding register (extended)		-
0CH	-	Unused	-	-
0DH	W	Discontinuously reads holding register (extended)	$\checkmark$	-
0EH	W	Discontinuously writes to holding register (extended)	$\checkmark$	-
0FH	В	Changes multiple coil states		$\checkmark$
10H	W	Writes to multiple holding registers		$\checkmark$

Table D.1 Function Code List (MEMOBUS, Extended MEMOBUS)

Note: 1. B: Bit type, W: Integer type

2.  $\sqrt{:}$  Available, -: Not available

3. Transmit and receive registers in the master operation mode are MW (MB) only.

4. In slave operation mode, the coil, holding register, input relay, and input register are MB, MW, IB, IW respectively.

## (7) Data Address (PARAM05)

Specify the start address of the data.

The address must be input in decimal or hexadecimal numbers.

Example: When the start address is MW01000, specify "1000 (decimal)" or "3E8H (hexadecimal)."

The range of data addresses may differ, depending on the function code.

The following table shows the valid ranges of data addresses when using a MEMOBUS or Extended MEMOBUS protocol.

Valid Range of Data Addresses Function Target Function Ethernet (218IFA/ Code Data Type Ethernet (218IF) 218IFC) Disable 00H _ Unused 0 to 65535 (0 to FFFFH) 01H В Reads coil state*1 02H В Reads input relay state*1 0 to 65535 (0 to FFFFH) 03H W 0 to 65534 (0 to FFFEH) Reads holding register content*2 0 to 32767 0 to 65535 W 04H Reads input register content*2 (0 to 7FFFH) (0 to FFFFH) 05H В Changes single coil state*1 0 to 65535 (0 to FFFFH) W 0 to 65534 (0 to FFFEH) 06H Writes to single holding register*2 _ Disable 07H Unused Disable 08H Loopback test W 0 to 65534 (0 to FFFEH) 09H Reads holding register content (extended)*2 0 to 32767 0 to 65535 W 0AH Reads input register content (extended)*2 (0 to 7FFFH) (0 to FFFFH) 0BH W 0 to 65534 (0 to FFFEH) Writes to holding register (extended)*2 Disable 0CH _ Unused W 0DH 0 to 65534 (0 to FFFEH) Discontinuously reads holding register (extended)*3 Discontinuously writes to holding register W 0 to 65534 (0 to FFFEH) 0EH (extended)*3 0FH В 0 to 65535 (0 to FFFFH) Changes multiple coil states*1 w 0 to 65534 (0 to FFFEH) 10H Writes to multiple holding registers*2

Table D.2 Valid Range of Data Addresses (MEMOBUS, Extended MEMOBUS)

* 1. Request for reading/writing coil or input relay: Specifies the start bit address of data

* 2. Request for continuously reading/writing register: Specifies the start word address of data

* 3. Request for discontinuously reading/writing register: Specifies the start M register number of the address table Note: Address Table

An address table is used for specifying addresses indirectly in order to indicate discontinuous data. The PARAM06 (data size) sizes of addresses at the beginning of the M register set by PARAM05 (data address) are used as an address table.

When reading, specify the remote station's address to read for the data addresses 1-n. Read values are stored locally according to the data addresses 1-n.

When writing, data stored in the local data addresses 1-n is picked up and written into the remote station's data addresses 1-n.

The address table used when discontinuously reading/writing registers is as follows:



Appendices

### (8) Data Size (PARAM06)

Set the data size (number of bits or words) for the read/write request.

Be sure that the last data address determined based on the offset, data address, and data size does not go beyond the scope of the data addresses.

The range of data addresses may differ, depending on the function code and communication device.

The following table shows the valid ranges of data sizes when using a MEMOBUS or Extended MEMOBUS protocol.

Target			Valid Range	of Data Sizes	
Function Code	Data Type	Function	Ethernet(218IF)	Ethernet(218IFA/ 218IFC)	
00H	_	Unused	Dis	able	
01H	В	Reads coil state ^{*1}	1 to 2000		
02H	В	Reads input relay state ^{*1}	1 to 2000		
03H	W	Reads holding register content*2	1 tc	0125	
04H	W	Reads input register content*2	1 to	125	
05H	В	Changes single coil state	Dis	able	
06H	W	Writes to single holding register	Disable		
07H	_	Unused	Disable		
08H	-	Loopback test	Disable		
09H	W	Reads holding register content (extended)*2	1 to 508	1 to 2044 (BIN) 1 to 1020 (ASCII)	
0AH	W	Reads input register content (extended)*2	1 to 508 1 to 2044 (B 1 to 1020 (AS		
0BH	W	Writes to holding register (extended)*2	1 to 507 1 to 2043 (BIN 1 to 1019 (ASC)		
0CH	-	Unused	Disable		
0DH	W	Discontinuously reads holding register (extended) ^{*2}	1 to 508	1 to 2044 (BIN) 1 to 1020 (ASCII)	
0EH	W	Discontinuously writes to holding register (extended) ^{*2}	1 to 254	1 to 1022 (BIN) 1 to 510 (ASCII)	
0FH	В	Changes multiple coil states ^{*1}	1 to	800	
10H	W	Writes to multiple holding registers ^{*2}	1 to	100	

Table D.3 Valid Range of Data Sizes (MEMOBUS, Extended MEMOBUS)

* 1. Specifies the number of bits

* 2. Specifies the number of words

Note: Data size in the table is represented as a decimal number.

#### (9) Remote CPU Number (PARAM07)

Set a remote CPU number.

When the remote device is MP2□00 series, specify "1".

When the remote device is a controller manufactured by YASKAWA Electric Corporation, but other than the MP2□00 series, and comprises multiple CPU modules, specify the destination CPU number. Otherwise, specify "0".

# (10) Offset (PARAM08, PARAM09, PARAM10, PARAM11)

Specify the offset addresses of read data storage areas and write data source of the transmission side. The address for the transmission side will be displaced by the number of words designated by the offset. Note: 1. For more information, refer to *D.1.8 Relationship between Data Address, Data Size, and Offset for MSG-SND Function.* 

2. The offset cannot be a negative value.

The offset parameter is prepared for each target data type. The following table lists the offset parameters.

Parameter	Content	Description
PARAM08	Coil offset	Sets the coil's offset word address.
PARAM09	Input relay offset	Sets the offset word address of an input relay.
PARAM10	Input register offset	Sets the offset word address of an input register.
PARAM11	Holding register offset	Sets the offset word address of a holding register.

	Table D.4	Offset Parameter	List
--	-----------	------------------	------

The valid offset parameter may differ, depending on the function code. The following table provides the valid parameters for each function code.

Table D 5	Valid Parameter	List for Offset of	Each Function Code
	vallu Falametei		

Eurotion		Valid Offset	Protoc	ol Type
Code	Function	Parameter	Extended MEMOBUS	MEMOBUS
01H	Reads coil state	PARAM08		V
02H	Reads input relay state	PARAM09		V
03H	Reads holding register content	PARAM11		V
04H	Reads input register content	PARAM10		V
05H	Changes single coil state	PARAM08		V
06H	Writes to single holding register	PARAM11		V
09H	Reads holding register content (extended)	PARAM11		-
0AH	Reads input register content (extended)	PARAM10		-
0BH	Writes to holding register (extended)	PARAM11		-
0DH	Discontinuously reads holding register (extended)	PARAM11	$\checkmark$	-
0EH	Discontinuously writes to holding register (extended)	PARAM11		_
0FH	Changes multiple coil states	PARAM08		
10H	Writes to multiple holding registers	PARAM11		

Note:  $\sqrt{:}$  Available, -: Not available

#### (11) Reserved by System 1 (PARAM12)

Used by system (the channel number of the communication buffer in use is stored). Note: Before the first scan during power up, make sure to set it to "0" by using a user program. After that, the register is used by the system, so never change the value with the user program.

#### (12) Reserved by System 2 (PARAM13 to PARAM16)

Used by the system. Never change the value with the user program, etc.

A-33

# D.1.5 Function Setting and Parameter Details for MELSEC Protocol

This section explains MSG-SND function setting and its parameter list details when MELSEC is used as a protocol.

## (1) Message Send Function Setting

### (a) 218IFA/218IFC Setting Example

An example of a function setting when 218IFA/218IFC is used as a communication device follows: Set the protocol type to MEMOBUS when used in MELSEC protocol.

Set the circuit number in accordance with the circuit number allocated to the target 218IFA/218IFC.

Set a unique communication buffer channel for the same circuit.

For information on the register number, refer to D.1.2 (1) Input Item and D.1.2 (2) Output Item.



#### (b) 218IF Setting Example

An example of a function setting when 218IF is used as a communication device follows: Set the protocol type to MEMOBUS when used in MELSEC protocol.

Set the circuit number in accordance with the circuit number allocated to the target 218IF.

Set a unique communication buffer channel for the same circuit.

For information on the register number, refer to D.1.2 (1) Input Item and D.1.2 (2) Output Item.

_	_(	MSG	-SND	<u> </u>
Communication device = 218IF	Execute	DB000201	Busy	DB000210
Protocol = MEMOBUS	Abort	DB000202	Complete	DB000211
	Dev-Typ	00006	Error	DB000212
Circuit number = 1	Pro-Typ	00001		
Communication buffer channel = $1 \sim$	Cir-No	00001		
	Ch-No	00001		
Parameter list start address ——— (use DW00000 to DW00016)	— Param	DA00000		

# (2) Process Result (PARAM00)

Refer to D.1.4 (2) Process Result (PARAM00).

# (3) Status (PARAM01)

Refer to D.1.4 (3) Status (PARAM01).

# (4) Connection Number (PARAM02)

Refer to D.1.4 (4) Connection Number (PARAM02).

# (5) Option (PARAM03)

Choose a unique setting for each communication device. This is not used by the MELSEC protocol, and does not require setting when MELSEC is used.

## (6) Function Code (PARAM04)

Set a function code to transmit.

The functions (read bit/word device, write to word device, etc.) registered in the function codes are made available by specifying the code.

The following table lists function codes used with the MELSEC protocol.

Function Code	MELSEC ACPU Common Command	Target Data Type	Function
01H/02H	00H	В	Reads bit device in units
03H/04H/09H/0AH	01H	W	Reads word device in units
05H/0FH	02H	В	Writes to bit device in units
06H/0BH/10H	03H	W	Writes to word device in units
08H	16H	-	Loopback test
0EH	05H	В	Specifies a device number for each word device at random and sets/resets each device
31H	60H	W	Writes to the fixed buffer in words
32H	61H	W	Reads from the random access buffer in words
33H	62H	W	Writes to the random access buffer in words

Table D.6	Function	Code	l ist
	i unouon	oouc	LIST

Note: 1. B: Bit type, W: Integer type

2. AnCPU dedicated commands are not supported. When accessing AnCPU, also use the ACPU common commands. You cannot access the AnCPU extended file register.

## (7) Data Address (PARAM05)

Specify the start address of the data.

The address must be input in decimal or hexadecimal numbers.

Example: When the start address is MW01000, specify "1000 (decimal)" or "3E8H (hexadecimal)."

The valid range of usable function codes and data addresses may differ, depending on the device type and device range of the MELSEC side.

The following table gives the valid ranges of data addresses when using MELSEC as a protocol.

Device	Device Range of ACPU Common Commands	Decimal/ Hexa- decimal	Function Code	Valid Range of Data Addresses	Corresponding Register Number
Х	X0000 to X07FF	Hexadecimal	02H: Input relay	0 to 2047	MB000000 to MB00127F
Y	Y0000 to Y07FF	Hexadecimal	01H/0FH: Coil	0 to 2047	MB000000 to MB00127F
М	M0000 to M2047	Decimal	01H/05H/0FH: Coil	2048 to 4095	MB001280 to MB00255F
М	M9000 to M9255	Decimal	01H/05H/0FH: Coil	4096 to 4351	MB002560 to MB00271F
В	B0000 to B03FF	Hexadecimal	01H/05H/0FH: Coil	4352 to 5375	MB002720 to MB00335F
F	F0000 to F0255	Decimal	01H/05H/0FH: Coil	5376 to 631	MB003360 to MB00351F
TS	TS000 to TS255	Decimal	02H: Input relay	2048 to 2303	MB001280 to MB00143F
TC	TC000 to TC255	Decimal	02H: Input relay	2304 to 2559	MB001440 to MB00159F
CS	CS000 to CS255	Decimal	02H: Input relay	2560 to 2815	MB001660 to MB00175F
CC	CC000 to CC255	Decimal	02H: Input relay	2816 to 3071	MB001760 to MB00191F
М	M2048 to M8191	Decimal	01H/05H/0FH: Coil	8192 to 14335	MB005120 to MB00895F

Table D.7 Valid Range of Data Addresses (MELSEC bit device)

Table D.8 Valid Range of Data Addresses (MELSEC word device)

Device	Device Range of ACPU Common Commands	Decimal/ Hexa- decimal	Function Code	Valid Range of Data Addresses	Corresponding Register Number
TN	TN000 to TN255	Decimal	04H/0AH: Input register	0 to 255	MW00000 to MW0255
CN	CN000 to CN255	Decimal	04H/0AH: Input register	256 to 511	MW00256 to MW00511
D	D0000 to D1023	Decimal	03H/06H/09H/0BH/ 0EH/10H: Holding register	0 to 1023	MW00000 to MW01023
D (special)	D9000 to D9255	Decimal	03H/06H/09H/0BH/ 0EH/10H: Holding register	1024 to 1279	MW01024 to MW01279
w	W0000 to W03FF	Hexadecimal	03H/06H/09H/0BH/ 0EH/10H: Holding register	1280 to 2303	MW01280 to MW02303
R	R0000 to R8191	Decimal	03H/06H/09H/0BH/ 0EH/10H: Holding register	2304 to 10495	MW02304 to MW10495
D	D1024 to D6143	Decimal	03H/06H/09H/0BH/ 0EH/10H: Holding register	10496 to 15615	MW10496 to MW15615

Note: 1. The device range may differ according to the MELSEC sequencer even within the device range. For more information, refer to the MELSEC manual.

2. The register number corresponding to MP2□00 can be adjusted by the offset setting of the MSG-SND function.

# (8) Data Size (PARAM06)

Set the data size (number of bits or words) for the read/write request.

Be sure that the last data address determined based on the offset, data address, and data size does not go beyond the scope of the data addresses.

The range of data addresses may differ, depending on the function code and communication device. The following table gives the valid ranges of data sizes when using MELSEC as a protocol.

	MELSEC		Valid Range	of Data Sizes
Function Code	Common Command	Function	Ethernet(218IF)	Ethernet(218IFA/ 218IFC)
01H/02H	00H	Reads bit device in units	1 to 25	56 units
03H/04H/ 09H/0AH	01H	Reads word device in units	1 to 25	56 units
05H/0FH	02H	Writes to bit device in units	1 to 25	56 units
06H/0BH/ 10H	03H	Writes to word device in units	1 to 25	56 units
08H	16H	Loopback test -		_
0EH	05H	Specifies a device number for each word device at random and sets/resets each word device 1 to 40 units		0 units
31H	60H	Writes to the fixed buffer in words		
32H	61H	Reads from the random access buffer in words See the table belo		ble below.
33H	62H	Writes to the random access buffer in words		

Table D.9 Valid Range of Data Sizes

Function			Valid Range	of Data Sizes
Function	Connection Type	Code	Ethernet(218IF)	Ethernet(218IFA/ 218IFC)
	ТСР	BIN	1 to 507 words	1 to 727 words
Writes to the fixed buffer in words	ICI	ASCII	1 to 362 words	1 to 362 words
whites to the fixed buller in words	LIDD	BIN	1 to 507 words	1 to 1017 words
	UDF	ASCII	1 to 507 words	1 to 508 words
	тср	BIN	1 to 508 words	1 to 728 words
Reads from the random access buffer in	ICr	ASCII	1 to 363 words	1 to 363 words
words	UDP	BIN	1 to 508 words	1 to 1017 words
		ASCII	1 to 508 words	1 to 508 words
	ТСР	BIN	1 to 507 words	1 to 726 words
Writes to the random access buffer in	101	ASCII	1 to 361 words	1 to 361 words
words	UDP	BIN	1 to 508 words	1 to 1017 words
	CDI	ASCII	1 to 508 words	1 to 508 words

Note: The restricted data size when using TCP is the maximum size transmitted using one segment. The segment size is determined by MTU (maximum transfer unit) as a TCP data transfer unit. The valid range of data sizes mentioned above is for MTU = 1500 bytes.

Α

## (9) Remote CPU Number (PARAM07)

Refer to D.1.4 (9) Remote CPU Number (PARAM07).

#### (10) Offset (PARAM08, PARAM09, PARAM10, PARAM11)

Specify the offset addresses of the read data storage area and the write data source of the transmission side. The address for the transmission side will be displaced by the number of words designated by the offset. Note: 1. For more information, refer to *D.1.8 Relationship between Data Address, Data Size, and Offset for MSG-SND Function.* 

2. The offset cannot be a negative value.

The offset parameter is prepared for each target data type. The following table provides the offset parameters.

Table D.10 Offset Parameter List

Parameter	Contents	Description
PARAM08	Coil offset	Sets the coil's offset word address.
PARAM09	Input relay offset	Sets the offset word address of an input relay.
PARAM10	Input register offset	Sets the offset word address of an input register.
PARAM11	Holding register offset	Sets the offset word address of a holding register.

The valid offset parameter may differ according to function code. The following table provides the valid parameters for each function code.

Table D.11 Valid Parameter List for Offset of Each Function Code

Function Code	Function	Valid Offset Parameter
01H	Reads coil state	PARAM08
02H	Reads input relay state	PARAM09
03H	Reads holding register content	PARAM11
04H	Reads input register content	PARAM10
05H	Changes single coil state	PARAM08
06H	Writes to single holding register	PARAM11
09H	Reads holding register content (extended)	PARAM11
0AH	Reads input register content (extended)	PARAM10
0BH	Writes to holding register (extended)	PARAM11
0EH	Discontinuously writes to holding register (extended)	PARAM11
0FH	Changes multiple coil states	PARAM08
10H	Writes to multiple holding registers	PARAM11
31H	Write to fixed buffer	PARAM11
32H	Reads the random access buffer	PARAM11
33H	Writes to the random access buffer	PARAM11

#### (11) Reserved by System 1 (PARAM12)

Used by system (the channel number of the communication buffer in use is stored).

Note: At the first scan during power up, make sure to set it to "0" by using the user program. After that, the register is used by system. Do not change the value thereafter with the user program.

#### (12) Reserved by System 2 (PARAM13-PARAM16)

Used by system. Never change this value with the user program, etc.

# D.1.6 Function Setting and Parameter Details for MODBUS/TCP Protocol

This section explains the MSG-SND function setting and its parameter list details when MODBUS/TCP is used as a protocol type.

### (1) Message Send Function Setting

#### (a) 218IFA/218IFC Setting Example

An example of a function setting when 218IFA/218IFC is used as a communication device follows: Set the protocol type to MEMOBUS when used in MODBUS/TCP protocol.

Set the circuit number in accordance with the circuit number allocated to the target 218IFA/218IFC. Set a unique communication buffer channel number for the same circuit.

For information on the register number, refer to D.1.2 (1) Input Item and D.1.2 (2) Output Item.



#### (b) 218IF Setting Example

An example of a function setting when 218IF is used as a communication device follows: Set the protocol type to MEMOBUS when used in MODBUS/TCP protocol. Set the circuit number in accordance with the circuit number allocated to the target 218IF. Set a unique communication buffer channel number for the same circuit. For information on the register number, refer to D.1.2 (1) Input Item and D.1.2 (2) Output Item.

	- /		- / 0		
_		(MSG-SND			
Communication device = 218IF	Execute	DB000201	Busy	DB000210	
Protocol = MEMOBUS	Abort	DB000202	Complete	DB000211	
	Dev-Typ	00006	Error	DB000212	
Circuit number = 1	Pro-Typ	00001			
Communication buffer channel number = $1$ —	Cir-No	00001			
	Ch-No	00001			
Parameter list start address = DA00000	— Param	DA00000			

Parameter list start address = DA00000 (use DW00000 to DW00016)

# (2) Process Result (PARAM00)

Refer to D.1.4 (2) Process Result (PARAM00).

#### (3) Status (PARAM01)

Refer to D.1.4 (3) Status (PARAM01).

## (4) Connection Number (PARAM02)

Refer to D.1.4 (4) Connection Number (PARAM02).

#### (5) Option (PARAM03)

Choose a unique setting for each communication device. The following table provides the scope of the setting.

Communication Device	Valid Range	Remarks
Ethernet(218IF, 218IFA or 218IFC)	0 to 247, 255	Set a remote unit ID when MODBUS/TCP protocol is used. When the transmission target is MP2□00 series, specify "0."

## (6) Function Code (PARAM04)

Set a function code to transmit.

The functions (read coil and input relay state, write to holding register, etc.) registered in the function codes are made available by specifying the code.

The following table shows the available function codes when using MODBUS/TCP as a protocol.

Function	Target Data		Communica	Communication device	
Code	Туре	Function	Ethernet(218IF)	Ethernet(218IFA/ 218IFC)	
00H	-	Unused	-	_	
01H	В	Reads coil state	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	
02H	В	Reads input relay state	V	$\checkmark$	
03H	W	Reads holding register content	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	
04H	W	Reads input register content	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	
05H	В	Changes single coil state	V	V	
06H	W	Writes to single holding register	V		
07H					
:	-	Unused	-	_	
0EH					
0FH	В	Changes multiple coil states	V	V	
10H	W	Writes to multiple holding registers	V	V	
11H					
:	-	Unused	-	_	
15H					
16H	W	Mask writes to holding register	-	$\checkmark$	
17H	W	Reads/Writes multiple holding registers	-	$\checkmark$	

#### Table D.12 Function Code List (MODBUS/TCP)

Note: 1. B: Bit type, W: Integer type

2.  $\sqrt{:}$  Available, -: Not available

3. Transmit and receive registers in the master operation mode are MW (MB) only.

4. In the slave operation mode, coil, holding register, input relay, and input register are MB, MW, IB, IW respectively.

## (7) Data Address (PARAM05)

Specify the start address of the data.

The address must be a decimal or hexadecimal number.

Example: When the start address is MW01000, specify "1000 (decimal)" or "3E8H (hexadecimal)."

The range of data addresses may differ according to the function code.

The following table gives the valid ranges of data addresses when using MODBUS/TCP as a protocol.

-	Table D.13	Valid Range of Data	Addresses (MOI	OBUS/TCP)

Function Code	Target Data Type	Function	Valid Range of Data Addresses
00H	-	Unused	Disable
01H	В	Reads coil state	0 to 65535 (0 to FFFFH)
02H	В	Reads input relay state	0 to 65535 (0 to FFFFH)
03H	W	Reads holding register content	0 to 65534 (0 to FFFEH)
04H	W	Reads input register content	0 to 32767 (0 to 7FFFH)
05H	В	Changes single coil state	0 to 65535 (0 to FFFFH)
06H	W	Writes to single holding register	0 to 65534 (0 to FFFEH)
07H			
:	_	Unused	Disable
0EH			
0FH	В	Changes multiple coil states	0 to 65535 (0 to FFFFH)
10H	W	Writes to multiple holding registers	0 to 65534 (0 to FFFEH)
11H			
:	_	Unused	Disable
15H			
16H	W	Mask writes to holding register ^{*1, *2}	0 to 65534 (0 to FFFEH)
17H	W	Reads/Writes multiple holding register*1, *3	0 to 65534 (0 to FFFEH)

* 1. Invalid when Ethernet (218IF) is used.

* 2. Mask write request to holding register: Specify the start M register number of the remote address-cum-local data table

* 3. Request for reading/writing multiple holding registers: Specify the start M register number of an address table

Note: 1. Data table

A data table used for a mask write request to the holding register is used for storing mask data. The two words of addresses at the beginning of the M register specified by PARAM05 (data address) are used as an address table.

Specify AND and OR mask data for the data table.

Note that PARAM05 (data address) used for the mask write request to the holding register doubles as the start M register number in the local station, which is also used for specifying the start data address and as the data table in the remote station for mask writing.

The contents of the data table used when mask writing to the holding register is as follows:



#### 2. Address table

An address table used for the read/write request to the multiple holding registers is used for specifying addresses indirectly in order to indicate read/write data. The four words of addresses at the beginning of the M register set by PARAM05 (data address) are used as an address table.

For the address table, specify a data address and data size for reading and a data address and data size for writing.

Read behaves same as "Reads holding register content (function code: 03H)". Write behaves same as "Writes to multiple holding registers (function code: 10H)".

The address table used when reading/writing multiple holding registers is as follows:

Address table for reading/ writing multiple holding registers



## (8) Data Size (PARAM06)

Set the data size (number of bits or words) for the read/write request.

Be sure that the last data address determined based on the offset, data address, and data size does not go beyond the scope of the data addresses.

The range of data sizes may differ, depending on the function code.

The following table gives the valid ranges of data sizes when using MODBUS/TCP as a protocol.

Function Code	Target Data Type	Function	Valid Range of Data Addresses
00H	_	Unused	Disable
01H	В	Reads coil state ^{*1}	1 to 2000
02H	В	Reads input relay state ^{*1}	1 to 2000
03H	W	Reads holding register content ^{*2}	1 to 125
04H	W	Reads input register content ^{*2}	1 to 125
05H	В	Changes single coil state ^{*1}	Disable
06H	W	Writes to single holding register*2	Disable
07H			
:	-	Unused	Disable
0EH			
0FH	В	Changes multiple coil states ^{*1}	1 to 800
10H	W	Writes to multiple holding registers ^{*2}	1 to 100
11H			
:	_	Unused	Disable
15H			
16H	W	Mask writes to holding register ^{*2, *3}	Disable
17H	W	Reads/Writes multiple holding registers ^{*2, *3}	Read: 1 to 125 Write: 1 to 100

Table D.14 Val	lid Range of Data Size	s (MODBUS/TCP)
----------------	------------------------	----------------

* 1. Specify the number of bits

* 2. Specify the number of words

* 3. Invalid when Ethernet (218IF) is used.

Note: The data size in the table is represented in decimal number.

## (9) Remote CPU Number (PARAM07)

Refer to D.1.4 (9) Remote CPU Number (PARAM07).

#### (10) Offset (PARAM08, PARAM09, PARAM10, PARAM11)

Specify the offset addresses of the read data storage area and the write data source of the transmission side. The address for the transmission side will be displaced by the number of words designated by the offset. Note: 1. For more information, refer to *D.1.8 Relationship between Data Address, Data Size, and Offset for* 

*MSG-SND Function*. 2. The offset cannot be a negative value.

The offset parameter is prepared for each target data type. The following table lists the offset parameters.

Parameter	Contents	Description
PARAM08	Coil offset	Sets the coil's offset word address.
PARAM09	Input relay offset	Sets the offset word address of an input relay.
PARAM10	Input register offset	Sets the offset word address of an input register.
PARAM11	Holding register offset	Sets the offset word address of a holding register.

Table D.15	Offset Parameter	List
------------	------------------	------

The valid offset parameter may differ, depending on the function code. The following table lists the valid parameters for each function code.

Table D.16	Valid Parameter List for Offset of Each Function Code
------------	-------------------------------------------------------

Function Code	Function	Valid Offset Parameter
01H	Reads coil state	PARAM08
02H	Reads input relay state	PARAM09
03H	Reads holding register content	PARAM11
04H	Reads input register content	PARAM10
05H	Changes single coil state	PARAM08
06H	Writes to single holding register	PARAM11
0FH	Changes multiple coil states	PARAM08
10H	Writes to multiple holding registers	PARAM11
16H	Mask writes to holding register	PARAM11
17H	Reads/Writes multiple holding registers	PARAM11

#### (11) Reserved by System 1 (PARAM12)

Used by system (the channel number of communication buffer in use is stored).

Note: At the first scan during power up, make sure to set it to "0" by using the user program. After that, the register is used by system. Do not change the value thereafter with the user program.

#### (12) Reserved by System 2 (PARAM13 to PARAM16)

Used by system. Never change the value with the user program, etc.

# D.1.7 Function Setting and Parameter Details for Non-procedural Protocol

This section explains the MSG-SND function setting and its parameter list details when non-procedure is used as a protocol.

Note: Non-procedure communication protocol transmits the M register content intact without a protocol conversion. You can create any protocol in accordance with the remote device.

### (1) Message Send Function Setting

#### (a) 218IFA/218IFC Setting Example

An example of a function setting when 218IFA/218IFC is used as a communication device is as follows: When non-procedure 2 (per byte) is used, set the Pro-Typ field to "00003" (non-procedure 1 (per word)). Set the circuit number in accordance with the circuit number allocated to the target 218IFA/218IFC. Set a unique communication buffer channel number for the same circuit.

For information on the register number, refer to D.1.2 (1) Input Item and D.1.2 (2) Output Item.



#### (b) 218IF Setting Example

An example of a function setting when 218IF is used as a communication device follows: When non-procedure 2 (per byte) is used, set the Pro-Typ field to "00003" (non-procedure 1 (per word)). Set the circuit number in accordance with the circuit number allocated to the target 218IF.

Set a unique communication buffer channel number for the same circuit.

For information on the register number, refer to D.1.2 (1) Input Item and D.1.2 (2) Output Item.

_	_(	MSG	-SND	)
Communication device = 218IF	Execute	DB000201	Busy	DB000210
Protocol =non-procedure 1	Abort	DB000202	Complete	DB000211
	Dev-Typ	00006	Error	DB000212
Circuit number = 1	Pro-Typ	00002		
Communication huffer channel number = $1 \sim$	Cir-No	00001		
	Ch-No	00001		
Parameter list start address = DA00000 (use DW00000 to DW00016)	— Param	DA00000		

# (2) Process Result (PARAM00)

The process result is output to the upper byte. The lower byte is used for system analysis.

Value of Process Result	Meaning
00xxH	In process (Busy)
10xxH	Process completed (Complete)
8yxxH	Error occurred (Error)

When an error occurs, take corrective action by referring to the following error contents:

Value of Process Result	Error Contents	Description
80xxH	-	Reserved
81xxH	-	-
82xxH	Error in setting address	The following setting is out of range. Check the setting. PARAM05 (data address) PARAM11 (register offset)
83xxH	Data size error	The transmit or receive data amount is out of range. Check PARAM06 (data size).
84xxH	Error in setting circuit number	The circuit number is out of range. Check Cir-No (circuit number) of the MSG-SND function.
85xxH	Error in setting channel number	The communication buffer channel number is out of range. Check Ch-No (communication buffer channel number) of the MSG- SND function.
86xxH	Connection number error	The connection number is out of range. Check PARAM02 (connection number).
87xxH	_	Reserved
88xxH	Communication section error	An error response was returned from the communication section (com- munication device). Check the equipment connection. In addition, con- firm that the remote device is open to communication.
89xxH	Device select error	Unavailable device is set. Check Dev-Typ (communication device type) of the MSG-SND function.

Α

# (3) Status (PARAM01)

Outputs status of the communication section (communication device). The following figure illustrates bit assignment. Bit assignment details are listed in the table below.



## (a) REQUEST (request)

Outputs whether MSG-SND function is requesting a process.

Bit State	Contents	
1	Requesting processing	
0	The acceptance of process request is completed	

#### (b) RESULT (result)

Outputs an execution result of the MSG-SND function

Code	Abbreviation	Meaning
0	CONN_NG	In Ethernet communications, transmit error or connection error is complete
1	SEND_OK	Normal transmission complete
2	REC_OK	Normal reception complete
3	ABORT_OK	Forced abort complete
4	FMT_NG	Parameter format error
5	SEQ_NG	Command sequence error
6	RESET_NG	Reset state
7	REC_NG	Data reception error (error detected in the lower layer program)

#### (c) COMMAND (command)

Outputs a process command for the MSG-SND function. The executed process contents can be found according to the command.

Code (Hex)	Abbreviation	Meaning
1	U_SEND	General-purpose message transmission
2	U_REC	General-purpose message reception
3	ABORT	Forced abort
8	M_SEND	MEMOBUS command transmission: Complete when response is received (for MEMOBUS protocol)
9	M_REC	MEMOBUS command reception: Accompanies a response transmission (for MEMOBUS protocol)
С	MR_SEND	MEMOBUS response transmission (for MEMOBUS protocol)
## (d) PARAMETER (parameter)

When RESULT (process result) = 4 (FMT_NG: parameter format error), an error code in the table below is output. Otherwise, the connection number is output.

RESULT (process result)	Code (Hex)	Meaning
	00	No error
	01	Connection number is out of range
When RESULT (process result) = 4 (FMT_NG: parameter format error)	02	Time error while monitoring to receive MEMOBUS response (for MEMOBUS protocol)
	03	Error in setting retransmit count
	04	Error in setting cyclic area
	05	CPU number error
	06	Data address error
	07	Data size error
	08	Function code error (for MEMOBUS protocol)
Others	XX	Connection number

## (4) Connection Number (PARAM02)

Refer to D.1.4 (4) Connection Number (PARAM02).

## (5) Data Address (PARAM05)

Specify the start address of the data.

The address must be input in a decimal or hexadecimal number. Example: When the start address is MW01000, specify "1000 (decimal)" or "3E8H (hexadecimal)." The following table provides the valid ranges of the data addresses.

#### Table D.17 Valid Range of Data Addresses (non-procedure)

Non-procedural	Target Data	Function	Valid Range of Data Addresses			
Туре	Туре		Ethernet(218IF/218IFA/218IFC)			
Non-procedure 1	W	Transmits data in words	0 to 65534 (0 to FFFEH)			
Non-procedure 2	В	Transmits data in bytes ^{*1}	0 to 65534 (0 to FFFEH)			

* 1. The unit for address setting is word address.

## (6) Data Size (PARAM06)

Set the data size (number of bits or words) for the write request.

Be sure that the last data address determined based on the offset, data address, and data size does not go beyond the scope of the data addresses.

The valid range of data sizes may differ according to the communication device.

Non-procedural Target Data			Valid Range of Data Sizes		
Туре	Туре	Function	Ethernet (218IF)	Ethernet (218IFA/ 218IFC)	
Non-procedure 1	W	Transmits data in words ^{*1}	1 to 510	1 to 2046 (BIN) 1 to 1023 (ASCII)	
Non-procedure 2	В	Transmits data in bytes ^{*2}	1 to 1020	1 to 4092 (BIN) 1 to 2046 (ASCII)	

* 1. Specify the number of words

* 2. Specify the number of bytes

Note: The data size in the table is represented in decimal numbers.

## (7) Register Offset (PARAM11)

Specify the offset address of write data source in the transmission side.

The address for the transmission side will be displaced by the number of words designated by the offset.

Note: 1. For more information, refer to D.1.8 Relationship between Data Address, Data Size, and Offset for MSG-SND Function.

 The offset cannot be a negative value. Example: When specifying 1000 words of offset for the register address: PARAM11=1000

## (8) Reserved by System 1 (PARAM12)

Used by system (the channel number of the communication buffer in use is stored).

Note: At the first scan during power up, make sure to set this to "0" by the user program. After that, the register is used by system, so do not change the value with the user program.

## (9) Reserved by System 2 (PARAM13-PARAM16)

Used by system. Do not change the value with the user program, etc.

# D.1.8 Relationship between Data Address, Data Size, and Offset for MSG-SND Function

The relationship between data address, data size, and offset is as follows, when transmitted with offset:

## (1) When Reading





A-49

# (2) When Writing



Fig. D.7 Parameter Setting

Example: When reading coil state with offset:

The various setting values and their relationships with the data of the remote device are as follows, when transmitting "reading coil state" with offset in MEMOBUS protocol:

• Description of the MSG-SND function in ladder program

_		MSG	-SND	
	$\square$	1000	OND	
Communication device = 218IFA/2181FC	Execute	DB000201	Busy	DB000210
Protocol = MEMOBUS	Abort	DB000202	Complete	DB000211
	Dev-Typ	00016	Error	DB000212
Circuit number = 1	Pro-Typ	00001		
Communication buffer channel number = $1$ —	Cir-No	00001		
	Ch-No	00001		
Parameter list start address ——— (use DW00000 to DW00016)	— Param	DA00000		

· Parameter list setting of the MSG-SND function

Register Num- ber	Setting Value	Parameter Num- ber	IN/OUT	Remarks
DW00000	-	PARAM00	OUT	Process result
DW00001	-	PARAM01	OUT	Status
DW00002	00001	PARAM02	IN	Connection number=1
DW00003	-	PARAM03	IN	Option (setting unnecessary)
DW00004	00001	PARAM04	IN	Function code=1 (reads coil state)
DW00005	08192	PARAM05	IN	Data address=8192 bits (512 words)
DW00006	00100	PARAM06	IN	Data size=100
DW00007	00001	PARAM07	IN	Remote CPU number=1
DW00008	01000	PARAM08	IN	Coil offset=1000 words
DW00009	00000	PARAM09	IN	Input relay offset=0 word
DW00010	00000	PARAM10	IN	Input register offset=0 word
DW00011	00000	PARAM11	IN	Holding register offset=0 word
DW00012	-	PARAM12	SYS	Reserved (zero clear at startup)
DW00013	-	PARAM13	SYS	Reserved
DW00014	-	PARAM14	SYS	Reserved
DW00015	_	PARAM15	SYS	Reserved
DW00016	_	PARAM16	SYS	Reserved

Table D.19 Parameter List Setting

Note: IN: Input, OUT: Output, SYS: For system use

Α

• Relationship with the Data of the Remote Device

The following figure shows the data flow when transmitting "reads coil state" with offset: When transmission and reception are carried out normally in the figure below, the coil state in the device is stored in MW01512 and after of MP2200.



Fig. D.8 Reading Example of Coil State

This section explains how the message receive function (MSG-RCV) is used in a ladder program when receiving messages.

# D.2.1 Specification Overview of the Message Receive Function

Function Name	MSG-RCV							
Function	Receives messages from the remote station on the circuit specified by the communication device type. Supports multiple protocol types. Keep the execution command (Execute) until Complete or Error turns ON.							
		_		MSG-RCV				
			Execute	Busy				
			Abort	Complete				
Function Defi-			Dev-Typ	Error				
nition			Pro-Typ					
			Cir-No					
			Ch-No					
			Param					
I/O Definition	No.	Name	I/O Option ^(*1)	Contents				
	1	Execute	B-VAL	Executes a reception				
	2	Abort	B-VAL	Forcibly ends a reception				
	3	Dev-Typ	I-REG	Communication device type Ethernet (218IF) = 6, Ethernet (218IFA/218IFB/218IFC) = 16				
Input Item	4	Pro-Typ	I-REG	Communication protocol MEMOBUS ^{*2} = 1, non-procedure $1^{*3} = 2$ , non-procedure $2^{*3} = 3$				
	5Cir-NoI-REG6Ch-NoI-REG		I-REG	Line number Ethernet (218IF/218IFA/218IFC) = 1 to 8				
			I-REG	Communication buffer channel number Ethernet (218IF/218IFC) = 1 to 10, Ethernet (218IFA) = 1 to 4				
	7	Param	Address input	Parameter list start address (MA, DA)				
	1	Busy	B-VAL	In process				
Output Item	2	Complete	B-VAL	Process completed				
	3	Error	B-VAL	Error occurred				

* 1. The meanings of I/O options are as follows:

B-VAL: Specify I/O by bit type data.

I-REG: Specify I/O by integer type data. When specifying, set an integer type register number. As for the input only, it can be a constant (literal).

Address input: The address of the specified register (any integer register) is passed to the function.

* 2. When transmitting in MEMOBUS, Extended MEMOBUS, MELSEC, OMRON, or MODBUS/TCP protocol, set the communication protocol (Pro-Typ) to MEMOBUS(=1). The communication device automatically converts the protocol.

* 3. Non-procedure 1: In non-procedural communication, data is received on a per-word basis. Non-procedure 2: In non-procedural communication, data is received on a per-byte basis.

# D.2.2 I/O Item Details of the Message Receive Function

## (1) Input Item

The following table indicates the registers available for each input item.

Input Item	I/O Option	Available Register
Execute Abort	B-VAL	Every bit type register (except #, C registers), Same as above with subscript
Dev-typ Pro-Typ Cir-No Ch-No	I-REG	Every integer type register, Same as above with subscript, Constant
Param	Address input	Register address (except #, C registers), Same as above with subscript

### 1. Execute (executes a reception)

Specify a bit to command execution of a message reception.

When Execute turns ON, the message reception is carried out. In order to execute the process, a ladder program or the like needs to be used to switch the bit ON/OFF.

Note: Keep Execute (executes a reception) until Complete (process completed) or Error (error occurred) is turned ON. When the command turns ON, the message reception is carried out. To continuously command the receive execution, make sure to turn Execute (executes a reception) OFF for one scan or more.

### 2. Abort (forcibly ends a reception)

Specify a bit to command a forced abort of a message reception.

When Abort turns ON, the message reception is forcibly terminated. Abort takes precedence over Execute. In order to execute the forced abort, a ladder program or the like needs to be used to switch the bit ON/OFF.

## **3.** Dev-Typ (communication device type)

Specify the type of communication device.

Device	Type Code
Ethernet (218IF)	6
Ethernet (218IFA/218IFC)	16

## **4.** Pro-Typ (communication protocol)

Specify the communication protocol.

Type Code	Communication Protocol	Remarks
1	MEMOBUS	Set the type code to "1" when also transmitting using Extended MEMOBUS, MELSEC, or MODBUS/TCP protocol. The commu- nication device will automatically convert the protocol.
2	Non-procedure 1 (per word)	Data is received on a per-word basis in non-procedural communi- cation. No response is transmitted to the remote.
3	Non-procedure 2 (per byte)	Data is received on a per-byte basis in non-procedural communi- cation. No response is transmitted to the remote.

#### 5. Cir-No (circuit number)

Specify a circuit number for the communication device.

Specify it in accordance with the circuit number displayed in the MPE720 Module Configuration Window.

								Circuit number
								1
Module Details CPU-03 RAI	CK#01 SLOT#0	0						/
Slot Number	1		2	3		4	1	5
Module Type	CPU	▼ SVR	e	<ul> <li>CARD</li> </ul>	-	218IFA	-	M-EXECUTOR -
Circuit Number	-	01		-	(	01		9
I/O Start Register			2			0000		0800
I/O End Register			-			07FF		083F
Disable Input		-		-	-	Enable	•	-
Disable Output	0	-		•	-	Enable	•	-
Motion Start Register		800	)0					
Motion End Register		87F	F					
Details								
Status	Running	Rur	ining	Running		Running		Running

Fig. D.9 MPE720 Module Configuration Window

The following table indicates the range of valid circuit numbers.

Communication device	Valid Circuit Number
Ethernet (218IF/218IFA/218IFC)	1 to 8

#### 6. Ch-No (communication buffer channel number)

Specify the channel number of a communication buffer.

It can be any channel number in the range. However, when starting multiple functions at the same time, set a unique channel for each function. (If you do not start up multiple functions at the same time, the channel numbers can duplicate each other.)

The following table indicates the range of valid channel numbers.

Communication device	Valid Channel Number
Ethernet (218IF/218IFC)	1 to 10
Ethernet (218IFA)	1 to 4

When the communication device is Ethernet (218IFA), because the communication buffer common to the transmission and reception have four channels, four receptions (or transmissions) are available at the same time by using channel numbers 1 to 4.

In the same way, when the communication device is Ethernet (218IFC), because the communication buffers common to the transmission and reception has ten channels, ten transmissions (or receptions) are available at the same time by using channels 1 to 10.

Note: 1. As many MSG-RCV (or MSG-SND) functions as lines used at the same time are required.

2. For information on communication buffer channel, refer to D.3 Communication Buffer Channel.

### 7. Param (parameter list start address)

Specify the start address of the parameter list. For the "parameter list," 17 words are automatically assigned from the configured address. In the parameter list, enter the function code and its relevant parameter data. Additionally, process result and status are output.

# Note: For more information about the parameter list, refer to the parameter details for each protocol from *D.2.4 Function Setting and Parameter Details for MEMOBUS and Extended MEMOBUS Protocols* to *D.2.7 Function Setting and Parameter Details for Non-procedural Protocol.*

Example: When "DA00000" is specified as a parameter list start address:

Register	Parameter list F ··· ··· ··· ··· 0
DW00000	PARAM00
DW00001	PARAM01
DW00002	PARAM02
DW00003	PARAM03
DW00004	PARAM04
DW00005	PARAM05
DW00006	PARAM06
DW00007	PARAM07
DW00008	PARAM08
DW00009	PARAM09
DW00010	PARAM10
DW00011	PARAM11
DW00012	PARAM12
DW00013	PARAM13
DW00014	PARAM14
DW00015	PARAM15
DW00016	PARAM16

## (2) Output Item

The following table lists the registers available for each output item.

Input Item	I/O Option	Available Register
Busy Complete Error	B-VAL	Every bit type register (except #, C registers), Same as above for subscript

#### **1.** Busy (in process)

Specify a bit to report message reception. The Busy bit is turned ON while executing message reception or a forced abort process. Keep Execute or Abort ON while Busy is ON.

#### **2.** Complete (process completed)

Specify a bit to report message reception ended. When message reception or a forced abort process is completed properly, the Complete bit will turn ON only for one scan.

#### **3.** Error (error occurred)

Specify a bit to report when an error occurs in the message reception.
When an error occurs, the Error bit will turn ON only for one scan.
Note: For more information about the error cause, refer to D.2.4 (2) Process Result (PARAM00) and D.2.4 (3) Status (PARAM01).

A timing chart of bit type I/O items in the MSG-RCV function follows: [In Normal Condition]



Δ

# D.2.3 Message Receive Function Parameter List (Param) Overview

Param of the MSG-RCV function has a parameter list structure composed of 17 words. (The value of Param itself is the start address (MA, DA) of the parameter list.)

In the parameter list, enter the function code and its relevant parameter data. Process result and status are also output. When MEMOBUS and non-procedure are used as a transmission protocol, the parameter list is as follows:

Note: Parameter details are explained in the parameter details for each protocol type. Refer to the following items:

- D.2.4 Function Setting and Parameter Details for MEMOBUS and Extended MEMOBUS Protocols
- D.2.5 Function Setting and Parameter Details for MELSEC Protocol
- D.2.6 Function Setting and Parameter Details for MODBUS/TCP Protocol
- D.2.7 Function Setting and Parameter Details for Non-procedural Protocol

## (1) MEMOBUS Parameter List

Param No.	IN/OUT	Contents	Description
00	OUT	Process result	Outputs process results.
01	OUT	Status	Outputs the status of the communication device.
02	IN	Connection number	Specifies the remote source.
03	OUT	Option	Outputs a unique value for each communication device.
04	OUT	Function code	Outputs a function code requested from the transmission side.
05	OUT*	Data address	Outputs the start address of data requested from the transmission side.
06	OUT	Data size	Outputs the read/write data size requested from the transmission side.
07	OUT	Remote CPU number	Outputs the remote CPU number.
08	IN	Coil offset	Sets the coil's offset word address.
09	IN	Input relay offset	Sets the offset word address of an input relay.
10	IN	Input register offset	Sets the offset word address of an input register.
11	IN	Holding register offset	Sets the offset word address of a holding register.
12	IN	Write range LO	Sets the start address for a write range.
13	IN	Write range HI	Sets the last address for a write range.
14	SYS	Reserved 1	
15, 16	SYS	Reserved 2	

* It is IN/OUT for MODBUS/TCP.

Note: IN: Input, OUT: Output, SYS: For system use

Param No.	IN/OUT	Contents	Description
00	OUT	Process result	Outputs the process results.
01	OUT	Status	Outputs the status of the communication device.
02	IN	Connection number	Specifies the remote source.
03	OUT	Not used	
04	OUT	Not used	
05	OUT	Not used	
06	OUT	Data size	Outputs the write data size requested from the transmission side.
07	OUT	Not used	
08 to 11	IN	Not used	
12	IN	Register offset	Sets the register's offset word address.
13	IN	Write range HI	Sets the last address for a write range.
14	SYS	Reserved 1	
15, 16	SYS	Reserved 2	

## (2) Non-procedural Parameter List

Note: IN: Input, OUT: Output, SYS: For system use

# D.2.4 Function Setting and Parameter Details for MEMOBUS and Extended MEMO-BUS Protocols

This section explains the MSG-RCV function setting and its parameter list details when MEMOBUS or Extended MEMOBUS is used as a protocol.

## (1) Message Receive Function Setting

## [a] 218IFA/218IFC Setting Example

An example of a function setting when 218IFA/218IFC is used as a communication device follows: Set the protocol type to MEMOBUS even when used in Extended MEMOBUS protocol. Set the circuit number in accordance with the circuit number allocated to the target 218IFA/218IFC. Set a unique communication buffer channel number for the same circuit. For information on the register number, refer to *D.2.2 (1) Input Item* and *D.2.2 (2) Output Item*.

_		MSG	-RCV	
Communication device = 218IFA/2181FC		BBBBBBBB	_	
	Execute	DB000201	Busy	DB000210
Protocol = MEMOBUS	Abort	DB000202	Complete	DB000211
	Dev-Typ	00016	Error	DB000212
Circuit number = 1	Pro-Typ	00001		
Communication buffer channel number = $1$ –	Cir-No	00001		
	Ch-No	00001		
Parameter list start address = DA00000 (use DW00000-DW00016)	— Param	DA00000		

## [b] 218IF Setting Example

An example of a function setting when 218IF is used as a communication device follows: Set the protocol type to MEMOBUS even when used in Extended MEMOBUS protocol. Set the circuit number in accordance with the circuit number allocated to the target 218IF.

Set a unique communication buffer channel number for the same circuit.

For information on the register number, refer to D.2.2 (1) Input Item and D.2.2 (2) Output Item.

-	-(	MSG	-RCV	)—
Communication device = 218IF	Execute	DB000201	Busy	DB000210
Protocol = MEMOBUS	Abort	DB000202	Complete	DB000211
	Dev-Typ	00006	Error	DB000212
Circuit number = 1	Pro-Typ	00001		
Communication buffer channel number = 1 ~	Cir-No	00001		
	Ch-No	00001		
Parameter list start address = DA00000	— Param	DA00000		

## (2) Process Result (PARAM00)

The process result is output to the upper byte. The lower byte is used for system analysis.

Value of Process Result	Meaning
00xxH	In process (Busy)
10xxH	Process completed (Complete)
8yxxH	Error occurred (Error)

When an error occurs, take corrective action by referring to the following error contents:

Value of Process Result	Error Contents	Description
80xxH	-	Reserved
81xxH	Function code error	Unused function code was received. Check the source function code. The following setting is out of range. Check the setting.
82xxH	Error in setting address	Data address (request from transmission side) PARAM08 (coil offset) PARAM09 (input relay offset) PARAM10 (input register offset) PARAM11 (holding register offset)
83xxH	Data size error	The received data size is out of range. Check the source data size.
84xxH	Error in setting circuit number	The circuit number is out of range. Check Cir-No (circuit number) of the MSG-RCV function.
85xxH	Error in setting channel number	The communication buffer channel number is out of range. Check Ch-No (communication buffer channel number) of the MSG- RCV function.
86xxH	Connection number error	The connection number is out of range. Check PARAM02 (connection number).
87xxH	-	Reserved
88xxH	Communication section error	An error response was returned from the communication section (com- munication device). Check the equipment connection. In addition, check that the remote device is open to communication.
89xxH	Device select error	Unavailable device is set. Check Dev-Typ (communication device type) of the MSG-RCV function.

## (3) Status (PARAM01)

Outputs status of the communication section (communication device). The following figure shows the bit assignment. Bit assignment details are listed in the tables following.



## [a] REQUEST (request)

Outputs whether MSG-RCV function is requesting a process.

Bit State	Contents
1	Requesting processing
0	The acceptance of process request is completed

## [b] RESULT (result)

Outputs the execution result of the MSG-RCV function.

Code	Abbreviation	Meaning
0	CONN_NG	In Ethernet communication, transmission or connection error is completed
1	SEND_OK	Normal transmission complete
2	REC_OK	Normal reception complete
3	ABORT_OK	Forced abort complete
4	FMT_NG	Parameter format error
5	SEQ_NG	Command sequence error
6	RESET_NG	Reset state
7	REC_NG	Data reception error (error detected in the lower layer program)

## [c] COMMAND (command)

Outputs a process command for the MSG-RCV function. The executed process contents can be found according to the command.

Code (Hex)	Abbreviation	Meaning
1	U_SEND	General-purpose message transmission (for non-procedural protocol)
2	U_REC	General-purpose message reception (for non-procedural protocol)
3	ABORT	Forced abort
8	M_SEND	MEMOBUS command transmission: Completed when response is received
9	M_REC	MEMOBUS command reception: Accompanies a response transmission
С	MR_SEND	MEMOBUS response transmission

Appendices

## [d] PARAMETER (parameter)

When RESULT(process result) = 4 (FMT_NG: parameter format error), an error code in the table below is output. Otherwise, the connection number is output.

RESULT (process result)	Code (Hex)	Meaning
	00	No error
	01	Connection number is out of range
	02	Time error for monitoring to receive MEMOBUS response
When RESULT (process re-	03	Error in setting retransmit count
(EMT_NG: parameter format	04	Error in setting cyclic area
error)	05	CPU number error
	06	Data address error
	07	Data size error
	08	Function code error
Others	xx	Connection number

## (4) Connection Number (PARAM02)

Specify the remote source.

When the communication device is Ethernet (218IF, 218IFA or 218IFC), set the connection number. The following table shows the setting range.

Communication Device	Connection Num- ber	Remarks
Ethernet (218IF/218IFC)	1 to 20	Receives from the remote station set for the specified connection number.
Ethernet (218IFA)	1 to 4	Same as above

# Note: When the communication device is Ethernet (218IF/218IFA/218IFC), set the connection number in accordance with the connection number in the 218IF/218IFA/218IFC **Transmission Parameters** Tab Page for the MPE720 **Module Configuration** Window.

Address Ibnet Mask	: [ : [	192 🛨 · 168 🕂 · 1 255 🛨 255 🕂 24	· 1	· (0·2	:55 ) :55 )	Module Name Definiti Equipment name :	ion COI	NTROLL	.ER	NAME
iteway IP Address	s : [			÷ (0-2	.55 )	Detail Definition				
ection Parameter- essage Communio	cation									
ection Parameter essage Communit Easy setting CNO	cation It is possit Local Port	ole to following parameter Node IP Address	setting eas Node Port	sily that comm Connect Type	nunic t	cate the message. Protocol Type		Cod	e	Automaticall V
ection Parameter essage Communi Easy setting CNO 01	cation It is possit Local Port 10001	ole to following parameter Node IP Address 192.168.001.002	setting eas Node Port 20001	sily that comm Connect Type UDP	nunic t	cate the message. Protocol Type Extended MEMOBUS	•	Cod	e	Automaticall γ Detail
ection Parameter essage Communit Easy setting CNO 01 02	cation It is possit Local Port 10001 10002	ble to following parameter Node IP Address 192.168.001.002 192.168.001.006	setting eas Node Port 20001 20002	ily that comm Connect Type UDP TCP	nunic t E	cate the message. Protocol Type Extended MEMOBUS MELSEC	*	Cod BIN ASCII	e + +	Automaticall γ Detail
ection Parameter essage Communi Easy setting CNO 01 02 03	cation It is possit Local Port 10001 10002 10003	le to following parameter Node IP Address 192.168.001.002 192.168.001.005	setting eas Node Port 20001 20002 20003	ily that comm Connect Type UDP TCP TCP	nunic t E N N	Protocol Type Extended MEMOBUS MELSEC MEMOBUS	× •	Cod BIN ASCII RTU	e + + +	Automaticall γ Detail

Note: For the 218IFC, the setting range for the connection number is larger, i.e., 01 to 20.

Fig. D.10 218IFA/218IFC Transmission Parameters Tab Page for the MPE720 Module Configuration Window

218 Trans	mission Pa	rameters								
tation Set	ting									
IP Addr	ess	: 192 🛨 . 168 🛨	. 1 ÷	. 1 ÷	(0.	- 255 )				
	s									
Respon	se Time	: 0 + :			(0-	- 255 )				
Countio	f Betru				(0.	. 255.)				
ooun o	, mony					200)				
218 Conn	ection Para	meter								
218 Conn CNO	ection Para Local Port	Node IP Address	Node Port	Connect Type		Protocol Type		Cod	e	
218 Conn CNO 01	Local Port 0010	Mode IP Address	Node Port 20100	Connect Type TCP	<ul> <li>ME</li> </ul>	Protocol Type ELSEC	•	Cod ASCII	e •	
218 Conn CNO 01 02	Local Port 0010	Mode IP Address 192.168.001.003 192.168.001.006	Node Port 20100 20200	Connect Type TCP UDP	<ul> <li>ME</li> <li>Ext</li> </ul>	Protocol Type ELSEC tended MEMOBUS	•	Cod ASCII BIN	e •	
218 Conn CNO 01 02 03	Local Port 10010 10020 10030	Mode IP Address 192.168.001.003 192.168.001.006 000.000.000.000	Node Port 20100 20200 00000	Connect Type TCP UDP TCP	<ul> <li>ME</li> <li>Ext</li> <li>ME</li> </ul>	Protocol Type ELSEC tended MEMOBUS EMOBUS	* *	Cod ASCII BIN RTU	e •	
218 Conn CNO 01 02 03 04	Ection Para Local Port 0010 10020 10030 10040	Node IP Address 192.168.001.003 192.168.001.006 000.000.000.000 192.168.001.111	Node Port 20100 20200 00000 22222	Connect Type TCP UDP TCP UDP	<ul> <li>ME</li> <li>Ext</li> <li>ME</li> <li>No</li> </ul>	Protocol Type ELSEC tended MEMOBUS EMOBUS Inne	+ + + + +	Cod ASCII BIN RTU ASCII	e * *	
218 Conn CNO 01 02 03 04 05	ection Para Port 0010 10020 10030 10040	Node IP Address 192.168.001.003 192.168.001.006 000.000.000.000 192.168.001.111	Node Port 20100 20200 00000 22222	Connect Type TCP UDP TCP UDP	<ul> <li>ME</li> <li>Ext</li> <li>ME</li> <li>Noi</li> </ul>	Protocol Type ELSEC EMOBUS EMOBUS Inne	* * * *	Cod ASCII BIN RTU ASCII	e + + + + +	

Fig. D.11 218IF Transmission Parameters Tab Page for the MPE720 Module Configuration Window

## (5) Option (PARAM03)

A unique value is output for each communication device. Not used for the MEMOBUS or Extended MEMOBUS protocols.

## (6) Function Code (PARAM04)

Received function code is output.

The following table lists function codes available when using MEMOBUS or Extended MEMOBUS as a protocol.

	Target Data		Proto	ocol	
Function Code	Туре	Function	Extended MEMO- BUS	MEMOBUS	
00H	-	Unused	-	_	
01H	В	Reads coil state	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	
02H	В	Reads input relay state	$\checkmark$		
03H	W	Reads holding register content	$\checkmark$		
04H	W	Reads input register content	$\checkmark$		
05H	В	Changes single coil state	$\checkmark$		
06H	W	Writes to single holding register	$\checkmark$		
07H	-	Unused	-	_	
08H	-	Loopback test	$\checkmark$		
09H	W	Reads holding register content (extended)	$\checkmark$	_	
0AH	W	Reads input register content (extended)	$\checkmark$	_	
0BH	W	Writes to holding register (extended)	$\checkmark$	_	
0CH	-	Unused	-	_	
0DH	W	Discontinuously reads holding register (extended)	$\checkmark$	_	
0EH	W	Discontinuously writes to holding register (extended)		_	
0FH	В	Changes multiple coil states	$\checkmark$		
10H	W	Writes to multiple holding registers			

Table D.20 Function Code List (MEMOBUS, Extended MEMOBUS)

Note: 1. B: Bit type, W: Integer type

2.  $\sqrt{:}$  Available, -: Not available

- 3. Transmit and receive registers in the master operation mode are MW (MB) only.
- 4. In the slave operation mode, coil, holding register, input relay, and input register are MB, MW, IB, IW respectively.

## (7) Data Address (PARAM05)

A data address requested from the transmission side is output.

## (8) Data Size (PARAM06)

The read/write data size (number of bits or words) requested from the transmission side is output.

## (9) Remote CPU Number (PARAM07)

When the remote device is MP2D00 series, "1" is output.

When the remote device is a controller manufactured by YASKAWA Electric Corporation other than MP2 $\Box$ 00 series and is comprised of multiple CPU modules, the remote CPU number is output. Otherwise, "0" is output.

## (10) Offset (PARAM08, PARAM09, PARAM10, PARAM11)

Specify an offset address for the reception side data address.

The address for the reception side will be displaced by the number of words designated by the offset.

- Note: 1. For more information, refer to D.2.8 Relationship between Data Address, Data Size, and Offset for MSG-RCV Function.
  - 2. The offset cannot be a negative value.

The offset parameter is prepared for each target data type. The following table lists the offset parameters.

#### Table D.21 Offset Parameter List

Parameter	Contents	Description
PARAM08	Coil offset	Sets the coil's offset word address.
PARAM09	Input relay offset	Sets the offset word address of an input relay.
PARAM10	Input register offset	Sets the offset word address of an input register.
PARAM11	Holding register offset	Sets the offset word address of a holding register.

The valid offset parameter may differ according to the function code. The following table lists the valid parameters for each function code.

Table D.22 Valid Parameter List for Offset of Each Function	Code
-------------------------------------------------------------	------

Eurotion		Valid Offset	Protoc	оІ Туре
Code	Function	Parameter	Extended MEMOBUS	MEMOBUS
01H	Reads coil state	PARAM08	$\checkmark$	
02H	Reads input relay state	PARAM09	$\checkmark$	
03H	Reads holding register content	PARAM11	$\checkmark$	
04H	Reads input register content	PARAM10	$\checkmark$	
05H	Changes single coil state	PARAM08	$\checkmark$	
06H	Writes to single holding register	PARAM11	$\checkmark$	
09H	Reads holding register content (extended)	PARAM11	$\checkmark$	_
0AH	Reads input register content (extended)	PARAM10	$\checkmark$	_
0BH	Writes to holding register (extended)	PARAM11	$\checkmark$	_
0DH	Discontinuously reads holding register (extended)	PARAM11	$\checkmark$	_
0EH	Discontinuously writes to holding register (extended)	PARAM11	$\checkmark$	_
0FH	Changes multiple coil states	PARAM08	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$
10H	Writes to multiple holding registers	PARAM11	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$

Note:  $\sqrt{:}$  Available, -: Not available

## (11) Write Range (PARAM12, PARAM13)

Sets an available address range for the write request from the transmission side. A write request which is out of this available address range will cause an error.

Specify the address range (PARAM12, PARAM13) as a word address.

- Note: 1. In MP9^{D0}/MP2^{D0} series, the data storage area for the write request from the transmission side is M register.
  - The write range parameter enables you to specify the range of M register which permits writing messages.

The following table indicates the write range parameters.

#### Table D.23 Write Range Parameter List

Parameter	Contents	Description
PARAM12	Write range LO	Start address of the write range
PARAM13	Write range HI	Last address of the write range

Specify the write range so that the expression below is met:

 $0 \leq$  Write range LO  $\leq$  Write range HI  $\leq$  Maximum address of M register

This write range is effective for the following function codes:

05H (changes single coil state)

06H (writes to single holding register)

0BH (writes to holding register (extended))

0EH (discontinuously writes to holding register (extended))

0FH (changes multiple coil states)

10H (writes to multiple holding registers)

Example: When setting the address of M register which permits writing to 1000 to 1999:

PARAM12=1000 PARAM13=1999

The reception side will return an error against a write request to an address other than MW01000 to MW01999, and will not write it.

### (12) Reserved by System 1 (PARAM14)

Used by system (the channel number of the communication buffer in use is stored).

Note: At the first scan during power up, make sure to set this to "0" with the user program. After that, the register is used by system, so do not change the value with the user program.

#### (13) Reserved by System 2 (PARAM15, PARAM16)

Used by system. Do not change the value with the user program, etc.

# D.2.5 Function Setting and Parameter Details for MELSEC Protocol

This section explains the MSG-RCV function setting and its parameter list details when MELSEC is used as a protocol.

# (1) Message Receive Function Setting

## [a] 218IFA/218IFC Setting Example

An example of a function setting when 218IFA/218IFC is used as a transmission device follows: Set the protocol type to MEMOBUS when used in MELSEC protocol. Set the circuit number in accordance with the circuit number allocated to the target 218IFA/218IFC.

Set a unique communication buffer channel number for the same circuit.

For information on the register number, refer to D.2.2 (1) Input Item and D.2.2 (2) Output Item.



## [b] 218IF Setting Example

An example of a function setting when 218IF is used as a communication device follows: Set the protocol type to MEMOBUS when used in MELSEC protocol. Set the circuit number in accordance with the circuit number allocated to the target 218IF.

Set a unique communication buffer channel number for the same circuit.

For information on the register number, refer to D.2.2 (1) Input Item and D.2.2 (2) Output Item.

		MSC	PCV	
		10130	-KUV	
Communication device = 218IF	Execute	DB000201	Busy	DB000210
Protocol = MEMOBUS	Abort	DB000202	Complete	DB000211
$\sim$	Dev-Typ	00006	Error	DB000212
Circuit number = 1	Pro-Typ	00001		
Communication buffer channel number = $1$ —	Cir-No	00001		
	Ch-No	00001		
Parameter list start address = DA00000	— Param	DA00000		

# (2) Process Result (PARAM00)

Refer to D.2.4 (2) Process Result (PARAM00).

## (3) Status (PARAM01)

Refer to D.2.4 (3) Status (PARAM01).

# (4) Connection Number (PARAM02)

Refer to D.2.4 (4) Connection Number (PARAM02).

## (5) Option (PARAM03)

A unique value is output for each communication device. Not used for the MELSEC protocol.

## (6) Function Code (PARAM04)

Received function code is output.

The following table lists the function codes available when using the MELSEC protocol.

Function Code	MELSEC ACPU Common Command	Target Data Type	Function
01H/02H	00H	В	Reads bit device in units
03H/04H/09H/0AH	01H	W	Reads word device in units
05H/0FH	02H	В	Writes to bit device in units
06H/0BH/10H	03H	W	Writes to word device in units
08H	16H	-	Loopback test
0EH	05H	В	Specifies a device number for each word device at random and sets/resets each word device
31H	60H	W	Writes to the fixed buffer in words
32H	61H	W	Reads from the random access buffer in words (unable to receive for MP2□00 series)
33H	62H	W	Writes to the random access buffer in words

Table D.24 Function Code List (MELSEC)

Note: 1. B: Bit type, W: Integer type

AnCPU dedicated commands are not supported. Commands for extended file register are not supported.

## (7) Data Address (PARAM05)

A data address requested from the transmission side is output.

## (8) Data Size (PARAM06)

The read/write data size (number of bits or words) requested from the transmission side is output.

## (9) Remote CPU Number (PARAM07)

Refer to D.2.4 (9) Remote CPU Number (PARAM07).

# (10) Offset (PARAM08, PARAM09, PARAM10, PARAM11)

Specify an offset address for the reception side data address.

The address for the reception side will be displaced by the number of words designated by the offset.

Note: 1. For more information, refer to D.2.8 Relationship between Data Address, Data Size, and Offset for MSG-RCV Function.

2. The offset cannot be a negative value.

The offset parameter is prepared for each target data type. The following table lists the offset parameters.

Table D 25	Offect Parameter List

Parameter	Contents	Description		
PARAM08	Coil offset	Sets the coil's offset word address.		
PARAM09	Input relay offset	Sets the offset word address of an input relay.		
PARAM10	Input register offset	Sets the offset word address of an input register.		
PARAM11	Holding register offset	Sets the offset word address of a holding register.		

The valid offset parameter may differ according to the function code. The following table lists the valid parameters for the function codes.

#### Table D.26 Valid Parameter List for Offset of Each Function Code

Function Code	Function	Valid Offset Parameter
01H	Reads coil state	PARAM08
02H	Reads input relay state	PARAM09
03H	Reads holding register content	PARAM11
04H	Reads input register content	PARAM10
05H	Changes single coil state	PARAM08
06H	Writes to single holding register	PARAM11
09H	Reads holding register content (extended)	PARAM11
0AH	Reads input register content (extended)	PARAM10
0BH	Writes to holding register (extended)	PARAM11
0EH	Discontinuously writes to holding register (extended)	PARAM11
0FH	Changes multiple coil states	PARAM08
10H	Writes to multiple holding registers	PARAM11
31H	Writes to fixed buffer	PARAM11
32H	Reads the random access buffer	Invalid
33H	Writes to the random access buffer	PARAM11

## (11) Write Range (PARAM12, PARAM13)

Sets an available address range for a write request from the transmission side. A write request which is out of this available address range will cause an error.

Specify the address range (PARAM12, PARAM13) as a word address.

- Note: 1. In MP9D0/MP2D00 series, the data storage area for the write request from the transmission side is the M register.
  - The write range parameter enables you to specify the range of M register which permits writing messages.

The following table shows the write range parameters.

Parameter Contents		Description
PARAM12 Write range LO Start address of the write		Start address of the write range
PARAM13	Write range HI	Last address of the write range

Specify the write range so that the expression below is met:

 $0 \le$  Write range LO  $\le$  Write range HI  $\le$  Maximum address of M register

This write range is effective for the following function codes:

05H (changes single coil state)

06H (writes to single holding register)

0BH (writes to holding register (extended))

0EH (discontinuously writes to holding register (extended))

0FH (changes multiple coil states)

10H (writes to multiple holding registers)

31H (writes to fixed buffer)

33H (writes to the random access buffer)

Example: When setting the address of the M register which permits writing to 1000 to 1999: PARAM12=1000 PARAM13=1999 The reception side will return an error against a write request to an address other than MW01000 to MW01999, and will not write it.

## (12) Reserved by System 1 (PARAM14)

Used by system (the channel number of the communication buffer in use is stored). Note: At the first scan during power up, make sure to set this to "0" by user program. After that, the register is used by system, so do not change the value with the user program.

### (13) Reserved by System 2 (PARAM15, PARAM16)

Used by system. Do not change the value with the user program, etc.

# D.2.6 Function Setting and Parameter Details for MODBUS/TCP Protocol

This section explains the MSG-RCV function setting and its parameter list details when MODBUS/TCP is used as a protocol.

# (1) Message Receive Function Setting

## [a] 218IFA/218IFC Setting Example

An example of a function setting when 218IFA/218IFC is used as a transmission device follows: Set the protocol type to MEMOBUS when used in MODBUS/TCP protocol.

Set the circuit number in accordance with the circuit number allocated to the target 218IFA/218IFC.

Set a unique communication buffer channel number for the same circuit.

For information on the register number, refer to in D.2.2 (1) Input Item and D.2.2 (2) Output Item.



## [b] 218IF Setting Example

An example of a function setting when 218IF is used as a communication device follows: Set the protocol type to MEMOBUS when used in MODBUS/TCP protocol. Set the circuit number in accordance with the circuit number allocated to the target 218IF. Set a unique communication buffer channel number for the same circuit. For information on the register number, refer to D.2.2(1) Input Item and D.2.2(2) Output Item.

	-(	MSG-RCV			
Communication device = 218IF	Execute	DB000201	Busy	DB000210	
Protocol = MEMOBUS	Abort	DB000202	Complete	DB000211	
	Dev-Typ	00006	Error	DB000212	
Circuit number = 1	Pro-Typ	00001			
Communication buffer channel number = $1$ —	Cir-No	00001			
	Ch-No	00001			
Parameter list start address = DA00000	— Param	DA00000			

# (2) Process Result (PARAM00)

Refer to D.2.4 (2) Process Result (PARAM00).

## (3) Status (PARAM01)

Refer to D.2.4 (3) Status (PARAM01).

## (4) Connection Number (PARAM02)

Refer to D.2.4 (4) Connection Number (PARAM02).

## (5) Option (PARAM03)

A unique value is output for each communication device. The output details are as follows:

Communication device	Output Details
Ethernet (218IF/218IFA/218IFC)	A remote unit ID is output when MODBUS/TCP protocol is used.

## (6) Function Code (PARAM04)

Received function code is output.

The following table lists the function codes available when using the MODBUS/TCP protocol.

	Target Data		Protocol Type		
Function Code	on Code Type Function		Ethernet (218IF)	Ethernet (218IFA/ 218IFC)	
00H	-	Not used	_	_	
01H	В	Reads coil state		$\checkmark$	
02H	В	Reads input relay state		$\checkmark$	
03H	W	Reads holding register content	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	
04H	W	Reads input register content		$\checkmark$	
05H	В	Changes single coil state		$\checkmark$	
06H	W	Writes to single holding register		$\checkmark$	
07H					
:	-	Not used	-	-	
0EH					
0FH	В	Changes multiple coil states			
10H	W	Writes to multiple holding registers		$\checkmark$	
11H					
:	_	Not used	_	_	
15H					
16H	W	Mask writes to holding register	-	$\checkmark$	
17H	W	Reads/Writes multiple holding registers	—	$\checkmark$	

#### Table D.28 Function Code List (MODBUS/TCP)

Note: 1. B: Bit type, W: Integer type

- 2.  $\sqrt{:}$  Available, -: Not available
- 3. Transmit and receive registers in the master operation mode are MW (MB) only.
- In the slave operation mode, coil, holding register, input relay, and input register are MB, MW, IB, IW
  respectively.

## (7) Data Address (PARAM05)

A data address requested from the transmission side is output.

However, when reading/writing multiple holding registers (function code: 17H), enter a start M register number for the address table. The four words of addresses at the beginning of the M register set by PARAM05 (data address) are used as an address table. In this address table, read address, read size, write address, and write size requested from the transmission side are output.

For more information about the address table, refer to D.1.6 (7) Data Address (PARAM05).

## (8) Data Size (PARAM06)

The read/write data size (number of bits or words) requested from the transmission side is output.

## (9) Remote CPU Number (PARAM07)

Refer to D.2.8 Relationship between Data Address, Data Size, and Offset for MSG-RCV Function.

# (10) Offset (PARAM08, PARAM09, PARAM10, PARAM11)

Specify an offset address for the reception side data address.

The address for the reception side will be displaced by the number of words designated by the offset.

- Note: 1. For more information, refer to D.2.8 Relationship between Data Address, Data Size, and Offset for MSG-RCV Function.
  - 2. The offset cannot be a negative value.

The offset parameter is prepared for each target data type. The following table lists the offset parameters.

#### Table D.29 Offset Parameter List

Parameter	Contents	Description		
PARAM08	Coil offset	Sets the coil's offset word address.		
PARAM09	Input relay offset	Sets the offset word address of an input relay.		
PARAM10	Input register offset	Sets the offset word address of an input register.		
PARAM11	Holding register offset	Sets the offset word address of a holding register.		

The valid offset parameter may differ according to the function code. The following table lists the valid parameters for each function code.

Function Code	Function Code Function	
01H	Reads coil state	PARAM08
02H	Reads input relay state	PARAM09
03H	Reads holding register content	PARAM11
04H	Reads input register content	PARAM10
05H	Changes single coil state	PARAM08
06H	Writes to single holding register	PARAM11
0FH	Changes multiple coil states	PARAM08
10H	Writes to multiple holding registers	PARAM11
16H	Mask writes to holding register	PARAM11
17H	Reads/Writes multiple holding registers	PARAM11

#### Table D.30 Valid Parameter List for Offset of Each Function Code

# (11) Write Range (PARAM12, PARAM13)

Sets an available address range for the write request from the transmission side. A write request which is out of this available address range will cause an error.

Specify the address range (PARAM12, PARAM13) as a word address.

- Note: 1. In MP9D0/MP2D00 series, the data storage area for the write request from the transmission side is the M register.
  - 2. The write range parameter enables you to specify the range of the M register which permits writing messages.

The following table indicates the write range parameters.

Table D.31	Write	Range	Parameter	List
------------	-------	-------	-----------	------

Parameter Contents		Description	
PARAM12	Write range LO	Start address of the write range	
PARAM13	Write range HI	Last address of the write range	

Specify the write range so that the expression below is met:

 $0 \le$  Write range LO  $\le$  Write range HI  $\le$  Maximum address of M register

This write range is effective for the following function codes:

- 05H (changes single coil state)
- 06H (writes to single holding register)
- 0BH (writes to holding register (extended))
- 0FH (changes multiple coil states)
- 10H (writes to multiple holding registers)
- 16H (mask writes to holding register)
- 17H (reads/writes multiple holding registers)

Example: When setting the address of the M register which permits writing to 1000 to 1999:

- PARAM12=1000
- PARAM13=1999

The reception side will return an error against a write request to an address other than MW01000 to MW01999, and will not write it.

## (12) Reserved by System 1 (PARAM14)

Used by system (the channel number of the communication buffer in use is stored).

Note: At the first scan during power up, make sure to set this to "0" by user program. After that, the register is used by system, so do not change the value with the user program.

#### (13) Reserved by System 2 (PARAM15, PARAM16)

Used by system. Do not change the value with the user program, etc.

# D.2.7 Function Setting and Parameter Details for Non-procedural Protocol

This section explains the MSG-RCV function setting and its parameter list details when non-procedure is used as a protocol.

Note: Non-procedure communication protocol stores the received data in the M register intact without a protocol conversion.

You can receive any protocol in accordance with the remote device.

## (1) Message Receive Function Setting

## [a] 218IFA/218IFC Setting Example

An example of a function setting when 218IFA/218IFC is used as a transmission device follows: When non-procedure 2 (per byte) is used, set the Pro-Typ field to "00003". (non-procedure 1 (per word)) Set the circuit number in accordance with the circuit number allocated to the target 218IFA/218IFC. Set a unique communication buffer channel number for the same circuit.

For information on the register number, refer to D.2.2 (1) Input Item and D.2.2 (2) Output Item.

-		MSG-RCV		
Communication device = 218IFA/2181FC	Execute	DB000201	Busy	DB000210
Protocol = non-procedure 1	Abort	DB000202	Complete	DB000211
	Dev-Typ	00016	Error	DB000212
Circuit number = 1	Pro-Typ	00001		
Communication buffer channel number = $1$	Cir-No	00001		
	Ch-No	00001		
Parameter list start address = DA00000	– Param	DA00000		

## [b] 218IF Setting Example

An example of a function setting when 218IF is used as a communication device follows:

When non-procedure 2 (per byte) is used, set the Pro-Typ field to "00003". (non-procedure 1 (per word)) Set the circuit number in accordance with the circuit number allocated to the target 218IF.

Set a unique communication buffer channel number for the same circuit.

For information on the register number, refer to D.2.2 (1) Input Item and D.2.2 (2) Output Item.

_	_(	MSG-RCV		
Communication device = 218IF				
	Execute	DB000201	Busy	DB000210
Protocol = non-procedure 1	Abort	DB000202	Complete	DB000211
	Dev-Typ	00006	Error	DB000212
Circuit number = 1	Pro-Typ	00001		
Communication buffer channel number = 1 —	Cir-No	00001		
	Ch-No	00001		
Parameter list start address = DA00000	— Param	DA00000		

# (2) Process Result (PARAM00)

The process result is output to the upper byte. The lower byte is used for system analysis.

Value of Process Result	Meaning
00xxH	In process (Busy)
10xxH	Process completed (Complete)
8yxxH	Error occurred (Error)

When an error occurs, investigate it by referring to the following error contents:

Value of Process Result	Error Contents	Description
80xxH	-	Reserved
81xxH	-	-
82xxH	Error in setting address	The following setting is out of range. Check the setting. PARAM11 (holding register offset)
83xxH	Data size error	The received data size is out of range. Check the source data size.
84xxH	Error in setting circuit number	The circuit number is out of range. Check Cir-No (circuit number) of the MSG-RCV function.
85xxH	Error in setting channel number	The communication buffer channel number is out of range. Check Ch-No (communication buffer channel number) for the MSG-RCV function.
86xxH	Connection number error	The connection number is out of range. Check PARAM02 (connection number).
87xxH	-	Reserved
88xxH	Communication section error	An error response was returned from the communication section (com- munication device). Check the equipment connection. In addition, check that the remote device is open to communication.
89xxH	Device select error	Unavailable device is set. Check Dev-Typ (communication device type) of the MSG-RCV function.

# (3) Status (PARAM01)

Outputs status of the communication section (communication device). The following figure shows the bit assignment. The bit assignment details are listed in the following tables.



## [a] REQUEST (request)

Outputs whether MSG-RCV function is requesting a process.

Bit State	Contents	
1	Requesting to process	
0	The acceptance of process request is completed	

## [b] RESULT (result)

Outputs the execution result of the MSG-RCV function

Code	Abbreviation	Meaning	
0	CONN_NG	In Ethernet communications, transmit error or connection error is com- pleted	
1	SEND_OK	Normal transmission completed	
2	REC_OK	Normal reception completed	
3	ABORT_OK	Forced abort completed	
4	FMT_NG	Parameter format error	
5	SEQ_NG	Command sequence error	
6	RESET_NG	Reset state	
7	REC_NG	Data reception error (error detected in the lower layer program)	

## [c] COMMAND (command)

Outputs a process command for the MSG-RCV function The executed process content can be found according to the command.

Code (Hex)	Abbreviation	Meaning
1	U_SEND	General-purpose message transmission
2	U_REC	General-purpose message reception
3	ABORT	Forced abort
8	M_SEND	Command transmission: Completed when response is received (for MEMOBUS protocol)
9	M_REC	Command reception: Accompanies a response transmission (for MEMOBUS protocol)
С	MR_SEND	Response transmission (for MEMOBUS protocol)

## [d] PARAMETER (parameter)

When RESULT (process result) = 4 (FMT_NG: parameter format error), an error code in the following table is output. Otherwise, the connection number is output.

RESULT (process result)	Code (Hex)	Meaning	
	00	No error	
	01	Connection number is out of range	
	02	Time error while monitoring to receive MEMOBUS response (for MEMOBUS protocol)	
sult) = 4	03	Error in setting retransmit count	
(FMT_NG: parameter for-	04	Error in setting cyclic area	
mat error)	05	CPU number error	
	06	Data address error	
	07	Data size error	
	08	Function code error (for MEMOBUS protocol)	
Others	XX	Connection number	

## (4) Connection Number (PARAM02)

Refer to D.2.4 (4) Connection Number (PARAM02).

## (5) Data Size (PARAM06)

A data size requested from the transmission side is output. In case of non-procedure 1, the number of words is output. In case of non-procedure 2, the number of bytes is output.

## (6) Register Offset (PARAM12)

Specify an offset address for the reception side data address.

The address for the reception side will be displaced by the number of words designated by the offset.

- Note: 1. For more information, refer to D.2.8 Relationship between Data Address, Data Size, and Offset for MSG-RCV Function.
  - 2. The offset cannot be a negative value.

In case of non-procedure, received continuous data is stored in the M register. Setting the register offset enables you to specify a start address of the M register as a storage area.

Example: When specifying MW01000 for the start address of the M register for storing received data: PARAM12=1000

## (7) Write Range HI (PARAM13)

Sets an available address range for the write request from the transmission side. A write request which is out of this available address range will cause an error.

Specify the write range (PARAM13) as a word address.

Note: The write range parameter enables you to specify the range of the M register which permits writing messages.

Specify the write range so that the expression below is met:

#### $0 \leq$ Write range HI $\leq$ Maximum address of M register

Example: When setting the last address of the M register which permits writing to 1999:

PARAM13=1999

The reception side will return an error against a write request to an address other than MW00000 to MW01999, and will not write it.

## (8) Reserved by System 1 (PARAM14)

Used by system (the channel number of the communication buffer in use is stored). Note: At the first scan during power up, make sure to set this to "0" by user program. After that, the register is used by system, so do not change the value with the user program.

## (9) Reserved by System 2 (PARAM15, PARAM16)

Used by system. Do not change the value with the user program, etc.

# D.2.8 Relationship between Data Address, Data Size, and Offset for MSG-RCV Function

The relationships between data address, data size, and offset when received with offset are as follows:

## (1) When Reading



# (2) When Writing



Transmission side sets the data address B and the data size C.
In case of non-procedure, read cannot be received.
The valid offset parameter may differ according to each data type.
The data type and register correspond as follows: Coil: MBDDDDDD, holding register: MWDDDDD





Communication protocol = non-procedure

Example: "Writes to multiple holding registers" with offset is received:

When "writes to multiple holding registers" with offset is received in MEMOBUS protocol, various setting values and the relationship with the data of remote device are as follows:

• Description of the MSG-RCV function in ladder program

	—(	MSG-RCV		
Communication device = 218IFA/2181FC	Execute	DB000201	Busy	DB000210
Protocol = MEMOBUS	Abort	DB000202	Complete	DB000211
	Dev-Typ	00016	Error	DB000212
Circuit number = 1	Pro-Typ	00001		
Communication buffer channel number = $1$ —	Cir-No	00001		
	Ch-No	00001		
Parameter list start address = DA00000	— Param	DA00000		

· Parameter list setting of the MSG-RCV function

Register Num- ber	Setting Value	Parameter Num- ber	IN/OUT	Remarks
DW00000	-	PARAM00	OUT	Process result
DW00001	-	PARAM01	OUT	Status
DW00002	00001	PARAM02	IN	Connection number = 1
DW00003	-	PARAM03	OUT	Option (setting unnecessary)
DW00004	-	PARAM04	OUT	Function Code
DW00005	-	PARAM05	OUT	Data address
DW00006	-	PARAM06	OUT	Data size
DW00007	-	PARAM07	OUT	Remote CPU number
DW00008	00000	PARAM08	IN	Coil offset = $0$ word
DW00009	00000	PARAM09	IN	Input relay offset = $0$ word
DW00010	00000	PARAM10	IN	Input register offset = 0 word
DW00011	01000	PARAM11	IN	Holding register offset = 1000 words
DW00012	00000	PARAM12	IN	Write range $LO = 0$
DW00013	65534	PARAM13	IN	Write range HI = 65534
DW00014	-	PARAM14	SYS	Reserved (zero clear at startup)
DW00015	-	PARAM15	SYS	Reserved
DW00016	-	PARAM16	SYS	Reserved

Table D.32 Parameter List Setting

Note: IN: Input, OUT: Output, SYS: For system use

• Relationship with the Remote Device Data

The following figure shows the data flow when receiving "writes to multiple holding registers" with offset: When transmission and reception are carried out normally in the figure below, the data in the remote device is stored in MW03000 and after of MP2200.



Fig. D.12 Writing Example to Multiple Holding Registers
#### D.3 Communication Buffer Channel

A communication buffer channel is used for giving and receiving data between the MSG-SND/ MSG-RCV function and communication device. This data buffer is composed of single or multiple channels, and each channel is distinguished by a communication buffer channel number.

The communication buffer channel is associated with a connection by setting the input item **Ch-No** (communication buffer channel number) of the MSG-SND/ MSG-RCV function and PARAM02 (connection number) in Param (parameter list).

A connection is configuration information for communication between local and remote stations, and is set in the 218IF/218IFA/218IFC **Transmission Parameters** Tab Page of the MPE720 **Module Configuration** Window.

ission Parame					Module Name Defin	ition			
ddress	: [	192 🛨 · 🛛 168 🛨 · 🗍	÷ 1	÷ (0-25	5) Equipment name :	CO	NTROLI	ER	NAME
net Mask	: [	255 🛨 255 🛨 25	55 🕂 🛛 🖸		5)	i			
wau IP Addr			-		5) Detail Definition				
tion Paramet	er								
tion Paramet sage Commu Easy setting	er inication It is possil	ble to following parameter	setting eas	sily that comm	unicate the message.		1		
tion Paramet ssage Commu Easy setting CNO	er Inication It is possil Local Port	ble to following parameter Node IP Address	setting eas Node Port	ily that comm Connect Τγpe	unicate the message. Protocol Type		Cod	e	Automaticall Y
tion Paramet ssage Commu Easy setting CNO 01	er Inication It is possi Local Port 10001	ble to following parameter Node IP Address 192.168.001.002	setting eas Node Port 20001	ily that comm Connect Type UDP	inicate the message. Protocol Type • Extended MEMOBUS		Cod	e 🗸	Automaticall Y Detail
tion Paramet isage Commu asy setting CNO 01 02	er inication It is possi Local Port 10001 10002	ble to following parameter Node IP Address 192.168.001.002 192.168.001.006	setting eas Node Port 20001 20002	ily that comm Connect Type UDP TCP	unicate the message. Protocol Type Extended MEMOBUS MELSEC	•	Cod BIN ASCII	e •	Automaticall γ Detail
tion Paramet sage Commu Easy setting CNO 01 02 03	er inication It is possil Local Port 10001 10002 10003	ble to following parameter Node IP Address 192.168.001.002 192.168.001.006 192.168.001.005	setting ease Node Port 20001 20002 20003	ily that comm Connect Τγρε UDP TCP TCP	unicate the message. Protocol Type Z Extended MEMOBUS MELSEC MEMOBUS	•	Cod BIN ASCII RTU	e •	Automaticall V Detail

Cannot the overlap to local station port number used by the communicate the 1/0 message.

Note: For the 218IFC, the setting range for the connection number is larger, i.e., 01 to 20.

Fig. D.13 218IFA/218IFC Transmission Parameters Tab Page for the MPE720 Module Configuration Window

	smission Par	rameters								
tation Se	tting									
IP Add	ess	: 192 ÷ . 168 ÷	. 1 ÷	. 1 -	÷	(0 - 255)				
	IC I				_					
Respon	o se Time					(0.255)				
nespoi	ise rime					(0-200)				
Count	of Retry	:  0 🚖 time				(0 - 255)				
	Local		Node	Conne	ct	Protocol				
CNO	Local Port	Node IP Address	Node Port	Conne Type	ct	Protocol Type	1-24	Cod	e	
CNO 01	Local Port 10010	Node IP Address	Node Port 20100	Conne Type TCP	ct •	Protocol Type MELSEC	•	Cod ASCII	e •	
CN0 01 02	Local Port 10010 10020	Node IP Address 192.168.001.003 192.168.001.006	Node Port 20100 20200	Conne Type TCP UDP	ct •	Protocol Type MELSEC Extended MEMOBUS	* *	Cod ASCII BIN	e •	
CNO 01 02 03	Local Port 10010 10020 10030	Node IP Address 192.168.001.003 192.168.001.006 000.000.000.000	Node Port 20100 20200 00000	Conne Type TCP UDP TCP	ct • •	Protocol Type MELSEC Extended MEMOBUS MEMOBUS	* * *	Cod ASCII BIN RTU	e • •	
CNO 01 02 03 04	Local Port 10010 10020 10030 10040	Node IP Address 192.168.001.003 192.168.001.006 000.000.000.000 192.168.001.111	Node Port 20100 20200 00000 22222	Conne Type TCP UDP TCP UDP	ct • •	Protocol Type MELSEC Extended MEMOBUS MEMOBUS None	* *	Cod ASCII BIN RTU ASCII	e • •	
CNO 01 02 03 04 05	Local Port 10010 10020 10030 10040	Node IP Address 192.168.001.003 192.168.001.006 000.000.000 192.168.001.111	Node Port 20100 20200 00000 22222	Conne Type TCP UDP TCP UDP	ct • •	Protocol Type MELSEC Extended MEMOBUS MEMOBUS None	* * * *	Cod ASCII BIN RTU ASCII	e • • •	
CN0 01 02 03 04 05 06	Local Port 10010 10020 10030 10040 	Node IP Address 192.168.001.003 192.168.001.006 000.000.000.000 192.168.001.111	Node Port 20100 20200 00000 22222	Conne Type TCP UDP TCP UDP	ct • • •	Protocol Type MELSEC Extended MEMOBUS MEMOBUS None	+ + + + +	Cod ASCII BIN RTU ASCII	e + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	

Fig. D.14 218IF Transmission Parameters Tab Page for the MPE720 Module Configuration Window A schematic diagram of the communication buffer channel is shown in the next page.

#### D.3 Communication Buffer Channel



Fig. D.15 Schematic Diagram for Communication Buffer Channel

# Appendix E Optional Functions

#### E.1 Clearing D Registers at Startup

#### (1) Overview of Functions

D registers are internal registers that are unique for each user program. Normally, the D register data that is stored in flash memory is restored for a flash startup, but it is also possible to start with the data cleared. Specifically, The data cleared by this function is the D registers of DWG (drawings), user functions, and motion programs. Make the settings in the **System Setting** of the **Environment Setting** Dialog Box. With the default settings, the D registers will not be cleared at startup.

#### (2) Supported Versions

The following versions support function to clear D registers at startup.

- Controller: Version 2.32 or later
- MPE720: Version 5.21 or later
- MPE720 Version 6: All versions

#### (3) Setting Procedure for Clearing D Registers at Startup

Use the following procedure to make the setting.

**1.** Connect the MPE720 online.

Select File (F) - Environment Setting - Setup.

2. Select Enable under the D Register Clear when Start.

Environment Setting			<u> X</u>
Security Setup System Setting Scan Time Setting	System Setting Write Protect PCI Reset Signal	Writable	Select Enable.
Ladder Motion Clanguage Variable Monitor Transfer Print	D Register Clear when Start Battery Connection Keep Latest Value(Number of s when abnormal input) High-speed Input	Disable Disable Enable can of keep latest value 2 2 scan (1 to 255)	
	Low-speed Input Calender Setting Date and Time	2 ± scan (1 to 255)	
		OK Cancel	I Apply [

#### 3. Save data to flash memory before turning OFF the power supply.

The system will start with the D registers cleared to zeroes the next time that the flash memory starts.

#### (4) Application Precautions

- Due to the nature of this function, it will only be enabled when starting with flash memory after having set this function to "enabled" and saving to flash memory.
- It is not possible to clear the D registers for only a specific user program.
- No check is performed to see if the CPU Module supports the function to clear D registers at startup when the MPE720 is offline. Therefore, confirm that the CPU Module that is being used supports the function to clear D registers at startup before using this function.

E.2 Security

#### E.2 Security

#### (1) Overview of Functions

Security functions set a password (security key) to prevent data saved in the Controller from being read by other parties.

#### (2) Supported Versions

The following versions support security functions.

- Controller: Version 2.32 or later
- MPE720: Version 5.21 or later
- MPE720 Version 6: All versions

#### (3) Description of Functions

#### [a] Security Settings

- Only one security condition can be set for each Controller.
  - Note: 1. You cannot make separate security settings for each user that logs on.
    - 2. This security function has no relation to the identify function in terms of user names and passwords used to log on to the MPE720.
- Only users with writing privilege of level 7 or higher can make this security setting.

#### [b] Target data

• The following table shows the data that can be privacy protected.

Туре	Description	Remarks
Ladder	Drawings (DWG) and user functions (FUNC)	All types of drawings, as well as parent, child, grandchild, and error drawings.
Motion	Motion program	
Wotion	Sequence program	Supported by the CPU-03 and CPU-04.
C Language	C language tasks and C language functions	Supported from version 2.31 of the embedded API.

• You can place restrictions (e.g., copy protection) only on reading from the Controller.

Note: It is not possible to use the security functions to restrict writing to the Controller.

You can place restrictions reading according to the reading privilege level of the application.
 Note: File rights: Reading is restricted when R (the reading privilege level) is greater than or equal to the restriction privilege level.

#### [c] Security Identification

- Security identification uses a security key of up to eight alphanumeric case-sensitive characters.
   Note: If you forget the key, the security setting cannot be released unless memory is cleared. Keep a record of the key in case you forget it.
- If the key that is entered is incorrect three consecutive times for the current security settings, it will not be possible to change any security settings without turning OFF and then ON again the power supply to the Controller.
- You can release the security without changing the security key setting.
   Note: You can enable or disable security while the security key is set by selecting whether to restrict reading of files. This is effective when you do not want other parties to make security settings.

#### [d] Precautions for Transfers

- The security settings are not transferred.
- The security settings are automatically canceled after batch transfers or batch loading from a CF card^{*} are performed. After the batch job has been completed, be sure to return the security settings to their previous state.
  - * A batch load from a CF card can be only executed when using a CPU-02 or a CPU-03 Module. Note: If using controller software version 2.76 or later, the security settings are not canceled after batch
  - Note: If using controller software version 2.76 or later, the security settings are not canceled after batch transfers or batch loading. If the INIT DIP switch for the controller is ON and then the power supply is turned ON, however, the security settings will also be released. For details, refer to *E.2 ( 6 ) Initialization*.
- With the CPU-02 or CPU-03, batch saving to the CF card is prohibited regardless of the restriction privilege level if reading is restricted.

#### (4) Operation Procedure

#### [a] Opening the Security Setting Dialog Box

Make the security settings using the MPE720. The **Security Setting** Dialog Box will start when the Engineering Tool goes online with the Controller.

**1.** Connect to the Controller online.

	Project		Help
	New	Communications Setting	Help
	Open	Connection [3:Ethernet(LP) IP192.168.1.1	
	Close	Disconnection	
istory		History	

2. Select Online - Online Security Setting.

Щ MPE720 ¥er.6 - [MP22	:00-03] -	[Start]						<u>-     ×</u>
	Dinine Discou	<u>Compile D</u> ebug	Window	Help Contrast Contrast				- 8×
	Discoi			10 10 10				
	<u>1</u> 3:E	thernet(LP) IP192.	168.1.1	÷ 11° 14° £ - 1				: 1864 :
: <u>= = ,                                </u>	Comr	nunications Setting.		0				
Online MP2200-0	> CPU E	RUN			3:Ethe	ernet(LP) IP192.168.	.1.1 CPU-RUN —	→₽
Setup Programm		5TOP	_	lity				
System D	∰ <u>W</u> rite	into Controller						÷ ×
<u>ا</u>	Read	from Controller						
E [[.] [MP2200-03]	Trans	fer		<b>.</b> .				L _^
-표 <b>4 A</b> xis configuratio	h Online	e Security Setting		<b>0</b>	100 100		0	
	Contr	oller Information		Scantime Setting	Module	Axis Setup Wizard	Test Run	
		Disconnect		]	Configuration			
						5	5	
		Alarm Moni	tor	Create New	Open Ladder	Create New	Open Motion	
				Ladder Program	Program	Motion Program	Program	
		in the second se		-	Ø		Ô,	
Ladder G Motion	System	1						

The following dialog box will be displayed in environments that support security settings.

-Current Status		
No Security Setting		
Apply File Reading Re	striction (Ladder/Motion/C Lang	juage)
Restriction Privilege	0 💌 and higher are res	tricted.
0		
Controller equ	ipped with CF card module is us	ed, save to
Controller equ CPU->CARD is regardless of t	ipped with CF card module is us s prohibited the restriction privilege when th	ed, save to e file reading
Controller equ CPU->CARD is regardless of t restriction is se	ipped with CF card module is us ; prohibited :he restriction privilege when th at.	ed, save to e file reading
Controller equ CPU->CARD is regardless of t restriction is se Security Key	ipped with CF card module is us prohibited the restriction privilege when th et.	ed, save to e file reading Set
Controller equ CPU->CARD is regardless of t restriction is so Security Key Security Key Confirmation	ipped with CF card module is us prohibited her restriction privilege when th at.	ed, save to e file reading Set Set to None

The figure above shows the default status.

A

E.2 Security

#### [b] New Security Settings

Make a new security setting in the Security Setting Dialog Box.

1. Select the Apply File Reading Restriction (Ladder/Motion/C Language) Check Box, and then select a restriction privilege level from 0 to 7.

No Security Setting	
Restriction Privilege 0  and higher	are restricted.
Controller quip	le is used, save to
CPU->CARD is 2 d regardless of th 3 tion privilege ( restriction is set 4	when the file reading
CPU->CAPD is 1 regardless of tt 3 restriction is 4 5ecurity Key 5	when the file reading

Note: The display depends on the conditions that are set.

2. Enter a password of eight or less alphanumeric characters in the **Security Key** Field. For confirmation, enter the same password in the **Security Key Confirmation** Field. To apply the security settings to the Controller, click the **Set** Button.

-Current Status No Security Setting		
Apply File Reading R	Restriction (Ladder/Motion/C Language)	
Restriction Privilege	5  and higher are restricted.	
A Controller ec	ruipped with CE card module is used, save to	
CPU->CARD regardless of restriction is	is prohibited if the restriction privilege when the file reading set	g
CPU->CARD regardless of restriction is	set and thouse is used, save to be a set of the restriction privilege when the file reading set and the set of the restriction privilege when the file reading set of the restriction privilege when the file reading set of the restriction privilege when the file reading set of the restriction privilege when the file reading set of the restriction privilege when the file reading set of the restriction privilege when the file reading set of the restriction privilege when the file reading set of the restriction privilege when the file reading set of the restriction privilege when the file reading set of the restriction privilege when the file reading set of the restriction privilege when the file reading set of the restriction privilege when the file reading set of the restriction privilege when the file reading set of the restriction privilege when the file reading set of the restriction privilege when the file reading set of the restriction privilege set of the restriction privi	9
CPU->CARD regardless of restriction is iecurity Key iecurity Key Confirmation	strain the state of the state o	g one

The following figure will be displayed if the security settings have been normally applied to the Controller.

Apply File Reading Re	striction (Ladder/Motion/C Lang	guage) ———
Restriction Privilege	5 • and higher are res	stricted.
Controller equ CPU->CARD is	ipped with CF card module is us s prohibited	ed, save to
regardless of restriction is s	the restriction privilege when th et.	ne file reading
regardless of restriction is s Security Key	the restriction privilege when thet.	ne file reading
regardless of restriction is s Security Key Security Key Confirmation	the restriction privilege when thet.	Set to No

#### [c] Changing the Restriction Privilege

Change the restriction privilege with the security settings made.

 Open the Security Setting Dialog Box and change the restriction privilege level to a number from 0 to 7.

File Reading Restricte	ed: Restriction Privilege 5	
Apply File Reading I Restriction Privilege Controller e CPU->CAR regardless d restriction is	Rest COD Ladder/Motion/C Lar and higher are re up 1	nguage) estricted. used, save to the file reading
Security Key		Set
Security Key Confirmation		Set to None

2. Enter the password in the Security Key Field. To apply the security settings to the Controller, click the Set Button.

Current Status		
File Reading Restricted:	Restriction Privilege 5	
Apply File Reading Re	striction (Ladder/Motion/C Lang	juage)
Restriction Privilege	3 • and higher are res	tricted.
Controller equ CPU->CARD is	ipped with CF card module is us prohibited the restriction privilege when th	ed, save to
regardless of I restriction is s		io nio rodding
regardless of restriction is s		Set
regardless or 1 restriction is a recurity Key recurity Key Confirmation		Set to None

If a change in restriction privileges has been normally applied to the Controller, the new restriction privilege level will be displayed in the **Current Status** Area of the **Security Setting** Dialog Box.

Current Status File Reading Restricted	I: Restriction Privilege 3	
Apply File Reading Restriction Privilege     Controller equ	estriction (Ladder/Motion/C Lang	guage)
CPU->CARD regardless of restriction is s	is prohibited the restriction privilege when th set.	ed, save to ne file reading
CPU->CARD regardless of restriction is s	the restriction privilege when the state is the restriction privilege when the restriction pr	ed, save to he file reading Set
CPU->CARD regardless of restriction is s jecurity Key	is prohibited the restriction privilege when th et.	ed, save to ne file reading Set Set to None

#### [d] Changing the File Reading Restriction

Change the file reading restriction with the security settings made. In this example, we will release the restriction. To set the restriction, use the same procedure. Having no file reading restriction set is the same as security being released.

1. Select or clear the Apply File Reading Restriction (Ladder/Motion/C Language) Check Box. Enter the password in the Security Key Field, and then click the Set Button.

Current Status File Reading Restricted	: Restriction Privilege 5	
	estriction (Ladder/Motion/C L	anguage)
Restriction Privilege	5 💌 and higher are	restricted,
Controller eq CPU->CARD regardless of restriction is	uipped with CF card module is is prohibited the restriction privilege when	s used, save to In the file reading
	- <u>-</u>	- (
curity Key	****	Set
ecurity Key ecurity Key Confirmation		Set to No

2. If the change in file reading restriction has been normally applied to the Controller, the status will change from **File Reading Restricted** to **No Security Setting** in the **Current Status** Area.

File Reading Restricted:	Restrictio Privilege 0	
Apply File Reading Re	striction (Ladder/Motion/C Lang	guage)
Restriction Privilege	5 T and higher are res	stricted.
Controller equ	ipped with CF card module is us	sed, save to
/ I CPU-SCARD is	; prohibited	
CPU->CARD is regardless of t restriction is se	; prohibited the restriction privilege when th et,	ne file reading
CPU->CARD is regardless of t restriction is se Security Key	: prohibited the restriction privilege when th et.	ne file reading
CPU->CARD is regardless of t restriction is so Security Key	; prohibited the restriction privilege when th et.	set Set to None

#### [e] Changing the Security Key

The security key can be changed with the security settings made. This procedure will change only the security settings.

1. Open the Security Setting Dialog Box, and then click the Change the Security Key Button.

File Reading Restri	icted: Restriction Privilege 0
🔽 Apply File Readin	ng Restriction (Ladder/Motion/C Language)
Restriction Privileg	e 5 💌 and higher are restricted.
A Controlle	and the second state of th
CPU->CA regardles restriction	r equipped with UF Card module is used, save to ARD is prohibited is of the restriction privilege when the file reading n is set.
CONTROLLE CPU->CA regardles restriction	r equipped with Cr Card module is used, save to RRD is prohibited so of the restriction privilege when the file reading in is set.
ecurity Key Confirmat	If equipped with CF card module is used, save to MRD is prohibited as of the restriction privilege when the file reading is set.

A dialog box for changing the security key will be displayed as shown in the following figure.



2. Enter the set password in the Current Security Key Field. Enter the new password in the New Security Key Field and New Security Key Confirmation Field. Click the OK Button to apply the change to the Controller.



#### [f] Releasing Security

The security can be released with the security settings made. This procedure will initialize the security settings.

1. Enter the set password in the Security Key Field, and then click the Set to None Button.

Eile Reading Restricted	Partriction Drivilage 5	
File Reading Restricted:	Restriction Privilege 5	
Apply File Reading Re	striction (Ladder/Motion/C Lang	uage) ——
Restriction Privilege	5 💌 and higher are rest	ricted.
Controller equ CPU->CARD is regardless of restriction is si	ipped with CF card module is use s prohibited the restriction privilege when the et.	ed, save to e file reading
		-
urity Key	****	Set
urity Key urity Key Confirmation	****	Set to No

The text **No Security Setting** will be displayed in the **Current Status** Area if the security release has been normally applied to the Controller.

No Security Setting		
	striction (Ladder/Motion/C Langu	lade)
Restriction Privilege	5  and higher are rest	ricted.
Controller equ CPU->CARD is regardless of t restriction is se	ipped with CF card module is use s prohibited the restriction privilege when the et.	d, save to file reading
Controller equ CPU->CARD is regardless of t restriction is se	ipped with CF card module is use prohibited the restriction privilege when the et.	d, save to file reading Set
Controller equ CPU->CARD is regardless of t restriction is so ecurity Key ecurity Key Confirmation	ipped with CF card module is use s prohibited her estriction privilege when the et.	d, save to file reading Set Set to None

#### (5) Security Operation

#### [a] Privilege Settings in User Applications

Privilege settings enable individually set reading privilege levels and writing privilege levels in the properties for each application (i.e., ladder, motion, or C language).

Program Name	ain Program		
Configuration	🖃 File privilege	0, 1	1
<ul> <li>Detail definition</li> </ul>	Read	0	
Modified history	Write	1	
	🗉 Use register num	32, 0, 0	
	D register	32	
	Work register	0	
	# register	0	
		<u>.</u>	

The figure above shows the dialog box for ladder (DWG) properties.

#### [b] File Reading with Security Settings

The system will activate a security check if an attempt is made to read a user application with the MPE720 after security settings have been made. If the reading privilege level of the application is equal to or higher than the security restriction privilege level, an error will occur, and you will not be able to read the application. The same will occur when a comparison is performed between the CPU Unit and MPE720.

Error Ge	enerating Information	×
	Error code :0xA0042407 The file cannot be opened.	
[CAUSE] 1. The use [SOLUTIO 1. Log on	er does not have access permission to read the file. N] as a user with the proper access permission to view this file.	
	Close	

Fig. E.1 This Error Message is Displayed If an Attempt is Made to Open a User Application (i.e., ladder, motion, or C language).

#### (6) Initialization

Set ON the INIT of DIP switch for the Controller and then turn ON the power supply. Memory will be cleared and operation will start. The security settings will also be initialized.

#### (7) Security-related System Registers

The security setting status can be checked by using the following system registers.

Name	Register Number		Description
Security Status	SW00506	0: No security, 1: Security set	
		SB005070 to SB005073	File Reading Restriction Privilege SW00507=***xH x: Restriction privilege level (0 to 7)
Security Reading Re-	SW00507	SB005074 to SB005076	Reserved by system.
		SB005077	0: File reading not restricted 1: File reading restricted
		SB005078 to SB00507F	Reserved by system.

#### (8) Application Precautions

• The security settings data is saved in flash memory.

When starting from flash memory, an operation will be performed according to the status when data was saved to flash memory. Therefore, be sure to save the data to flash memory after making the security settings if the Controller will be started from flash memory.

- Security function does not apply when offline (i.e., when the MPE720 is used alone). You cannot make security settings even if you log on offline. Manage offline data so that applications are protected from being disclosed.
- Always enter at least one alphanumeric character for the security key. To ensure security, at least one alphanumeric character must be entered in the security key. Although no key can guarantee foolproof security, you can increase the security of your key by entering a mixture of uppercase, lowercase, and numeric characters (e.g., A to Z, a to Z, and 0 to 9).

E.3 Battery Backup for Table Data

### E.3 Battery Backup for Table Data

#### (1) Overview of Functions

For the MP2000 Series, one table consists of the following three types of data.

- 1. Table definitions (e.g., definitions of table name, table type, number of columns, and number of rows)
- 2. Attribute definitions (e.g., definitions for column names, data type (size), and table type)
- 3. Table data

Normally, the data listed above is placed in volatile memory in the same way as drawings. Therefore, data will not be held the next time operation is started unless the data has been saved to flash memory. To back up the data when the power supply is turned OFF, you can place the table data (item number three above) into memory that is backed up with a battery. This is called "battery backup memory." You can access table data that has been backed up using this function by following normal table data operation instructions.

#### (2) Applicable Models

• CPU-02/CPU-03/CPU-04

#### (3) Supported Versions

- Controller: Version 2.32 or later
- MPE720: Version 5.21 or later
- MPE720 Version 6: All versions

#### (4) Battery Backup Memory Capacity

- CPU-02: 1 MB (including data used by the system)
- CPU-03/CPU-04: 3 MB (including data used by the system)

#### (5) System Registers for Battery Backup Memory Capacity

Data related to battery backup memory is stored in the system registers given in the following table.

Name	Register Number	Remarks
Battery Backup Memory Remaining Capacity	SL00640	Bytes
Battery Backup Memory Total Capacity	SL00642	Bytes

#### (6) Setting Procedure for Using Battery Backup Memory

Use the following procedure.

1. Open the Table Data Store Target Window from the MPE720.

			Table Data	n Attribute T	lum
me Table Type Lines Column Table data store Comment	Lines Column Table data store	Lines	Table Type	Table Name	

2. Select File - Create New to open the Table Definition Dialog Box.

able Definition		
Table Name		
Table Type	Аггау Туре	
Column	0	
Lines	0	
Table Comment		
Table data store target	Normal	
I able data store target	Normal CK	Cancel

3. Select Battery Backup in the Table data store target List.

Table Name	HTBL001
Table Type	Array Type
Column	2
Lines	10
Table Comment	
Table data store target	Normal

E.3 Battery Backup for Table Data

**4.** When you finish setting the table definitions, the window for setting the column attribute definitions will be displayed to allow you to enter the required data.



**5.** After saving the attribute definitions and returning to the **Table Data Store Target** Window, the following figure will be displayed.

					10	
D. Table Na DO1 HTBLOO	Array Type	<u>  Lines</u> 00010	00002 B	lattery backup	Lomment	

**6.** Table data will be displayed as in the following figure.

data	MP2200-0	03 Online Local			_ 🗆 ×
CPU#: 1					
me HTBLOO	1	Columns 00002	Lines 00010	Table data store targe Battery backup	>
1	2				
clumn 1	clumn1				
000000	000000				
000000	000000				
000000	000000				
000000	000000				
000000	000000				
000000	000000				
000000	000000				
000000	000000				
000000	000000				
000000	000000				
	PU#: 1 PU#: 1 1 clumn1 000000 000000 000000 000000 000000	I         2           I         2           clumn1         clumn1           000000         000000           000000         000000           000000         000000           000000         000000           000000         000000           000000         000000           000000         000000           000000         000000           000000         000000           000000         000000           000000         000000           000000         000000	Image: column and col	I         Columns         00002         Lines         00010           1         2 <td< td=""><td>Data         PP/2200-05 Glimite         Local           PU#:         I         Image: Columns         00002         Lines         D0010         Table data store targe         Battery backup           1         2         Image: Column 1         Column 1         Column 1         Column 2         Column</td></td<>	Data         PP/2200-05 Glimite         Local           PU#:         I         Image: Columns         00002         Lines         D0010         Table data store targe         Battery backup           1         2         Image: Column 1         Column 1         Column 1         Column 2         Column

#### (7) Application Precautions

- a) Always save data to the flash memory before turning OFF the power supply if new table data is created or definitions are changed by using this function. Table definitions and column attribute definitions will be saved to volatile memory even if battery backup memory is specified for the table data store target. Therefore, the table itself will be deleted the next time the system is started if data is not saved to the flash memory after table definitions have been created. Also, access will be normally performed if the definitions have been changed and the table names before and after the change are the same. Actually, however, you will be accessing the table data store target with the status from before the change, and the entire battery backup memory data will be incorrect.
- b) Tables with their table data store target set to battery backup memory will start with table data in the status that existed before the power supply was turned OFF (when starting from flash memory). The table data, however, will be unstable (same as for M registers) if the data has not been held because the battery is not mounted or the battery voltage is low. In this case, you can use the system normally by initializing the table data.
- c) If you turn ON the INIT of DIP switch pin and then turn ON the power supply, the battery backup memory data will be cleared to all zeroes. To recover the data, dump it in advance, and then reload it.
- d) If the table data store target is set to battery backup memory, areas allocated to table data will be allocated in block units. Empty blocks may occur if you repeatedly delete and save definitions. To delete these empty blocks, dump the data, initialize the battery backup memory, and then reload the data.
- e) If the table data store target is changed, the table data will be cleared to all zeros even if there is no change in the size.

# Appendix F Installing MPE720 Version 6

MPE720 Version 6 (CPMC-MPE770) is the Engineering Tool for the MP2000-series Machine Controllers.

With this Tool installed on a computer and with a connection to a Machine Controller through a Communication Module, you can program, control, and monitor the Controller from computer windows.

When you purchase MPE720 version 6, you will receive an installation CD-ROM.

Use this installation CD-ROM to install MPE720 version 6.

For the installation procedure, refer to the *Engineering Tool for MP2000 Series Machine Controller MPE720 Version 6* User's Manual (manual no.: SIEP C880700 30).

If you register online as a user of MPE720 version 6, you can download upgraded versions of the product free of charge for two years from the time of purchase from the Yaskawa e-Mecha website (http://www.e-mechatronics.com).

We will also send you e-mail notification of version upgrades to the product as they are released. You must register as a member of the e-Mecha website before registering as an online user. If you are unable to use the online download service, please use the MPE720 Version 6 CD Dispatch Application that is included with the installation CD-ROM.

# **INDEX**

#### Symbols

# registers---------- 5-36

## Numerics

100Base-TX	2-38, 2-72, 3-14
10Base-T	
215AIF-01 module	
217IF-01 module	
218IF-01 module	
218IF-02 module	
218IFA module	2-38
configuration definition	
detailed definition window	2-42
functions	2-38
specifications	
218IFC module	
configuration definition	2-75
detailed definition window	
functions	
specifications	
260IF-01 module	
261IF-01 module	
262IF-01 module	2-78
263IF-01 module	

#### Α

accessories	1-15
actions to be taken when an I/O error occurs	8-22
address	5-39
AI-01 module	2-78
allocation contact interlock	5-27
AO-01 module	2-78
ARP	2-39, 2-73
automatic negotiation	2-39, 2-73
automatically reception dialog box	2-49
P	

#### В

base unit	2-6
AC-input power supply	2-6
connection	3-10
DC-input power supply	2-6
external appearance	2-6
hardware specifications	2-8
LED indicator	2-7
short rack	2-7
basic unit	
appearance	1-3
connection	3-10
external dimensions	2-79
batch load from Compact Flash	2-23
batch save to Compact Flash	2-22
batch transfer	4-15
battery	1-15
bit	5-39
C	

cables 1-1	3
calling a motion program	
direct designation 5-1	7
indirect designation 5-1	8

CARD module connector 3-13,	3-14
causes for command error occurrence	8-32
child drawings	- 5-7
CNTR-01 module	2-78
communication buffer channel	A-83
communication interface 2-39	2-73
communication module	2_78
communication protocols	2-73
communication with other MB series	6 2
	- 0-3
master	( 24
with ladder program	6 47
	0-4/
slave	()
with automatic receive function	- 6-3
with ladder program	6-16
communication with PLC by Mitsubishi Electric Corporation	6-/3
master	6-80
slave	6-73
communication with touch panel	6-63
Compact Flash	2-19
functions	2-20
system registers	2-20
Compact Flash card	2-19
Compact Flash slot specifications	3-13
compiling	4-11
connection parameter setting2.16	2_51
contection parameter setting 2-40,	5 26
	5-30
	5-21
correcting user program errors	8-11
counter interrupts	8-25
cover for option slot	1-15
CPU-01 and CPU-02 module	
definition information	5-51
CPU-01 module	- 2-9
external appearance	- 2-9
hardware specifications	2-11
LED indicators	- 2-9
overview of functions	- 2-9
SVR module-	2-12
SW1	2 10
Sw1	2-10
switch settings	2-10
	2-12
CPU-02 module	2-15
CARD module	2-19
connections	3-13
external appearance	2-15
hardware specifications	2-18
LED indicators	2-16
overview of functions	2-15
SVR module	2-18
SW1	2-16
SW2	2-17
switch settings	2-16
virtual motion module	2-10
CDU 02 and CDU 04 metals	2-10
CPU-03 and CPU-04 module	
connections	3-14
definition information	5-53
CPU-03 module	2-33
CARD module	2-37
external appearance	2-34
hardware specifications	2-37
LED indicators	2-34
overview of functions	2-33
SVR module	2-37
SW1	2-35

2-36
2-35
2-37
2-68
2-69
2-71
2-69
2-68
2-71
2-70
2-70
2-70
2-71
4-9
4-11

#### D

D registers	5-36
daily inspections	8-2
data registers	5-36
data types	5-39
debug mode	4-16
definition information updated with self-configuration	5-51
DI interrupts	8-25
difference between Ethernet (LP) and Ethernet	A-18
differences from SVB simulation mode	2-14
DIN rail	
fixing	3-4
mounting	3-2
mounting parts	1-15
mounting procedure	3-3
DIP switch settings	5-2
DO-01 module	2-78
double-length integer	5-39
drawing A	5-7
drawing execution control	5-8
drawing H	5-7
drawing I	5-7
drawing L	5-7
DWG	5-7
DWG registers	5-36
DWG.A	5-7
DWG.H	5-7
DWG.I	5-7
DWG.L	5-7

#### Ε

easy setting dialog box	2-48, 2-53
encoder cable	4-4, 7-4
error list dialog box	4-11
Ethernet	2-38, 2-72
Ethernet cable	3-14
Ethernet communication methods	6-2
Ethernet connection example	3-15
Ethernet connector	3-14
executing a motion program	4-18
executing motion	7-14
execution schedule for scan processing drawings	5-8
EXIOIF module	
cables	3-19
connections	3-18
connectors	3-18
external appearance	2-76
hardware specifications	
overview of functions	

external function registers	5-37
F	
fixed parameter list	A-5
function input registers	5-37

function output registers	5-37	
function registers	5-37	
functions5	5-7, 5-11	
G		
grandchild drawings	5-7	

grandchild drawings	5-7
group definitions 4	-10
group operation 5	-12

#### Η

hardware driver installation	-25
hierarchical structure of drawings	5-9
how to designate a motion program 5-	-17
how to designate register 5-	-41
how to disable a user program 8	-13
how to disable the I/O process 8	-14
how to forcibly turn ON/OFF coil 8	-14
how to immediately control a motion program from external	
equipment 5	-27
how to operate work register 5-	-24

#### I

I/O message communication	2-51, 2-53
ICMP	2-39, 2-73
individual transfer	4-15
INIT	5-44
input registers	5-36
input/output module	2-78
inspection items	8-2
installing MPE720 version 6	A-98
integer	5-39
internal function registers	5-37
interpolation override	5-22
interrupt status	8-25
IP	2-39, 2-73
J	,

#### _ _

JZSP-BA01 -----

#### L

----- 8-4

ladder drawings	5-7
LAN cable	4-4, 7-4
LED indicator details	5-5
LIO-01/LIO-02 module	2-78
LIO-04/ LIO-05 module	2-78
LIO-06 module	2-78

#### Μ

main program	5-12, 5-33
making a 100/200-VAC power supply cable	3-11
making a 24-VDC power supply cable	3-12
MBU-01	2-8
MBU-01 power supply connector	3-10
MBU-02	2-8
MBU-02/MBU-03 power supply connector	3-12
MBU-03	2-8
MECHATROLINK-I/-II-compatible devices	1-10
modules	1-11
SERVOPACKs	1-10
MECHATROLINK-III-compatible devices	1-12
modules	1-12

SERVOPACKs 1-12	2
MELSEC protocol 6-7.	3
message communication 2-45, 2-46, 2-48, 2-49	9
message receive function A-5.	3
message send function A-20	0
M-EXECUTOR definition 5-54	4
M-EXECUTOR module 2-57, 2-75	5
allocation control register tab 2-6.	3
configuration definition 2-59	9
execution scheduling 2-60	6
function overview 2-5'	7
initializing 7-	9
program definition tab 2-6	1
program execution registry screen dialog box 2-6	5
specifications 2-58	8
module information 8-22	5
monitoring parameter list A-12	2
motion editor 4-1	1
motion program 5-12	2
alarm codes 8-30	0
alarms 8-28	8
calling a motion program 5-1	7
execution information 5-30	0
program numbers 5-12	2
registering a motion program for execution 4-12	2
status flag 5-20	0
motion program executor 2-57, 2-75	5
motion program without using a ladder program 2-5	7
MP22001-2	2
error check flow 8-0	6
features 1-2	2
general specifications 2-2	3
installation clearance 3-0	6
modules	4
mounting direction 3-:	5
mounting methods 3-2	2
product specifications2-4	4
system configuration precautions 1-9	9
MPE720 1-1:	5
MSG-RCV A-52	3
MSG-SND A-20	0
MSG-SND/MSG-RCV functions A-20	0
multiple group operation 5-12	2

#### Ν

non-procedure receive buffer mode selection ----- 2-39, 2-74

#### 0

online self-diagnosis	5-4
operation error processing drawings	5-7
operation in case of scan time over	8-15
operation start	5-4
operation stop	5-4
optional cover	3-9
optional module	2-77
overview list	2-77
optional modules	1-4
installing	3-9
removing	3-7
replacing and adding	3-7
options	1-15
output registers	5-36

#### Ρ

parent drawings	5-7
PLC function specifications	2-5

PO-01 module 2-77
power supply connector 1-15
precautions 5-55
setting or changing module configuration definition files 5-56
setting or changing the scan time 5-57
setting or changing user definition files 5-55
using MP2200 5-55
program control method 2-58
program debugging 4-16

program control method 2-	-58
program debugging 4-	16
program information used by work n 5-	-32
program software numbers A	<b>\-</b> 4
programming	7-9
programming tool 1-	15
_	

#### R

real number 5-	-39
recommended ferritic core 3-	-17
register number direct designation 5-	-41
registers 5-	-36
regular inspections	8-3
remaining program memory capacity A	<b>\-</b> 4
repeater hub 3	-15
replacing the basic unit battery	8-4

#### S

S register 5-30
saving a program to flash memory 4-17
scan execution status and calendar A-4
scan time set value examples 5-58
screwed method 3-2
self-configuration 5-4, 5-42
all the modules 5-45
each module 5-48
procedure using MPE720 5-45
procedure using the DIP switch 5-43
self-diagnosis at startup 5-4
sequence program 2-57, 5-33
alarm 5-35
calling a sequence program 5-34
program numbers 5-33
status flag 5-35
setting parameter list A-7
short rack 2-7
simple connection function of the engineering tool A-16
single group operation 5-12
standard system functions 5-11
starting motion program from an external signal 7-17
startup sequence 5-2
step in icon 4-16
subprogram 5-12, 5-33
subscripts i, j 5-40
SVA-01 module 2-77
SVB-01 module 2-77
SVC-01 module 2-77
SVR2-12, 2-18, 2-37, 2-71
SVR definition 5-52, 5-54
SVR execution timing 2-14
SVR motion parameter list A-5
SVR processing time 2-14
symbol designation 5-41
system configuration example 1-6
system connection example 3-20
system error 8-8
status 8-17

#### system errors

troubleshooting flowchart	8-10
system I/O error status	8-21
system registers	5-36
accessing	8-9
allocations	8-8
configuration	8-16
lists	A-2
system service execution status	8-21
system service registers	A-2
system startup	4-2, 7-2
executing motion	7-14
programming	7-12
self-configuration	4-5, 7-5
test operation	4-6, 7-6
wiring	4-3, 7-3
system status	8-16
system work number	5-23

#### Т

ТСР	2-39, 2-73
total number of system works	5-23
transferring a program	4-14
troubleshooting	8-5
LED indicator meaning	8-6

#### U

UDP	2-39, 2-73
USB cable	
USB communications driver installation	2-25
USB connectors	3-13
USB module	2-24
general specifications	2-24
LED display	2-25
overview	2-24
user functions	5-11
user operation error status	8-19
user programs	5-6
W	

#### work register ------5-19, 5-35

#### **Revision History**

The revision dates and numbers of the revised manuals are given on the bottom of the back cover.

MANUAL NO. SIEP C880700 14C Published in Japan April 2010 04-9 -1 Date of Date of original publication publication

Date of Publication	Rev. No.	WEB Rev. No.	Section	Revised Contents	
September 2011	$\Diamond$	3	D.1.1, D.2.1	Revision: Communication device type Ethernet (218IFA/218IFC) = 16 → Ethernet (218IFA/218IFB/218IFC) = 16	
July 2011		2	1.5.3	Revision: Supported version of MPE720 for CPU-02 Version 5.30 or higher → Version 5.31B or later	
		1	2.2.3, 8.1.2	Revision: Input voltage 85 to 276 VAC $\rightarrow$ 85 to 132 VAC / 198 to 276 VAC	
May 2011		0	-	SIEP C880700 14D<6>-1, available on the Web.	
April 2011	6	1	8.2.4 (5) [b]	Revision: Description of *1 to *3	
February 2011		0	-	SIEP C880700 14C<5>-3, available on the Web.	
December 2010	$\langle 5 \rangle$	3	Preface, 1.2.2	Addition: Description of MPU-01 Module (JAPMC-CP2700-E)	
			1.5.1	Revision: Cable-side connector model 10114-3000VE → 10114-3000PE	
			8.2.4 (5) [b]	Addition: 0051H (Module synchronous error)	
October 2010		2	Front cover, back cover	Revision: Format	
			E.2 [d]	Addition: Description of a controller software version	
August 2010		1	3.2.1 (2) [b]	Revision: Size of twisted-pair cable	
			A.1 (1)	Addition: Description of * of SB000005 and SB000006	
			Back cover	Revision: Address	
May 2010		0	-	SIEP C880700 14C<4>-1, available on the Web.	
April 2010	$\langle \hat{4} \rangle$	1	Preface	Addition: ■ Terms Used to Describe "Torque"	
				2.2.3	Addition: Allowable Power Loss Time
			6.3.1 (1)	Revision: The other device to be connected in step 4 ⓑ and ⑦ MP2300 → touch panel	
November 2009		0	All chapters	Completely revised	
			Back cover	Revision: Address	
October 2006	$\langle \hat{3} \rangle$	-	-	Based on Japanese user's manual, SIJP C880700 14C<4>-0, printed in October 2006.	
		4.4	New section added: CPU-02 Module		
			2.4.2, 7.2	Revision: Accessory battery model ZZK000064 → JZSP-BA01	
April 2006	$\langle 2 \rangle$	-	_	Based on Japanese user's manual, SIJP C880700 14B<2>-1, available on the Web.	
August 2005	⇒	-	Back cover	Revision: Address	
September 2004	-	-	-	First edition	

# Machine Controller MP2200 USER'S MANUAL

#### **IRUMA BUSINESS CENTER (SOLUTION CENTER)**

480, Kamifujisawa, Iruma, Saitama 358-8555, Japan Phone 81-4-2962-5151 Fax 81-4-2962-6138

#### YASKAWA AMERICA, INC.

2121 Norman Drive South, Waukegan, IL 60085, U.S.A. Phone (800) YASKAWA (800-927-5292) or 1-847-887-7000 Fax 1-847-887-7310

YASKAWA ELÉTRICO DO BRASIL LTDA. Avenida Fagundes Filho, 620 São Paulo-SP CEP 04304-000, Brazil Phone 55-11-3585-1100 Fax 55-11-5581-8795

 YASKAWA EUROPE GmbH

 Hauptstraβe 185, Eschborn 65760, Germany

 Phone 49-6196-569-300
 Fax 49-6196-569-398

YASKAWA ELECTRIC UK LTD. 1 Hunt Hill Orchardton Woods Cumbernauld, G68 9LF, United Kingdom Phone 44-1236-735000 Fax 44-1236-458182

YASKAWA ELECTRIC KOREA CORPORATION 7F, Doore Bldg. 24, Yeoido-dong, Yeoungdungpo-gu, Seoul 150-877, Korea Phone 82-2-784-7844 Fax 82-2-784-8495

YASKAWA ELECTRIC (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD. 151 Lorong Chuan, #04-01, New Tech Park 556741, Singapore Phone 65-6282-3003 Fax 65-6289-3003

YASKAWA ELECTRIC (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD. No.18 Xizang Zhong Road. 17F, Harbour Ring Plaza Shanghai 200001, China Phone 86-21-5385-2200 Fax 86-21-5385-3299

YASKAWA ELECTRIC (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD. BEIJING OFFICE Room 1011, Tower W3 Oriental Plaza, No.1 East Chang An Ave., Dong Cheng District, Beijing 100738, China Phone 86-10-8518-4086 Fax 86-10-8518-4082

YASKAWA ELECTRIC TAIWAN CORPORATION 9F, 16, Nanking E. Rd., Sec. 3, Taipei 104, Taiwan Phone 886-2-2502-5003 Fax 886-2-2505-1280



#### YASKAWA ELECTRIC CORPORATION

In the event that the end user of this product is to be the military and said product is to be employed in any weapons systems or the manufacture thereof, the export will fail under the relevant regulations as stipulated in the Foreign Exchange and Foreign Trade Regulations. Therefore, be sure to follow all procedures and submit all relevant documentation according to any and all rules, regulations and laws that may apply. Specifications are subject to change without notice for ongoing product modifications and improvements. © 2004-2011 YASKAWA ELECTRIC CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

MANUAL NO. SIEP C880700 14E Published in Japan September 2011 04-9 3-3 10-10-4